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WE STAND UP

Our founding mission was to provide investors with the opportunity to invest in
some of America’s most innovative, venture capital and private equity-backed
companies in technology-related markets. Today we are one of the largest business
development companies focused on the venture capital industry that enable investors
to engage in these unique opportunities.

Our focus is to work with entrepreneurial companies to help them grow their
businesses. Our financing solutions offer the flexibility that growing companies
require as they evolve and change. We seek to serve our shareholders’ interests
through disciplined due diligence processes and the ability to work closely with
our portfolio companies.

We are distinguished by multiple aspects of our disciplined approach:

* Focus on high-growth, venture-backed companies;

* Entrepreneurial perspective backed by the capital strength and the transparency
of the public market;

* Emphasis on technology, biotechnology, life science and cleantech companies
and an understanding of the distinct growth challenges they face;

* Approach to every investment with an investor’s, not a lender’s, mindset.

The result is that we stand up for our shareholders through our commitment to our
original mission, and to date we have declared 30 consecutive quarterly dividends.

NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE UNDER SYMBOL: HTGC
BOND QUOTES UNDER NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE SYMBOLS: HTGZ, HTGY



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

US dollars in millions, except per-share amounts 2010 2011
Total Investment Income $ 59.5 $ 79.9
Net Investment Income (NII) 29.4 39.6
NIl per Share 0.80 0.91
Declared Dividends per Share 0.80 0.88
Investments, Fair Value 472.0 652.9
Cash and Cash Equivalents 107.0 64.5
Total Assets 591.2 747.4
Total Liabilities 178.7 316.4
Total Net Assets 412.5 431.0
COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN $264.2 MILLION, OR $7.64 PER SHARE, IN DIVIDENDS PAID TO
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TO OUR VALUED SHAREHOLDERS,

2012 was monumental for Hercules, and we executed across all areas
of our business. Throughout the year we strategically diversified our
liquidity sources and positioned our balance sheet and platform to handle
the robust demand for venture debt that we saw in the marketplace.

We deployed significant liquidity into accretive
earnings assets for our shareholders, growing
our total investment assets by approximately
38.8 percent year-over-year to $906.3 million, our
highest level since inception. We generated strong
growth in total and net investment income for the
full year and achieved 12 liquidity events for our
warrant and equity portfolio, in turn creating value for
our shareholders. We believe we have distinguished
ourselves as the business development company
(BDC) leader in venture lending.

Portfolio Growth

In 2012 Hercules reached the $3.4 billion mark in
total commitments since our founding in December
2003 to over 220 technology-related companies,
including companies in the technology, biotechnology,
life science and cleantech industries at all stages
of development.

We are proud of the following portfolio achievements:

* We originated commitments to new and existing
portfolio companies of approximately $636.6
million, a company record.

* Our total investment assets reached approximately
$906.3 million at December 31, 2012, an increase
of 38.8 percent year-over-year and the highest level
since inception.

* We held warrant positions in approximately 116
portfolio companies and direct equity positions in
over 38 different portfolio companies at year-end.

+ Over 98.0 percent of our debt investments were
in a senior secured position as of December 31,
2012, and 98.5 percent of our debt investment
portfolio was priced at floating interest rates or
floating interest rates with a prime- or LIBOR-based
interest rate floor.
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* Our credit quality remained excellent. On a scale
of 1 to 5with 1 being the highest credit quality, we
finished the fourth quarter of 2012 with a weighted-
average loan grade of 2.06 on the portfolio.

Venture Capital Environment

The year 2012 was solid for the venture capital
industry, and we remain optimistic about the en-
vironment in 2013. Venture capital investment
totaled $29.7 billion across 3,363 deals in 2012, as
reported by Dow Jones VentureSource. The IPO
markets were strong, with 50 venture capital-backed
IPOs netting $11.2 billion in equity capital raised in
2012, an increase of 109.0 percent in deal value
from 2011. The large increase, driven by the Facebook
offering, represents the strongest annual period
for IPOs, by dollar value, since 2000. Mergers-and-
acquisitions activity totaled 403 transactions for
deal volume of $37.4 billion for 2012, as reported by
Dow Jones VentureSource. These market conditions
contributed to liquidity events for 12 of our portfolio
companies during 2012.

Strong Financial Position

The year 2012 was extremely active from a capital
markets perspective. In 2012, we focused on expanding
our leverage, further increasing our financial flexibility,
and, more importantly, laddering out our debt maturi-
ties to position the company for future growth. Our
capital markets activities included the following:

* We raised approximately $81.7 million in gross
proceeds from common stock public offerings
in January and October.

* We executed three baby bond offerings in 2012--
our first baby bond capital raises-- and issued
an aggregate of approximately $170.4 million in
principal amount of 7.0 percent Senior Unsecured
Notes due in 2019.



* We refinanced $50.0 million of SBIC debentures
at lower interest rates, generating interest expense
cost savings while extending the maturities for a
new 10-year term.

We lowered our borrowing costs on our credit
facility with Wells Fargo Capital Finance ("WFCF"),
part of Wells Fargo & Company (NYSE: WFC), under
which WFCF has committed $75.0 million in initial
credit capacity under a $300.0 million accordion
credit facility while providing additional duration
to the facility.

We issued our first term securitization with our
first investment-grade debt instrument, issuing
approximately $129.3 million in aggregate princi-
pal amount of asset-backed notes rated A2 (sf)
by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody's"),
backed by approximately $231.0 million of senior
secured loans originated by Hercules.

Our debt-to-equity, or leverage ratio as of December
31, 2012 was approximately 115.5 percent. However,
if the outstanding cash at December 31, 2012, of
approximately $183.0 million was deducted from total
debt of approximately $596.0 million and divided by
total equity of approximately $516.0 million, the net
leverage ratio would be approximately 80.1%. We
have an SEC exemptive order to exclude all our SBA
debentures from our regulatory leverage calculations.
Given the SEC exemptive order relief, Hercules can
leverage beyond the 1:1 debt-to-equity limitation. We
had the potential capacity on our balance sheet to
leverage an additional $145.0 million, bringing the
maximum potential leverage to $741.0 million, or
approximately 143.6 percent as of December 31, 2012.

In addition, during March 2013 we raised approxi-
mately $95.8 million in gross proceeds in an equity
offering, providing additional capacity to fund growth
in our portfolio.

Dividends

We distributed aggregate dividends of $0.95 per
share to our stockholders in 2012 and increased the
quarterly dividend by approximately 4.0 percent to
$0.25 per share in the first quarter of 2013.

In addition, in 2013, we intend to distribute to our
shareholders approximately $1.5 million, or approxi-
mately $0.03 per share, of spillover earnings from
2012. Hercules has declared 30 consecutive quarterly
dividends since our IPO in June 2005, bringing the
total cumulative dividends declared to $7.64 per
share at the end of 2012 and $7.89 per share at the
end of the first quarter of 2013.

Outlook for 2013

We enter 2013 with a strong portfolio of assets, a
robust balance sheet with diverse sources of capital,
a solid platform on which to grow our investment
portfolio, and a high-caliber team of experienced
investment professionals focused on delivering
value to our shareholders. We expect that by
growing our investable assets, we are positioned
to produce higher earnings and net investment
income while creating potentially greater increases
in dividends per share for our shareholders in 2013.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank our
team of investment and management professionals,
our Board of Directors, and our shareholders for
their ongoing dedication and support.

Sincerely,

Manuel A. Henriquez
Co-Founder, Chairman, and Chief Executive Officer
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WE STAND BY OUR RESULTS

2012 in Review

UPSIDE POTENTIAL
EMBEDDED IN OUR
WARRANT AND EQUITY
INVESTMENTS
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 814-00702

Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its chaet)

Maryland 74-311341C
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

400 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 310
Palo Alto, California 94301

(Address of principal executive offices)

(650) 289-3060

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12 (b) dfie Act:

Title of each clas¢ Name of each exchange on which register¢
Common Shares, par value $0.001 per sha New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edb#turities Act.  Yed No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ord}%f the Act. Yes[] No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant &5)filed all reports required to be filed by Sewcti® or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the Registrard vesjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementste past 90 days: YE®XI NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant asmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&eb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S- during the preegdi2 months (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to submit and poch files). Yes[l No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-T i$ contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgedefinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part 1l of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K1

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer, large accelerated filer” anth&dler reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Eaobe Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filel ] Accelerated filer X] Non-accelerated filef Smaller reporting company]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Actyes [ No

The aggregate market value of the voting and ndimy@ommon stock held by non-affiliates of theistéignt as of the last business day
of the registrant most recently completed second fiscal quarterapasoximately $430.5 million based upon a clogirige of $10.84 reportt
for such date on the New York Stock Exchange. Comei@res held by each executive officer and dirextd by each person who owns 5%
or more of the outstanding common shares have é&egnded in that such persons may be deemed tffilietes. This determination of
affiliate status is not intended and shall not berded to be an admission that, such persons drateéfof the Registrant.

On February 25, 2013, there were 52,913,216 slatsganding of the Registrant’'s common stock, $Djér value.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Documents incorporated by referencePortions of the registrant’s Proxy Statement f®2i013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be
filed within 120 days after the close of the regiaf's year end are incorporated by reference intolRaft this Annual Report on Form -K.
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In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, or Annual Reptire “Company,” “HTGC,” “we,” “us” and “our” refe r to Hercules Technology
Growth Capital, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidégrand its affiliated securitization trusts unlélss context otherwise requires.

PART |
ltem 1. Business
GENERAL

We are a specialty finance company focused on giyisenior secured loans to venture capital-backatpanies in technology-related
markets, including technology, biotechnology, Bfdence, and clean-technology industries at ajjestaf development. We source our
investments through our principal office locatediticon Valley, as well as through additional oéfs in Boston, MA, Boulder, CO and
McLean, VA.

Our goal is to be the leading structured debt fiivam provider of choice for venture capital-backednpanies in technology-related
markets, requiring sophisticated and customizeahiiimg solutions. Our strategy is to evaluate amdst in a broad range of technolagyatec
markets including technology, biotechnology, litéesice and clean technology industries and to affietl suite of growth capital products up
and down the capital structure. We invest primdrilgtructured debt with warrants and, to a lességnt, in senior debt and equity investme
We use the term “structured debt with warrantstetier to any debt investment, such as a senionlmorslinated secured loan, that is coupled
with an equity component, including warrants, opsi@r rights to purchase common or preferred stOck.structured debt with warrants
investments will typically be secured by some bpathe assets of the portfolio company.

Our investment objective is to maximize our portfdbtal return by generating current income fromn debt investments and capital
appreciation from our equity-related investmentsr @rimary business objectives are to increasenetimcome, net operating income and net
asset value by investing in structured debt withrarsts and equity of venture capital-backed comgmim technology-related markets with
attractive current yields and the potential foriggqappreciation and realized gains. Our structutebt investments typically include warrants
or other equity interests, giving us the potertbalealize equity-like returns on a portion of @uwestments. Our equity ownership in our
portfolio companies may represent a controllingiiest. In some cases, we receive the right to md##ional equity investments in our
portfolio companies, including the right to convesime portion of our debt into equity, in connettiath future equity financing rounds.
Capital that we provide directly to venture capliatked companies in technology-related markegsierally used for growth and general
working capital purposes as well as in select cimescquisitions or recapitalizations.

We also make investments in qualifying small busses through two wholly-owned, small business itmeat company (“SBIC")
subsidiaries, Hercules Technology II, L.P. (“HT)I&nd Hercules Technology Ill, L.P. (“HT 1lI"). HM and HT Il hold approximately $154.4
million and $250.8 million in assets, respectivelgd accounted for approximately 10.5% and 17.0%uototal assets prior to consolidation at
December 31, 2012. We have issued $225.0 millid@8A-guaranteed debentures in our SBIC subsidiaribgh is the maximum amount
allowed for a group of SBICs under common contgale “—Regulation—Small Business Administration Ratjons” for additional
information regarding our SBIC subsidiaries.

Our portfolio is comprised of, and we anticipatattbur portfolio will continue to be comprised ofyestments primarily in technology-
related companies at various stages of their dpwedmt. Consistent with regulatory requirementsjrwest primarily in United States based
companies and to a lesser extent in foreign conggani
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We focus our investments in companies active irtébbnology industry sub-sectors characterizedrbyyrcts or services that require
advanced technologies, including, but not limitedcomputer software and hardware, networking systsemiconductors, semiconductor
capital equipment, information technology infrasture or services, Internet consumer and busiresies, telecommunications,
telecommunications equipment, renewable or altermanergy, media and life science. Within the &iééence sub-sector, we generally focus
on medical devices, bio-pharmaceutical, drug disopwdrug delivery, health care services and infdiom systems companies. Within the
clean technology sukector, we focus on sustainable and renewable gbecfnologies and energy efficiency and monitoteghnologies. W
refer to all of these companies as “technologyteefacompanies and intend, under normal circum&sno invest at least 80% of the value of
our assets in such businesses.

CORPORATE HISTORY AND OFFICES

We are a Maryland Corporation formed in Decemb&32Bat began investment operations in Septemti®t.20e are an internally
managed, non-diversified closed-end investment emyphat has elected to be regulated as a busieestopment company under the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, ot #4€ Act. As a business development company, weeargred to comply with certain
regulatory requirements. For instance, we genelalilse to invest at least 70% of our total assetqualifying assets,” including securities of
private U.S. companies, cash, cash equivalents,do¥&rnment securities and high-quality debt itwesits that mature in one year or less. A
business development company also must meet aag®/eatio of total net assets to total senior seesyrwhich include all of our borrowings
(including accrued interest payable) except forehétires issued by the Small Business Administratothe SBA, and any preferred stock we
may issue in the future, of at least 200% subsddoezach borrowing or issuance of senior secsritee “ltem 1. Business—Regulation as a
Business Development Company”.

From incorporation through December 31, 2005, weevi@xed as a corporation under Subchapter C dhteenal Revenue Code, or the
Code. As of January 1, 2006, we have elected toehded for federal income tax purposes as a reggilavestment company, or a RIC, under
Subchapter M of the Code. Pursuant to this electi@ngenerally will not have to pay corporate-leteales on any income that we distribute to
our stockholders. However, such an election andifgqpadion to be treated as a RIC requires thatoamply with certain requirements contail
in Subchapter M of the Code. For example, a RICtmmeet certain requirements, including source-obime, asset diversification and income
distribution requirements. The income source regmént mandates that we receive 90% or more ofrmonie from qualified earnings,
typically referred to as “good income.”

Our principal executive offices are located at #Ha0nilton Avenue, Suite 310, Palo Alto, Californié3®1, and our telephone number is
(650) 289-3060. We also have offices in Boston, BAulder, CO and McLean, VA. We maintain a websitethe Internet at www.htgc.com.
Information contained on our website is not incogted by reference into this Annual Report, and steould not consider that information to
be part of this Annual Report.

We file annual, quarterly and current periodic mggoroxy statements and other information with #EC under the Securities Exchang
Act of 1934, which we refer to as the Exchange Atis information is available at the SEC’s pubbéerence room at 100 F Street, N.E.,
Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain informatidrout the operation of the SEC's public referemaa by calling the SEC at (202) 551-
8090. In addition, the SEC maintains an Interndisite, at www.sec.gov, that contains reports, prxy information statements, and other
information regarding issuers, including us, wHe documents electronically with the SEC.

OUR MARKET OPPORTUNITY

We believe that technology-related companies coenipedne of the largest and most rapidly growingtaes of the U.S. economy and
that continued growth is supported by ongoing iratmn and performance
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improvements in technology products as well asatf@ption of technology across virtually all indiesrin response to competitive pressures.
We believe that an attractive market opportunitigtsxfor a specialty finance company focused pripan investments in structured debt with
warrants in technology-related companies for thieviong reasons:

» Technolog-related companies have generally been undersegvadditional lending source

» Unfulfiled demand exists for structured debt finang to technologyelated companies as the number of lenders hamdddue t(
the recent financial market turmoil; a

» Structured debt with warrants products are lesgidé and complement equity financing from ventcapital and private equity
funds.

Technology-Related Companies are Underserved bydianal Lenders.We believe many viable technology-related compabéeked
by financial sponsors have been unable to obtdficgnt growth financing from traditional lendeiiscluding financial services companies
such as commercial banks and finance companiesifeteditional lenders have continued to constdidad have adopted a more risk-avers
approach to lending. More importantly, we belienaglitional lenders are typically unable to undetathe risk associated with these compa
effectively.

The unique cash flow characteristics of many tetdgyerelated companies include significant researchdawlopment expenditures ¢
high projected revenue growth thus often makindghsrampanies difficult to evaluate from a creditgperctive. In addition, the balance sheets
of these companies often include a disproportidpddege amount of intellectual property assetsiclitan be difficult to value. Finally, the
speed of innovation in technology and rapid shiftsonsumer demand and market share add to theutfiffin evaluating technology-related
companies.

Due to the difficulties described above, we belitagitional lenders are generally refraining frentering the structured mezzanine
marketplace, instead preferring the risk-rewardijgrof asset based lending. Traditional lendensegally do not have flexible product
offerings that meet the needs of technology-relatadpanies. The financing products offered by tralal lenders typically impose on
borrowers many restrictive covenants and conditior@duding limiting cash outflows and requiringignificant depository relationship to
facilitate rapid liquidation.

Unfulfilled Demand for Structured Debt Financing tdechnology-Related CompanieRrivate debt capital in the form of structured
financing from specialty finance companies contmteebe an important source of funding for techgglcelated companies. We believe that
the level of demand for structured debt financeg function of the level of annual venture eqintestment activity.

We believe that demand for structured debt finag@@rcurrently underserved, in part because otthdit market collapse in 2008 and
resulting exit of debt capital providers to tectogy-related companies. The venture capital maxkethie technology-related companies in
which we invest has been active and is continuinghbw signs of increased investment activity. €fae, to the extent we have capital
available, we believe this is an opportune timbdactive in the structured lending market for texdbgy-related companies.

Structured Debt with Warrants Products Complemenjuiity Financing From Venture Capital and Private gty Funds.We believe
that technology-related companies and their firdrgponsors will continue to view structured dedatigities as an attractive source of capital
because it augments the capital provided by verapéal and private equity funds. We believe that structured debt with warrants product
provides access to growth capital that otherwisg omdy be available through incremental investmdytgxisting equity investors. As such,
we provide portfolio companies and their finansipbnsors with an opportunity to diversify their italpsources. Generally, we believe
technology-related companies at all stages of deweént target a portion of their capital to be delatn attempt to achieve a higher valuation
through internal growth. In addition,
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because financial sponsor-backed companies haovbhega more mature stage prior to reaching a ligugdent, we believe our investments
could provide the debt capital needed to grow capéalize during the extended period prior to ity events.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY
Our strategy to achieve our investment objectivduishes the following key elements:

Leverage the Experience and Industry RelationshgfsOur Management Team and Investment Profession&lfe have assembled a
team of experienced investment professionals witbresive experience as venture capitalists, comaldenders, and originators of structured
debt and equity investments in technology-relaadpmanies. Our investment professionals have, orageemore than 15 years of experience
as equity investors in, and/or lenders to, techmi®lated companies. In addition, our team membave originated structured debt, debt witt
warrants and equity investments in over 220 teaduetelated companies, representing $3.4 billioodmmitments from inception to
December 31, 2012, and have developed a netwadrido$try contacts with investors and other paréinis within the venture capital and
private equity communities. In addition, membersaf management team also have operational, résaattdevelopment and finance
experience with technology-related companies. We lestablished contacts with leading venture chaitd private equity fund sponsors,
public and private companies, research institutanms other industry participants, which should émails to identify and attract well-positioned
prospective portfolio companies.

We concentrate our investing activities generadlindustries in which our investment professiofesge investment experience. We
believe that our focus on financing technologytedacompanies will enable us to leverage our eigeeim structuring prospective investments,
to assess the value of both tangible and intangisdets, to evaluate the business prospects anatiogecharacteristics of technology-related
companies and to identify and originate potentiatlyactive investments with these types of comgani

Mitigate Risk of Principal Loss and Build a Portf@ of Equity-Related SecuritiedVe expect that our investments have the potemtial t
produce attractive risk-adjusted returns througiesu income, in the form of interest and fee inegis well as capital appreciation from
equity-related securities. We believe that we cé#tigate the risk of loss on our debt investmentstlyh the combination of loan principal
amortization, cash interest payments, relativetyrsinaturities, security interests in the assetsunfportfolio companies, and on select
investment covenants requiring prospective podfobmpanies to have certain amounts of availaldb aathe time of our investment and the
continued support from a venture capital or privegeity firm at the time we make our investment.

Historically our structured debt investments tchtemogy-related companies typically include warsamt other equity interests, giving us
the potential to realize equity-like returns oncatipn of our investment. In addition, in some casee receive the right to make additional
equity investments in our portfolio companies, urtthg the right to convert some portion of our deld equity, in connection with future
equity financing rounds. We believe these equitgriests will create the potential for meaningfuldeterm capital gains in connection with the
future liquidity events of these technology-relatednpanies.

Provide Customized Financing Complementary to Firaal Sponsors’ CapitalWe offer a broad range of investment structures and
possess expertise and experience to effectivalgtsiie and price investments in technologlated companies. Unlike many of our competi
that only invest in companies that fit a specigit af investment parameters, we have the flexybibtstructure our investments to suit the
particular needs of our portfolio companies. Weptfustomized financing solutions ranging from eedibt to equity capital, with a focus on
structured debt with warrants.

We use our relationships in the financial sponsonmunity to originate investment opportunities. 8&se venture capital and private
equity funds typically invest solely in the equdtycurities of their portfolio
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companies, we believe that our debt investmenisheil/iewed as an attractive and complimentary@of capital, both by the portfolio
company and by the portfolio company’s financiadrsgor. In addition, we believe that many ventungitehand private equity fund sponsors
encourage their portfolio companies to use delsirfiing for a portion of their capital needs as amseof potentially enhancing equity returns,
minimizing equity dilution and increasing valuatsoprior to a subsequent equity financing round ligjuadity event.

Invest at Various Stages of Developmewe provide growth capital to technology-related pamies at all stages of development,
including select publicly listed companies and sellewer middle market companies and establishagestompanies. We believe that this
provides us with a broader range of potential itmesit opportunities than those available to manyusfcompetitors, who generally focus tt
investments on a particular stage in a companywsldpment. Because of the flexible structure ofiouestments and the extensive experienc
of our investment professionals, we believe wenat positioned to take advantage of these investrapportunities at all stages of
prospective portfolio companies’ development.

Benefit from Our Efficient Organizational StructureWe believe that the perpetual nature of our coeostiucture enables us to be a
long-term partner for our portfolio companies imtrast to traditional mezzanine and investment $umdich typically have a limited life. In
addition, because of our access to the equity narike believe that we may benefit from a lowert edsapital than that available to private
investment funds. We are not subject to requirementeturn invested capital to investors nor ddhaee a finite investment horizon. Capital
providers that are subject to such limitationsaften required to seek a liquidity event more glyickan they otherwise might, which can re
in a lower overall return on an investment.

Deal Sourcing Through Our Proprietary Databas#/e have developed a proprietary and comprehensivetsred query language-
based (SQL) database system to track various &spkctrr investment process including sourcinggingtions, transaction monitoring and
post-investment performance. As of December 31220ar proprietary SQL-based database system iadlogter 30,900 technology-related
companies and approximately 8,100 venture cajitaédate equity sponsors/investors, as well as warimther industry contacts. This
proprietary SQL system allows us to maintain, wali and grow our industry relationships while pdaw us with comprehensive details on
companies in the technology-related industriesthad financial sponsors.

OUR INVESTMENTS AND OPERATIONS

We principally invest in debt securities and, tesser extent, equity securities, with a particelaphasis on structured debt with
warrants.

We generally seek to invest in companies that lhaes operating for at least six to 12 months pgadhe date of our investment. We
anticipate that such entities may, at the timengéstment, be generating revenues or will havesmbas plan that anticipates generation of
revenues within 24 to 48 months. Further, we gpdite that on the date of our investment we willegally obtain a lien on available assets,
which may or may not include intellectual propedwd these companies will have sufficient castheir balance sheet to operate as well as
potentially amortize their debt for at least thte@ine months following our investment. We gerlgradquire that a prospective portfolio
company, in addition to having sufficient capitakupport leverage, demonstrate an operating plpalde of generating cash flows or raising
the additional capital necessary to cover its dpega@&xpenses and service its debt, for an additisix to 12 months subject to market
conditions.

We expect that our investments will generally rafigen $1.0 million to $40.0 million. We typicallytrsicture our debt securities to
provide for amortization of principal over the liéé the loan, but may include an interest-only pemf three to 12 months for emerging growth
and expansion-stage companies and longer for edtaliistage companies. Our loans will be collatezdlby a security interest in the
borrower’s assets, although we may not have tkediaim on these assets and the assets may hadénatellectual property. Our debt
investments carry fixed or variable contractuatiast rates which generally ranged from Prime to

5



Table of Contents

approximately 14.0% as of December 31, 2012. ABasfember 31, 2012, 98.5% of our loans were atifigatates or floating rates with a flo
and 1.5% of the loans were at fixed rates. In &idib the cash yields received on our loans, messtances, certain loans may also include
any of the following: end of term payments, ex@édeballoon payment fees, commitment fees, sudeesspayment-in-kind (“PIK"provisions
or prepayment fees, which we may be required tluélecin income prior to receipt. We also generateenue in the form of commitment,
facility fees and amendment fees.

In addition, the majority of our investments in gteuctured debt of venture capital-backed compagénerally have equity enhancement
features, typically in the form of warrants or atlequity-related securities designed to providevitls an opportunity for potential capital
appreciation. The warrants typically will be immatgily exercisable upon issuance and generallyraiflain exercisable for the lesser of five tc
seven years or one to three years after complefian initial public offering. The exercise prides the warrants varies from nominal exercise
prices to exercise prices that are at or aboveuhent fair market value of the equity for whicle veceive warrants. We may structure wart
to provide minority rights provisions or on a vesslect basis put rights upon the occurrence oéiceevents. We generally target a total
annualized return (including interest, fees andigaf warrants) of 12% to 25% for our debt invesitae

Typically, our structured debt and equity investtseake one of the following forms:

» Structured Debt with Warrant8Ve seek to invest a majority of our assets in stined debt with warrants of prospective portfolio
companies. Traditional “mezzanine” debt is a lagfanigh-coupon financing between debt and equity thost commonly takes the
form of subordinated debt coupled with warrantsnbiming the cash flow and risk characteristics athbsenior debt and equity.
However, our investments in structured debt withrarats may be the only debt capital on the balaheet of our portfolio
companies, and in many cases we have a first grieecurity interest in all of our portfolio compés assets, or in certain
investments we may have a negative pledge onéctetl property. Our structured debt with warraypscally have maturities of
between two and seven years, with full amortizatiier an interest only period for emerging-growttexpansion-stage companies
and longer deferred amortization for select esthbli-stage companies. Our structured debt withamezigenerally carry a
contractual interest rate between Prime and apmately 14.0% and may include an additional endeafatpayment or PIK. In
most cases we collateralize our investments byimihtasecurity interests in our portfolio companiassets, which may include
their intellectual property. In other cases we meghibit a company from pledging or otherwise enbanng their intellectual
property. We may structure our structured debt wisttirants with restrictive affirmative and negatomenants, default penalties,
prepayment penalties, lien protection, equity caleng-in-control provisions or board observation rigt

» Senior DebtWe seek to invest a limited portion of our assetsanior debt. Senior debt may be collateralizeddmpunts receivak
and/or inventory financing of prospective portfoliompanies. Senior debt has a senior position neghect to a borrower’s
scheduled interest and principal payments and heofast priority security interest in the asselisdged as collateral. Senior debt
also may impose covenants on a borrower with refgacdsh flows and changes in capital structurergnother items. We
generally collateralize our investments by obtajrsecurity interests in our portfolio companiesets, which may include their
intellectual property. In other cases we may obtaimegative pledge covering a company’s intelldgiuaperty. Our senior loans, in
certain instances, may be tied to the financingpefific assets. In connection with a senior del@s$tment, we may also provide
the borrower with a working capital line-of-crethat will carry an interest rate ranging from PrioreLIBOR plus a spread with a
floor, generally maturing in one to three yearg] wiill be secured by accounts receivable and/cgritory.

» Equipment LoansWe intend to invest a limited portion of our assetequipment-based loans to early-stage prospeptivtfolio
companies. Equipmeftased loans are secured by a first priority secimierest in only the specific assets financedsenloans a
generally for amounts up
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$3.0 million but may be up to $15.0 million for t&n clean technology venture investments, caggraractual interest rate
between Prime and Prime plus 9.0%, and have aagederm between three and four years. Equipmanslmay also include end
of term payments

Equity-Related Securitie§-he equity-related securities we hold consist prilpaf warrants or other equity interests gengrall
obtained in connection with our structured debestments. In addition to the warrants received gartof a structured debt
financing, we typically receive the right to malaquiy investments in a portfolio company in conm@tiwith that company’s next
round of equity financing. We may also on certagbtdnvestments have the right to convert a poriothe debt investment into
equity. These rights will provide us with the opomity to further enhance our returns over timetigh opportunistic equity
investments in our portfolio companies. These geutated investments are typically in the fornpoéferred or common equity
and may be structured with a dividend yield, prowjdus with a current return, and with customarg-ditution protection and
preemptive rights. In the future, we may achiegailiity through a merger or acquisition of a pdif@ompany, a public offering
of a portfolio company’s stock or by exercising oight, if any, to require a portfolio company taybback the equity-related
securities we hold. We may also make stand alametdequity investments into portfolio companiesvimch we may not have any
debt investment in the company. As of Decembef812, we held equity interests in 128 portfolio gamies.

A comparison of the typical features of our varicugestment alternatives is set forth in the chatow.

Structured debt with
warrants

Equity related

Senior Debt Equipment Loans Securities

Typical Structure

Preferred stock or
common stocl

Term debt with warrants | Term or revolving debt | Term debt with warrants

Investment Horizon

Long term, ranging from P Usually under 3 years Ranging from 3 to 4 years Ranging from 3 to 7

to 7 years, with an average years
of 3 years
Ranking/Security Senior secured, either firstSenior/First lien Secured only by None/unsecure
out or last out, or second underlying equipment
lien
Covenants Less restrictive; Mostly | Generally None None
financial borrowing base and
financial
Risk Tolerance Medium/High Low High High

Coupon/Dividend

Cash pay—fixed and
floating rate; Payment-in
kind in limited cases

Cash pay—floating or
fixed rate

Cash pay-floating or fixe(
rate and may include
Payment-in-kind

I Generally none

Customization or More flexible Little to none Little to none Flexible
Flexibility
Equity Dilution Low to medium None to low Low High
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Investment Criteria

We have identified several criteria, among othirat we believe are important in achieving our staeent objective with respect to
prospective portfolio companies. These criteriailevhot inclusive, provide general guidelines for mvestment decisions.

Portfolio Composition While we generally focus our investments in ventiapital-backed companies in technology-relatecketar we
seek to diversify across various financial sponssravell as across various stages of companieglolegment and various technology industry
sub-sectors and geographies. As of December 32, 2pproximately 65.8% of the fair value of ourtfaio was composed of investments in
five industries: 20.8% was composed of investmantke drug discovery and development industryQ%bwas composed of investments in
the internet consumer and business services industr0% was composed of investments in the cleeimiblogy industry, 8.2% was compo
of investments in the drug delivery industry an8¥%.was composed of investments in the softwaresimgu

Continuing Support from One or More Financial Sponss. We generally invest in companies in which one orevestablished financi
sponsors have previously invested and continueaticera contribution to the management of the businde believe that having established
financial sponsors with meaningful commitmentsh® business is a key characteristic of a prospegivtfolio company. In addition, we look
for representatives of one or more financial spemmaintain seats on the Board of Directors pifaspective portfolio company as an
indication of such commitment.

Company Stage of Developmeithile we invest in companies at various stagesottbpment, we generally require that prospective
portfolio companies be beyond the seed stage aldpment and generally have received or anticipaténg commitments for their first
institutional round of equity financing for earliage companies. We expect a prospective portfoliopany to demonstrate progress in its
product development or demonstrate a path towauknue generation or increase its revenues andtopgcash flow over time. The
anticipated growth rate of a prospective portfalimnpany is a key factor in determining the valwa the ascribe to any warrants or other
equity securities that we may acquire in connectitth an investment in debt securities.

Operating Plan.We generally require that a prospective portfobmpany, in addition to having potential accessaoital to support
leverage, demonstrate an operating plan capalyer@rating cash flows or the ability to potentiaiilyse the additional capital necessary to
cover its operating expenses and service its aelat $pecific period. Specifically, we require thgirospective portfolio company demonstrate
at the time of our proposed investment that itdesh on its balance sheet, or is in the processmpleting a financing so that it will have cash
on its balance sheet, sufficient to support itsrafiens for a minimum of six to 12 months.

Security Interestln many instances we seek a first priority secunitgrest in all of the portfolio companidsngible and intangible ass
as collateral for our debt investment, subjectoime cases to permitted exceptions. In other casasay obtain a negative pledge prohibiting
company from pledging or otherwise encumberingrtiléllectual property. Although we do not intetadoperate as an asset-based lender, tf
estimated liquidation value of the assets, if ajlateralizing the debt securities that we holdnsmportant factor in our credit analysis and
subject to assumptions that may change over th@lithe investment especially when attemptingstorete the value of intellectual property.
We generally evaluate both tangible assets, suele@sunts receivable, inventory and equipment,iataeshgible assets, such as intellectual
property, customer lists, networks and databases.

CovenantsOur investments may include one or more of thefalhg covenants: cross-default, or material advehssmge provisions,
require the portfolio company to provide perioditahcial reports and operating metrics and wilidgfly limit the portfolio company’s ability
to incur additional debt, sell assets, dividendhptare, engage in transactions with affiliates emusummate an extraordinary transaction, suc
as a merger or recapitalization without our conslenaddition, we may require other performancérancial based covenants, as we deem
appropriate.
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Exit Strategy.Prior to making a debt investment that is accormguhbly an equity-related security in a prospectivefplio company, we
analyze the potential for that company to incrahediquidity of its equity through a future evehat would enable us to realize appreciation ir
the value of our equity interest. Liquidity eventay include an initial public offering, a privatals of our equity interest to a third party, a
merger or an acquisition of the company or a pwsettd our equity position by the company or onagso$tockholders.

Investment Process
We have organized our management team around tinéédy elements of our investment process:
« Origination;
e Underwriting;
» Documentation; an
* Loan and Compliance Administratic

Our investment process is summarized in the folawihart:

Origination
Dead ¥owrredmg and Screening and Prediminaery Due Diligence, 1
\
Term Sheet Siructuring, Negotiartioe and Execidion. H
Underwriting |
- 4 L]
Farmal Due Diligence 1o Creace fpvesimens Memaorandum, E
Transartteen Beviegwed By fivestmens Coinriiee i
1
I |
¥

f:: Approval . C Rejection >
- _[ = v oo

Documentation .
Lo Deveunmeents Phrafred amd Negosiaied | AR CRR IO |
e Livligence Fowalized,

Lo Dhowegmmends Execured

Loan and Compliance Administration

Pracking, Mo

Analvzing, Valuing, Resirueturing, Credit Scoriing, ok

onng, Keviewing, Heporiing. Mosing

Origination

The origination process for our investments inctusieurcing, screening, preliminary due diligence @®al structuring and negotiation,
all leading to an executed non-binding term sh&ebf December 31, 2012, our investment originateam, which consists of approximately
31 investment professionals, is headed by our $&fémaging Directors of Technology, Clean Techngland Life Science, and our Chief
Executive Officer. The origination team is respbiesifor sourcing potential investment opportunitesl members of the investment
origination team use their extensive relationskifib various leading financial sponsors, managersentacts within technology-related
companies, trade sources, technology conferenckgaious publications to source prospective pbafoompanies. Our investment
origination team is divided into middle market,haology, clean technology, and life science sulateto better source potential portfolio
companies.
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In addition, we have developed a proprietary andprehensive SQL-based database system to trackugaaspects of our investment
process including sourcing, originations, transactnonitoring and post-investment performance. fi3ecember 31, 2012, our proprietary
SQL-based database system included over 30,90Adkdy-related companies and approximately 8,10@ure capital private equity
sponsors/investors, as well as various other imgesintacts. This proprietary SQL system allows aigination team to maintain, cultivate ¢
grow our industry relationships while providing arrgination team with comprehensive details on panies in the technology-related
industries and their financial sponsors.

If a prospective portfolio company generally mesggain underwriting criteria, we perform prelimigaue diligence, which may inclu
high level company and technology assessmentgjati@h of its financial sponsorsupport, market analysis, competitive analysigqtifie key
management, risk analysis and transaction sizeingrireturn analysis and structure analysis.dfgheliminary due diligence is satisfactory,
and the origination team recommends moving forwarlthen structure, negotiate and execute a nattifijirterm sheet with the potential
portfolio company. Upon execution of a term shéet,investment opportunity moves to the underwgipnocess to complete formal due
diligence review and approval.

Underwriting
The underwriting review includes formal due diligerand approval of the proposed investment in tirdglio company.

Due DiligenceOur due diligence on a prospective investmentpglly completed by two or more investment proi@sals whom we
define as the underwriting team. The underwritegn for a proposed investment consists of thegpeaisor who typically possesses general
industry knowledge and is responsible for origingtand managing the transaction, other investmafi¢gsional(s) who perform due diligen
credit and corporate financial analyses and, adatbeur legal professionals. To ensure consisteaé¢rwriting, we generally use our
standardized due diligence methodologies, whicludedue diligence on financial performance andlicrisk as well as an analysis of the
operations and the legal and applicable reguldtamework of a prospective portfolio company. Thembers of the underwriting team work
together to conduct due diligence and understamdefationships among the prospective portfolio gany’s business plan, operations and
financial performance.

As part of our evaluation of a proposed investmég ,underwriting team prepares an investment manuwm for presentation to the
investment committee. In preparing the investmestnorandum, the underwriting team typically intewseselect key management of the
company and select financial sponsors and asseiniidemation necessary to the investment decidicemd when appropriate, the investment
professionals may also contact industry expertscaistbmers, vendors or, in some cases, competitaéhe® company.

Approval ProcessThe sponsoring managing director or principal pmeséhe investment memorandum to our investmentittee for
consideration. The approval of a majority of owrdatment committee and an affirmative vote by ohie€CExecutive Officer is required before
we proceed with any investment. The members ofrau@stment committee are our Chief Executive Officeir Chief Financial Officer, our
Chief Credit Officer and the Senior Managing Dimestof Technology, Clean Technology and Life Sagerthe investment committee
generally meets weekly and more frequently on anegsled basis. The Senior Managing Directors ab&tain voting with respect to
investments they originate.

Documentation

Our documentation group, currently headed by owosgte General Counsel, administers the frontelermdimentation process for our
investments. This group is responsible for docuimgrthe term sheet approved by the investment cat@enio memorialize the transaction
with a prospective portfolio company. This grougoates loan documentation and, subject to theaapof the Associate General Counsel,
final documents are
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prepared for execution by all parties. The documatgm group generally uses the services of extdamafirms to complete the necessary
documentation.

Loan and Compliance Administration

Our loan and compliance administration group, hddgeour Chief Financial Officer and Chief CrediffiGer, administers loans and
tracks covenant compliance, if applicable, of awestments and oversees periodic reviews of oticarfunctions to ensure adherence with
our internal policies and procedures. After fundiriga loan in accordance with the investment core®is approval, the loan is recorded in oul
loan administration software and our SQased database system. The loan and compliancaiatiation group is also responsible for ensu
timely interest and principal payments and col&teranagement as well as advising the investmeaniitiee on the financial performance
trends of each portfolio company, including anyeant violations that occur, to aid us in assessiagappropriate course of action for each
portfolio company and evaluating overall portfadjoality. In addition, the loan and compliance adstmtion group advises the investment
committee and the Valuation Committee of our BazfrBirectors, accordingly, regarding the credit ameestment grading for each portfolio
company as well as changes in the value of collatbat may occur.

The loan and compliance administration group maesitur portfolio companies in order to determinesthler the companies are meeting
our financing criteria and their respective businglans and also monitors the financial trendsasheportfolio company from its monthly or
quarterly financial statements to assess the apptepourse of action for each company and touataloverall portfolio quality. In addition,
our management team closely monitors the statuparidrmance of each individual company through®QL-based database system and
periodic contact with our portfolio companies’ mgament teams and their respective financial spsnsor

Credit and Investment Grading Systédur loan and compliance administration group useisngestment grading system to characterize
and monitor our outstanding loans. Our loan andpdimmce administration group monitors and, whenrappate, recommends changes to
investment grading. Our investment committee regiéve recommendations and/or changes to the ineestgnading, which are submitted on
a quarterly basis to the Valuation Committee andBmard of Directors for approval.

From time to time, we will identify investments thraquire closer monitoring or become workout asséte develop a workout strategy
for workout assets and our investment committeeitoianthe progress against the strategy. We mayr ilosses from our investing activities,
however, we work with our troubled portfolio commmin order to recover as much of our investmaastis practicable, including possibly
taking control of the portfolio company. There d@no assurance that principal will be recovered.

We use the following investment grading system apgd by our Board of Directors:

Grade 1. Loans involve the least amount of ris&tinportfolio. The borrower is performing above egtions, and the trends and
risk profile is generally favorabl

Grade 2  The borrower is performing as expected and thepiskle is neutral to favorable. All new loans améially graded 2

Grade 3. The borrower may be performing below etgiiens, and the loan’s risk has increased malgsaice origination. We
increase procedures to monitor a borrower that n@aye limited amounts of cash remaining on the lcaaheet, is
approaching its next equity capital raise withia trext three to six months, or if the estimatedvalue of the enterprise m
be lower than when the loan was originated. We géherally lower the loan grade to a level 3 e¥é¢nda company is
performing in accordance to plan as it approacheséed to raise additional cash to fund its opmrstt Once the borrower
closes its new equity capital raise, we may inae¢he loan grade back to grade 2 or maintainatgade 3 as the company
continues to pursue its business p
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Grade 4. The borrower is performing materially ekxpectations, and the loan risk has substaniiatiseased since origination.
Loans graded 4 may experience some partial lo&dlaeturn of principal but are expected to realsbme loss of interest
which is not anticipated to be repaid in full, wini¢o the extent not already reflected, may reqthiecfair value of the loan-
be reduced to the amount we anticipate will beveped. Grade 4 investments are closely monitc

Grade 5. The borrower is in workout, materiallyfpeming below expectations and a significant rislponcipal loss is probable.
Loans graded 5 will experience some partial priakipss or full loss of remaining principal outsding is expected. Grade
loans will require the fair value of the loans bduced to the amount, if any, we anticipate wilkégovered

At December 31, 2012, our investments had a weiglterage investment grading of 2.06.

Managerial Assistance

As a business development company, we are requrefier, and provide upon request, manageriaktaste to our portfolio compani
This assistance could involve, among other thingmitoring the operations of our portfolio companiparticipating in board and managemen
meetings, consulting with and advising officergoftfolio companies and providing other organizagiicand financial guidance. We may
receive fees for these services.

COMPETITION

Our primary competitors provide financing to prospee portfolio companies and include non-bank ficial institutions, federally or
state chartered banks, venture debt funds, finhimsiitutions, venture capital funds, private g@gdunds, investment funds and investment
banks. Many of these entities have greater findiatid managerial resources than we have, and #@ A&t imposes certain regulatory
restrictions on us as a business development contpamhich many of our competitors are not subjeidwever, we believe that few of our
competitors possess the expertise to properlytsiri@and price debt investments to venture capaaked companies in technology-related
markets. We believe that our specialization intitiag technology-related companies will enablecuddtermine a range of potential values of
intellectual property assets, evaluate the busipesspects and operating characteristics of prasegortfolio companies and, as a result,
identify investment opportunities that produceaattive risk-adjusted returns. For additional infation concerning the competitive risks we
face, see “Iltem 1A. Risk Factors—Risks RelateduoRusiness and Structure—We operate in a hightypetditive market for investment
opportunities, and we may not be able to compdezifely.”

BROKERAGE ALLOCATIONS AND OTHER PRACTICES

Because we generally acquire and dispose of oastments in privately negotiated transactions,avely use brokers in the normal
course of business. In those cases where we da lusiker, we do not execute transactions througtparticular broker or dealer, but will se
to obtain the best net results for Hercules, takimg account such factors as price (includingahplicable brokerage commission or dealer
spread), size of order, difficulty of executiondasperational facilities of the firm and the firsrisk and skill in positioning blocks of secur#i
While we generally seek reasonably competitive etiec costs, we may not necessarily pay the losgstad or commission available. Sub
to applicable legal requirements, we may selecbldy based partly upon brokerage or researchcgsryrovided to us. In return for such
services, we may pay a higher commission than ditteders would charge if we determine in good f#iidt such commission is reasonable in
relation to the services provided.
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EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2012, we had 56 employees, dimauapproximately 31 investment and portfolio nggraent professionals, all of
whom have extensive experience working on finantiagsactions for technology-related companies.

REGULATION

The following discussion is a general summary efraterial prohibitions and descriptions goverrboginess development companie
does not purport to be a complete descriptionladfahe laws and regulations affecting businesgettjpment companies.

A business development company primarily focusegeasting in or lending to private companies araking managerial assistance
available to them. A business development companyighes stockholders with the ability to retain tlygiidity of a publicly-traded stock,
while sharing in the possible benefits of investimgmerging-growth, expansion-stage or establigtage companies. The 1940 Act contains
prohibitions and restrictions relating to transaies between business development companies amdlifemitors and officers and principal
underwriters and certain other related persongequaires that a majority of the directors be pessather than “interested personas’that terr
is defined in the 1940 Act. In addition, the 194 Arovides that we may not change the nature pbasiness so as to cease to be, or to
withdraw our election as, a business developmemipamy unless approved by a majority of our outstamudoting securities. A majority of the
outstanding voting securities of a company is dafinnder the 1940 Act as the lesser of: (i) 67%ore of such company’s shares present at
meeting if more than 50% of the outstanding shafesich company are present or represented by pooxii) more than 50% of the
outstanding shares of such company.

Qualifying Assets

Under the 1940 Act, a business development compeyynot acquire any asset other than assets ¢fpkdisted in Section 55(a) of the
1940 Act, which are referred to as qualifying assetless, at the time the acquisition is madéljfgjurey assets represent at least 70% of the
company’s total assets. The principal categoriegualifying assets relevant to our proposed busiaes the following:

(1) Securities purchased in transactions not inmghany public offering from the issuer of suchwg#tées, which issuer (subject to
certain limited exceptions) is an eligible portioiompany, or from any person who is, or has besimgl the preceding 13 months,
an affiliated person of an eligible portfolio conmyaor from any other person, subject to such ragemay be prescribed by the
SEC. An eligible portfolio company is defined ireth940 Act as any issuer whic

(a) is organized under the laws of, and has its praigiace of business in, the United Sta

(b) is not an investment company (other than aldmginess investment company wholly owned by th&ress development
company) or a company that would be an investmemipany but for certain exclusions under the 1941 éwud

(c) does not have any class of securities listed pational securities exchange; or if it has déearlisted on a national
securities exchange such company has a markeakzaiion of less than $250 million; is controlled the business
development company and has an affiliate of a lessimlevelopment company on its board of directorsjeets such other
criteria as may be established by the S

(2) Securities purchased in a private transactiomfa U.S. issuer that is not an investment comparisom an affiliated person of the
issuer, or in transactions incident thereto, ifigsier is in bankruptcy and subject to reorgamimatr if the issuer, immediately
prior to the purchase of its securities was untiblaeet its obligations as they came due withouensl assistance other than
conventional lending or financing arrangeme
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(3) Securities of an eligible portfolio company gliased from any person in a private transactitimeife is no ready market for such
securities and we already own 60% of the outstandquity of the eligible portfolio compan

(4) Securities received in exchange for or disteldwn or with respect to securities described jrit{rough (4) above, or pursuant to
the exercise of warrants or rights relating to sseturities

(5) Cash, cash equivalents, U.S. Government sesidt high-quality debt securities maturing in gear or less from the time of
investment

Control, as defined by the 1940 Act, is presumeekist where a business development company béadsfiowns more than 25% of the
outstanding voting securities of the portfolio canp.

We do not intend to acquire securities issued lyyimvestment company that exceed the limits impdsethe 1940 Act. Under these
limits, we generally cannot acquire more than 3%hefvoting stock of any investment company (agéefin the 1940 Act), invest more than
5% of the value of our total assets in the se@itif one such investment company or invest mane 10% of the value of our total assets in
the securities of such investment companies irmtfggegate. With regard to that portion of our pdidfinvested in securities issued by
investment companies, it should be noted that suastments might subject our stockholders to &uithl expenses.

Significant Managerial Assistance

In order to count portfolio securities as qualifyiassets for the purpose of the 70% test discuaseee, a business development comi
must either control the issuer of the securitiemast offer to make available significant managexssistance; except that, where the busines:
development company purchases such securitiesjoration with one or more other persons actingtbgr, one of the other persons in the
group may make available such managerial assistMuldng available significant managerial assiseameans, among other things, any
arrangement whereby the business development combeiaugh its directors, officers or employeedersf to provide and, if accepted, doe:
provide, significant guidance and counsel conceritie management, operations or business objeaiepolicies of a portfolio company
through monitoring of portfolio company operatiosslective participation in board and managemertimgs, consulting with and advising a
portfolio company’s officers or other organizatibnafinancial guidance.

Temporary Investments

Pending investment in other types of qualifyingedssas described above, our investments may tarfisiash, cash equivalents, U.S.
government securities or high quality debt seasitnaturing in one year or less from the time wéstment, which we refer to, collectively, as
temporary investments, so that 70% of our assetqualifying assets. Typically, we invest in U.®atsury bills or in repurchase agreements,
provided that such agreements are fully collateealiby cash or securities issued by the U.S. gavenhor its agencies. A repurchase
agreement involves the purchase by an investoh asixis, of a specified security and the simultas@greement by the seller to repurchase i
at an agreed upon future date and at a price vidigheater than the purchase price by an amountéfiacts an agreed-upon interest rate.
There is no percentage restriction on the propomioour assets that may be invested in such repaecagreements. However, if more than
25% of our total assets constitute repurchase aggets from a single counterparty, we would not nleetdiversification tests imposed on us
by the Code in order to qualify as a RIC for fetlaraome tax purposes. Thus, we do not intend terénto repurchase agreements with a
single counterparty in excess of this limit. Welwilonitor the creditworthiness of the counterpartigth which we enter into repurchase
agreement transactions.
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Warrants and Options

Under the 1940 Act, a business development comigasybject to restrictions on the amount of wagaaptions, restricted stock or
rights to purchase shares of capital stock thagy have outstanding at any time. In particulag,@mount of capital stock that would result
from the conversion or exercise of all outstandiragrants, options or rights to purchase capitatlstannot exceed 25% of the business
development company’s total outstanding sharesypital stock. This amount is reduced to 20% oftltheiness development company’s total
outstanding shares of capital stock if the amofimiarrants, options or rights issued pursuant texacutive compensation plan would exceed
15% of the business development company’s totatanding shares of capital stock. We have receaixethptive relief from the SEC
permitting us to issue stock options and restristedk to our employees and directors subjectdatiove conditions, among others. For a
discussion regarding the conditions of this exenaptelief, see “—Exemptive Relief” below and Notéo7ur consolidated financial
statements.

Senior Securities; Coverage Ratio

We will be permitted, under specified conditiorssigsue multiple classes of indebtedness and @ss of stock senior to our common
stock if our asset coverage, as defined in the 2@#0is at least equal to 200% immediately afestesuch issuance. In addition, we may not
be permitted to declare any cash dividend or adisribution on our outstanding common shares,usclpase any such shares, unless, at the
time of such declaration or purchase, we have assetrage of at least 200% after deducting the atnafusuch dividend, distribution, or
purchase price. We may also borrow amounts up t@B%te value of our total assets for temporargmergency purposes. For a discussion ¢
the risks associated with the resulting leverage,"#em 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Bass & Structure—Because we borrow
money, there could be increased risk in investingur company.”

Capital Structure

We are not generally able to issue and sell oumsomstock at a price below net asset value peeskége may, however, sell our
common stock, at a price below the current nettagdee of the common stock, or sell warrants,apgior rights to acquire such common
stock, at a price below the current net asset vafliee common stock if our board of directors deiees that such sale is in the best interests
of the Company and our stockholders have apprdvegractice of making such sales.

At our Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May 30120our stockholders approved a proposal autharizéto sell up to 20% of our
common stock at a price below the Compamget asset value per share, subject to Board egqlbthe offering. If we were to issue sharea
price below net asset value, such sales wouldtresah immediate dilution to existing common stiegkiers, which would include a reduction
in the net asset value per share as a result gdshance. This dilution would also include a pmipoately greater decrease in a stockholder’s
interest in our earnings and assets and votingastén us than the increase in our assets regdtim such issuance. In addition, if we
determined to conduct additional offerings in thufe there may be even greater discounts if weraiéte to conduct such offerings at prices
below net asset value.

As a result, investors will experience further idn and additional discounts to the price of ommenon stock. In any such case, the p
at which our securities are to be issued and salg mot be less than a price which, in the detertitinaf our board of directors, closely
approximates the market value of such securitess(any distributing commission or discount).

Code of Ethics

We have adopted and will maintain a code of ettiias establishes procedures for personal invessvaat restricts certain personal
securities transactions. Personnel subject todtle may invest in securities for their personakstment accounts, including securities that
be purchased or held by us, so long as such
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investments are made in accordance with the cadgisrements. Our code of ethics will generally petmit investments by our employees in
securities that may be purchased or held by usmaiebe prohibited under the 1940 Act from condugtiartain transactions with our affiliar
without the prior approval of our directors who aat interested persons and, in some cases, thegmproval of the SEC.

Our code of ethics is posted on our website at viiige.com and was filed with the SEC as an exhibibé registration statement
(Registration No. 333-126604) for our initial pubtiffering. You may read and copy the code of sthicthe SEC’s Public Reference Room in
Washington, D.C. You may obtain information on tiperation of the Public Reference Room by callimg$EC at (202) 551-8090. In
addition, the code of ethics is available on the3AR Database on the SECInternet site at http://www.sec.gov. You may abtain copies
the code of ethics, after paying a duplicating fgeelectronic request at the following e-mail sl publicinfo@sec.gov, or by writing the
SEC'’s Public Reference Section, 100 F Street, NMashington, D.C. 20549.

Privacy Principles

We are committed to maintaining the privacy of stackholders and safeguarding their non-publicqeakinformation. The following
information is provided to help you understand wheaitsonal information we collect, how we proteetttinformation and why, in certain cases,
we may share information with select other parties.

Generally, we do not receive any non-public perkoriarmation relating to our stockholders, althbuggertain non-public personal
information of our stockholders may become availablus. We do not disclose any non-public persioiatmation about our stockholders or
former stockholders, except as permitted by la@sis necessary in order to service stockholdesuats (for example, to a transfer agent).

We restrict access to non-public personal inforamatibout our stockholders to our employees withg#timate business need for the
information. We maintain physical, electronic amdqedural safeguards designed to protect the nbfieguersonal information of our
stockholders.

Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures

We vote proxies relating to our portfolio secustia the best interest of our stockholders. Weewevan a case-by-case basis each
proposal submitted to a stockholder vote to deteents impact on the portfolio securities held sy Although we generally vote against
proposals that may have a negative impact on oufofio securities, we may vote for such a propaktiere exists compelling long-term
reasons to do so.

Our proxy voting decisions are made by our investnesemmittee, which is responsible for monitoriragle of our investments. To ens
that our vote is not the product of a conflictmteirest, we require that: (i) anyone involved i tiecision making process disclose to our Chie
Compliance Officer any potential conflict that hesbe is aware of and any contact that he or shdad with any interested party regarding a
proxy vote; and (ii) employees involved in the @émh making process or vote administration are ipitgd from revealing how we intend to
vote on a proposal in order to reduce any attemipfacence from interested parties.

Exemptive Relief

On June 21, 2005, we filed a request with the SiE@Xfemptive relief to allow us to take certain@auts that would otherwise be
prohibited by the 1940 Act, as applicable to bussngevelopment companies. Specifically, we reqddbts the SEC permit us to issue stock
options to our non-employee directors as conteraglhy Section 61(a)(3)(B)(i)(Il) of the 1940 Actn®ebruary 15, 2007, we received
approval from the SEC on this exemptive requesadidition, in June 2007, we filed an amendmentéoRebruary 2007 order to adjust the
number of shares issued to the non-employee disec@m October 10, 2007, we received approval fiteenSEC on this amended exemptive
request.
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On April 5, 2007, we received an exemptive relieqf the SEC that permits us to exclude the indetsesi of our wholly-owned
subsidiaries that are small business investmenpaaias from the 200% asset coverage requiremetitapie to us.

On May 2, 2007, we received approval from the SE@ur exemptive request permitting us to issugiotstl stock to our employees,
officers and directors. On June 21, 2007, our $twdders approved amendments to the 2004 EquityntiveePlan and 2006 Non-Employee
Incentive Plan permitting such restricted grants.

On June 22, 2010 we received approval from the fg@rding our request for exemptive relief that ldqaermit our employees to
exercise their stock options and restricted stoxk@ay any related income taxes using a cashlessis& program.

Other
We will be periodically examined by the SEC for q@imnce with the Securities Exchange Act of 193d dre 1940 Act.

We are required to provide and maintain a bonceidday a reputable fidelity insurance company tdeqmious against larceny and
embezzlement. Furthermore, as a business develompm@pany, we are prohibited from protecting amgdtior or officer against any liability
to our stockholders arising from willful misfeasanbad faith, gross negligence or reckless disteghihe duties involved in the conduct of
such person’s office.

We are required to adopt and implement writtenqgiedi and procedures reasonably designed to preia@ation of the federal securities
laws, review these policies and procedures anntmiltheir adequacy and the effectiveness of tingdlementation. We have designated
Mr. Martitsch, our Associate General Counsel, asGhief Compliance Officer who is responsible fdna@nistering these policies and
procedures.

Recently, legislation was introduced in the U.Subof Representatives which may revise certainlatgns applicable to business
development companies. The legislation providegifancreasing the amount of funds business dereknt companies may borrow by
reducing asset to debt limitations from 2:1 to 8ii permitting business development companiefiiéaegistration statements with the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission that incorpaméemation from already-filed reports by referengiii) utilizing other streamlined
registration processes afforded to operating comegaand (iv) allowing business development comgmto own investment adviser
subsidiaries. There are no assurances as to whéedislation will be enacted by Congress, if tal if enacted, what final form the
legislation would take.

Small Business Administration Regulations

On September 27, 2006, HT Il received a licensaperate as a SBIC under the SBIC program and éstaldorrow funds from the SBA
against eligible investments and additional contidns to regulatory capital. Under the Small BasmInvestment Company Act and current
SBA policy applicable to SBICs, a SBIC can havestariding at any time SBA guaranteed debentures tyite the amount of its regulatory
capital. With our net investment of $38.0 millianHT Il as of December 31, 2012, HT Il has the ci#gdo issue a total of $76.0 million of
SBA guaranteed debentures, subject to SBA approfathich $76.0 million was outstanding as of Debem31, 2012. As of December 31,
2012, HT Il has paid the SBA commitment fees ofrapnately $1.5 million. As of December 31, 2012 teld investments in HT 1l in 51
companies with a fair value of approximately $132i8ion, accounting for approximately 14.6% of dotal portfolio.

On May 26, 2010, HT Il received a license to opers a SBIC under the SBIC program and is abbetmw funds from the SBA
against eligible investments and additional contidns to regulatory capital. With our net investrnef $74.5 million in HT Il as of
December 31, 2012, HT Ill has the capacity to isstital of $149.0 million of SBA guaranteed delbees, subject to SBA approval, of which
$149.0 million was outstanding as of December 8122 As of December 31, 2012, HT Il has paid cotmrent fees of approximately $1.5
million. As of December 31, 2012, we held investtseén HT Il in 35 companies with a fair value gfgoximately $223.6 million, accountit
for approximately 24.7% of our total portfolio.
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We have issued $225.0 million in SBA-guaranteecedélres in HT Il and HT lll, which is the maximumnaunt allowed for a group of
SBICs under common control.

SBICs are designed to stimulate the flow of privedaity capital to eligible small businesses. Urgheisent SBA regulations, eligible
small businesses include businesses that haveibl@net worth not exceeding $18.0 million andéaverage annual fully taxed net income
not exceeding $6.0 million for the two most recisttal years. In addition, SBICs must devote 25d¥%heir investment activity to “smaller”
concerns as defined by the SBA. A smaller conceone that has a tangible net worth not exceedin@ iillion and has average annual fully
taxed net income not exceeding $2.0 million fortithe most recent fiscal years. SBA regulations glsvide alternative size standard criteria
to determine eligibility, which depend on the inttysn which the business is engaged and are basadich factors as the number of
employees and gross sales. According to SBA reigustSBICs may make long-term loans to small legsas, invest in the equity securities
of such businesses and provide them with consudtimjadvisory services. Through its wholly-ownebssdiaries HT Il and HT Ill, we plan to
provide long-term loans to qualifying small busises, and in connection therewith, make equity iimrests.

HT Il and HT Il are periodically examined and atadi by the SBAS staff to determine their compliance with SBA ragions. If HT Il ol
HT 11l fails to comply with applicable SBA regulatis, the SBA could, depending on the severity efviblation, limit or prohibit HT II's or
HT IlI's use of debentures, declare outstandingediélires immediately due and payable, and/or linitiHor HT 11l from making new
investments. In addition, HT Il or HT Il may albe limited in their ability to make distributions @is if they do not have sufficient capital in
accordance with SBA regulations. Such actions By3SBA would, in turn, negatively affect us becak3ell and Il are our wholly owned
subsidiaries. HT Il and HT IIl were in compliancé@mthe terms of the SBIG’leverage as of December 31, 2012 as a resuétviridp sufficien
capital as defined under the SBA regulations.

The rates of borrowings under various draws froe\SBA beginning in April 2007 are set semiannumliMarch and September and
range from 2.25% to 5.73%. Interest payments on 88#entures are payable seamiqually. There are no principal payments requimethes:
issues prior to maturity and no prepayment permlidebentures under the SBA generally mature tarsyafter being borrowed. Based on the
initial draw down date of April 2007, the initialaturity of SBA debentures will occur in April 201l addition, the SBA charges a fee that is
set annually, depending on the Federal fiscal fleateverage commitment was delegated by the S&dgrdless of the date that the leverage
was drawn by the SBIC. The annual fees relatedTidl ldebentures that pooled on September 22, 20dr@ @.406% and 0.285%, depending
upon the year in which the underlying commitmenswksed. The annual fees related to HT Ill debestthat pooled on September 19, 2012
were 0.804%. The annual fees on other debentukesheen set at 0.906%. The average amount of dekesrdutstanding for the year ended
December 31, 2012 for HT Il was approximately $9%illion with an average interest rate of approxiena5.68%. The average amount of
debentures outstanding for the year ended Dece®ihe012 for HT Il was approximately $112.0 millisvith an average interest rate of
approximately 3.25%.

HT Il and HT Il hold approximately $154.4 millicemd $250.8 million in assets, respectively, andaonted for approximately 10.5%
and 17.0% of our total assets prior to consoligasibDecember 31, 2012.

The SBA restricts the ability of SBICs to repurahéiseir capital stock. SBA regulations also incluelgrictions on a “change of control”
or transfer of an SBIC and require that SBICs ibidls funds in
accordance with SBA regulations. In addition, HRmid HT Il may also be limited in their ability toake distributions to us if they do not
have sufficient capital, in accordance with SBAulagjons.

Our SBIC subsidiaries are subject to regulation @retsight by the SBA, including requirements witkpect to maintaining certain
minimum financial ratios and other covenants. Retogfi an SBIC license does not assure that our SBliSidiaries will receive SBA
guaranteed debenture funding, which is dependent apr
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SBIC subsidiaries continuing to be in compliancéhv8BA regulations and policies. The SBA, as aitoedwill have a superior claim to our
SBIC subsidiaries’ assets over our stockholdetherevent we liquidate our SBIC subsidiaries orSB& exercises its remedies under the
SBA-guaranteed debentures issued by our SBIC Sabisisl upon an event of default.

CERTAIN UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERAT IONS

The following discussion is a general summary ofate material U.S. federal income tax considersicelating to our qualification and
taxation as a RIC and the acquisition, ownershipdigsposition of our preferred stock or common ktdwt does not purport to be a complete
description of the income tax considerations retathereto.

Election to be Taxed as a RIC

Through December 31, 2005, we were subject to Bédwmome tax as an ordinary corporation under lsapter C of the Code. Effective
beginning on January 1, 2006 we met the criterezifigd below to qualify as a RIC, and elected ¢dreated as a RIC under Subchapter M of
the Code with the filing of our federal income taxurn for 2006. As a RIC, we generally will noveao pay corporate taxes on any income
distribute to our stockholders as dividends, wlattbws us to reduce or eliminate our corporatellese On December 31, 2005, immediately
before the effective date of our RIC election, we&drassets with “built-in gainyvhich are assets whose fair market value as oéffieetive dat
of the election exceeded their tax basis as of datd. We elected to recognize all of our net baijains at the time of the conversion and |
tax on the built-in gain with the filing of our 28@ederal income tax return. In making this elettiwe marked our portfolio to market at the
time of our RIC election and paid approximately $280 in income tax on the resulting gains.

Taxation as a Regulated Investment Company
For any taxable year in which we:
e qualify as a RIC; an

« distribute at least 90% of our net ordinary incaane realized net short-term gains in excess ofzezhhet long-term capital losses,
if any (the “Annual Distribution Requirement”); vggeenerally will not be subject to federal income t¢exthe portion of our
investment company taxable income and net capitial @.€. , net realized long-term capital gains in excessedfrealized short-
term capital losses) we distribute (or are deeroatidtribute) to stockholders with respect to §edr. As described above, we m
the election to recognize built-in gains as oféffective date of our election to be treated as@ &hd therefore will not be subject
to built-in gains tax when we sell those assetsvéi@r, if we subsequently acquire built-in gaineas$rom a C corporation in a
carryover basis transaction, then we may be sutiydeix on the gains recognized by us on dispostaf such assets unless we
make a special election to pay corporate-levebtaguch built-in gain at the time the assets ageieed. We will be subject to U.S.
federal income tax at the regular corporate rateany income or capital gains not distributed @emed distributed) to our
stockholders

In order to qualify as a RIC for federal income paxposes and obtain the tax benefits of RIC statusddition to satisfying the Annual
Distribution Requirement, we must, among otherghin

* have in effect at all times during each taxable yeeelection to be regulated as a business dewelopcompany under the 1940
Act;

» derive in each taxable year at least 90% of ousgiocome from (a) dividends, interest, paymenth vaspect to certain securities
loans, gains from the sale of stock or other séesrior other income derived with respect to ausibess of investing in such stock
or securities and (b) net income derived from aerést in ¢ qualified publicly traded partnersl” (the“90% Income Te”); and
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» diversify our holdings so that at the end of eaghrtgr of the taxable yee

» atleast 50% of the value of our assets consistasti, cash equivalents, U.S. government secusiesirities of other RICs, and
other securities if such other securities of ang Bsuer do not represent more than 5% of the \ailoer assets or more than 10%
of the outstanding voting securities of such issarad

* no more than 25% of the value of our assets issteekin (i) securities (other than U.S. governnsemurities or securities of other
RICs) of one issuer, (ii) securities of two or m@guers that are controlled, as determined ung@icable tax rules, by us and that
are engaged in the same or similar or related sradéusinesses or (iii) securities of one or mqmlified publicly traded
partnershig” (the“Diversification Test").

Under applicable Treasury regulations and certdirafe rulings issued by the Internal Revenue $enRICs are permitted to treat
certain distributions payable in up to 80% in thetack, as taxable dividends that will satisfy treginual distribution obligations for federal
income tax and excise tax purposes provided tratblolders have the opportunity to elect to rectiieadistribution in cash. Taxable
stockholders receiving such dividends will be regdito include the full amount of the dividend adioary income (or as long-term capital
gain to the extent such distribution is properlgigaated as a capital gain dividend) to the extéour current and accumulated earnings and
profits for United States federal income tax pugmgAs a result, a U.S. stockholder may be requogay tax with respect to such dividend
excess of any cash received. If a U.S. stockhadis the stock it receives as a dividend in otdgray this tax, the sales proceeds may be les
than the amount included in income with respethéodividend, depending on the market price ofstack at the time of the sale. Furtherm
with respect to non-U.S. stockholders, we may lpeired to withhold U.S. tax with respect to suchidinds, including in respect of all or a
portion of such dividend that is payable in stdokaddition, if a significant number of our stockdhers determine to sell shares of our stock in
order to pay taxes owed on dividends, then suassahy put downward pressure on the trading pfiocaiostock. We may in the future
determine to distribute taxable dividends thatgagable in part in our common stock.

As a RIC, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductielgeral excise tax on certain undistributed incemless we distribute in a timely
manner an amount at least equal to the sum of§%) & our ordinary income for each calendar yer98.2% of our capital gain net income
for the 1-year period ending October 31 in thagdar year and (3) any income recognized, butistililted, in preceding years and on
which we paid no federal income tax (the “Excise& BAaoidance Requirements”). We will not be subjecexcise taxes on amounts on which
we are required to pay corporate income tax (ssafet@ined net capital gains). Depending on thel lefitaxable income earned in a tax year,
we may choose to carry over taxable income in exoésurrent year distributions from such taxableoime into the next tax year and pay a
excise tax on such income, as required. The maximaunt of excess taxable income that may be daosier for distribution in the next ye
under the Code is the total amount of dividendd pathe following year, subject to certain dectanma and payment guidelines. To the extent
we choose to carry over taxable income into the t@exyear, dividends declared and paid by usyea may differ from taxable income for
that year as such dividends may include the digioh of current year taxable income, the distiidnuof prior year taxable income carried o
into and distributed in the current year, or retuof capital.

We may be required to recognize taxable incoméraumstances in which we do not receive a corredimgnpayment in cash. For
example, if we hold debt obligations that are ®dainder applicable tax rules as having origiraiésdiscount (such as debt instruments with
payment-in-kind interest or, in certain cases,@asing interest rates or debt instruments that igeteed with warrants), we must include in
income each year a portion of the original issisealint that accrues over the life of the obligatiegardless of whether cash representing
income is received by us in the same taxable YR&=rause any original issue discount accrued wilhbkided in our investment company
taxable income for the year of accrual, we maydugiired to make a distribution to our stockholdersrder to satisfy the Annual Distribution
Requirement and the Excise Tax Avoidance Requirénegan though we will not have received any cqoesling cash amount.
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Gain or loss realized by us from the sale or exghaf warrants acquired by us as well as any Itgbatable to the lapse of such
warrants generally will be treated as capital gaitoss. Such gain or loss generally will be loagst or short-term, depending on how long we
held a particular warrant.

We are authorized to borrow funds and to sell adgatrder to satisfy the Annual Distribution Raguient and the Excise Tax Avoida
Requirement (collectively, the “Distribution Recgerinents”). However, under the 1940 Act, we are eoinitted to make distributions to our
stockholders while our debt obligations and otlesiar securities are outstanding unless certaisetasoverage” tests are met. See “—
Regulation—Senior Securities; Coverage Ratio.” Wy e restricted from making distributions under terms of our debt obligations
themselves unless certain conditions are satidfildeover, our ability to dispose of assets to nieetDistribution Requirements may be
limited by (1) the illiquid nature of our portfoli@r (2) other requirements relating to our stasis. RIC, including the Diversification Tests. If
we dispose of assets in order to meet the DistdblRequirements, we may make such dispositiotimas that, from an investment
standpoint, are not advantageous. If we are pr@dliiom making distributions or are unable to obtash from other sources to make the
distributions, we may fail to qualify as a RIC, whiwould result in us becoming subject to corpelatel federal income tax.

In addition, we will be partially dependent on @BIC subsidiaries for cash distributions to enalsléo meet the RIC Distribution
Requirements. Our SBIC subsidiaries may be limitgthe Small Business Investment Act of 1958, aB4 $egulations governing SBICs,
from making certain distributions to us that maynieeessary to maintain our status as a RIC. Wehaag to request a waiver of the SBA’s
restrictions for our SBIC subsidiaries to make aiertistributions to maintain our RIC status. Wargat assure you that the SBA will grant
such waiver. If our SBIC subsidiaries are unablelitain a waiver, compliance with the SBA regulasionay cause us to fail to qualify as a
RIC, which would result in us becoming subject éoporate-level federal income tax.

Any transactions in options, futures contracts starttive sales, hedging, straddle, conversionmoila transactions, and forward
contracts will be subject to special tax rules,effect of which may be to accelerate income taleger losses, cause adjustments to the ho
periods of our investments, convert long-term @gins into short-term capital gains, convertrskterm capital losses into long-term capital
losses or have other tax consequences. Thesecauibsaffect the amount, timing and character efritiutions to stockholders. We do not
currently intend to engage in these types of tretitsas.

A RIC is limited in its ability to deduct expendasexcess of its “investment company taxable incofwdich is, generally, ordinary
income plus net realized short-term capital gainsxicess of net realized long-term capital losgeelr expenses in a given year exceed gros:
taxable income (e.g., as the result of large ansohéquity-based compensation), we would expeei@cet operating loss for that year.
However, a RIC is not permitted to carry forward agerating losses to subsequent years and sudpesdting losses do not pass through to
the RIC'’s stockholders. In addition, expenses @nded only to offset investment company taxalderime, not net capital gain. A RIC may
not use any net capital losses (that is, realizpital losses in excess of realized capital gdmsffset the RIC’s investment company taxable
income, but may carry forward such losses, andhesa to offset capital gains indefinitely. Due bhese limits on the deductibility of expenses
and net capital losses, we may for tax purposes hggregate taxable income for several years thatresrequired to distribute and that is
taxable to our stockholders even if such incongréater than the aggregate net income we actualhed during those years. Such required
distributions may be made from our cash assety Gigbidation of investments, if necessary. We maglize gains or losses from such
liquidations. In the event we realize net capitahg from such transactions, you may receive afargpital gain distribution than you would
have received in the absence of such transactions.

Investment income received from sources withinifpreountries, or capital gains earned by invesiingecurities of foreign issuers, r
be subject to foreign income taxes withheld atsiwgrce. In this regard, withholding tax rates inroies with which the United States does no
have a tax treaty are often as high as
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35% or more. The United States has entered inttréaties with many foreign countries that mayténtis to a reduced rate of tax or
exemption from tax on this related income and gaihg effective rate of foreign tax cannot be dataed at this time since the amount of our
assets to be invested within various countrie®inow known. We do not anticipate being eligite the special election that allows a RIC to
treat foreign income taxes paid by such RIC as bwitis shareholders.

If we acquire stock in certain foreign corporatidhat receive at least 75% of their annual groserite from passive sources (such as
interest, dividends, rents, royalties or capitahyjar hold at least 50% of their total assetsweistments producing such passive income
(“passive foreign investment companies”), we cdddsubject to federal income tax and addition&radt charges on “excess distributions”
received from such companies or gain from the @a#tock in such companies, even if all incomeangctually received by us is timely
distributed to our shareholders. We would not He &dbpass through to our shareholders any credieduction for such a tax. Certain elect
may, if available, ameliorate these adverse tasegunences, but any such election requires us egmée taxable income or gain without the
concurrent receipt of cash. We intend to limit anghhanage our holdings in passive foreign investrnempanies to minimize our tax liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses realized by emninection with certain transactions involving rdwilar debt securities, certain
foreign currency futures contracts, foreign curgeaption contracts, foreign currency forward cootsaforeign currencies, or payables or
receivables denominated in a foreign currency abgest to Code provisions that generally treat sgains and losses as ordinary income and
losses and may affect the amount, timing and ckeraé distributions to our stockholders. Any stidmsactions that are not directly related to
our investment in securities (possibly includingagative currency positions or currency derivativet used for hedging purposes) could,
under future Treasury regulations, produce inconteamong the types of “qualifying incom&bm which a RIC must derive at least 90% o
annual gross income.

Failure to Qualify as a Regulated Investment Compan

If we fail to satisfy the 90% Income Test or thes®ification Tests for any taxable year, we mayentheless continue to qualify as a
RIC for such year if certain relief provisions aplicable (which may, among other things, requgdo pay certain corporate-level federal
taxes or to dispose of certain assets).

If we were unable to qualify for treatment as a Rt the foregoing relief provisions are not agiie, we would be subject to tax on all
of our taxable income at regular corporate rates wwuld not be able to deduct distributions to ldhadders, nor would they be required to be
made. Such distributions would be taxable to oatldtolders and if provided certain holding period ather requirements were met, could
qualify for treatment as “qualified dividend incotradigible for the 20% maximum rate to the extehbar current and accumulated earnings
and profits. Subject to certain limitations undes Code, corporate distributions would be eligiblethe dividends-received deduction.
Distributions in excess of our current and accutealz2arnings and profits would be treated first asturn of capital to the extent of the
stockholder’s tax basis, and any remaining distidns would be treated as a capital gain. To refyua$ a RIC in a subsequent taxable year,
we would be required to satisfy the RIC qualifioatrequirements for that year and dispose of anyirgs and profits from any year in which
we failed to qualify as a RIC. Subject to a limiexteption applicable to RICs that qualified ashsueder Subchapter M of the Code for at |
one year prior to disqualification and that redfyadis a RIC no later than the second year followwrgnonqualifying year, we could be subject
to tax on any unrealized net built-in gains in dssets held by us during the period in which wiediatio qualify as a RIC that are recognized
within the subsequent 10 years, unless we madeaasglection to pay corporate-level tax on sugittdin gain at the time of our
requalification as a RIC.
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DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

We determine the net asset value per share ofasomon stock quarterly. The net asset value peesbaqual to the value of our total
assets minus liabilities and any preferred stmatstanding divided by the total number of shafeommon stock outstanding. As of the dat:
this report, we do not have any preferred stocktanting.

Our investments are carried at fair value in acanceé with the 1940 Act and Accounting Standardsification (“ASC”) topic 820 Fair
Value Measurements and Disclosures. At Decembe2@I12, approximately 80.7% of the Company’s tossleds represented investments in
portfolio companies that are valued at fair valyah®e Board of Directors. Value, as defined in #ecp(a) (41) of the 1940 Act, is (i) the
market price for those securities for which a madieotation is readily available and (i) for ather securities and assets, fair value is as
determined in good faith by the Board of Direct@sir debt securities are primarily invested in ggaponsored technology-related companie:
including life science, clean technology and selewer middle market technology companies. Givenrthture of lending to these types of
businesses, our investments in these portfolio @i are generally considered Level 3 assets if8igr820 because there is no known or
accessible market or market indexes for these imas#t securities to be traded or exchanged. As, suealues substantially all of its
investments at fair value as determined in godih fairsuant to a consistent valuation policy andBaard of Directors in accordance with the
provisions of ASC 820 and the 1940 Act. Due toittheerent uncertainty in determining the fair vatfénvestments that do not have a readily
available market value, the fair value of our irtmesnts determined in good faith by our Board mdfedsignificantly from the value that
would have been used had a readily available maskisted for such investments, and the differecoestd be material.

Our Board of Directors may from time to time engagendependent valuation firm to provide us wigthuation assistance with respec
certain of our portfolio companies on a quartedgib. We intend to continue to engage an indepénadunation firm to provide us with
assistance regarding our determination of theviine of selected portfolio investments each quantéess directed by the Board of Directors
to cancel such valuation services. The scope of¢hdces rendered by an independent valuationifirat the discretion of the Board of
Directors. Our Board of Directors is ultimately asalely responsible for determining the fair vatieur investments in good faith.

With respect to investments for which market quotet are not readily available or when such magketations are deemed not to
represent fair value, our board of directors hag@ped a multi-step valuation process each quaatedescribed below:

(1) our quarterly valuation process begins withhgaartfolio company or investment being initiallglued by the investment professior
responsible for the portfolio investment;

(2) preliminary valuation conclusions are then doeunted and discussed with our investment committee;

(3) the valuation committee of the board of direst@views the preliminary valuation of the investrncommittee and that of the
independent valuation firm and responds to theatadn recommendation of the independent valuaiion o reflect any comments, if
any; and

(4) the Board of Directors discusses valuationsaetdrmines the fair value of each investment mpauitfolio in good faith based on the
input of, where applicable, the respective indepandaluation firm and the valuation committee.

We adopted ASC 820 on January 1, 2008. ASC 820blesttas a framework for measuring the fair valu¢ghefassets and liabilities and
outlines a fair value hierarchy which prioritizég tinputs used to measure fair value and the effdetr value measures on earnings. ASC 82(
also enhances disclosure requirements for fairevalaasurements based on the level within the ligyasf the information used in the
valuation. ASC 820 applies whenever other standaasire (or permit) assets or liabilities to beasugred at fair value but doesn’t expand
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the use of fair value in any new circumstances. 83C defines fair value as the price that woulddneived to sell an asset or paid to trans
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants at the measurement date.

The Company has categorized all investments redatifair value in accordance with ASC 820 baseazhupe level of judgment
associated with the inputs used to measure thewvdtue. Hierarchical levels, defined by ASC 82@ alirectly related to the amount of
subjectivity associated with the inputs to fairuation of these assets and liabilities, are asvidl

Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices iivacharkets for identical assets at the measuredsnst The types of assets carried at
Level 1 fair value generally are equities listecative markets.

Level 2—Inputs (other than quoted prices includedevel 1) are either directly or indirectly obsaine for the asset in connection with
market data at the measurement date and for tkeateodt the instrument’s anticipated life. Fair \@duassets that are generally included ir
this category are warrants held in a public company

Level 3—Inputs reflect management’s best estimatehat market participants would use in pricing #sset at the measurement date. |
includes prices or valuations that require inphts aire both significant to

the fair value measurement and unobservable. Gnearssets carried at fair value and includechis tategory are the debt investments
and warrants and equities held in a private company

Debt Investments

We follow the guidance set forth in ASC 820 whichablishes a framework for measuring the fair vailassets and liabilities and
outlines a fair value hierarchy which prioritizé®tinputs used to measure fair value and the effdair value measures on earnings. Our deb
securities are primarily invested in venture cdgitiecked companies in technology-related markatduding technology, biotechnology, life
science and clean-technology industries at allest@f development. Given the nature of lendindnés¢ types of businesses, the Company’s
investments in these portfolio companies are cemsitiLevel 3 assets under ASC 820 because theeoekisown or accessible market or ma
indexes for these investment securities to be tralexchanged.

In making a good faith determination of the valfi®@war investments, we generally start with the dstis of the investment, which
includes the value attributed to the OID, if anyd &1K interest which has been accrued to princ@gatarned. We then apply the valuation
methods as set forth below.

We apply a procedure that assumes a sale of ineastima hypothetical market to a hypothetical meaigarticipant where buyers and
sellers are willing participants. The hypotheticelrket does not include scenarios where the uridgriecurity was simply repaid or
extinguished, but includes an exit concept. Unbisrprocess, we also evaluate the collateral fosverability of the debt investments as we
apply all of its historical fair value analysis. Wse pricing on recently issued comparable dehirgis to determine the baseline hypothetical
market yields as of the measurement date. We ocansath portfolio company’s credit rating, seculigyns and other characteristics of the
investment to adjust the baseline yield to deritwpothetical yield for each investment. The aptited future cash flows from each investn
are then discounted at the hypothetical yield tomege each investment’s fair value as of the meamsant date.

Our process includes, among other things, the lyidgrinvestment performance, the current portfaliompany’s financial condition and
market changing events that impact valuation, edtohremaining life, current market yield and iattrate spreads of similar securities as of
the measurement date. We value our syndicated lesing broker quotes and bond indices amongst flcears. If there is a significant
deterioration of the credit quality of a debt inmaent, we may consider other factors to estimatevédue, including the proceeds that woulc
received in a liquidation analysis.
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We record unrealized depreciation on investmentsnahe believe that an investment has decreasealue \Mincluding where collection
of a loan is doubtful or if under the in exchangemise when the value of a debt security were tleg®than amortized cost of the investment
Conversely, where appropriate, we record unreabggateciation if we believe that the underlyingtfmio company has appreciated in value
and, therefore, that our investment has also agteetin value or if under the in exchange prerttigevalue of a debt security were to greater
than amortized cost.

When originating a debt instrument, we generalberee warrants or other equity-related securitiemfthe borrower. We determine the
cost basis of the warrants or other equity-relaszirities received based upon their respectiveréhiies on the date of receipt in proportion tc
the total fair value of the debt and warrants dieoequity-related securities received. Any resgltliscount on the loan from recordation of the
warrant or other equity instruments is accreted interest income over the life of the loan.

Equity-Related Securities and Warrants

Securities that are traded in the over-the-coumtakets or on a stock exchange will be valuedeaptievailing bid price at period end.
We have a limited number of equity securities iblfjucompanies. In accordance with the 1940 Actestricted publicly traded securities for
which market quotations are readily available aieied at the closing market quote on the measuredate.

We estimate the fair value of warrants using a BB&choles pricing model. At each reporting datesgtely held warrant and equity
related securities are valued based on an analiysarious factors including, but not limited tbgetportfolio company’s operating performance
and financial condition and general market condgj@rice to enterprise value or price to equitioga discounted cash flow, valuation
comparisons to comparable public companies or atigierstry benchmarks. When an external event ocsuch as a purchase transaction,
public offering, or subsequent equity sale, theipg indicated by that external event is utilizedcbrroborate the Company’s valuation of the
warrant and equity related. We periodically revibw valuation of its portfolio companies that hat been involved in a qualifying external
event to determine if the enterprise value of thefplio company may have increased or decreasea $he last valuation measurement date.

Determinations In Connection With Offerings

In connection with each offering of shares of cmmenon stock, the Board of Directors or a committegeof is required to make the
determination that we are not selling shares ofcommmon stock at a price below our then currentigsét value at the time at which the sale i
made. The Board of Directors considers the follgafisctors, among others, in making such deternanati

« the net asset value of our common stock disclaséidei most recent periodic report we filed with 8t€C;

e our management’'s assessment of whether any matbeabe in the net asset value has occurred (iimgjubrough the realization
of net gains on the sale of our portfolio investisgfrom the period beginning on the date of thesimecently disclosed net asset
value to the period ending two days prior to theead the sale of our common stock; ¢

* the magnitude of the difference between the netasdue disclosed in the most recent periodic mepe filed with the SEC and
our management’s assessment of any material charlye net asset value since the date of the neesntly disclosed net asset
value, and the offering price of the shares ofammmon stock in the proposed offeril

Importantly, this determination does not requir&t thre calculate net asset value in connection @atth offering of shares of our comn
stock, but instead it involves the determinatiorthiy Board of Directors or a committee thereof thatare not selling shares of our common
stock at a price below the then current net asgekvat the time at which the sale is made.
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Moreover, to the extent that there is even a rempossibility that we may (i) issue shares of ounown stock at a price below the then
current net asset value of our common stock atitine at which the sale is made or (i) trigger tiielertaking (which we provided to the SEC
in the registration statement to which this proggpeds a part) to suspend the offering of sharesiofcommon stock pursuant to this prospectu
if the net asset value fluctuates by certain anwimtertain circumstances until the prospectasrisnded, the Board of Directors or a
committee thereof will elect, in the case of cla(isabove, either to postpone the offering uniitls time that there is no longer the possibility
of the occurrence of such event or to undertaldetermine net asset value within two days priang such sale to ensure that such sale will
not be below our then current net asset value, iarttie case of clause (ii) above, to comply withrsundertaking or to undertake to determine
net asset value to ensure that such undertakingdtdseen triggered.

These processes and procedures are part of ouliaoogpolicies and procedures. Records will be emamhtemporaneously with all
determinations described in this section and thesards will be maintained with other records we r@quired to maintain under the 1940 Act.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our securities may be speculative iandlves a high degree of risk. You should consi@eefully the risks described below
and all other information contained in this AnniRéport, including our financial statements and italated notes and the schedules and
exhibits to this Annual Report. The risks set fretow are not the only risks we face. If any effthllowing risks occur, our business, financial
condition and results of operations could be matériadversely affected. In such case, our nettassiee and the trading price of our
securities could decline, and you may lose all ant pf your investment.

Risks Related to our Business Structure

We are dependent upon key management personneitfeir time availability and our future success, gaularly Manuel A. Henriquez,
and if we are not able to hire and retain qualifiqeersonnel, or if we lose any member of our senimanagement team, our ability to
implement our business strategy could be signifidgrharmed.

We depend upon the members of our senior managepsetitularly Mr. Henriquez, as well as other lggrsonnel for the identification,
final selection, structuring, closing and monitgriof our investments. These employees have critichistry experience and relationships on
which we rely to implement our business plan. Iflage the services of Mr. Henriquez, or of any o8enior management members, we may
not be able to operate the business as we expetgla ability to compete could be harmed, whichld@ause our operating results to suffer.
Furthermore, we do not have an employment agreewiémtMr. Henriquez and our senior management tsestricted from creating new
investment vehicles subject to compliance with mpple law. We believe our future success will deheén part, on our ability to identify,
attract and retain sufficient numbers of highlyllski employees. If we do not succeed in identifyiatjracting and retaining such personnel, w
may not be able to operate our business as we expec

Our business model depends to a significant extepon strong referral relationships with venture cagl and private equity fund
sponsors, and our inability to develop or maintatimese relationships, or the failure of these relatiships to generate investment
opportunities, could adversely affect our business.

We expect that members of our management teanmailhtain their relationships with venture capitadl rivate equity firms, and we
will rely to a significant extent upon these redatships to provide us with our deal flow. If wel fai maintain our existing relationships, our
relationships become strained as a result of eimigi@ur rights with respect to non-performing politi companies in protecting our
investments or we fail to develop new relationshijith other firms or sources of investment oppoittag, then we will not be able to grow our
investment portfolio. In addition, persons with wanenembers of our management team have relationah#psot obligated to provide us with
investment opportunities and, therefore, theraigssurance that such relationships will lead ¢oottigination of debt or other investments.
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We operate in a highly competitive market for inte®nt opportunities, and we may not be able to cetepeffectively.

A number of entities compete with us to make theesyof investments that we plan to make in prosgepbrtfolio companies. We
compete with a large number of venture capital ginate equity firms, as well as with other investihfunds, investment banks and other
sources of financing, including traditional finaalcéervices companies such as commercial bankfirentte companies. Many of our
competitors are substantially larger and have demably greater financial, technical, marketing attter resources than we do. For example,
some competitors may have a lower cost of fund#omradcess to funding sources that are not avail@blis. This may enable some
competitors to make commercial loans with interatgs that are comparable to or lower than thes tht we typically offer. We may lose
prospective portfolio companies if we do not matompetitors’ pricing, terms and structure. If werdatch competitors’ pricing, terms or
structure, we may experience decreased net infex@she and increased risk of credit losses. Intimad some of our competitors may have
higher risk tolerances or different risk assessmemtich could allow them to consider a wider vigrigf investments, establish more
relationships and build their market shares. Funtioee, many potential competitors are not subjethé regulatory restrictions that the 1940
Act imposes on us as a business development conguahgt the Code would impose on us as a RICelave not able to compete effectively,
our business, financial condition, and resultspdrations will be adversely affected. As a restithis competition, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to identify and take advantafattractive investment opportunities that weniifg, or that we will be able to fully invest
our available capital.

Because we intend to distribute substantially aflaur income to our stockholders in order to qualifis a RIC, we will continue to need
additional capital to finance our growth. If additinal funds are unavailable or not available on farable terms, our ability to grow will k
impaired.

In order to satisfy the tax requirements applicabla RIC, to avoid payment of excise taxes anditimize or avoid payment of income
taxes, we intend to distribute to our stockholdeersstantially all of our ordinary income and readimet capital gains except for certain real
net long-term capital gains, which we may retamy ppplicable income taxes with respect theretoedect to treat as deemed distributions to
our stockholders. As a business development compeagenerally are required to meet a coverage ddtiotal assets to total borrowings and
other senior securities, which includes all of barrowings and any preferred stock that we mayeissuhe future, of at least 200%. This
requirement limits the amount that we may borrohisTimitation may prevent us from incurring dehtlarequire us to raise additional equity
at a time when it may be disadvantageous to d@/gocannot assure you that debt and equity finangitigoe available to us on favorable
terms, or at all, and debt financings may be retsti by the terms of any of our outstanding bormgsi If we are unable to incur additional
debt, we may be required to raise additional ecatity time when it may be disadvantageous to dmsaddition, shares of closed-end
investment companies have recently traded at digsda their net asset values. This characterdtatosed-end investment companies is
separate and distinct from the risk that our neétagalue per share may decline. We cannot prediether shares of our common stock will
trade above, at or below our net asset value.rltommon stock trades below its net asset valugemerally will not be able to issue
additional shares of our common stock at its mapkiee without first obtaining the approval for sussuance from our stockholders and our
independent directors. If additional funds areailable to us, we could be forced to curtail @se new lending and investment activities,
and our net asset value could decline. In additomn results of operations and financial conditonld be adversely affected.

Because we have substantial indebtedness, therddcbe increased risk in investing in our company.

Lenders have fixed dollar claims on our assetsdtasuperior to the claims of stockholders, andvaxe granted, and may in the future
grant, lenders a security interest in our assetsiimection with borrowings. In the case of a litpion event, those lenders would receive
proceeds before our stockholders. In addition,dwirrgs, also known as leverage, magnify the patéfdr gain or loss on amounts invested
and, therefore, increase the risks associatedimitisting in our securities. Leverage is generadigsidered a speculative investment techni
If the value of our assets increases, then levegagould cause the net asset value
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attributable to our common stock to increase mioa@ it otherwise would have had we not leveragemversely, if the value of our assets
decreases, leveraging would cause the net asset atifibutable to our common stock to decline ntbaa it otherwise would have had we not
leveraged. Similarly, any increase in our revemuexcess of interest expense on our borrowed fuotddd cause our net income to increase
more than it would without the leverage. Any deseegn our revenue would cause our net income thngemore than it would have had we
borrowed funds and could negatively affect ourigbib make distributions on common stock. Our iptio service any debt that we incur will
depend largely on our financial performance andllvélsubject to prevailing economic conditions anthpetitive pressures. We and,
indirectly, our stockholders will bear the costasated with our leverage activity. If we are nbteato service our substantial indebtedness, o
business could be harmed materially.

Our secured credit facilities with Wells Fargo Gapkinance LLC (the “Wells Facility”) and Union Bl, N.A. (the “Union Bank
Facility,” and together with the Wells Facility, otCredit Facilities”) our Convertible Senior Notesur 2019 Notes and our Asset-Backed
Notes (as each term is defined below) contain fir@rand operating covenants that could restrictbmsiness activities, including our ability
declare dividends if we default under certain psns.

As of December 31, 2012, we did not have any oty borrowings under our Credit Facilities. Irddithn, as of December 31, 2012,
we had approximately $225.0 million of indebtednastsstanding incurred by our SBIC subsidiaries,.8billion of Convertible Senior Notes
payable, approximately $170.4 million of 2019 Naaesl approximately $129.3 million in aggregate @pal amount of fixed rate asdetckec
notes (the “Asset-Backed Notes”) in connection waithh $230.7 million debt Securitization (the “Dé&g#curitization”). There can be no
assurance that we will be successful in obtainmgaaditional debt capital on terms acceptablestorat all. If we are unable to obtain debt
capital, then our equity investors will not benéfitm the potential for increased returns on eqrégulting from leverage to the extent that our
investment strategy is successful and we may bigelinin our ability to make new commitments or fing$ to our portfolio companies.

As a business development company, generally, &aa@trpermitted to incur indebtedness unless imatelyi after such borrowing we
have an asset coverage for total borrowings afastl200% (i.e., the amount of debt may not ex&6é6l of the value of our assets). In
addition, we may not be permitted to declare ashaividend or other distribution on our outstagdiommon shares, or purchase any such
shares, unless, at the time of such declaratiguarthase, we have an asset coverage of at lea#t 2@8r deducting the amount of such
dividend, distribution, or purchase price. If thagio declines below 200%, we may not be able ¢tarimdditional debt and may need to sell a
portion of our investments to repay some debt whiesndisadvantageous to do so, and we may nobleeta make distributions. As of
December 31, 2012 our asset coverage ratio undeegulatory requirements as a business developooempany was 296.8%, excluding our
SBIC debentures as a result of our exemptive drder the SEC which allows us to exclude all SBAdege from our asset coverage ratio.

lllustration. The following table illustrates the effect of lemge on returns from an investment in our commockshgsuming various
annual returns, net of expenses. The calculatiokise table below are hypothetical and actual nstanay be higher or lower than those
appearing below.

Assumed Return on Our Portfolio
(Net of Expenses)

(10)% B)% 0% 5% 10%
Corresponding return to stockhold&} (29.429%) (18.529%) (7.65%) 3.20% 14.19%

(1) Assumes $1,123.6 million in total assets, $B%8illion in debt outstanding, $516.0 million iroskholders’ equity, and an average cost of fund& &%, which is the approximate
average cost of borrowed funds, including our Gredtilities, our Convertible Senior Notes, 201%éép our SBA debentures and our Asset-Backed Notdhe period ended
December 31, 2012. Actual interest payments majiferent.
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It is likely that the terms of any current or fut@ long-term or revolving credit or warehouse fatyliwe may enter into in the future could
constrain our ability to grow our business.

Under our borrowings and Credit Facilities, curremiders have, and any future lender or lendershmag, fixed dollar claims on our
assets that are senior to the claims of our stddeh®and, thus, will have a preference over cagldtolders with respect to our assets in the
collateral pool. Our Credit Facilities and borroggnalso subject us to various financial and opsgatbvenants, including, but not limited to,
maintaining certain financial ratios and minimumggble net worth amounts. Future credit facilitteesl borrowings will likely subject us to
similar or additional covenants. In addition, weyng@ant a securities interest in our assets in eotion with any such credit facilities and
borrowings.

Our Credit Facilities generally contain customagyadilt provisions such as a minimum net worth ancaiprofitability test, and a
restriction on changing our business and loan tyusandards. In addition, our Credit Facilitiequige or are expected to require the repayr
of all outstanding debt on the maturity which masrualpt our business and potentially the businessioportfolio companies that are financed
through the facilities. An event of default undeege facilities would likely result, among otheintgs, in termination of the availability of
further funds under the facilities and acceleraedurity dates for all amounts outstanding underf#tilities, which would likely disrupt our
business and, potentially, the business of thdglmrtcompanies whose loans we finance througHah#ities. This could reduce our revenues
and, by delaying any cash payment allowed to uguadr facilities until the lender has been paiéuih reduce our liquidity and cash flow a
impair our ability to grow our business and maimtairr status as a RIC.

The terms of future available financing may pldogtk on our financial and operation flexibilityf. we are unable to obtain sufficient
capital in the future, we may be forced to reducdiscontinue our operations, not be able to make investments, or otherwise respond to
changing business conditions or competitive pressur

In addition to regulatory requirements that resttiour ability to raise capital, our Credit Faciligs, the Convertible Senior Notes and the
2019 Notes contain various covenants which, if momplied with, could accelerate repayment under faeility or require us to
repurchase the Convertible Senior Notes and the 20lotes thereby materially and adversely affectmg liquidity, financial condition,
results of operations and ability to pay dividends.

The credit agreements governing our Credit Faedjtthe Convertible Senior Notes and the 2019 Netgsire us to comply with certain
financial and operational covenants. These covarraquire us to, among other things, maintain geftaancial ratios, including asset
coverage, debt to equity and interest coverage a®ility to continue to comply with these covenantthe future depends on many factors,
some of which are beyond our control. There arassurances that we will be able to comply with éh@s/enants. Failure to comply with th
covenants would result in a default which, if werevanable to obtain a waiver from the lenders uderCredit Facilities or the trustee or
holders under the Convertible Senior Notes anddcaatelerate repayment under the facilities oiGtbevertible Senior Notes or the 2019
Notes and thereby have a material adverse impagtioliquidity, financial condition, results of agions and ability to pay dividends.
addition, holders of the Convertible Senior Notél lmave the right to require us to repurchaseGoavertible Senior Notes upon the
occurrence of a fundamental change at a repurghraseequal to 100% of their principal amount, phesrued and unpaid interest, if any. We
may not have enough available cash or be ablettrofinancing at the time we are required to mairchases. See “ltem 7. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operatiors inancial Condition—Borrowings.”

We are subject to certain risks as a result of anterests in connection with the Debt Securitizatiand our equity interest in the
Securitization Issuer.

On December 19, 2012, in connection with the DelotuBtization and the offering of the Asset-Backéates by Hercules Capital
Funding Trust 2012-1 (the “Securitization Issuewi® sold and/or contributed to Hercules Capitaldtog 2012-1 LLC, as Trust Depositor (the
“Trust Depositor”), certain senior loans made to
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certain of our portfolio companies (the “Loans”hieh the Trust Depositor in turn sold and/or cdnited to the Securitization Issuer in
exchange for 100% of the equity interest in theuB#zation Issuer, cash proceeds and other coretida. Following these transfers, the
Securitization Issuer, and not the Trust Depositars, held all of the ownership interest in thahs.

As a result of the Debt Securitization, we holdliiactly through the Trust Depositor, 100% of tlyeliigy interest in the Securitization
Issuer. As a result, we consolidate the finandatiesnents of the Trust Depositor and the Secutiti@zdssuer, as well as our other subsidiaries
in our consolidated financial statements. Becaasé ef the Trust Depositor and the Securitizatgsuér is disregarded as an entity separate
from its owner for U.S. federal income tax purposks sale or contribution by us to the Trust Déposand by the Trust Depositor to the
Securitization Issuer, did not constitute a taxalent for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Iful®. Internal Revenue Service were to take :
contrary position, there could be a material adveffect on our business, financial condition, lssof operations or cash flows. Further, a
failure of the Securitization Issuer to be treasd disregarded entity for U.S. federal incomeptarposes would constitute an event of defaul
pursuant to the indenture under the Debt Secutitizaupon which the trustee under the Debt Sdeation (the “Trustee”) may and will at the
direction of a supermajority of the holders of fheset-Backed Notes (the “Noteholders”) declareAbsetBacked Notes to be immediately «
and payable and exercise remedies under the imgeimualuding (i) to institute proceedings for ttwlection of all amounts then payable on
Asset-Backed Notes or under the indenture, enfanggudgment obtained, and collect from the Seizatibn Issuer and any other obligor
upon the Asset-Backed Notes monies adjudged dy@diitute proceedings from time to time for t@mplete or partial foreclosure of the
indenture with respect to the property of the Siéization Issuer; (iii) exercise any remedies asaured party under the relevant UCC and tak
other appropriate action under applicable law tiigot and enforce the rights and remedies of thistée and the Noteholders; or (iv) sell the
property of the Securitization Issuer or any partioereof or rights or interest therein at one orarpublic or private sales called and condu
in any matter permitted by law. Any such exerciseemedies could have a material adverse effecturbusiness, financial condition, results
of operations or cash flows.

An event of default in connection with the Debt Seitization could give rise to a cross-default undeur other material indebtedness.

The documents governing our other material indet#es contain customary cross-default provisionsdbald be triggered if an event of
default occurs in connection with the Debt Seczation. An event of default with respect to ourestindebtedness could lead to the
acceleration of such indebtedness and the exestisther remedies as provided in the documentsrgavg such other indebtedness. This ¢
have a material adverse effect on our businesaial condition, results of operations and casWwgland may result in our inability to make
distributions sufficient to maintain our statusaaRIC.

We may not receive cash distributions in respecbaf indirect ownership interest in the Securitizan Issuer.

Apart from fees payable to us in connection with @le as servicer of the Loans and the reimburseimierelated amounts under the
Debt Securitization documents, we receive castoimection with the Debt Securitization only to theent that the Trust Depositor receives
payments in respect of its equity interest in teeusitization Issuer. The holder of the equity iag in the Securitization Issuer is the residual
claimant on distributions, if any, made by the Sgization Issuer after the Noteholders and othaintants have been paid in full on each
payment date or upon maturity of the notes, sulgettie priority of payments under the Debt Se@aiton documents. To the extent that the
value of the Securitization Issuer’s portfolio afdns is reduced as a result of conditions in tedicmarkets (relevant in the event of a
liquidation event), other macroeconomic factorstréissed or defaulted Loans or the failure of ildial portfolio companies to otherwise meet
their obligations in respect of the Loans, or foy ather reason, the ability of the Securitizatissuer to make cash distributions in respect of
the Trust Depositor's equity interest would be riegdy affected and consequently, the value ofdfeity interest in the Securitization Issuer
would also be reduced. In the event that we faitteive cash indirectly from the Securitizatiosuisr, we could be unable to make
distributions, if at all, in amounts sufficient teaintain our status as a RIC.
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The interests of the Noteholders may not be aligéth our interests.

The Asset-Backed Notes are debt obligations rangamgor in right of payment to the rights of thédew of the equity interest in the
Securitization Issuer, as residual claimant in eespf distributions, if any, made by the Secuaitian Issuer. As such, there are circumstances
in which the interests of the Noteholders may realigned with the interests of holders of the gaimiterest in the Securitization Issuer. For
example, under the terms of the documents govethim@ebt Securitization, the Noteholders haveritiig to receive payments of principal
and interest prior to holders of the equity interes

For as long as the Asset-Backed Notes remain oualistg, the Noteholders have the right to act iaiercircumstances with respect to
the Loans in ways that may benefit their interésitsnot the interests of holder of the equity iagrin the Securitization Issuer, including by
exercising remedies under the documents goverhm@ebt Securitization.

If an event of default occurs, the Noteholders bdlentitled to determine the remedies to be esedcisubject to the terms of the
documents governing the Debt Securitization. Famngxe, upon the occurrence of an event of defaitift espect to the Asset-Backed Notes,
the Trustee may and will at the direction of thé&dkes of a supermajority of the Asset-Backed Nalesare the principal, together with any
accrued interest, of the notes to be immediatetyahd payable. This would have the effect of acagfey the principal on such notes,
triggering a repayment obligation on the part & 8ecuritization Issuer. The Asset-Backed Notes thestanding will be paid in full before
any further payment or distribution on the equitierest is made. There can be no assurance thattiiebe sufficient funds through
collections on the Loans or through the proceedh@tale of the Loans in the event of a bankruptapsolvency to repay in full the
obligations under the Asset-Backed Notes, or toaraly distribution to holder of the equity interiesthe Securitization Issuer.

Remedies pursued by the Noteholders could be aglt@igur interests as the indirect holder of thaitgdnterest in the Securitization
Issuer. The Noteholders have no obligation to aersiny possible adverse effect on such otherast®rThus, there can be no assurance tha
any remedies pursued by the Noteholders will besistent with the best interests of the Trust Deposir that we will receive, indirectly
through the Trust Depositor, any payments or distidns upon an acceleration of the Asset-Backe@dNa\ny failure of the Securitization
Issuer to make distributions in respect of the igguierest that we indirectly hold, whether agsuit of an event of default and the accelere
of payments on the Asset-Backed Notes or otherwmgld have a material adverse effect on our bssirfancial condition, results of
operations and cash flows and may result in ouilitgto make distributions sufficient to maintadur status as a RIC.

Certain events related to the performance of Loammild lead to the acceleration of principal paymerdn the Asset-Backed Notes.

The following constitute rapid amortization eve(fRapid Amortization Events”ynder the documents governing the Debt Securitiae
(i) the aggregate outstanding principal balancgetihquent Loans and restructured Loans that whale been delinquent Loans had such
Loans not become restructured Loans exceeds 1@ke alurrent aggregate outstanding principal balaftee Loans, excluding all defaulted
Loans and all purchased Loans (the “Pool Balanfme™a period of three consecutive months; (ii) diggregate outstanding principal balance o
defaulted Loans exceeds 5% of the initial Pool Bedadetermined as of December 19, 2012 for a pefitiilee consecutive months; (iii) the
aggregate outstanding principal balance of the tABaeked Notes exceeds the borrowing base for aghefithree consecutive months; (iv)
Securitization Issuer’s pool of Loans contains Lotmten or fewer obligors; and (v) the occurreoicen event of default under the documents
governing the Debt Securitization. After a Rapid éstization Event has occurred, subject to the gyiaf payments under the documents
governing the Debt Securitization, principal caliens on the Loans will be used to make accelenpséstnents of principal on the Asset-
Backed Notes until the payment of principal balaotthe Asset-Backed Loans is reduced to zero. @natvent could delay, reduce or
eliminate the ability of the Securitization Isst@make distributions in respect of the equity riegt

31



Table of Contents

that we indirectly hold, which could have a matea@dverse effect on our business, financial coadijtresults of operations and cash flows anc
may result in our inability to make distributiongficient to maintain our status as a RIC.

We have certain repurchase obligations with resptcthe Loans transferred in connection with the BEeSecuritization.

As part of the Debt Securitization, we entered msale and contribution agreement and a saleaniting agreement under which we
would be required to repurchase any Loan (or ppetmon interest therein) which was sold to theuBiization Issuer in breach of certain
customary representations and warranty made by log the Trust Depositor with respect to such Loathe legal structure of the Debt
Securitization. To the extent that such therehsemch of such representations and warranties arfdilsto satisfy any such repurchase
obligation, the Trustee may, on behalf of the Siéization Issuer, bring an action against us twecd these repurchase obligations.

Because most of our investments typically are mopublicly-traded securities, there is uncertainty regardirgetvalue of our investment
which could adversely affect the determination afrmet asset value.

At December 31, 2012, portfolio investments, whach valued at fair value by the Board of Directarsre approximately 80.7% of our
total assets. We expect our investments to contimgensist primarily of securities issued by prérg-held companies, the fair value of which
is not readily determinable. In addition, we aré permitted to maintain a general reserve for grdied loan losses. Instead, we are require
the 1940 Act to specifically value each investrmeamd record an unrealized gain or loss for any dbaétve believe has increased or decrease
in value.

There is no single standard for determining falugan good faith. We value these securities atalue as determined in good faith by
our Board of Directors, based on the recommendsiddour Valuation Committee. In making a goodHaletermination of the value of these
securities, we generally start with the cost baebesach security, which includes the amortized @ild PIK interest, if any. The Valuation
Committee uses its best judgment in arriving atftfirevalue of these securities. As a result, debeing fair value requires that judgment be
applied to the specific facts and circumstancesagh portfolio investment while applying a valuatfwrocess for the types of investments we
make, which includes but is not limited to derivimgnypothetical exit price. However, the Board @feltors retains ultimate authority as to the
appropriate valuation of each investment. Becaush galuations are inherently uncertain and maldsed on estimates, our determinatior
fair value may differ materially from the valuestiwould be assessed if a ready market for thesgises existed. We adjust quarterly the
valuation of our portfolio to reflect the Board Birectors’ determination of the fair value of eantiestment in our portfolio. Any changes in
fair value are recorded in our statement of openatas net change in unrealized appreciation aedigtion. Our net asset value could be
adversely affected if our determinations regardivegfair value of our investments were materialyhler than the values that we ultimately
realize upon the disposal of such securities.

Our equity ownership in a portfolio company may megent a control investment. Our ability to exit amvestment in a timely manner
because we are in a control position or have acdesimside information in the portfolio company cddiresult in a realized loss on the
investment.

If we obtain a control investment in a portfoliongpany our ability to divest ourselves from a debéquity investment could be restric
due to illiquidity in a private stock, limited trand) volume on a public company’s stock, inside infation on a compang’performance, insid
blackout periods, or other factors that could poghis from disposing of the investment as we waliidwere not a control investment.
Additionally, we may choose not to take certairicats to protect a debt investment in a control stwent portfolio company. As a result, we
could experience a decrease in the value of oufgliorcompany holdings and potentially incur alieed loss on the investment.
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Regulations governing our operations as a businedevelopment company may affect our ability to, athé manner in which, we raise
additional capital, which may expose us to risks.

Our business will require a substantial amountagitel. We may acquire additional capital from ib®uance of senior securities,
including borrowings, securitization transaction®ther indebtedness, or the issuance of additisimales of our common stock. However, we
may not be able to raise additional capital inftitare on favorable terms or at all. We may isseletdecurities, other evidences of
indebtedness or preferred stock, and we may bomowney from banks or other financial institutiongii@h we refer to collectively as “senior
securities,” up to the maximum amount permittedh®s/1940 Act. Under the 1940 Act, we are not peaedito incur indebtedness unless
immediately after such borrowing we have an asset¢rage for total borrowings of at least 200% ,(tlee amount of debt may not exceed 50%
of the value of our assets). In addition, we matyb@permitted to declare any cash dividend orradisribution on our outstanding common
shares, or purchase any such shares, unless,tahéhef such declaration or purchase, we havesaataoverage of at least 200% after
deducting the amount of such dividend, distributionpurchase price. Our ability to pay dividendsssue additional senior securities woulc
restricted if our asset coverage ratio were ntgagt 200%. If the value of our assets declinesnag be unable to satisfy this test. If that
happens, we may be required to liquidate a podfayur investments and repay a portion of our ittelébess at a time when such sales may b
disadvantageous. As a result of issuing seniormrgexa) we would also be exposed to typical risksogiated with leverage, including an
increased risk of loss. If we issue preferred sttiok preferred stock would rank “senior” to comnsbock in our capital structure, preferred
stockholders would have separate voting rightsnaigiht have rights, preferences, or privileges nfaverable than those of our common
stockholders and the issuance of preferred stogkidmave the effect of delaying, deferring, or meting a transaction or a change of control
that might involve a premium price for holders af gommon stock or otherwise be in your best irstere

To the extent that we are constrained in our gttititissue debt or other senior securities, we défbend on issuances of common stoc
finance operations. Other than in certain limitédations such as rights offerings, as a businessldpment company, we are generally not
able to issue our common stock at a price belovasstt value without first obtaining required appis from our stockholders and our
independent directors. If we raise additional fuhggssuing more common stock or senior securiéi@s/ertible into, or exchangeable for, our
common stock, then the percentage ownership oftmgkholders at that time will decrease, and yoghinéxperience dilution. Moreover, we
can offer no assurance that we will be able todsmd sell additional equity securities in the fefwn favorable terms or at all.

When we are a debt or minority equity investor irpartfolio company, we may not be in a positiondoentrol the entity, and management
of the company may make decisions that could desesthe value of our portfolio holdings.

We make both debt and minority equity investmethtsrefore, we are subject to the risk that a pbotimompany may make business
decisions with which we disagree, and the stocldrsldnd management of such company may take niskberwise act in ways that do not
serve our interests. As a result, a portfolio conyp@ay make decisions that could decrease the wdlaer portfolio holdings.

If we do not invest a sufficient portion of our asts in qualifying assets, we could fail to qualifg a business development company or be
precluded from investing according to our currentibiness strategy.

As a business development company, we may not@&guoy assets other than “qualifying assets” upkgsthe time of and after giving
effect to such acquisition, at least 70% of oualtassets are qualifying assets. See “ltem 1. Basir-Regulation.”

We believe that most of the senior loans we maklecamstitute qualifying assets. However, we maybecluded from investing in what
we believe are attractive investments if such itmests are not qualifying assets for purposesefl840 Act. If we do not invest a sufficient
portion of our assets in qualifying assets, we

33



Table of Contents

could lose our status as a business developmergamgmwhich would have a material adverse effeaarbusiness, financial condition and
results of operations. Similarly, these rules cqurelvent us from making follow-on investments isérg portfolio companies (which could
result in the dilution of our position) or couldjigre us to dispose of investments at inapproptiates in order to comply with the 1940 Act
we need to dispose of such investments quicklyoiild be difficult to dispose of such investmentsfavorable terms. For example, we may
have difficulty in finding a buyer and, even if we find a buyer, we may have to sell the investmant substantial loss.

A failure on our part to maintain our qualificationas a business development company would signifitareduce our operating
flexibility.

If we fail to continuously qualify as a businesyelepment company, we might be subject to reguladi® a registered closed-end
investment company under the 1940 Act, which waiddhificantly decrease our operating flexibility. addition, failure to comply with the
requirements imposed on business development caeglay the 1940 Act could cause the SEC to bringrdarcement action against us. For
additional information on the qualification requirents of a business development company, see 1tdosiness— Regulation.”

To the extent original issue discount and paid-ifRkl interest constitute a portion of our income, wéll be exposed to typical risks
associated with such income being required to beluded in taxable and accounting income prior toaeipt of cash representing such
income.

Our investments may include original issue discpanOID, instruments and contractual payment-imdkior PIK, interest, which
represents contractual interest added to a loambaland due at the end of such loan’s

term. To the extent OID or PIK interest constitatportion of our income, we are exposed to typisils associated with such income
being required to be included in taxable and actiogrincome prior to receipt of cash, including fbbowing:

» OID instruments may have higher yields, which refthe payment deferral and credit risk associaiiéll these instrument

* OID and PIK instruments may have unreliable vahragibecause their continuing accruals require iwoimtj judgments about the
collectability of the deferred payments and theugadf the collateral; an

» OID and PIK instruments may represent a higheritratk than coupon loan

If we are unable to satisfy Code requirements faradjfication as a RIC, then we will be subject t@iporate-level income tax, which
would adversely affect our results of operationscafinancial condition.

We elected to be treated as a RIC for federal irctar purposes with the filing of our federal caaie income tax return for 2006. We
will not qualify for the tax treatment allowable RICs if we are unable to comply with the sourcénabme, asset diversification and
distribution requirements contained in Subchaptesfithe Code, or if we fail to maintain our electito be regulated as a business develop
company under the 1940 Act. If we fail to qualiéy the federal income tax benefits allowable to R1@ any reason and become subject to a
corporate-level income tax, the resulting taxedagubstantially reduce our net assets, the amaiintome available for distribution to our
stockholders and the actual amount of our distidimgt Such a failure would have a material adveffget on us, the net asset value of our
common stock and the total return, if any, obtaiedtmm your investment in our common stock. Any agerating losses that we incur in
periods during which we qualify as a RIC will ndfset net capital gains (i.e., net realized longrteapital gains in excess of net realized sho
term capital losses) that we are otherwise requaetistribute, and we cannot pass such net opgraasses through to our stockholders. In
addition, net operating losses that we carry over taxable year in which we qualify as a RIC ndlynzannot offset ordinary income or cap!
gains.
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We may have difficulty paying our required distritians under applicable tax rules if we recognizecome before or without receiving
cash representing such income.

In accordance with generally accepted accountimgiples and U.S. federal tax requirements, weuigelin income certain amounts that
we have not yet received in cash, such as conableti interest, which represents contractual egeadded to a loan balance and due at the
end of such loan’s term. In addition to the cagidg received on our loans, in some instancesinddans may also include any of the
following: end-of-term payments, exit fees, ballqmyment fees or prepayment fees. The increadearinbalances as a result of contractual
PIK arrangements are included in income for théogein which such payment-in-kind interest was aed, which is often in advance of
receiving cash payment, and are separately idedtdh our statements of cash flows. We also magdpgired to include in income certain
other amounts prior to receiving the related cash.

Any warrants that we receive in connection with debt investments will generally be valued as pathe negotiation process with the
particular portfolio company. As a result, a pantif the aggregate purchase price for the debsinvents and warrants will be allocated to the
warrants that we receive. This will generally régul‘original issue discount” for tax purposes,iathwe must recognize as ordinary income,
increasing the amount that we are required toildigt to qualify for the federal income tax bergefipplicable to RICs. Because these warrant
generally will not produce distributable cash ferai the same time as we are required to makébdistms in respect of the related original
issue discount, we would need to obtain cash frimarsources or to pay a portion of our distribngiaising shares of newly issued common
stock, consistent with Internal Revenue Servicairegnents, to satisfy such distribution requirersent

Other features of the debt instruments that we hwg also cause such instruments to generate ginarissue discount, resulting in a
dividend distribution requirement in excess of euntrcash interest received. Since in certain casa®ay recognize income before or without
receiving cash representing such income, we mag Héficulty meeting the RIC tax requirement totdlsute generally an amount equal to at
least 90% of our net ordinary income and realizetdshort-term capital gains in excess of realizetdong-term capital losses, if any. Under
such circumstances, we may have to sell some cigsets, raise additional debt or equity capitaéduce new investment originations to nr
these distribution requirements. If we are unablelitain cash from other sources and are othemwiable to satisfy such distribution
requirements, we may fail to qualify for the fedéngome tax benefits allowable to RICs and, thheg;ome subject to a corporate-level income
tax on all our income. See “Item 1. Business—Certéiited States Federal Income Tax Considerations.”

There is a risk that you may not receive distriboris or that our distributions may not grow over tén

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly $asiour stockholders. We cannot assure you thatiwachieve investment results, or
our business may not perform in a manner thataliw us to make a specified level of distributiamms/ear-to-year increases in cash
distributions. In addition, due to the asset cogertest applicable to us as a business developrparany, we may be limited in our ability to
make distributions. Also, our Credit Facilities iiraur ability to declare dividends if we defaulider certain provisions.

We have and may in the future choose to pay divideim our own stock, in which case you may be reqdito pay tax in excess of the
cash you receive.

Under applicable Treasury regulations and certaiwafe rulings issued by the Internal Revenue $erMRICs are permitted to treat
certain distributions payable in up to 80% in thetack, as taxable dividends that will satisfy treginual distribution obligations for federal
income tax and excise tax purposes provided thatblolders have the opportunity to elect to rectiieadistribution in cash. Taxable
stockholders receiving such dividends will be regdito include the full amount of the dividend adioary income (or as long-term capital
gain to the extent such distribution is properlgigeated as a capital gain dividend) to the extéour current and accumulated earnings and
profits for United States federal income tax pugmg\s a result, a U.S. stockholder may be requargry tax with respect to such dividend
excess of any cash received. If a U.S.
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stockholder sells the stock it receives as a divdde order to pay this tax, the sales proceedsmedgss than the amount included in income
with respect to the dividend, depending on the rtgokice of our stock at the time of the sale. [kemnore, with respect to non-U.S.
stockholders, we may be required to withhold UaR.with respect to such dividends, including inpexg of all or a portion of such dividend
that is payable in stock. In addition, if a sigo#int number of our stockholders determine to $elfess of our stock in order to pay taxes owed
on dividends, then such sales may put downwardspresn the trading price of our stock. We mayhmfuture determine to distribute taxable
dividends that are payable in part in our commoglst

If we are unable to manage our future growth efféatly, we may be unable to achieve our investmdrjeotive, which could adversely
affect our financial condition and results of opetimns and cause the value of your investment tolaex

Our ability to achieve our investment objectivelwi#pend on our ability to sustain growth. Sustagngrowth will depend, in turn, on our
senior management team'’s ability to identify, ea#d finance and invest in suitable companiesrtiedt our investment criteria.
Accomplishing this result on a costfective basis is largely a function of our maikgtcapabilities, our management of the investnpeotess
our ability to provide efficient services and ogceass to financing sources on acceptable termisir€&d manage our future growth effectively
could have a material adverse effect on our busjfegmncial condition and results of operations.

Our quarterly and annual operating results are sw@ajt to fluctuation as a result of the nature of obusiness, and if we fail to achieve ¢
investment objective, the net asset value of ounawon stock may decline.

We could experience fluctuations in our quarterig annual operating results due to a number obfacsome of which are beyond our
control, including, but not limited to, the inteteate payable on the debt securities that we aegthie default rate on such securities, the level
of our expenses, variations in and the timing efriacognition of realized and unrealized gain®esés, changes in our portfolio composition,
the degree to which we encounter competition inmarkets, market volatility in our publicly tradedcurities and the securities of our portt
companies, and general economic conditions. Asultref these factors, results for any period stiawdt be relied upon as being indicative of
performance in future periods. In addition, anyhafse factors could negatively impact our abilityathieve our investment objectives, which
may cause our net asset value of our common stod&dline.

We are exposed to risks associated with changestirest rates, including fluctuations in interesates which could adversely affect our
profitability

General interest rate fluctuations may have a aatiat negative impact on our investments and iimzest opportunities, and,
accordingly, may have a material adverse effeawrinvestment objective and rate of return on &twent capital. A portion of our income
will depend upon the difference between the ratetath we borrow funds and the interest rate ordebtat securities in which we invest.
Because we will borrow money to make investmentsraay issue debt securities, preferred stock aratlcurities, our net investment incc
is dependent upon the difference between the tathiah we borrow funds or pay interest or dividemh such debt securities, preferred stock
or other securities and the rate at which we intfeste funds. Typically, we anticipate that oueiigst-earning investments will accrue and pay
interest at both variable and fixed rates, and dbatinterest-bearing liabilities will accrue inést at variable rates. As a result, there can be nc
assurance that a significant change in marketdsteates will not have a material adverse effaahur net investment income. We anticipate
using a combination of equity and long-term andsteym borrowings to finance our investment atigs.

A significant increase in market interest rateslddarm our ability to attract new portfolio compesand originate new loans and
investments. We expect that most of our curremiginnvestments in debt securities will be at flog rate with a floor. However, in the event
that we make investments in debt securities atbbgirates, a significant increase in market irstergtes could also result in an increase in oul
non-performing assets
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and a decrease in the value of our portfolio bezaws floating-rate loan portfolio companies maybable to meet higher payment
obligations. In periods of rising interest ratesr, cost of funds would increase, resulting in ardase in our net investment income. In addition
a decrease in interest rates may reduce net indmoause new investments may be made at lowerdaspite the increased demand for our
capital that the decrease in interest rates mayyme We may, but will not be required to, hedgairast the risk of adverse movement in
interest rates in our short-term and long-termdowimngs relative to our portfolio of assets. If wegage in hedging activities, it may limit our
ability to participate in the benefits of loweréngst rates with respect to the hedged portfoladvekse developments resulting from changes ir
interest rates or hedging transactions could hawetarial adverse effect on our business, finamgatition, and results of operations.

Our realized gains are reduced by amounts paid st to the warrant participation agreement.

Citigroup, a former credit facility provider to Heres, has an equity participation right througheairant participation agreement on the
pool of loans and certain warrants formerly colialieed under its then existing credit facility €ttCitigroup Facility”). Pursuant to the warrant
participation agreement, we granted to Citigrod%b participation in all warrants held as collatefs a result, Citigroup is entitled to 10%
the realized gains on certain warrants until tredized gains paid to Citigroup pursuant to the agrent equals $3,750,000 (the “Maximum
Participation Limit"). The obligations under the ment participation agreement continue even afterQitigroup Facility is terminated until the
Maximum Participation Limit has been reached.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we redoetkalized gain by approximately $270,000 fdrgCoup’s participation in the
gain on sale of equity securities and recordedcaedse on participation liability and increased wnealized gains by a net amount of
approximately $386,000 for Citigroup’s participatid he value of their participation right on unieed gains in the related equity investments
was approximately $313,000 as of December 31, 20#4s included in accrued liabilities. There camb assurances that the unrealized
appreciation of the warrants will not be highetawer in future periods due to fluctuations in tredue of the warrants, thereby increasing or
reducing the effect on the cost of borrowing. Simoeption of the agreement, we have paid Citigrapproximately $1.4 million under the
warrant participation agreement thereby reducingrealized gains by this amount. We will continagay Citigroup under the warrant
participation agreement until the Maximum Partitiga Limit is reached or the warrants expire. Watsasubject to the Citigroup participation
agreement are set to expire between January 2@l 3asmuary 2017.

Pending legislation may allow us to incur additiohkeverage.

As a business development company, under the 18tgekerally we are not permitted to incur indebtss$ unless immediately after
such borrowing we have an asset coverage forliorabwings of at least 200% (i.e., the amount diftaeay not exceed 50% of the value of
assets). Recent legislation introduced in the H@&ise of Representatives, if passed, would motif/gection of the 1940 Act and increase
amount of debt that business development compamigsncur by modifying the percentage from 2009%4%0%. As a result, we may be able
to incur additional indebtedness in the future eneaefore your risk of an investment in us may éase.

Two of our wholly-owned subsidiaries are licensegithe U.S. Small Business Administration, and asesult, we will be subject to SBA
regulations.

Our wholly-owned subsidiaries HT Il and HT Il are licensectd as SBICs and are regulated by the SBA. Aseafehber 31, 2012, H
II's and HT llI's portfolio companies accounted fapproximately 14.6% and 24.7%, respectively, aftotal portfolio. The SBIC licenses
allow our SBIC subsidiaries to obtain leveragedsuing SBA-guaranteed debentures, subject to sharge of a capital commitment by the
SBA and other customary procedures. The SBA reiguistrequire, among other things, that a licendiC®e examined periodically and
audited by an independent auditor to determine&SBIKE’s compliance with the relevant SBA regulations
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Under current SBA regulations, a licensed SBIC mavide capital to those entities that have a talegiet worth not exceeding $18.0
million and an average annual net income after feédlecome taxes not exceeding $6.0 million for tive most recent fiscal years. In addition,
a licensed SBIC must devote 25.0% of its investraetivity to those entities that have a tangiblewmerth not exceeding $6.0 million and an
average annual net income after Federal income taaeexceeding $2.0 million for the two most rédestal years. The SBA regulations also
provide alternative size standard criteria to datee eligibility, which depend on the industry imieh the business is engaged and are bas
factors such as the number of employees and gatess. §he SBA regulations permit licensed SBICsiéde long term loans to small
businesses, invest in the equity securities of fusinesses and provide them with consulting antary services. The SBA also places
certain limitations on the financing terms of intresents by SBICs in portfolio companies and proBilBICs from providing funds for certain
purposes or to businesses in a few prohibited tniggs Compliance with SBA requirements may cau$dlthnd HT Il to forego attractive
investment opportunities that are not permittedenr®8BA regulations.

Further, the SBA regulations require that a liceinSBIC be periodically examined and audited by3B& to determine its compliance
with the relevant SBA regulations. The SBA prohgbikithout prior SBA approval, a “change of coritmfl an SBIC or transfers that would
result in any person (or a group of persons adtingpncert) owning 10.0% or more of a class of edgitock of a licensed SBIC. If either HT
or HT 11l fail to comply with applicable SBA reguians, the SBA could, depending on the severithefviolation, limit or prohibit HT II's or
HT III's use of debentures, declare outstandingedélires immediately due and payable, and/ or kiffitl or HT Il from making new
investments. Such actions by the SBA would, in taegatively affect us because HT Il and HT Il avg wholly owned subsidiaries. HT Il
and HT Il were in compliance with the terms of 8BIC’s leverage as of December 31, 2012 as atreSbhving sufficient capital as defined
under the SBA regulations. See “ltem 1. BusinessgulRgion—Small Business Administration Regulations.

SBA regulations limit the outstanding dollar amoumtf SBA guaranteed debentures that may be issuediBIC or group of SBICs
under common control.

The SBA regulations currently limit the dollar anmbwf SBA-guaranteed debentures that can be idsyi@dy one SBIC to $150.0
million or to a group of SBICs under common contm$225.0 million. Moreover, an SBIC may not bevran amount in excess of two times
(and in certain cases, up to three times) its eggoy capital. As of December 31, 2012, we haveeds5225.0 million in SBA-guaranteed
debentures in our SBIC Subsidiaries, which is tleeimum allowed for a group of SBICs under commontiad. During times that we reach
the maximum dollar amount of SBA-guaranteed debestpermitted, and if we require additional capibalr cost of capital is likely to
increase, and there is no assurance that we wibbketo obtain additional financing on acceptabétens.

Moreover, the current status of our SBIC subsidimés SBICs does not automatically assure thaBBLE subsidiaries will continue to
receive SBA-guaranteed debenture funding. RecéiBa leverage funding is dependent upon our SRIs&liaries continuing to be in
compliance with SBA regulations and policies andilable SBA funding. The amount of SBA leveragedimg available to SBICs is
dependent upon annual Congressional authorizasiodsn the future may be subject to annual Congrneabkappropriations. There can be no
assurance that there will be sufficient debentungeling available at the times desired by our SBIRsgliaries.

The debentures guaranteed by the SBA have a nyatdiién years and require semi-annual paymenistefest. Our SBIC subsidiaries
will need to generate sufficient cash flow to mageuired interest payments on the debenturesrIS&IC subsidiaries are unable to meet t
financial obligations under the debentures, the S&a creditor, will have a superior claim to B& C subsidiaries’ assets over our
stockholders in the event we liquidate our SBICsgdiaries or the SBA exercises its remedies undeh slebentures as the result of a defat
us.
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Our wholly-owned SBIC subsidiaries may be unablemake distributions to us that will enable us to ater maintain RIC status, which
could result in the imposition of an entity-levedx.

In order for us to continue to qualify for RIC taratment and to minimize corporate-level taxeswiliebe required to distribute
substantially all of our net ordinary income and capital gain income, including income from certaf our subsidiaries, which includes the
income from our SBIC subsidiaries. We will be paliyi dependent on our SBIC subsidiaries for caskriutions to enable us to meet the RIC
distribution requirements. Our SBIC subsidiarieyna limited by the Small Business Investment Act@68, and SBA regulations governing
SBICs, from making certain distributions to us thety be necessary to maintain our status as a\Rédmnay have to request a waiver of the
SBA's restrictions for our SBIC subsidiaries to raalertain distributions to maintain our RIC statt¥& cannot assure you that the SBA will
grant such waiver. If our SBIC subsidiaries arell@#o obtain a waiver, compliance with the SBAulagjons may result in loss of RIC tax
treatment and a consequent imposition of an efgitg} tax on us. See “ltems 1. Business—Regulati8mall Business Administration
Regulations.”

Changes in laws or regulations governing our buss®ecould negatively affect the profitability of owperations.

Changes in the laws or regulations, or the intéapiens of the laws and regulations, which govarsifiess development companies,
SBICs, RICs or non-depository commercial lenderdatsignificantly affect our operations and ourtooisdoing business. We are subject to
federal, state and local laws and regulations aad@bject to judicial and administrative decisithmet affect our operations, including our loan
originations maximum interest rates, fees and atharges, disclosures to portfolio companies, én@$ of secured transactions, collection an
foreclosure procedures, and other trade practittsese laws, regulations or decisions changd,we expand our business into jurisdictions
that have adopted more stringent requirementsttiese in which we currently conduct business, thermay have to incur significant
expenses in order to comply or we may have toicestur operations. In addition, if we do not cosnplith applicable laws, regulations and
decisions, then we may lose licenses needed faraheuct of our business and be subject to cinéddiand criminal penalties, any of which
could have a material adverse effect upon our lesgsinesults of operations or financial condition.

Our business is subject to increasingly complexporate governance, public disclosure and accountiggjuirements that could
adversely affect our business and financial results

We are subject to changing rules and regulatiorisd®ral and state government as well as the sschange on which our common
stock is listed. These entities, including the RuBlompany Accounting Oversight Board, the SEC tlwedNew York Stock Exchange, or
NYSE, have issued a significant number of new aedsiasingly complex requirements and regulatiors the course of the last several ye
and continue to develop additional regulations egiirements in response to laws enacted by CasigbesJuly 21, 2010, the Dodd-Frank
Wall Street Reform and Protection Act, or the Déadnk Act, was enacted. There are significant aajgogovernance and executive
compensation-related provisions in the Dodd-Frank And the SEC has adopted additional rules apdatons that may impact us. Our
efforts to comply with these requirements haveltedun, and are likely to continue to result in,increase in expenses and a diversion of
management’s time from other business activities.

Results may fluctuate and may not be indicativefatiure performance.

Our operating results may fluctuate and, therefgoe,should not rely on current or historical pdriesults to be indicative of our
performance in future reporting periods. Factost tould cause operating results to fluctuate ohellout are not limited to, variations in the
investment origination volume and fee income earnkdnges in the accrual status of our debt investsn variations in timing of prepaymel
variations in and the timing of the recognitionmnet realized gains or losses and changes in unegladippreciation or depreciation, the level of
our expenses, the degree to which we encounteretitiop in our markets, and general economic coorakt
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Risks Related to Current Economic and Market Conditons

Capital markets may experience periods of disruptend instability and we cannot predict when thesenditions will occur. Such marke
conditions could materially and adversely affectdeand equity capital markets in the United Stagsd abroad, which could have a
negative impact on our business, financial conditiand results of operations.

The global capital markets have experienced a gerfalisruption as evidenced by a lack of liquiditythe debt capital markets, write-
offs in the financial services sector, the re-picof credit risk and the failure of certain mdjorancial institutions. Despite actions of the
United States federal government and foreign govients, these events contributed to worsening geeesaomic conditions that have
materially and adversely impacted the broader firrand credit markets and reduced the availghilitdebt and equity capital for the market
as a whole and financial services firms in paracuWhile indicators suggest improvement in theteamarkets, these conditions could
deteriorate in the future. During such market gitians, we may have difficulty raising debt or dgudapital especially as a result of regulatory
constraints.

Market conditions may in the future make it difficto extend the maturity of or refinance our exigtindebtedness and any failure to do
so could have a material adverse effect on oumlessi The illiquidity of our investments may matkeifficult for us to sell such investments if
required. As a result, we may realize significaflys than the value at which we have recordedneastments. In addition, significant chan
in the capital markets, including the disruption aolatility, have had, and may in the future haveggative effect on the valuations of our
investments and on the potential for liquidity eéginvolving our investments. An inability to raisepital, and any required sale of our
investments for liquidity purposes, could have damal adverse impact on our business, financiatld®n and results of operations.

The current financial market situation, as wellagous social and political tensions in the Uni&tdtes and around the world,
particularly in the Middle East, may continue tatrdbute to increased market volatility, may haeed-term effects on the United States and
worldwide financial markets, and may cause furé@nomic uncertainties or deterioration in the Ehibtates and worldwide. Since 2010,
several European Union (“EU”) countries, includi@geece, Ireland, Italy, Spain, and Portugal, haeed budget issues, some of which may
have negative long-term effects for the economid¢bhase countries and other EU countries. Theo®iginued concern about national-level
support for the euro and the accompanying cooridinaf fiscal and wage policy among European Ecdn@nd Monetary Union member
countries. The recent United States and global@oadownturn or a return to the recessionary mkincthe United States could adversely
impact our investments. We do not know how longfih@ncial markets will continue to be affectedthgse events and cannot predict the
effects of these or similar events in the futural@United States economy and securities markeda our investments. We monitor
developments and seek to manage our investmeatmianner consistent with achieving our investméggaive, but there can be no assur:
that it will be successful in doing so.

If we cannot obtain additional capital because dfteer regulatory or market price constraints, we wd be forced to curtail or cease our
new lending and investment activities, our net asgalue could decrease and our level of distributgoand liquidity could be affected
adversely.

Our ability to secure additional financing and sigtiour financial obligations under indebtednesstanding from time to time will
depend upon our future operating performance, wisislubject to the prevailing general economic emedlit market conditions, including
interest rate levels and the availability of creginherally, and financial, business and other factoany of which are beyond our control. The
prolonged continuation or worsening of current exoit and capital market conditions could have aen@tadverse effect on our ability to
secure financing on favorable terms, if at all.

If we are unable to obtain debt capital, then aity investors will not benefit from the potentfat increased returns on equity resulting
from leverage to the extent that our investmemitstyy is successful and we may be limited in oilitalbo make new commitments or fundir
to our portfolio companies.
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Depending on funding requirements, we may needase additional capital to meet our unfunded commeints either through equity
offerings or through additional borrowings.

As of December 31, 2012, we had unfunded debt comenits of approximately $61.9 million. Since thesenmitments may expire
without being drawn upon, the total commitment antailoes not necessarily represent future cashnergants or future earning assets. Clc
commitments generally fund 70-80% of the commitietbunt in aggregate over the life of the commitm¥ére intend to use cash flow from
normal and early principal repayments, SBA deba&stuour Credit Facilities and proceeds from thev@dible Senior Notes, 2019 Notes and
the Asset-Backed Notes to fund these commitmerdasdder, there can be no assurance that we will kaffigient capital available to fund
these commitments as they come due.

Risks Related to Our Investments

Our investments are concentrated in certain indus8 and in a number of technology-related companiesich subjects us to the risk of
significant loss if any of these companies defaatt their obligations under any of their debt sectieis that we hold, or if any of the
technology-related industry sectors experience avdturn.

We have invested and intend to continue investing limited number of technology-related comparesonsequence of this limited
number of investments is that the aggregate retuensealize may be significantly adversely affedfedsmall number of investments perform
poorly or if we need to write down the value of ame investment. Beyond the asset diversificatemuirements to which we will be subjeci
a RIC, we do not have fixed guidelines for divecsifion or limitations on the size of our investrtgeim any one portfolio company and our
investments could be concentrated in relatively ismers. In addition, we have invested in anchisht® continue investing, under normal
circumstances, at least 80% of the value of oad isets (including the amount of any borrowirmgsrfivestment purposes) in technology-
related companies.

As of December 31, 2012, approximately 65.8% off#tirevalue of our portfolio was composed of inveents in five industries: 20.8%
was composed of investments in the drug discovedydevelopment industry, 15.0% was composed ofstmvents in the internet consumer
and business services industry, 14.0% was compufsagdestments in the clean technology industr%8was composed of investments in the
drug delivery industry and 7.8% was composed oéstments in the software industry. As a resulpwrdurn in technology-related industry
sectors and particularly those in which we are igaencentrated could materially adversely affeat financial condition.

Our financial results could be negatively affectéda significant portfolio investment fails to pedkrm as expected.

Our total investment in companies may be signifiéadividually or in the aggregate. As a resulia i§ignificant investment in one or
more companies fails to perform as expected, oantiial results could be more negatively affectadithe magnitude of the loss could be
more significant than if we had made smaller investts in more companies. The following table shthesfair value of the totals of
investments held in portfolio companies at Decen®ier2012 that represent greater than 5% of netsss

December 31, 201,
Percentage c

(in thousands) Fair Value Net Assets

Box, Inc. $ 47,94: 9.2%
Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, Ir $ 43,63¢ 8.5%
BrightSource Energy, In $ 35,11¢ 6.8%
Comverge, Inc $ 33,28 6.5%
Jab Wireless, In¢ $ 30,27( 5.2%
Aveo Pharmaceuticals, In $ 28,38 5.5%
Education Dynamics, LL( $ 26,97¢ 5.2%
Tectura Corporatio $ 25,96( 5.C%
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Box, Inc. is an online storage and sharing serthie¢ gives users access to their files from anyesher

Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is a biopharmacaltiompany discovering, developing and prepamnepimmercialize innovative
medicines paired with companion diagnostics fortteatment of serious diseases, with an initialifoen cancer.

Brightsource Energy, Inc. designs, develops and selar thermal power systems that deliver rediablean energy to utilities and
industrial companies.

Comverge, Inc. provides clean energy solutions.
Jab Wireless, Inc. is engaged in the acquisitiahexpansion of wireless broadband operators, bdndieee and data services.

Aveo Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is a biopharmaceutiocadgany dedicated to the discovery and developmfam\w, targeted cancer
therapeutics.

Education Dynamics is a provider of high qualityident focused products and services.
Tectura Corporation is an IT services firm thatcalézes in Microsoft Business Solutions applicatio

Our financial results could be materially advers#fected if these portfolio companies or any of other significant portfolio compani
encounter financial difficulty and fail to repayethobligations or to perform as expected.

Our investments may be in portfolio companies whittay have limited operating histories and financiasources.

We expect that our portfolio will continue to costsdf investments that may have relatively limitggbrating histories. These companies
may be particularly vulnerable to U.S. and foredgonomic downturns such as the current recessidftaropean financial crisis may have
more limited access to capital and higher fundiosts, may have a weaker financial position and nesgd more capital to expand or compete.
These businesses also may experience substaniitioas in operating results. They may face ineecsmpetition, including from companies
with greater financial, technical and marketingoreses. Furthermore, some of these companies dodsssin regulated industries and couls
affected by changes in government regulation. Adiogity, these factors could impair their cash flomresult in other events, such as
bankruptcy, which could limit their ability to repgheir obligations to us, and may adversely affeetreturn on, or the recovery of, our
investment in these companies. We cannot assuréhgb@any of our investments in our portfolio comies will be successful. Our portfolio
companies compete with larger, more establishecaoras with greater access to, and resourcesuftinef development in these new
technologies. We may lose our entire investmeaninor all of our portfolio companies.

Our investment strategy focuses on technology-retatompanies, which are subject to many risks, irthg volatility, intense
competition, shortened product life cycles, changesegulatory and governmental programs and periodlownturns, and you could lose
all or part of your investment.

We have invested and will continue investing prilflgan technology-related companies, many of whicay have narrow product lines
and small market shares, which tend to render tnene vulnerable to competitors’ actions and mackeiditions, as well as to general
economic downturns. The revenues, income (or Ipsaed valuations of technology-related companasand often do fluctuate suddenly anc
dramatically. In addition, technology-related maskare generally characterized by abrupt busingde€and intense competition.
Overcapacity in technology-related industries, tbgewith cyclical economic downturns, may resnlsubstantial decreases in the market
capitalization of many technology-related compani&hile such valuations have recovered to somengxsech decreases in market
capitalization may occur again, and any future el@ses in technologglated company valuations may be substantial zandmot be tempora
in nature. Therefore, our portfolio companies magefconsiderably more risk of loss than do comganiether industry sectors.
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Because of rapid technological change, the avesalljag prices of products and some services pealiay technologyelated companie
have historically decreased over their productives. As a result, the average selling prices otlpcts and services offered by technology-
related companies may decrease over time, whicll @alversely affect their operating results, tladility to meet obligations under their debt
securities and the value of their equity securifidgs could, in turn, materially adversely affectr business, financial condition and results of
operations.

A natural disaster may also impact the operatidrmipportfolio companies, including our technolegglated portfolio companies. The
nature and level of natural disasters cannot baigteel and may be exacerbated by global climatag#aA portion of our technology-related
portfolio companies rely on items assembled or pced in areas susceptible to natural disastersmaydsell finished goods into markets
susceptible to natural disasters. A major disastah as an earthquake, tsunami, flood or othastraphic event could result in disruption to
the business and operations of our technologye@lpbrtfolio companies.

We will invest in technology-related companies the reliant on U.S. and foreign regulatory andegninental programs. Any material
changes or discontinuation, due to change in aditnation or U.S. Congress or otherwise could havaterial adverse affect on the operation
of a portfolio company in these industries anduim, impair our ability to timely collect principand interest payments owed to us to the
extent applicable.

We have invested in and may continue investingagtinology-related companies that do not have veatoapital or private equity firms
as equity investors, and these companies may eitailgher risk of loss than do companies with irtstiional equity investors, which
could increase the risk of loss of your investment.

Our portfolio companies will often require substah&dditional equity financing to satisfy theirrtmuing working capital and other cash
requirements and, in most instances, to servicenteeest and principal payments on our investmiattfolio companies that do not have
venture capital or private equity investors mayhable to raise any additional capital to satibBirtobligations or to raise sufficient additional
capital to reach the next stage of developmentfdtiorcompanies that do not have venture capitgdrivate equity investors may be less
financially sophisticated and may not have acce@sdependent members to serve on their boardghwheans that they may be less
successful than portfolio companies sponsored byuve capital or private equity firms. Accordingfinancing these types of companies may
entail a higher risk of loss than would financirampanies that are sponsored by venture capitaivatp equity firms.

Our investments in the clean technology industryeasubject to many risks, including volatility, intee competition, unproven
technologies, periodic downturns and potential djtition.

Our investments in clean technology, or cleanteompanies are subject to substantial operatiosies rsuch as underestimated cost
projections, unanticipated operation and maintea@&xpenses, loss of government subsidies, anditgabideliver cost-effective alternative
energy solutions compared to traditional energylpets. In addition, energy companies employ a tsanémeans of increasing cash flow,
including increasing utilization of existing fatiéis, expanding operations through new construaiicecquisitions, or securing additional long-
term contracts. Thus, some energy companies mawutiject to construction risk, acquisition risk ¢dner risks arising from their specific
business strategies. Furthermore, production Ideelsolar, wind and other renewable energies neagidpendent upon adequate sunlight, v
or biogas production, which can vary from marketi@rket and period to period, resulting in volatiln production levels and profitability. In
addition, our cleantech companies may have narrodyzt lines and small market shares, which tenérnder them more vulnerable to
competitors’ actions and market conditions, as wello general economic downturns. The revenuesnia (or losses) and valuations of clean
technology companies can and often do fluctuatdesigt and dramatically and the markets in whiclaeleechnology companies operate are
generally characterized by abrupt business cycidsrdense competition. Demand for cleantech andwable energy is also influenced by the
available supply and prices for other energy prtglwtch as coal, oil and natural gases.
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A change in prices in these energy products ceddee demand for alternative energy. Our investsientleantech companies also face
potential litigation, including significant warrgnand product liability claims, as well as clasi@cand government claims arising from the
increased attention to the industry from the failaf Solyndra. Such litigation could adversely efféhe business and results of operations of
our cleantech portfolio companies. There is algtiQdar uncertainty about whether agreements pliagi incentives for reductions in
greenhouse gas emissions, such as the Kyoto Ptotatt@ontinue and whether countries around thald/ will enact or maintain legislation
that provides incentives for reductions in greerdgogas emissions, without which such investmenttesn technology dependent portfolio
companies may not be economical or financing fehqurojects may become unavailable. As a resusefportfolio company investments fi
considerable risk, including the risk that favoeal#gulatory regimes expire or are adversely medifihis could, in turn, materially adversely
affect the value of the clean technology compaimesir portfolio.

Cleantech companies are subject to extensive govemt regulation and certain other risks particuldo the sectors in which they oper:
and our business and growth strategy could be adedy affected if government regulations, prioriti@sid resources impacting such
sectors change or if our portfolio companies fail tomply with such regulations.

As part of our investment strategy, we plan to gtve portfolio companies in Cleantech sectors thay be subject to extensive
regulation by foreign, U.S. federal, state andécal agencies. Changes in existing laws, rulesgulations, or judicial or administrative
interpretations thereof, or new laws, rules or fations could have an adverse impact on the busiaed industries of our portfolio companies.
In addition, changes in government priorities orifations on government resources could also adenmmpact our portfolio companies. We
are unable to predict whether any such changesns, lrules or regulations will occur and, if theyatcur, the impact of these changes on our
portfolio companies and our investment returnstif@rmore, if any of our portfolio companies faildomply with applicable regulations, they
could be subject to significant penalties and ctailat could materially and adversely affect tiopierations. Our portfolio companies may be
subject to the expense, delay and uncertaintyeofefulatory approval process for their product awen if approved, these products may no
be accepted in the marketplace.

In addition, there is considerable uncertainty alvechether foreign, U.S., state and/or local govegntal entities will enact or maintain
legislation or regulatory programs that mandateicédns in greenhouse gas emissions or providentivas for Cleantech companies. Without
such regulatory policies, investments in Cleantmhpanies may not be economical and financing featech companies may become
unavailable, which could materially adversely affihe ability of our portfolio companies to rep&gtdebt they owe to us. Any of these factors
could materially and adversely affect the operatiand financial condition of a portfolio companydaim turn, the ability of the portfolio
company to repay the debt they owe to us.

Our investments in the life science industry arebgect to extensive government regulation, litigatioisk and certain other risks
particular to that industry.

We have invested and plan to continue investingbmpanies in the life science industry that argesilto extensive regulation by the
Food and Drug Administration, or the FDA, and tesser extent, other federal, state and othergoragencies. If any of these portfolio
companies fail to comply with applicable regulatpthey could be subject to significant penaltied elaims that could materially and
adversely affect their operations. Portfolio comparhat produce medical devices or drugs are sutgjehe expense, delay and uncertainty of
the regulatory approval process for their prodacid, even if approved, these products may not bepaed in the marketplace. In addition,
governmental budgetary constraints effecting tigeiletory approval process, new laws, regulatiorjsdicial interpretations of existing laws
and regulations might adversely affect a portfabonpany in this industry. Portfolio companies i tifie science industry may also have a
limited number of suppliers of necessary componentslimited number of manufacturers for theirguots, and therefore face a risk of
disruption to their manufacturing process if they anable to find alternative suppliers when needeg of these factors could materially and
adversely affect the operations of a portfolio campin this industry and, in turn, impair our alyilio timely collect principal and interest
payments owed to us.
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Our investments in the drug discovery industry aebject to numerous risks, including competitiortensive government regulation,
product liability and commercial difficulties.

Our investments in the drug discovery industrysadgject to numerous risks. The successful and yilngblementation of the business
model of our drug discovery portfolio companieselggs on their ability to adapt to changing techgiale and introduce new products. As
competitors continue to introduce competitive prduthe development and acquisition of innovagikeducts and technologies that improve
efficacy, safety, patient’s and clinician’s easeis¢ and costffectiveness are important to the success of padifiolio companies. The succe
of new product offerings will depend on many fastancluding the ability to properly anticipate asatisfy customer needs, obtain regulatory
approvals on a timely basis, develop and manufagitmducts in an economic and timely manner, oltaimaintain advantageous positions
with respect to intellectual property, and diffeiate products from those of competitors. Failuyehr portfolio companies to introduce
planned products or other new products or to intcegporoducts on schedule could have a materiarse\edfect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Further, the development of products by drug discpeompanies requires significant research andldpment, clinical trials and
regulatory approvals. The results of product dgwelent efforts may be affected by a number of fagtmicluding the ability to innovate,
develop and manufacture new products, completéalitrials, obtain regulatory approvals and reimgement in the US and abroad, or gain
and maintain market approval of products. In additregulatory review processes by U.S. and foraggncies may extend longer than
anticipated as a result of decreased funding @hdeti fiscal budgets. Further, patents attainedtbgrs can preclude or delay the
commercialization of a product. There can be narasge that any products now in development whiewe technological feasibility, obtain
regulatory approval, or gain market acceptancdufeacan occur at any point in the development @sscincluding after significant funds have
been invested. Products may fail to reach the markmay have only limited commercial success bsea efficacy or safety concerns, fail
to achieve positive clinical outcomes, inabilitydbtain necessary regulatory approvals, failuractuieve market adoption, limited scope of
approved uses, excessive costs to manufacturégithee to establish or maintain intellectual prageights, or the infringement of intellectual
property rights of others.

Future legislation, and/or regulations and policiesdopted by the FDA or other U.S. or foreign regtiay authorities may increase the
time and cost required by some of our portfolio cpamies to conduct and complete clinical trials fore product candidates that they
develop, and there is no assurance that these camgsawill obtain regulatory approval to market armbmmercialize their products in th
U.S. and in foreign countries

The FDA has established regulations, guidelinespatidies to govern the drug development and apgrprocess, as have foreign
regulatory authorities, which affect some of ourtfmdio companies. Any change in regulatory requients due to the adoption by the FDA
and/or foreign regulatory authorities of new legiigln, regulations, or policies may require someuwfportfolio companies to amend existing
clinical trial protocols or add new clinical trigis comply with these changes. Such amendmentdgtirgy protocols and/or clinical trial
applications or the need for new ones, may siggnifity impact the cost, timing and completion of diaical trials.

In addition, increased scrutiny by the U.S. Congifsthe FDA's and other authorities approval psses may significantly delay or
prevent regulatory approval, as well as impose mstiiegent product labeling and post-marketingingsand other requirements. Foreign
regulatory authorities may also increase theirtagywf approval processes resulting in similaragsl Increased scrutiny and approvals
processes may limit the ability of our portfoliongpanies to market and commercialize their prodinctise U.S. and in foreign countries.

Changes in healthcare laws and other regulationspéipable to some of our portfolio companies’ busgses may constrain their ability to
offer their products and services.

Changes in healthcare or other laws and regulatippficable to the businesses of some of our datf@mpanies may occur that could
increase their compliance and other costs of dbuginess, require significant

45



Table of Contents

systems enhancements, or render their productracss less profitable or obsolete, any of whishld have a material adverse effect on thei
results of operations. There has also been andsetepolitical and regulatory focus on healthcaveslin recent years, and new legislation
could have a material effect on the business aedatipns of some of our portfolio companies.

Price declines and illiquidity in the corporate detnarkets could adversely affect the fair valueafr portfolio investments, reducing our
net asset value through increased net unrealizegréeiation.

As a business development company, we are requareakry our investments at market value or, ihmarket value is ascertainable, at
fair market value as determined in good faith bymder the direction of our board of directors.past of the valuation process, we may take
into account the following types of factors, ifeeant, in determining the fair value of our investits: the enterprise value of a portfolio
company (an estimate of the total fair value ofgibetfolio company’s debt and equity), the natund eealizable value of any collateral, the
portfolio company’s ability to make payments argdgarnings and discounted cash flow, the marketdioh the portfolio company does
business, a comparison of the portfolio compangtzisgties to similar publicly traded securitiesanges in the interest rate environment and
the credit markets generally that may affect theepat which similar investments may be made inftivere and other relevant factors. Wher
external event such as a purchase transactioricmfféring or subsequent equity sale occurs, wethe pricing indicated by the external even
to corroborate our valuation. While most of ouraetments are not publicly traded, applicable actogstandards require us to assume as pe
of our valuation process that our investments ale is a principal market to market participantege if we plan on holding an investment
through its maturity). As a result, volatility ihg capital markets can also adversely affect argstment valuations. Decreases in the market
values or fair values of our investments are restras unrealized depreciation. The effect of athefe factors on our portfolio can reduce oul
net asset value by increasing net unrealized digpietin our portfolio.

Depending on market conditions, we could incur tuftgl realized losses and may suffer substantie¢alized depreciation in future
periods, which could have a material adverse impaaur business, financial condition and resultsperations.

Economic recessions or slowdowns could impair theligy of our portfolio companies to repay loans hich, in turn, could increase our
non-performing assets, decrease the value of ourtfotio, reduce our volume of new loans and havereaterial adverse effect on our
results of operations.

Many of our portfolio companies may be susceptibleconomic slowdowns or recessions in both the &h8 foreign countries
(including the economic downturn that began in 20@rAd may be unable to repay our loans during peciods. Therefore, during such
periods, our non-performing assets are likely tseéase and the value of our portfolio is likelydexrease. Adverse economic conditions also
may decrease the value of collateral securing safroer loans and the value of our equity investreeBtonomic slowdowns or recessions
could lead to financial losses in our portfolio andecrease in revenues, net income and assets/ddable economic conditions also could
increase our funding costs, limit our access tactpgtal markets or result in a decision by lendwristo extend credit to us. These events coul
prevent us from increasing investments and harnopearating results.

In particular, intellectual property owned or catied by our portfolio companies may constituteraportant portion of the value of the
collateral of our loans to our portfolio compani@slverse economic conditions may decrease the defeaour portfolio companies’
intellectual property and consequently its valuéhimevent of a bankruptcy or required sale thraufreclosure proceeding. As a result, our
ability to fully recover the amounts owed to us enthe terms of the loans may be impaired by suehts.

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financiat operating covenants imposed by us or other snttzuld lead to defaults and,
potentially, termination of the portfolio company&ans and foreclosure on its secured assets, wbicld trigger cross-defaults under other
agreements and jeopardize the portfolio company’s
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ability to meet its obligations under the debt s#ims that we hold. We may incur expenses to #tiere necessary to seek recovery upon
default or to negotiate new terms with a defaulfiogtfolio company. In addition, if a portfolio cgrany goes bankrupt, even though we may
have structured our investment as senior debtaured debt, depending on the facts and circumssanmuguding the extent to which we
actually provided significant “managerial assis®hdf any, to that portfolio company, a bankruptzyurt might re-characterize our debt
holding and subordinate all or a portion of ouiiroléo that of other creditors. These events couddemally adversely affect our financial
condition and operating results.

Generally, we do not control our portfolio compani€hese portfolio companies may face intense cétigre including competition
from companies with greater financial resources;enextensive research and development, manufagturiarketing and service capabilities
and greater number of qualified and experiencedagerial and technical personnel. They may neediaddl financing which they are unable
to secure and which we are unable or unwillingrwvjale, or they may be subject to adverse developsnenrelated to the technologies they
acquire.

The business, financial condition and results of eqations of our portfolio companies could be advelgaffected by worldwide economic
conditions, as well as political and economic cotiins in the countries in which they conduct busise

The business and operating results of our portfmimpanies may be impacted by worldwide economiditions. Although the U.S.
economy has in recent quarters shown signs of ezgdvom the 2008—2009 global recession, the streagd duration of any economic
recovery will be impacted by worldwide economicwti. For instance, a number of recent reports atdithat growth in China and other
emerging markets may be slowing relative to hisargrowth rates. The significant debt in U.S. &uwlopean countries is expected to hinder
growth in those countries for the foreseeable Rutdultiple factors relating to the internationglevations of some of our portfolio companies
and to particular countries in which they operateld negatively impact their business, financiatdition and results of operations.

Some of the products of our portfolio companiesdaeeloped, manufactured, assembled, tested oretearkutside the U.S. Any confl
or uncertainty in these countries, including duedtural disasters, public health concerns, palitimrest or safety concerns, could harm their
business, financial condition and results of openat In addition, if the government of any couritryvhich their products are developed,
manufactured or sold sets technical or regulattagdards for products developed or manufacturext imported into their country that are not
widely shared, it may lead some of their custon@uspend imports of their products into that ¢nymequire manufacturers or developers ir
that country to manufacture or develop producté different technical or regulatory standards aisdught cross-border manufacturing,
marketing or business relationships which, in ezade, could harm their businesses.

Any unrealized losses we experience on our investhpartfolio may be an indication of future realizklosses, which could reduce our
income available for distribution and could matetlg adversely affect our ability to service our @tanding borrowings.

As a business development company, we are requireakry our investments at market value or, imarket value is ascertainable, at
fair value as determined in good faith by or uritherdirection of our Board of Directors. Decreasethe market values or fair values of our
investments will be recorded as unrealized deptieciaAny unrealized losses in our investment mdidfcould be an indication of a portfolio
company’s inability to meet its repayment obligatdo us with respect to the affected investmériis could result in realized losses in the
future and ultimately in reductions of our incomaidable for distribution in future periods and @wmaterially adversely affect our ability to
service our outstanding borrowings.
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A lack of initial public offering opportunities mayause companies to stay in our portfolio longezating to lower returns, unrealized
depreciation, or realized losses.

A lack of IPO opportunities for venture capital-kad companies could lead to companies staying fongeur portfolio as private
entities still requiring funding. This situation gnadversely affect the amount of available fundimigearly-stage companies in particular as, in
general, venture-capital firms are being forcedravide additional financing to late-stage compariet cannot complete an IPO. In the best
case, such stagnation would dampen returns, athe iworst case, could lead to unrealized depreciand realized losses as some companie
run short of cash and have to accept lower valnatio private fundings or are not able to accesd#iadal capital at all. A lack of IPO
opportunities for venture capital-backed companasalso cause some venture capital firms to chtragestrategies, leading some of them tc
reduce funding of their portfolio companies and mgkt more difficult for such companies to acceapital and to fulfill their potential, which
can result in unrealized depreciation and realiasges in such companies by other companies sushrsslves who are co-investors in such
companies.

To the extent venture capital or private equityrfis decrease or discontinue funding to their porifbcompanies, our portfolio companies
may not be able to meet their obligations under thebt securities that we hold.

Most of our portfolio companies rely heavily ondtg rounds of funding from venture capital or ptévaquity firms in order to continue
operating their businesses and repaying their atiigs to us under the debt securities that we.h@dture capital and private equity firms in
turn rely on their limited partners to pay in capitver time in order to fund their ongoing andufetinvestment activities.

To the extent that venture capital and private tgdfrims’ limited partners are unable to fulfillefr ongoing funding obligations, the
venture capital or private equity firms may be Ueab continue financially supporting the ongoingeaations of our portfolio companies. As a
result, our portfolio companies may be unable payetheir obligations under the debt securities Wehold, which would harm our financial
condition and results of operations.

If the assets securing the loans that we make daseein value, then we may lack sufficient collatéta cover losses.

We believe that our portfolio companies generalily be able to repay our loans from their availatégital, from future capital-raising
transactions, or from cash flow from operationswideer, to attempt to mitigate credit risks, we wyipically take a security interest in the
available assets of these portfolio companiesuding the equity interests of their subsidiaried,an some cases, the equity interests of our
portfolio companies held by their stockholdersmany cases, our loans will include a period ofregéonly payments. There is a risk that the
collateral securing our loans may decrease in vaee time, may be difficult to sell in a timely mzer, may be difficult to appraise and may
fluctuate in value based upon the success of taméss and market conditions, including as a reguhe inability of a portfolio company to
raise additional capital. In some circumstanceslien could be subordinated to claims of othedies. Additionally, deterioration in a
portfolio company’s financial condition and prosggdncluding its inability to raise additional ¢&gb, may be accompanied by deterioration in
the value of the collateral for the loan. Moreoverthe case of some of our structured debt withravas, we may not have a first lien position
on the collateral. Consequently, the fact thataa lis secured does not guarantee that we willvegeincipal and interest payments according
to the loan’s terms, or that we will be able toleci on the loan should we be forced to enforcerenredies.

In addition, because we invest in technology-rela@mpanies, a substantial portion of the assetgisg our investment may be in the
form of intellectual property, if any, inventory@equipment and, to a lesser extent, cash and atsceceivable. Intellectual property, if any,
that is securing our loan could lose value if, agnother things, the company’s rights to the int#lial property are challenged or if the
company’s license
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to the intellectual property is revoked or expifesentory may not be adequate to secure our foawrivaluation of the inventory at the time
that we made the loan was not accurate or if tiseaareduction in the demand for the inventory.

Similarly, any equipment securing our loan may protvide us with the anticipated security if there @hanges in technology or advance
in new equipment that render the particular equiptobsolete or of limited value, or if the compdaifs to adequately maintain or repair the
equipment. Any one or more of the preceding faatordd materially impair our ability to recover peipal in a foreclosure.

We may suffer a loss if a portfolio company defautin a loan and the underlying collateral is notf§igient.

In the event of a default by a portfolio companyaosecured loan, we will only have recourse tcatbeets collateralizing the loan. If the
underlying collateral value is less than the loaroant, we will suffer a loss. In addition, we somme&ts make loans that are unsecured, which
are subject to the risk that other lenders mayiteeitly secured by the assets of the portfolio camyp In the event of a default, those
collateralized lenders would have priority ovemith respect to the proceeds of a sale of the Uyidgrassets. In cases described above, we
may lack control over the underlying asset collteing our loan or the underlying assets of thefpbo company prior to a default, and as a
result the value of the collateral may be redugeddis or omissions by owners or managers of tbetsis

In the event of bankruptcy of a portfolio compawg may not have full recourse to its assets inraimeatisfy our loan, or our loan may
be subject to equitable subordination. In addit@artain of our loans are subordinate to other détite portfolio company. If a portfolio
company defaults on our loan or on debt senioutdaan, or in the event of a portfolio company kraiptcy, our loan will be satisfied only
after the senior debt receives payment. Where shaiior to our loan exists, the presence of intditbearrangements may limit our ability to
amend our loan documents, assign our loans, apoepayments, exercise our remedies (through “sti#lihgeriods) and control decisions
made in bankruptcy proceedings relating to thefplistcompany. Bankruptcy and portfolio companygition can significantly increase
collection losses and the time needed for us taieedhe underlying collateral in the event of #adét, during which time the collateral may
decline in value, causing us to suffer losses.

If the value of collateral underlying our loan deek or interest rates increase during the terouofoan, a portfolio company may not be
able to obtain the necessary funds to repay our &anaturity through refinancing. Decreasing dellal value and/or increasing interest rates
may hinder a portfolio company’s ability to refirc@nour loan because the underlying collateral casaiisfy the debt service coverage
requirements necessary to obtain new financing bdrrower is unable to repay our loan at matuviy,could suffer a loss which may
adversely impact our financial performance.

The inability of our portfolio companies to commaeadize their technologies or create or develop coamgially viable products or
businesses would have a negative impact on our gweent returns.

The possibility that our portfolio companies withtrbe able to commercialize their technology, paislwr business concepts presents
significant risks to the value of our investmentiditionally, although some of our portfolio compasimay already have a commercially
successful product or product line when we investhnology-related products and services often hawere limited market- or life-span than
have products in other industries. Thus, the ultnsaiccess of these companies often depends oraltildy to continually innovate, or raise
additional capital, in increasingly competitive kgts. Their inability to do so could affect our @stment return. In addition, the intellectual
property held by our portfolio companies often esmnts a substantial portion of the collateranif, securing our investments. We cannot
assure you that any of our portfolio companies suiltcessfully acquire or develop any new technelgir that the intellectual property the
companies currently hold will remain viable. Evépur portfolio companies are able to develop
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commercially viable products, the market for newdarcts and services is highly competitive and dgpiianging. Neither our portfolio
companies nor we have any control over the patecbhology development. Commercial success iscdiffto predict, and the marketing
efforts of our portfolio companies may not be ssstel.

An investment strategy focused primarily on privhténeld companies presents certain challenges, uthg the lack of available
information about these companies, a dependencdtantalents and efforts of only a few key portfollmmpany personnel and a greater
vulnerability to economic downturns.

We invest primarily in privately-held companies.n@eally, very little public information exists akidhese companies, and we are
required to rely on the ability of our managemeaint to obtain adequate information to evaluatgthtential returns from investing in these
companies. If we are unable to uncover all maténfakrmation about these companies, then we maymadte a fully informed investment
decision, and we may not receive the expectedrremrour investment or lose some or all of the nganeested in these companies.

Also, privately-held companies frequently have ldiserse product lines and a smaller market presémen do larger competitors.
Privately-held companies are, thus, generally maieerable to economic downturns and may experiemze substantial variations in
operating results than do larger competitors. THastrs could affect our investment returns andresults of operations and financial
condition.

In addition, our success depends, in large padntipe abilities of the key management personneloportfolio companies, who are
responsible for the day-to-day operations of outfplio companies. Competition for qualified persehis intense at any stage of a company’s
development, and high turnover of personnel is comin technology-related companies. The loss ofamaore key managers can hinder or
delay a company’s implementation of its busineas pind harm its financial condition. Our portfatim@mpanies may not be able to attract and
retain qualified managers and personnel. Any iiitghiid do so may negatively impact our investmentims and our results of operations and
financial condition.

If our portfolio companies are unable to protectéir intellectual property rights, then our businessd prospects could be harmed. If our
portfolio companies are required to devote signéit resources to protecting their intellectual pregy rights, then the value of our
investment could be reduced.

Our future success and competitive position depepart upon the ability of our portfolio compantesobtain and maintain proprietary
technology used in their products and serviceschvhiill often represent a significant portion oétbollateral, if any, securing our investment.
The portfolio companies will rely, in part, on patetrade secret and trademark law to protecttd@itnology, but competitors may
misappropriate their intellectual property, andpdies as to ownership of intellectual property ragge. Portfolio companies may, from time
time, be required to institute litigation in orderenforce their patents, copyrights or other Iatdlial property rights, to protect their trade
secrets, to determine the validity and scope optiogrietary rights of others or to defend agaahsims of infringement. Such litigation could
result in substantial costs and diversion of resesirSimilarly, if a portfolio company is founditdringe upon or misappropriate a third party’s
patent or other proprietary rights, that portfammpany could be required to pay damages to suichgharty, alter its own products or
processes, obtain a license from the third partyarcease activities utilizing such proprietaghts, including making or selling products
utilizing such proprietary rights. Any of the fo@igg events could negatively affect both the pdidfoompany’s ability to service our debt
investment and the value of any related debt andyesgecurities that we own, as well as any cotltsecuring our investment.

Portfolio company litigation could result in additinal costs, the diversion of management time andaerces and have an adverse impact
on the fair value of our investment.

In the course of providing significant managerissiatance to certain of our portfolio companiesway serve as directors on the boards
of such companies. In addition, in the course dfingaportfolio company investments, we may elediake an equity position in any given
company. To the extent that litigation arises out
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of our investments, we may be named as a defendhidh could result in additional costs and theedéion of management time and resou
In addition, litigation involving a portfolio compg may be costly and affect the operations of tingrtess, which could in turn have an adwvi
impact on the fair value of our investment.

We may not be able to realize our entire investmentequipment-based loans in the case of default.

We may from time-to-time provide loans that will b@lateralized only by equipment of the portfatiompany. If the portfolio company
defaults on the loan we would take possessioneotittderlying equipment to satisfy the outstandialgtdThe residual value of the equipment
at the time we would take possession may not et to satisfy the outstanding debt and we d@axperience a loss on the disposition of
the equipment.

Our investments in foreign securities may involvigrsificant risks in addition to the risks inhererin U.S. investments.

Our investment strategy contemplates that a podfayur investments may be in securities of foraigmpanies. Our total investments at
value in foreign companies were approximately $6ilion or 0.6% of total investments at Decembey 3112. Investing in foreign companies
may expose us to additional risks not typicallyoassted with investing in U.S. companies. Thesksriaclude changes in exchange control
regulations, political and social instability, egpriation, imposition of foreign taxes, less liquidirkets and less available information than is
generally the case in the U.S., higher transaatimts, less government supervision of exchangekels and issuers, less developed
bankruptcy laws, difficulty in enforcing contractbligations, lack of uniform accounting and aimdjtstandards and greater price volatility.

Some of our portfolio companies may need additioeapital, which may not be readily available and ynbe needed if necessary
regulatory review processes are extended or appiwaat obtained.

Our portfolio companies will often require substahadditional equity financing to satisfy theirrg¢muing working capital and other
requirements, and in most instances to servicénteeest and principal payments on our investmgath round of venture financing is
typically intended to provide a company with onhoegh capital to reach the next stage of developriéa cannot predict the circumstances
or market conditions under which our portfolio canjes will seek additional capital. It is possitilat one or more of our portfolio companies
will not be able to raise additional financing oayrbe able to do so only at a price or on termavorable to us, either of which would
negatively impact our investment returns. Somée$s¢ companies may be unable to obtain sufficisan€ing from private investors, public
capital markets or traditional lenders. This mayeha significant impact if the companies are unablebtain certain federal, state or foreign
agency approval for their products or the marketiregeof, of if requlatory review processes extlemgjer than anticipated, and the companies
need continued funding for their operations dutimese times. Accordingly, financing these typesasfipanies may entail a higher risk of loss
than would financing companies that are able tizattraditional credit sources.

We may be unable or decide not to make additioreit investments in our portfolio companies whichutd result in our losing our
initial investment if the portfolio company fails.

We may have to make additional cash investmentsiirportfolio companies to protect our overall istreent value in the particular
company. We retain the discretion to make any adtdit investments as our management determinestallhes to make such additional
investments may jeopardize the continued viabdfta portfolio company, and our initial (and subseqt) investments. Moreover, additional
investments may limit the number of companies ifictviive can make initial investments. In determinivttether to make an additional
investment our management will exercise its busifieggment and apply criteria similar to those usbén making the initial investment. We
cannot assure you that we will have sufficient sitmmake any necessary additional investmentsshwtould adversely affect our success an
result in the loss of a substantial portion omélbur investment in a portfolio company.
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If our investments do not meet our performance egfaions, you may not receive distributions.

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly ésiour stockholders. We may not be able to aehiperating results that will allow
to make distributions at a specific level or torease the amount of these distributions from tiongnte. In addition, due to the asset coverage
test applicable to us as a business developmentamynwe may be limited in our ability to make dimitions. See “ltem1. Business—
Regulation.” Also, restrictions and provisions imyduture credit facilities may limit our abilitptmake distributions. As a RIC, if we do not
distribute a certain percentage of our income alfyyuae will suffer adverse tax consequences, idirlg failure to obtain, or possible loss of,
the federal income tax benefits allowable to RIi€=e “Item 1. Business—Certain United States Fediecaime Tax Considerations—Taxation
as a Regulated Investment Company.” We cannoteagsur that you will receive distributions at a gardar level or at all.

We may not have sufficient funds to make follow-orvestments. Our decision not to make a follow-awvéstment may have a negative
impact on a portfolio company in need of such arvegstment or may result in a missed opportunity .

After our initial investment in a portfolio companye may be called upon from time to time to prevadiditional funds to such company
or have the opportunity to increase our investnreatsuccessful situation, for example, the exerofsa warrant to purchase common stock.
Any decision we make not to make a follow-on inugstit or any inability on our part to make suchrarestment may have a negative impact
on a portfolio company in need of such an investeemay result in a missed opportunity for usrteréase our participation in a successful
operation and may dilute our equity interest oeotlise reduce the expected yield on our investnidateover, a follow-on investment may
limit the number of companies in which we can maiial investments. In determining whether to makillow-on investment, our
management will exercise its business judgmentagpdly criteria similar to those used when makirgittitial investment. There is no
assurance that we will make, or will have suffitiemds to make, follow-on investments and thisld@dversely affect our success and result
in the loss of a substantial portion or all of surestment in a portfolio company.

Any unrealized depreciation that we experience arr tban portfolio may be an indication of future @ized losses, which could reduce
our income available for distribution and could advsely affect our ability to service our outstandjiborrowings.

As a business development company, we are requireakry our investments at market value or, imarket value is ascertainable, at
fair value as determined in good faith by our Boafr®irectors in accordance with procedures appitdyeour Board of Directors. Decrease
the market values or fair values of our investmerilisbe recorded as unrealized depreciation. Angealized depreciation in our loan portfolio
could be an indication of a portfolio company’shildly to meet its repayment obligations to us wiéispect to the affected loans. This could
result in realized losses in the future and ultehain reductions of our income available for distition in future periods and could materially
adversely affect our ability to service our outstiag borrowings.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advetyg affect our business and, if we need to sell arfiyur investments, we may not be
able to do so at a favorable price. As a result, way suffer losses.

We generally invest in debt securities with terrhemto seven years and hold such investments matilirity, and we do not expect that
our related holdings of equity securities will piger us with liquidity opportunities in the nearsterWe invest and expect to continue investing
in companies whose securities have no establishdihy market and whose securities are and wilildgect to legal and other restrictions on
resale or whose securities are and will be lesgdithan are publicly-traded securities. The ilidjty of these investments may make it difficult
for us to sell these investments when desireddtfitian, if we are required to liquidate all or arfion of our portfolio quickly, we may realize
significantly less than the value at which we heslvjpusly recorded these investments. As a reseltio not expect to achieve liquidity in our
investments
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in the near-term. However, to maintain our quadifion as a business development company and aS,aM@Imay have to dispose of
investments if we do not satisfy one or more ofapplicable criteria under the respective regulafameworks. Our investments are usually
subject to contractual or legal restrictions orakesor are otherwise illiquid, because there isallg no established trading market for such
investments. The illiquidity of most of our investnts may make it difficult for us to dispose of theestments at a favorable price and, as a
result, we may suffer losses.

Our portfolio companies may incur debt or issue étyusecurities that rank equally with, or senior tour investments in such companies.

We invest primarily in debt securities issued by portfolio companies. In some cases, portfolio panies will be permitted to incur
other debt, or issue other equity securities, thiak equally with, or senior to, our investmenttBgir terms, .such instruments may provide
the holders thereof are entitled to receive payroédtvidends, interest or principal on or befdne tlates on which we are entitled to receive
payments in respect of our investments. Theseidsttuments would usually prohibit the portfolionepanies from paying interest on or
repaying our investments in the event and duriegctintinuance of a default under such debt. Alsthé event of insolvency, liquidation,
dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of a fwid company, holders of securities ranking semdoour investment in that portfolio
company would typically be entitled to receive payrmin full before we receive any distribution @spect of our investment. After repaying
such holders, the portfolio company might not harg remaining assets to use for repaying its otiigao us. In the case of securities ranking
equally with our investments, we would have to shar a pari passu basis any distributions withragkeurity holders in the event of an
insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorganizatior bankruptcy of the relevant portfolio compalmyaddition, we would not be in a positior
control any portfolio company by investing in itshd securities. As a result, we are subject taitthethat a portfolio company in which we
invest may make business decisions with which wegtee and the management of such companies,rasesfatives of the holders of their
common equity, may take risks or otherwise acta@ys\that do not best serve our interests as dedstors.

The rights we may have with respect to the colteecuring any junior priority loans we make to partfolio companies may also be
limited pursuant to the terms of one or more imeditor agreements that we enter into with the élaf senior debt. Under such an
intercreditor agreement, at any time that senidigations are outstanding, we may forfeit certaghts with respect to the collateral to the
holders of the senior obligations. These rights inajude the right to commence enforcement procegdagainst the collateral, the right to
control the conduct of such enforcement proceedlithgsright to approve amendments to collateraldeents, the right to release liens on the
collateral and the right to waive past defaultsarmzbllateral documents. We may not have the gliditcontrol or direct such actions, even i
a result our rights as junior lenders are adverafigcted.

Our equity related investments are highly specwati and we may not realize gains from these invesita. If our equity investments do
not generate gains, then the return on our investeabital will be lower than it would otherwise behich could result in a decline in the
value of shares of our common stock.

When we invest in debt securities, we generallyeekfo acquire warrants or other equity securdiesvell. Our goal is ultimately to
dispose of these equity interests and realize gains disposition of such interests. Over time,gamms that we realize on these equity interes
may offset, to some extent, losses that we expegien defaults under debt securities that we liddadvever, the equity interests that we rec
may not appreciate in value and, in fact, may dedin value. Accordingly, we may not be able tdizeagains from our equity interests, and
any gains that we do realize on the dispositioanyf equity interests may not be sufficient to dfesey other losses that we experience.
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We may not realize expected returns on warrantsaiged in connection with our debt investments.

We generally receive warrants in connection withaebt investments. At December 31, 2012, we heldamt positions received in
connection with many of our debt investment; howetreese warrant positions accounted for only axipmately 3.3% of the total value of our
portfolio investments. If we do not receive theures that are anticipated on the warrants, oursimrent returns on our portfolio companies,
and the value of an investment in us, may be |dhem expected.

We generally do not control our portfolio companiesd therefore our portfolio companies may make téans with which we disagree.

Generally, we do not control any of our portfolmngpanies, even though we may have board observédgiiots and our debt agreements
may contain certain restrictive covenants. As altewe are subject to the risk that a portfoliong@ny in which we invest may make business
decisions with which we disagree and the managenfentch company, as representatives of the holafe¢teir common equity, may take
risks or otherwise act in ways that do not serveimierests as debt investors.

Prepayments of our debt investments by our portiatbmpanies could adversely impact our results pémtions and reduce our return
on equity.

In 2012, we received early loan repayments anddpayn of working capital loans of approximately $B8thillion. We are subject to the
risk that the investments we make in our portfalimpanies may be repaid prior to maturity. Whea diticurs, we will generally reinvest these
proceeds in temporary investments, pending th&uréuinvestment in new portfolio companies. Thesegorary investments will typically
have substantially lower yields than the debt b@irepaid and we could experience significant deilaysinvesting these amounts. Any future
investment in a new portfolio company may also tdewaer yields than the debt that was repaid. Assalt, our results of operations could be
materially adversely affected if one or more of partfolio companies elect to prepay amounts oweast Additionally, prepayments could
negatively impact our return on equity, which corddult in a decline in the market price of our coom stock.

We may not realize gains from our equity investmgnt

When we invest in debt securities, we generallyeekfo acquire warrants or other equity securdiesvell. However, the equity interests
we receive may not appreciate in value and, in faety decline in value. Accordingly, we may notdatre to realize gains from our equity
interests, and any gains that we do realize onligposition of any equity interests may not beisight to offset any other losses we
experience.

Our financial results could be negatively affectédve are unable to recover our principal investmeais a result of a negative pledge on
the intellectual property of our portfolio comparse

In some cases, we collateralize our investmentsbtgining a first priority security interest in arffolio companies’ assets, which may
include their intellectual property. In other casge may obtain a first priority security inter@st portion of a portfolio company’assets anc
negative pledge covering a companiritellectual property and a first priority sedyiinterest in the proceeds from such intellecpraberty. Ir
the case of a negative pledge, the portfolio commamnot encumber or pledge their intellectual propwithout our permission. In the event
of a default on a loan, the intellectual propeiftyhe portfolio company will most likely be liquitkd to provide proceeds to pay the creditors c
the company. As a result, a negative pledge magcadiur ability to fully recover our principal insenent. In addition, there can be no
assurance that our security interest in the praceéthe intellectual property will be enforcealilea court of law or bankruptcy court.

At December 31, 2012, approximately 62.4% of then@any’s portfolio company loans were secured hysa riority security in all of
the assets of the portfolio company (including itiwetellectual property), 36.0% of portfolio compeleans were to portfolio companies that
were prohibited from pledging or encumbering tlietiellectual property and 1.6% of portfolio compdogns had an equipment only lien.
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We may choose to waive or defer enforcement of oawmés in the debt securities held in our portfolizghich may cause us to lose all or
part of our investment in these companies.

We structure the debt investments in our portfobmpanies to include business and financial covsralacing affirmative and negative
obligations on the operation of the company’s bestnand its financial condition. However, from titogime we may elect to waive breaches
of these covenants, including our right to paymentyaive or defer enforcement of remedies, sucicasleration of obligations or foreclosure
on collateral, depending upon the financial conditand prospects of the particular portfolio compdarhese actions may reduce the likelihooc
of our receiving the full amount of future paymeatsnterest or principal and be accompanied beterbration in the value of the underlying
collateral as many of these companies may havgelihfinancial resources, may be unable to meetduibligations and may go bankrupt. T
could negatively impact our ability to pay dividendould adversely affect our results of operatind financial condition and cause the loss o
all or part of your investment.

We may also be subject to lender liability clairasdctions taken by us with respect to a borrowleu'siness or instances where we
exercise control over the borrower. It is possthlt we could become subject to a lender’s lighdlaim, including as a result of actions taken
in rendering significant managerial assistancectioas to compel and collect payments from the dower outside the ordinary course of
business.

Our loans could be subject to equitable subordimatiby a court which would increase our risk of lossth respect to such loans or we
could be subject to lender liability claims.

Courts may apply the doctrine of equitable subatiim to subordinate the claim or lien of a lenagainst a borrower to claims or liens
of other creditors of the borrower, when the lerateits affiliates is found to have engaged in imfaequitable or fraudulent conduct. The
courts have also applied the doctrine of equitableordination when a lender or its affiliates isrfd to have exerted inappropriate control ove
a client, including control resulting from the owsleip of equity interests in a client. We have mdidect equity investments or received
warrants in connection with loans. These investsegpiresent approximately 8.7% of the outstandalgrte of our portfolio as of
December 31, 2012. Payments on one or more obams| particularly a loan to a client in which vigoahold an equity interest, may be
subject to claims of equitable subordination. Ifwere deemed to have the ability to control or ntliee exercise influence over the business
and affairs of one or more of our portfolio comniesulting in economic hardship to other creditdrthat company, this control or influence
may constitute grounds for equitable subordinatiod a court may treat one or more of our loan$iasvere unsecured or common equity in
the portfolio company. In that case, if the poita@ompany were to liquidate, we would be entitiedepayment of our loan on a pro-rata basi
with other unsecured debt or, if the effect of sdimation was to place us at the level of commauitggthen on an equal basis with other
holders of the portfolio company’s common equityyaafter all of its obligations relating to its dedind preferred securities had been satisfied

Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Investing in shares of our common stock may involwe above average degree of risk.

The investments we make in accordance with oursitieent objective may result in a higher amounisi{, volatility or loss of principal
than alternative investment options. Our investm@nportfolio companies may be highly speculatind aggressive, and therefore, an
investment in our common stock may not be suit&driénvestors with lower risk tolerance.

Our common stock may trade below its net asset &gar share, which limits our ability to raise adidinal equity capital.

If our common stock is trading below its net assdtie per share, we will generally not be ablessué additional shares of our common
stock at its market price without first obtainirggtapproval for such issuance from our stockholdedsour independent directors. If our
common stock trades below net asset value, theshigh
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cost of equity capital may result in it being urettive to raise new equity, which may limit ouilipto grow. The risk of trading below net
asset value is separate and distinct from thethizkour net asset value per share may declinecafveot predict whether shares of our comi
stock will trade above, at or below our net asséue.

Provisions of our charter and bylaws could deteké&over attempts and have an adverse impact on tieepf our common stock.

Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that maye the effect of discouraging, delaying, or mgldifficult a change in control of
our company or the removal of our incumbent dinesctinder our charter, our Board of Directors igaBd into three classes serving staggere
terms, which will make it more difficult for a hdstbidder to acquire control of us. In additionr@oard of Directors may, without
stockholder action, authorize the issuance of shafrstock in one or more classes or series, imutupreferred stock. Subject to compliance
with the 1940 Act, our Board of Directors may, waith stockholder action, amend our charter to irsea@he number of shares of stock of any
class or series that we have authority to issue.eiistence of these provisions, among others,haag a negative impact on the price of our
common stock and may discourage third party bidefmership of our company. These provisions maygnt any premiums being offerec
you for shares of our common sto

We may again obtain the approval of our stockholdéo issue shares of our common stock at priceotyahe then current net asset
value per share of our common stock. If we receseeh approval from the stockholders, we may agaisue shares of our common stock
at a price below the then current net asset vals phare of common stock. Any such issuance coulatenially dilute your interest in ou
common stock and reduce our net asset value persha

We may again obtain the approval of our stockhaldeissue shares of our common stock at pricesbible then current net asset value
per share of our common stock. Such approval hawed and may again allow us to access the capiakets in a way that we typically are
unable to do as a result of restrictions that, mbstckholder approval, apply to business develgmompanies under the 1940 Act. Any
decision to sell shares of our common stock belmntihen current net asset value per share of gomom stock is subject to the determination
by our board of directors that such issuance aledis@n our and our stockholders’ best interests.

Any sale or other issuance of shares of our comshaek at a price below net asset value per sharedsalted and will continue to result
in an immediate dilution to your interest in ountoon stock and a reduction of our net asset vatuasipare. This dilution would occur as a
result of a proportionately greater decrease itoekbolder’s interest in our earnings and asseadsvating interest in us than the increase in oul
assets resulting from such issuance. Because thberwof future shares of common stock that maysbedd below our net asset value per ¢
and the price and timing of such issuances areuro¢ntly known, we cannot predict the actual dikieffect of any such issuance. We also
cannot determine the resulting reduction in ourasset value per share of any such issuance dintigisWe caution you that such effects may
be material, and we undertake to describe all taeenal risks and dilutive effects of any offerititat we make at a price below our then cur
net asset value in the future in a prospectus sapght issued in connection with any such offeriig.cannot predict whether shares of our
common stock will trade above, at or below ourasset value.

If we conduct an offering of our common stock atmice below net asset value, investors are lik@lyrtcur immediate dilution upon the
closing of the offering.

We are not generally able to issue and sell oumgomstock at a price below net asset value peeskée may, however, sell our
common stock, at a price below the current nettasdee of the common stock, or sell warrants,@pgior rights to acquire such common
stock, at a price below the current net asset vafliee common stock if our board of directors deiees that such sale is in our best interests
and the best interests of our stockholders haveoapd the practice of making such sales.
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At our Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May 30120our stockholders approved a proposal autharizéto sell up to 20% of our
common stock at a price below our net asset vatuasipare, subject to Board approval of the offeridgr Board of Directors, subject to its
fiduciary duties and regulatory requirements, hasdiscretion to determine the amount of the distand as a result, the discount could be u
to 100% of net asset value per share. If we wersstee shares at a price below net asset valule,ssles would result in an immediate dilution
to existing common stockholders, which would inéwdreduction in the net asset value per shareesuli of the issuance. This dilution wa
also include a proportionately greater decreasestockholder’s interest in our earnings and assedsvoting interest in us than the increase ir
our assets resulting from such issuance.

In addition, if we determined to conduct additionferings in the future there may be even gredissounts if we determine to conduct
such offerings at prices below net asset valuea Aessult, investors will experience further dilutiand additional discounts to the price of our
common stock. Because the number of shares of constock that could be so issued and the timinghgfissuance is not currently known,
the actual dilutive effect of an offering cannotgredicted. We did not sell any of our securitiea price below net asset value during the yeal
ended December 31, 2012.

Our shares may trade at discounts from net assdtigar at premiums that are unsustainable over toag term.

Shares of business development companies mayadtadmarket price that is less than the net asdeéthat is attributable to those
shares. Our shares have traded above and beloMAdir The possibility that our shares of common ktadll trade at a discount from net as
value or at a premium that is unsustainable ovetdhg term is separate and distinct from the ttisit our net asset value will decrease. It is
possible to predict whether our shares will traj@love or below net asset value in the future.

Our common stock price has been and continues tosbkatile and may decrease substantially.

As with any company, the price of our common stedkfluctuate with market conditions and other tiais, which include, but are not
limited to, the following:

e price and volume fluctuations in the overall stockrket from time to time

» significant volatility in the market price and tiad volume of securities of RICs, business develepintompanies or other financ
services companie

e any inability to deploy or invest our capit

» fluctuations in interest rate

e any shortfall in revenue or net income or any iaseein losses from levels expected by investoseaurities analyst:
« the financial performance of specific industriesvinich we invest in on a recurring bas

e announcement of strategic developments, acquisitamd other material events by us or our compstito operating performance
of companies comparable to |

» changes in regulatory policies or tax guidelinethwéspect to RICs, SBICs or business developn@npeanies
* losing RIC status

» actual or anticipated changes in our earningsustdltions in our operating results, or changelerexpectations of securities
analysts

» changes in the value of our portfolio of investnse
» realized losses in investments in our portfolio pamies;
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» general economic conditions and trer
» inability to access the capital marke
* loss of a major funded source;
e departures of key personn
In the past, following periods of volatility in thlearket price of a company’s securities, securitlass action litigation has often been

brought against that company. Due to the potentikdtility of our stock price, we may be the targésecurities litigation in the future.
Securities litigation could result in substantiasts and could divert management’s attention asgurees from our business.

ltem 1B.  Unresolved Staff Commen
None.

Item 2. Properties

Neither we nor any of our subsidiaries own any esshte or other physical properties materiallydngmt to our operation or any of our
subsidiaries. Currently, we lease approximatel$0d square feet of office space in Palo Alto, CAdor corporate headquarters. We also |
office space in Boston, MA, Boulder, CO and McLe¥A,

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We may, from time to time, be involved in litigati@arising out of our operations in the normal cewskbusiness or otherwise.
Furthermore, third parties may try to seek to ingpliebility on us in connection with the activitieour portfolio companies. While the
outcome of any current legal proceedings cannttigtime be predicted with certainty, we do ngbeost any current matters will materially
affect our financial condition or results of opéwas; however, there can be no assurance whetlggrearding legal proceedings will have a
material adverse effect on our financial condittwmesults of operations in any future reportingqu

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securitit
PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is traded on the NYSE under tingbsy “HTGC.” The following table sets forth the range of higld éow sales price
of our common stock for each fiscal quarter dutimgtwo most recently completed fiscal years asnted on the Nasdaq Global Select Marke
for those periods prior to April 30, 2012 and thé¥E thereafter.

Price Range

Quarter Ended High Low

March 31, 2011 $11.4( $10.42
June 30, 201 11.3¢ 10.0¢
September 30, 201 10.8( 8.51
December 31, 201 9.9¢ 8.2
March 31, 201: 10.5¢ 8.72
June 30, 201 10.8¢ 9.7€
September 30, 201 11.2¢ 10.5C
December 31, 201 11.1¢ 9.8¢

The last reported price for our common stock orr&raly 25, 2013 was $12.28 per share.

As of February 4, 2013, we had 48 stockholdergobird. Most of the shares of our common stock ale y brokers and other
institutions on behalf of stockholders. We beli¢vat there are currently approximately 25,000 aold#t beneficial holders of our common
stock.

Shares of business development companies maydtadmarket price that is less than the value ®hit assets attributable to those
shares. The possibilities that our shares of comsback will trade at a discount from net asset @altuat premiums that are unsustainable ove
the long term are separate and distinct from thlethiat our net asset value will decrease. At tjroas shares of common stock have traded at
premium to net asset value or at a significantalist to the net assets attributable to those shares

SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Board of Directdested to receive approximately $150,000, $10540@0$105,000 respectively, of
their compensation in the form of common stock gnredCompany issued 13,584, 9,942 and 10,479 shasgctively, to the directors based
on the closing prices of the common stock on tleified election dates.

During 2012 and 2011, we issued approximately Z&®dhd 167,000 shares, respectively, of commork $toshareholders in connecti
with the dividend reinvestment plan. These issuamare not subject to the registration requiremehtee Securities Act of 1933, as amen
The aggregate value the shares of our common ssa&d under our dividend reinvestment plan wascqpately $2.3 million.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

In February 2010, the Board of Directors apprové&3%.0 million open market share repurchase prognadon July 25, 2012, the Board
of Directors approved the extension of the shgpanehase program. Pursuant to
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the share repurchase program, we may repurchas@a@orstock in the open market, including block passs, at prices that may be above or
below the net asset value as reported in its thest necently published financial statements. Wegrate that the manner, timing, and amount
of any share purchases will be determined by compamagement based upon the evaluation of markelitians, stock price, and additional
factors in accordance with regulatory requiremefigsa 1940 Act reporting company, we are requiceddtify shareholders of the existence of
a repurchase program when such a program is gutiat implemented. The repurchase program doe®qoire us to acquire any specific
number of shares and may be extended, modifiedisoontinued at any time. The share repurchaseg@mog set to expire on February 26,
2013 unless the Board of Directors approves an@ktension.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coyngha@mot repurchase any common stock.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Information relating to compensation plans undeictlour equity securities are authorized for issgais set forth under the heading
“Executive Compensation—Equity Compensation Pldarmation” in our definitive proxy statement forra2013 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

As a RIC, we intend to distribute quarterly dividsrio our stockholders. To the extent we do ndtibige during each calendar year an
amount at least equal to the sum of (1) 98% ofoodinary income for the calendar year, (2) 98.2%wfcapital gains in excess of capital
losses for the one year period ending on Octobaf #ie calendar year, and (3) any ordinary incame net capital gains for the preceding
year that were not distributed during such yearsameerequired to pay a 4% excise tax on our unligid income

To the extent that we earn annual taxable inconsxdess of dividends paid from such taxable inctonéhe year, we may carry over t
excess taxable income into the next year and sxdse income will be available for distributiontie next year as permitted by the Code. We
will not be subject to excise taxes on amounts bithvwe are required to pay corporate income tagh{(ss retained net capital gains). In orde
to obtain the tax benefits applicable to RICs, witlve required to distribute to our stockholderighwespect to each taxable year at least 90%
of our ordinary income and realized net short-teapital gains in excess of realized net long-teapital losses. We currently intend to retain
for investment realized net long-term capital gamexcess of realized net short-term capital lssBéease refer to “Item 1. Business—Certain
United States Federal Income Tax Considerationsfuidher information regarding the consequencesunfretention of net capital gains. We
may, in the future, make actual distributions to stockholders of some or all realized net longrteapital gains in excess of realized net shoi
term capital losses. We can offer no assurancembartill achieve results that will permit the paymef any distributions and, if we issue
senior securities, we may be prohibited from malkliggributions if doing so causes us to fail to mtain the asset coverage ratios stipulated b
the 1940 Act or if distributions are limited by ttegms of any of our borrowings. See “Item 1. Bass— Regulation.”

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201didwveot record a provision for excise tax sincehage paid out greater than 98% of
our taxable earnings for each fiscal year.
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The following table summarizes dividends declaned paid or to be paid on all shares, includingriestd stock, to date:

Date Declared

Record Date

Payment Date

Amount Per Share

October 27, 2005 November 1, 200 November 17, 20C $ 0.0z
December 9, 200 January 6, 200 January 27, 200 0.3C
April 3, 2006 April 10, 2006 May 5, 200€ 0.3C
July 19, 200¢ July 31, 200¢ August 28, 200t 0.3C
October 16, 200 November 6, 200 December 1, 200 0.3C
February 7, 200 February 19, 200 March 19, 200° 0.3C
May 3, 2007 May 16, 2007 June 18, 200 0.3C
August 2, 200° August 16, 200° September 17, 20 0.3C
November 1, 200 November 16, 20( December 17, 20 0.3C
February 7, 200 February 15, 200 March 17, 200¢ 0.3C
May 8, 200¢ May 16, 200¢ June 16, 200 0.3¢
August 7, 200¢ August 15, 200t September 19, 20 0.3¢
November 6, 200 November 14, 20( December 15, 20C 0.3¢
February 12, 200 February 23, 200 March 30, 200¢ 0.32*
May 7, 200¢ May 15, 200¢ June 15, 200 0.3C
August 6, 200¢ August 14, 200¢ September 14, 20 0.3C
October 15, 200 October 20, 200 November 23, 20( 0.3C
December 16, 20C December 24, 20( December 30, 20C 0.0
February 11, 201 February 19, 201 March 19, 201( 0.2C
May 3, 201C May 12, 201( June 18, 201 0.2C
August 2, 201( August 12, 201( September 17, 20 0.2
November 4, 201 November 10, 201 December 17, 201 0.2C
March 1, 2011 March 10, 201: March 24, 201: 0.22
May 5, 2011 May 11, 2011 June 23, 201 0.2z
August 4, 201: August 15, 201: September 15, 20 0.22
November 3, 201 November 14, 201 November 29, 201 0.2z
February 27, 201 March 12, 201: March 15, 201: 0.2¢
April 30, 2012 May 18, 201z May 25, 201z 0.2¢
July 30, 201z August 17, 201. August 24, 201. 0.2¢
October 26, 201 November 14, 201 November 21, 201 0.2¢
February 26, 201 March 11, 201! March 19, 201! 0.2

$ 7.8¢

* Dividend paid in cash and stoc

On February 26, 2013 the Board of Directors inaddabe quarterly dividend by $0.01, or approximate02%, and declared a cash
dividend of $0.25 per share to be paid on Marchi2Dd3 to shareholders of record as of March 11320his dividend would represent our
thirtieth consecutive dividend declaration sinceiaitial public offering, bringing the total cumative dividend declared to date to $7.89 per
share.

Our Board of Directors maintains a variable dividgrolicy with the objective of distributing four guerly distributions in an amount tt
approximates 90—100% of our taxable quarterly ine@npotential annual income for a particular yéaaddition, at the end of the year, we
may also pay an additional special dividend ohféividend, such that we may distribute approxityaadi of our annual taxable income in the
year it was earned, while maintaining the optiosdl over our excess taxable incor

Distributions in excess of our current and accutedlaarnings and profits generally would be treéitstlas a return of capital to the
extent of the stockholder'tax basis, and any remaining distributions wdngldreated as a capital gain. The determinatidheofax attributes «
our distributions is made annually as of the endwffiscal year based upon its taxable incometferfull year and distributions paid for the
full year. Of the dividends declared during theryeeded December 31, 2012 and 2011, 100% werébdistms of ordinary income. There can
be no certainty to stockholders that this detertionas representative of what the tax attributesw 2012 distributions to stockholders will
actually be.

We maintain an “opt out” dividend reinvestment pfanour common stockholders. As a result, if weldee a dividend, cash dividends
will be automatically reinvested in additional sk®of our common stock unless you specifically ‘mpt’ of the dividend reinvestment plan
and choose to receive cash dividends. During 208122811, we issued approximately 219,000 and 18788@res, respectively, of common
stock to shareholders in connection with the dir@leeinvestment plan.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following stock performance graph comparesctiraulative stockholder return assuming that, oneDdzer 31, 2007, a person
invested $100 in each of our common stock, the NC8Eposite Index and the NASDAQ Financial 100 Indehe NYSE Composite Index
was added this year because our common stock lesghing on the NYSE in April 2012. The graph measuptal shareholder return, which
takes into account both changes in stock pricedaridends. It assumes that dividends paid are esited in like securities.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Hercules Technology Growth Capital, the NYSE Composite Index,
the MASDAQ Financial 100 Index, and the S&P 500 Index
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CopyrightT 2013 58P, a division of The MoGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All righls reserved.
This graph and other information furnished undet Raltem 5 of the Form 10-K shall not be deenmedbe “soliciting material” or to be
“filed” with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14ABAC, or to the liabilities of Section 18 of thecBrities Exchange Act of 1934. The stock
price performance included in the above graph tsneoessarily indicative of future stock price penfance.
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ltem 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Da

Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following consolidated financial data is dedeom our audited consolidated financial statenseiithe selected consolidated
financial data should be read in conjunction w*Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€aindition and Results of Operations”
and the consolidated financial statements and eglatotes included elsewhere herein. Historical dataot necessarily indicative of results to
be expected for any future period.

As of December 31, 201

($ in thousands, except per share dat: 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Balance sheet data

Investments, at valt $ 906,30( $652,87( $472,03: $374,66! $578,21:
Cash and cash equivalel 182,99: 64,47 107,01« 124,82¢ 17,24:
Total asset 1,123,64 747,39 591,24 508,96 608,67.
Total liabilities 607,67* 316,35: 178,71¢ 142,45. 226,21
Total net assel 515,96¢ 431,04: 412,53: 366,51! 382,45¢
Other Data:

Total debt investments, at val 827,54( 585,76 401,61¢ 325,13¢ 536,96«
Total warrant investments, at val 29,55( 30,04 23,69( 14,45( 17,88:
Total equity investments, at val 49,21( 37,05¢ 46,72« 35,08t 23,36¢
Unfunded Commitment 61,85: 168,19t 117,20( 11,70( 82,00(
Net asset value per shdl) $ 9.7¢ $ 9.8 $ 9.5 $ 10.2¢ $ 11.5¢

(1) Based on common shares outstanding at perioc

For the Years Ended December 31

(in thousands, except per share amount: 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Investment income
Interest $87,60! $70,34¢ $ 54,70( $62,20( $ 67,28!
Fees 9,911 9,50¢ 4,77¢ 12,07: 8,55:
Total investment incom 97,52( 79,85t 59,47 74,27 75,83t
Operating expense
Interest. 19,83t 13,25: 8,57: 9,381 13,12:
Loan fees 3,911 2,63t 1,25¢ 1,88( 2,64¢
General and administrati\ 8,10¢ 7,992 7,08¢ 7,281 6,89¢
Employee Compensatio
Compensation and benef 13,32¢ 13,26( 10,47 10,737 11,59t
Stocl-based compensatic 4,225 3,12¢ 2,70¢ 1,88¢ 1,59(
Total employee compensati 17,55 16,38¢ 13,18 12,62¢ 13,18¢
Total operating expens 49,41 40,267 30,10( 31,17 35,85«
Net investment income before provision for incorrees and investment gains and los 48,10° 39,58¢ 29,37 43,10 39,98:
Provision for income taxe — — — — —
Net investment incom 48,107 39,58¢ 29,37 43,10« 39,98:
Net realized gain (loss) on investme 3,16¢ 2,74] (26,387) (30,807 2,64%
Provision for excise ta — — — — (203)
Net increase in unrealized appreciation on invests (4,516 4,607 1,99( 1,26¢ (21,42¢)
Net realized and unrealized g: (1,349 7,34¢ (24,39)) (29,53)) (18,98¢)
Net increase in net assets resulting from opera $46,75¢ $46,93¢ $ 4,98 $ 13,57: $ 20,99
Change in net assets per common share (b $ 09 $ 10¢ $ 01c $ 03¢ $ 064
Cash dividends declared per common s| $ 0.9t $ 0.8¢ $ 0.8C $  1.2¢ $ 1.3%
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The matters discussed in this report, as well dsture oral and written statements by managemiedeocules Technology Growth
Capital, that are forwartboking statements are based on current managezrpattations that involve substantial risks anceuainties whicl
could cause actual results to differ materiallynirthe results expressed in, or implied by, thesedod-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements relate to future events or our futuranitial performance. We generally identify forwdodking statements by terminology such as

“may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “antidpates,” “could,” “intends,” “target,” “projects,’contemplates,” “believes,” “estimates,”

“predicts,” “potential” or “continue” or the negaé of these terms or other similar words. Impor&s#umptions include our ability to originate
new investments, achieve certain margins and |lefgdsofitability, the availability of additionalapital, and the ability to maintain certain debt
to asset ratios. In light of these and other uadaies, the inclusion of a projection or forwaabking statement in this report should not be
regarded as a representation by us that our plamisjectives will be achieved. The forward-lookistgtements contained in this report include
statements as to:

» our future operating result

e our business prospects and the prospects of ospgctive portfolio companie

» the impact of investments that we expect to m

» the impact of a protracted decline in the liquidifycredit markets on our busine

« our informal relationships with third parties indlag in the venture capital industi

» the expected market for venture capital investmantsour addressable mark

» the dependence of our future success on the geseyabmy and its impact on the industries in wiighinvest;

* our ability to access debt markets and equity miar

» the ability of our portfolio companies to achiebeitr objectives

» our expected financings and investme

» our regulatory structure and tax stal

e our ability to operate as a BDC, a SBIC and a F

» the adequacy of our cash resources and workingatz

» the timing of cash flows, if any, from the operatoof our portfolio companie

« the timing, form and amount of any dividend digttibns;

» the impact of fluctuations in interest rates on lousiness

« the valuation of any investments in portfolio comies, particularly those having no liquid tradingnket; anc

» our ability to recover unrealized loss

For a discussion of factors that could cause owadcesults to differ from forward-looking statemtg contained in this report, please see

the discussion under “Item 1A. Risk Factors.” Ybiowld not place undue reliance on these forwaréitapstatements. The forward-looking

statements made in this report relate only to evastof the date on which the statements are ritéeleindertake no obligation to update any
forward-looking statement to reflect events orwinstances occurring after the date of this report.
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The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith our consolidated financial statements eeldted notes and other financial
information appearing elsewhere in this reportadidition to historical information, the followingsgussion and other parts of this report
contain forward-looking information that involvesks and uncertainties. Our actual results coufémdmaterially from those anticipated by
such forward-looking information due to the factdiscussed under “ltem 1A—Risk Factors” and “Fomvaooking Statements” of this
Item 7.

Overview

We are a specialty finance company focused on gioyisenior secured loans to venture capital-backetbanies in technology-related
markets, including technology, biotechnology, ifdence, and clean-technology industries at aflestaf development. We source our
investments through our principal office locatediticon Valley, as well as through its additionéfices in Boston, MA, Boulder, CO and
McLean, VA.

Our goal is to be the leading structured debt fiivag provider of choice for venture capital-backednpanies in technology-related
markets requiring sophisticated and customizechfimgy solutions. Our strategy is to evaluate angshin a broad range of technology-relatec
markets including technology, biotechnology, liéefice, and clean-technology industries and ta effielll suite of growth capital products up
and down the capital structure. We invest primadrilgtructured debt with warrants and, to a lesgéznt, in senior debt and equity investme
We use the term “structured debt with warrants'efier to any debt investment, such as a senionloorslinated secured loan, that is coupled
with an equity component, including warrants, opsi@r rights to purchase common or preferred stOck.structured debt with warrants
investments will typically be secured by some boathe assets of the portfolio company.

Our investment objective is to maximize our poitfdbtal return by generating current income fromn debt investments and capital
appreciation from our equity-related investmentst @rimary business objectives are to increasenetimcome, net operating income and net
asset value by investing in structured debt withrarsts and equity of venture capital-backed comgmim technology-related markets with
attractive current yields and the potential foriggappreciation and realized gains. Our structutebt investments typically include warrants
or other equity interests, giving us the potertbalealize equity-like returns on a portion of @westments. Our equity ownership in our
portfolio companies may represent a controllingiiest. In some cases, we receive the right to md#ional equity investments in our
portfolio companies in connection with future egdihancing rounds. Capital that we provide dirg¢t venture capital-backed companies in
technology-related markets is generally used forvgin and general working capital purposes as veeilhaelect cases for acquisitions or
recapitalizations.

We are an internally managed, non-diversified adesed investment company that has elected to héategl as a business development
company under the 1940 Act. As a business developomnpany, we are required to comply with certagulatory requirements. For
instance, we generally have to invest at least @D&tr total assets in “qualifying assets,” inchuglisecurities of private U.S. companies, cash,
cash equivalents, and high-quality debt investm#rasmature in one year or less.

From incorporation through December 31, 2005, weeviexed as a corporation under Subchapter C dhteenal Revenue Code, or the
Code. As of January 1, 2006, we have elected toeléed for federal income tax purposes as a resglilavestment company, or a RIC, under
Subchapter M of the Code. Pursuant to this electi@generally will not have to pay corporate-leteales on any income that we distribute to
our stockholders. However, such an election andifgqpaion to be treated as a RIC requires thatoamply with certain requirements contai
in Subchapter M of the Code. For example, a RICtmmeset certain requirements, including source-obime, asset diversification and income
distribution requirements. The income source regmént mandates that we receive 90% or more ofnmanie from qualified earnings,
typically referred to as “good income.”
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Our portfolio is comprised of, and we anticipatattbur portfolio will continue to be comprised ofyestments primarily in technology-
related companies at various stages of their dpugdat. Consistent with regulatory requirementsjrwest primarily in United States based
companies and to a lesser extent in foreign conggani

We regularly engage in discussions with third arth respect of various potential transactions.nvdg acquire an investment or a
portfolio of investments or an entire company df @@ortion of our portfolio on an opportunistiagis. We or our subsidiaries may also agree
to manage certain other funds that invest in dedpijty or provide other financing or services tonpanies in a variety of industries for which
we may earn management or other fees for our ®xviye may also invest in the equity of these fualighg with other third parties, from
which we would seek to earn a return and/or fuincentive allocations. Some of these transactiongocbe material to our business.
Consummation of any such transaction will be sutigcompletion of due diligence, finalization afjkbusiness and financial terms (including
price) and negotiation of final definitive documatitn as well as a number of other factors and itiend including, without limitation, the
approval of our board of directors and requiredutary or third party consents and, in certairesashe approval of our stockholders.
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that any sansaction would be consummated. Any of themestictions or funds may require
significant management resources either duringrresaction phase or on an ongoing basis depeioditige terms of the transaction.

Portfolio and Investment Activity

The total fair value of our investment portfolio ¥8906.3 million at December 31, 2012 as comparé&$52.9 million at December 31,
2011.

The fair value of the loan portfolio at December 3012 was approximately $827.5 million, compaxed fair value of approximately
$585.8 million at December 31, 2011. The fair valfithe equity portfolio at December 31, 2012 afdPwas approximately $49.2 million
and $37.1 million, respectively. The fair valuecoir warrant portfolio at December 31, 2012 and 204% approximately $29.5 million and
$30.0 million, respectively.
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Portfolio Activity

Our investments in portfolio companies take a vgnid forms, including unfunded contractual comnems and funded investments.
From time to time, unfunded contractual commitmemesdependent upon a portfolio company reachingicemilestones before the debt
commitment is available to the portfolio companfie$e commitments will be subject to the same undtémgand ongoing portfolio
maintenance as the on-balance sheet financialimsints that we hold. Debt commitments generallyl fower the two succeeding quarters
from close. Not all debt investments representfoture cash requirements. Similarly, unfunded cettral commitments may expire without
being drawn and do not represent our future caghinements.

Prior to entering into a contractual commitment,ge@erally issue a non-binding term sheet to agaats/e portfolio company. Non-
binding terms sheets are subject to completioruoioie diligence and final approval process, as agthe negotiation of definitive
documentation with the prospective portfolio conipanNot all non-binding term sheets are expedaierddse and do not necessarily represent
our future cash requirements.

Our portfolio activity for the years ended DecemB&y 2012 and 2011 was comprised of the following:

Year Ended
December 31,
(in millions) 2012 2011
Debt Commitment®)
New portfolio compan: $362.< $402.5
Existing portfolio compan; 274.C 225.¢
Total $636.€ $628.2
Funded Debt Investmen
New portfolio compan: $267.¢ $338.7
Existing portfolio compan; 191.¢ 94.7
Total $459.2 $433.¢
Funded Equity Investmen
New portfolio compan' $ 6.C $ —
Existing portfolio compan; 3.7 2.1
Total $ 9.7 $ 21
As of
December 31
2012 2011
Unfunded Contractual Commitmer(@)
Total $ 61.C $168.2
Non-Binding Term Sheet
New portfolio compan' $ 70.C ¢ 82t
Existing portfolio compan — —
Total $ 70.C $ 82t

(1) Includes restructured loar
(2) Includes unfunded contractual commitments im&& and existing portfolio companies. Approximat85.6 million of these unfunded origination aijicommitments as of
December 31, 2012 are dependent upon the portfotigpany reaching certain milestones before the d@htmitment becomes availab

We receive payments in our loan portfolio basedareduled amortization of the outstanding balarceaddition, we receive
repayments of some of our loans prior to their dabed maturity date. The frequency or volume ostheepayments may fluctuate significal
from period to period. During the year ended Decen®i, 2012, we received normal principal amorkimatepayments of approximately
$120.7 million, and early repayments and workimg lof credit pay-downs of approximately $125.1 imill During the year ended
December 31, 2012, we restructured certain delesinvents for approximately $85.0 million and cote@mapproximately $669,000 of debt to
equity.
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Total portfolio investment activity (inclusive ohaarned income) as of and for each of the yearsceBécember 31, 2012 and 2011 was
as follows:

December 31 December 31
(in millions) 2012 2011
Beginning Portfolio $ 652.¢ $ 472.(
New Fundings 469.¢ 433.¢
Warrants not related to current period fundi (0.2 i
Principal payments received on investme (120.7) 16.1
Early payoffs (125.7) (65.2)
Restructure payoff (48.5) (182.])
Restructure funding 85.( (16.7)
Accretion of loan discounts and p-in-kind principal 21.: 17.C
New loan fee! (22.¢) (10.9
Conversion 0“Other Assef” 9.€ 0.z
Debt Converted to Equi 0.€ —
Proceeds from sale of investme (7.2) (20.¢)
Net realized (loss) gain on investme (14.7) 2.1
Net change in unrealized appreciation (deprecin (4.9 4.€
Ending Portfolic $ 906.2 $ 652.¢

The following table shows the fair value of our fholio of investments by asset class as of DecerBbheP012 and December 31, 2011
(excluding unearned income).

December 31, 201, December 31, 201
Investments at Percentage of Investments at Percentage of
Fair Total Fair Total

(in thousands) Value Portfolio Value Portfolio
Senior secured debt with warrants $ 652,04 72.(% $ 482,26¢ 73.“%
Senior secured de 205,04¢ 22.6% 133,54« 20.4%
Preferred stoc 33,88 3.7% 30,18: 4.€%
Common Stocl 15,32¢ 1.7% 6,871 1.1%

$ 906,30( 100.(% $ 652,87( 100.(%

A summary of our investment portfolio at value ®ographic location is as follows:

December 31, 201, December 31, 201
Investments at Percentage of Investments at Percentage of
Fair Total Fair Total

(in thousands) Value Portfolio Value Portfolio
United States $ 901,04: 99.4% $ 634,73t 97.2%
England 5,25¢ 0.€% 8,26¢€ 1.3%
Iceland — — 4,97( 0.7%
Ireland — — 3,84: 0.6%
Canade — — 672 0.1%
Israel — — 384 0.1%

$ 906,30( 100.(% $ 652,87( 100.(%

As of December 31, 2012, we held warrants or equositions in two companies which have filed ragisbon statements on Form S-1
with the SEC in contemplation of potential init@lblic offerings. There can be no assurance theesetitompanies will complete their initial
public offering in a timely manner or at all.

Changes in Portfolio

We generate revenue in the form of interest incgmearily from our investments in debt securitiaad commitment and facility fees.
Fees generated in connection with our debt investsrare recognized over the life of the loan osdme cases, recognized as earned. In
addition, we generate revenue in the form of chpans, if any, on warrants or other equigtated securities that we acquire from our paod
companies. Our investments generally range fror 8llion to $25.0 million. Our debt investmentsvieeaa term of between
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two and seven years and typically bear intereatrate ranging from Prime to approximately 14.0%fd3ecember 31, 2012. In addition to the
cash yields received on our loans, in some insgrme loans may also include any of the followiagd-of-term payments, exit fees, balloon
payment fees, commitment fees, success fees, PMsons or prepayment fees which may be requindektincluded in income prior to
receipt. Loan origination and commitment fees nesiin full at the inception of a loan are deferaedl amortized into fee income as an
enhancement to the related loan’s yield over thgraotual life of the loan. We recognize nonreaqgriees amortized over the remaining term
of the loan commencing in the quarter relatinggecs#fic loan modifications. Loan exit fees to bédpat the termination of the loan are accrete
into interest income over the contractual lifetod toan. We had approximately $2.0 million and $dillion of unamortized fees at

December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resplyctarel approximately $6.8 million and $4.4 millionexit fees receivable at

December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resphctive

We have loans in our portfolio that contain a Phgvision. The PIK interest, computed at the cortrakrate specified in each loan
agreement, is added to the principal balance ofoidue and recorded as interest income. To maimtairstatus as a RIC, this non-cash source
income must be paid out to stockholders in the fofmividends even though we have not yet colletiedcash. Amounts necessary to pay
these dividends may come from available cash oligo@lation of certain investments. We recordegdragimately $1.5 million and $1.7
million in PIK income in the twelve month periodsded December 31, 2012 and 2011.

In some cases, we may collateralize our investnigntibtaining a first priority security interestarportfolio company’s assets, which
may include their intellectual property. In othases, we may obtain a negative pledge coveringnpany’s intellectual property.

At December 31, 2012, approximately 62.4% of outfpio company loans were secured by a first giyosecurity in all of the assets of
the portfolio company, 36.0% of the loans wereddfplio companies that were prohibited from pladgor encumbering their intellectual
property and 1.6% of portfolio company loans hag&guipment only lien.

Interest on debt securities is generally payablatiip, with amortization of principal typically oacring over the term of the security for
emerging-growth, expansion-stage and establistegbstompanies. In addition, certain loans may delan interest-only period ranging from
three to eighteen months for emerging-growth ammhesgion-stage companies and longer for establistaggh companies. In limited instances
in which we choose to defer amortization of thenléar a period of time from the date of the inifiaestment, the principal amount of the debit
securities and any accrued but unpaid interestrbeatue at the maturity date.

The effective yield on our debt investments dutimg year was 14.37% and was attributed in pariterést charges and fees related to
loan restructurings and acceleration of fee incoesegnition from early loan repayments. The ovexalighted average yield to maturity of «
loan investments was approximately 12.91% at Deeer®b, 2012, a slight increase compared to 12.64Beeember 31, 2011. The weighted
average yield to maturity is computed using therigdt rates in effect at the inception of eaclheflbans, and includes amortization of the loar
facility fees, commitment fees and market premiwmdiscounts over the expected life of the debéstments, weighted by their respective
costs when averaged and based on the assumpttaaldltb@ntractual loan commitments have been fiullyded and held to maturity.

Portfolio Composition

Our portfolio companies are primarily privately ti@lompanies which are active in the drug discoeey development, internet
consumer and business services, clean technolofiwase, drug delivery, medical device and equipteredia/content/info, communications
and networking, information services, healthcargises, diagnostic, specialty pharmaceuticals dubhology tools, surgical devices, consu
and business products, semiconductors, electranidcomputer hardware and therapeutic industrypsecthese sectors are characterized by
high margins, high growth rates, consolidation pratuct and market extension opportunities. Vaduefien vested in intangible assets and
intellectual property.
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As of December 31, 2012, approximately 65.8% off#iievalue of our portfolio was composed of inwvaetts in five industries: 20.8%
was composed of investments in the drug discovedydevelopment industry, 15.0% was composed ofsimvents in the internet consumer
and business services industry, 14.0% was compufdadestments in the clean technology industr¥8was composed of investments in the
drug delivery industry and 7.8% was composed oéstments in the software industry.

The following table shows the fair value of our fholio by industry sector at December 31, 2012 Bedember 31, 2011:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Investments at Fail Percentage of Tote Investments at Fail Percentage of Tote
(in thousands) Value Portfolio Value Portfolio
Drug Discovery & Development $ 188,47¢ 20.% $ 131,42¢ 20.1%
Internet Consumer & Business Servi 136,14¢ 15.(% 117,54. 18.(%
Clean Technolog 126,60( 14.(% 64,587 9.9%
Drug Delivery 74,21¢ 8.2% 62,668 9.6%
Software 70,83¢ 7.8% 27,85( 4.3%
Medical Device & Equipmer 54,57¢ 6.C% — 0.C%
Information Service 53,52{ 5.9% 45,85( 7.C%
Media/Content/Infc 51,53¢ 5.7% 38,47¢ 5.9%
Communications & Networkin 37,56( 4.1% 28,61¢ 4.4%
Healthcare Services, Oth 36,48: 4.C% — 0.C%
Diagnostic 16,30" 1.8% 15,15¢ 2.2%
Consumer & Business Produr 13,72: 1.5% 4,18¢ 0.6%
Electronics & Computer Hardwa 12,71¢ 1.4% 1,22 0.2%
Specialty Pharm 12,47 1.4% 39,38 6.C%
Surgical Device: 11,35¢ 1.3% 11,56¢ 1.8%
Biotechnology Tool: 6,84t 0.8% 18,69: 2.9%
Semiconductor 2,922 0.3% 9,737 1.5%
Therapeutic — — 35,91: 5.5%

$ 906,30( 100.(% $ 652,87( 100.(%

Industry and sector concentrations vary as newsl@ae recorded and loans pay off. Loan revenusesistimg of interest, fees, and
recognition of gains on equity interests, can fiat¢ dramatically when a loan is paid off or ateslavarrant or equity interest is sold. Revenue
recognition in any given year can be highly con@eti among several portfolio companies.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201iemlargest portfolio companies represented apprabely 35.2% and 37.9% of the
total fair value of our investments in portfoliomapanies, respectively. At December 31, 2012 and 2@ had eight and seven investments,
respectively, that represented 5% or more of otiasgets. At December 31, 2012, we had six egutgstments representing approximately
70.9% of the total fair value of our equity investmts, and each represented 5% or more of thefaitalalue of our equity investments. At
December 31, 2011, we had seven equity investmgnitdh represented approximately 63.8% of the tiaialvalue of our equity investments,
and each represented 5% or more of the total &irevof such investments.

As of December 31, 2012, over 98.4% of our debéstiments were in a senior secured first lien positind more than 98.5% of the d
investment portfolio was priced at floating inta@restes or floating interest rates with a Prim&.lBOR based interest rate floor. As a result, we
believe we are well positioned to benefit shouldketrates increase. Our investments in seniorredadebt with warrants have equity
enhancement features, typically in the form of wats or other equity-related securities designgadeide us with an opportunity for capital
appreciation. Our warrant coverage generally rafiges 3% to 20% of the principal amount investea iportfolio company, with a strike pr
equal to the most recent equity financing roundofBecember 31, 2012, we held warrants in 116fplartcompanies, with a fair value of
approximately $29.5 million. The fair value of tivarrant portfolio has decreased by approximatel$dlas compared to the fair value of $30.(
million at December 31, 2011. These warrant holsliwguld require us to invest approximately $71.Rioni to exercise such warrants.
Warrants may appreciate or depreciate in valuerd#ipg largely upon the underlying portfolio compangerformance and overall market
conditions. Of the warrants which have monetizedesi
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inception, we have realized warrant gain multiprethe range of approximately 1.04x to 10.20x basethe historical rate of return on our
investments. However, these warrants may not ajgesio value and, in fact, may decline in valuecérdingly, we may not be able to realize
gains from our warrant interests.

As required by the 1940 Act, the Company classifemvestments by level of control. “Control irstments” are defined in the 1940 Act
as investments in those companies that the Comipatgemed to “control”. Generally, under the 1941, Ahe Company is deemed to “control’
a company in which it has invested if it owns 25¢4mmre of the voting securities of such companiias greater than 50% representation ¢
board. “Affiliate investments” are investments imse companies that are “affiliated companieshef€ompany, as defined in the 1940 Act,
which are not control investments. The Companyesnted to be an “affiliate” of a company in whichdts invested if it owns 5% or more but
less than 25% of the voting securities of such amp“Non-control/non-affiliate investments” ares@stments that are neither control
investments nor affiliate investments.

The following table summarizes our realized andeahized gain and loss and changes in our unreadigpreciation and depreciation on
control and affiliate investments for the yearsath®ecember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

Year Ended
(in thousands December 31, 201
Reversal of
Unrealized Unrealized i
Investment (Depreciation)/ (Depreciation), Realizec
Fair Value at Gain/
Portfolio Company Type December 31, 201 Income Appreciation Appreciation (Loss)
E-Band Communications, Corp. Non-
Controlled Affiliate $ — $ 4 $ 18 $ — $ —
Gelesis, Inc Non-Controlled
Affiliate 1,66¢ 712 (672) — —
Optiscan BioMedical, Corp. Non-Controlled
Affiliate 10,20: 1,64¢ 2,722 — —
Total $ 11,87: $ 2,36t $ 2,06¢ $ — $ —
Year Ended
(in thousands December 31, 2011
Reversal of
Unrealized Unrealized .
(Depreciation) (Depreciation)i Realizec
Investment
Fair Value at Gain/
Portfolio Company Type December 31, 201 Income Appreciation Appreciation (Loss)
MaxVision Holding, LLC Control $ 1,027 $ 88¢ $ (5,15¢) $ — $ —
E-Band Communications, Corp. Non-
Controlled Affiliate — 14 (3,425 — —
Total $ 1,027 $ 902 $ (8,589 $ = $ —

At December 31, 2012, the Company did not hold@amgtrol Investments. The Company’s investment ixWlasion Holding, L.L.C., a
company that was a Control Investment as of Dece®be?2011, was liquidated during the year endedeber 31, 2012. On July 31, 2012,
the Company received payment of $2.0 million fertdtal debt investments in Maxvision Holding, ICL Approximately $8.7 million of
realized losses and $10.5 million of net changenirealized appreciation was recognized on thisrobdebt and equity investment during the
year ended December 31, 20

Portfolio Grading

We use an investment grading system, which graaiels @ebt investment on a scale of 1 to 5, to cheriae and monitor our expected
level of risk on the debt investments in our pditfevith 1 being the highest quality. See “ItenmBlisiness—Investment Process—Loan and
Compliance Administration.” The following table sk®the distribution of our outstanding debt investits on the 1 to 5 investment grading
scale at fair value as of December 31, 2012 and,2@&pectively:
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December 31, 201,

Investments at Fail

Percentage of Tote

December 31, 201

Investments at Fail

Percentage of Tote

(in thousands) Value Portfolio Value Portfolio
Investment Grading
1 $ 134,16t 16.2% $ 104,51t 17.€%
2 542,88! 65.€% 403,11 68.£%
3 127,56( 15.4% 70,38¢ 12.(%
4 22,92¢ 2.8% 6,72 1.2%
5 — — 1,025 0.2%
$ 827,54( 100.(% $ 585,76 100.(%

As of December 31, 2012, our investments had aiveijaverage investment grading of 2.06 as compar2d1 at December 31, 2011.
Our policy is to lower the grading on our portfotiompanies as they approach the point in time wihex will require additional equity capital.
Additionally, we may downgrade our portfolio compmif they are not meeting our financing criteaied their respective business plans.
Various companies in our portfolio will require atitthal funding in the near term or have not metithbbusiness plans and have therefore beel
downgraded until their funding is complete or thaerations improve. At December 31, 2012, nindfplos companies were graded 1, 52
portfolio companies were graded 2, 16 portfolio pamies were graded 3, five portfolio companies vggagled 4, and one portfolio company
was graded 5 as compared to 43, 12, two and twifofiorcompanies, respectively, at December 31,1201

At December 31, 2012, we had one loan on non-atwittano fair market value compared to one loaDatember 31, 2011 with a fair
value of approximately $1.0 million.

Results of Operations
Comparison of periods ended December 31, 2012 and@11
Investment Income

Interest income totaled approximately $87.6 millaord $70.3 million for 2012 and 2011, respectiviaigome from commitment, facility
and loan related fees totaled approximately $91Bomi2012, compared with $9.5 million for 2011. & mcrease in interest income was dire
related to an increase in the average investmetfofio outstanding in 2012 than in 2011.

In 2012 and 2011, interest income included appratéty $8.4 million and $7.4 million of income froemit fees, respectively. The year
over year increase is attributed to an increasaily payoffs for the year ended December 31, 201tRan increase in the average investment
portfolio outstanding in 2012 than in 2011.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had approxim&kly4 million and $10.3 million of deferred incometated to commitment,
facility and loan related fees, respectively. Theréase in deferred income was attributed to ise@investment originations in 2012.

The following table shows the PIK-related activiity the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, at
cost:

Years ended
December 31,

(in thousands) 2012 2011

Beginning PIK loan balance $2,041 $ 3,95¢
PIK interest capitalized during the peri 1,40( 2,09:
Payments received from PIK loa (132) (3,567%)
PIK converted to other securiti — (440

Ending PIK loan balance
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The decrease in payments received from PIK loadsP4l interest capitalized during the year endedddaber 31, 2012 is due to
approximately $1.4 million, $1.0 million, $493,008802,000, and $268,000 of PIK collected in confiamcwith the sale of our investment in
Infologix, Inc. and the early payoffs of IPA Holdjs, LLC., Unify Corporation, HighJump Acquisitiodl, C., and Velocity Technology
Solutions, Inc., respectively, in the year endedddeber 31, 2011. The decrease in PIK convertethter gsecurities during the year
December 31, 2012 is due to approximately $440r8&@ed to the conversion of MaxVision Holding, LLdebt to equity during the year
ended December 31, 2011.

In certain investment transactions, we may prowidesory services. For services that are separatefifiable and external evidence
exists to substantiate fair value, income is recghas earned, which is generally when the investriransaction closes. We had no income
from advisory services during the year ended Deezr@h, 2012.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses, which are comprised of intaredtfees on borrowings, general and administrainceemployee compensation,
totaled approximately $49.4 million and $40.3 moifliduring the periods ended December 31, 2012 ahdl, 2espectively.

Interest and fees on borrowings totaled approxity&23.8 million and $15.9 million during the pedimended December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. This $7.9 million year over iyig&rease is largely attributed to $1.6 millioninéremental interest and fee expense due to
the Convertible Senior Notes issued on April 15, 2and $5.6 million related to the 2019 Notes. Aiddally, we incurred approximately
$577,000 of non cash interest expense during thecended December 31, 2012 attributed to theetioer of the fair value of the conversion
feature on the Convertible Senior Notes. We haeighted average cost of debt comprised of intenedtfees of approximately 6.58% at
December 31, 2012, as compared to 6.23% as of Dmredi, 2011.

General and administrative expenses include lexga, fconsulting fees, accounting fees, printer, fasarance premiums, rent, workout
and various other expenses. Expenses increas@dltarfllion from $8.0 million for the periods endBécember 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Employee compensation and benefits totaled appteiyn $13.3 million during both the periods endezt®mber 31, 2012 and 2011.
Stock-based compensation totaled approximately $dl®n and $3.1 million during the periods endedcember 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. This increase was due primarily ®elpense on restricted stock grants of approxlgn@#,000 shares issued in the first quarte
of 2012.

Net Investment Income Before Income Tax Expense dndestment Gains and Losses

Net investment income before income tax expensthfoyear ended December 31, 2012 totaled $48libm#ds compared with a net
investment income before income tax expense in 2Approximately $39.6 million. The changes arelenap of the items described above
under “Investment Income” and “Operating Expenses.”

Net Investment Realized Gains and Losses and Urireal Appreciation and Depreciation

Realized gains or losses are measured by thedlifferbetween the net proceeds from the repaymeaie@and the cost basis of the
investment without regard to unrealized appreamtindepreciation previously recognized, and inekithvestments charged off during the
period, net of recoveries. Net change in unrealgguteciation or depreciation primarily reflecte thange in portfolio investment values
during the reporting period, including the reveisigbreviously recorded unrealized appreciatiodepreciation when gains or losses are
realized.
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A summary of realized gains and losses for thesyeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

December 31

(in thousands) 2012 2011

Realized gains $17,48: $11,09:
Realized losse (14,319 (8,35))
Net realized gains (losse $ 3,16¢ $ 2,74!

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we rezedmiross realized gains of approximately $17.85aniend gross realized losses of
approximately $14.3 million, respectively, on tt@tfolio. During the year ended December 31, 2@ ecorded realized gains of
approximately $5.1 million, $3.1 million, $2.6 nidh, $2.4 million and $2.4 million from the saleadr investments in NEXX Systems,
BARRX Medical, Inc., DeCode Genetics, Aegerion Rieceuticals, and Annie’s, respectively. These gaige partially offset by the
liquidation of our investments in MaxVision Holdinlg.L.C, Razorgator Interactive Group, Zeta IntérecCorporation and Magi.com (pka
Hi5 Networks, Inc.), of approximately $8.7 millio$2.2 million, $672,000 and $463,000, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2011 we recedratal gross realized gains of approximately $Hiillion primarily due to the
sale of warrants and equity investments in thre#fgim companies. We recognized gross realizeddesn 2011 of approximately $8.4 million
on the disposition of investments in 13 portfol@mpanies.

The net unrealized appreciation and depreciatiamuoinvestments is based on fair value of eachstment determined in good faith by
our Board of Directors. The following table itemszine change in net unrealized appreciation/degieni of investments for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011:

December 31

(in thousands) 2012 2011

Gross unrealized appreciation on portfolio investtae $ 65,87 $ 58,98(
Gross unrealized depreciation on portfolio investta (73,159 (49,32
Reversal of prior period net unrealized appreaiatipon a realization eve (12,57%) (13,229)
Reversal of prior period net unrealized depreamtipon a realization eve 14,94« 8,39t
Citigroup Warrant Participatio 402 (217)
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on pdicfinvestment: $ (4,516 $ 4,600

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we redagproximately $4.5 million of net unrealized dapation from our debt, equity
and warrant investments. Approximately $1.3 millisrattributed to net unrealized appreciation owitggof which approximately $6.0 million
is due to the reversal of prior period net unrealiappreciation upon being realized as a gain &ndrillion is due to the reversal of prior
period net unrealized depreciation upon beingzedlas a loss.

We recorded approximately $3.4 million and $2.3lionl of net unrealized depreciation on our warramd debt investments, respectiv:
of which approximately $6.6 million is due to theversal of prior period net unrealized appreciatipon being realized as a gain and $9.2
million is due to the reversal of prior period metrealized depreciation upon being realized ass lo

During the year ended December 31, 2012, net ureghinvestment appreciation recognized by the Gomwpvas reduced by
approximately $402,000 due to the warrant partigdpsagreement with Citigroup.

During the year ended December 31, 2011 net chiangerealized appreciation totaled approximatelys$aillion from debt, warrant ar
equity investments. Approximately $9.0 million wadige to net unrealized appreciation on debt investsnattributable to reversal of unrealized
depreciation to realized loss of approximately $&illion on one technology debt investment and wuthe reversal of unrealized depreciation
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of approximately $3.1 million on one life scienagbtlinvestment as a result of improvements at gmglio company. Approximately $5.8
million of net unrealized depreciation on equityeéstments during the year ended December 31, 24l primarily attributable to the sale of
InfoLogix, Inc. resulting in the reversal of $7.7llion of unrealized appreciation on equity invesims to realized gains offset by
approximately $1.9 million of net appreciation daenet increases in private and public portfolionpany valuations.

The following table itemizes the change in net alired appreciation/(depreciation) in the investttfolio by category for the year
ended December 31, 2012.

Year Ended December 31, 201

Other
(in millions) Loans Equity Warrants Assets Total
Collateral based impairments $(11.9 $ (2. $ 1.2) $ — $(14.7)
Reversals of Prior Period Collateral based impaits 10.C 0.F 0.7 — 11.2
Reversals due to Loan Payoffs & Warrant/Equity s 7.C (0.9 (5.0 (0.5 1.€
Fair Value Market/Yield Adjustments
Level 1 & 2 Asset: — (6.5) 1.¢ — (4.€)
Level 3 Asset: (7.9 9.7 0.2 — 1.€
Total Fair Value Market/Yield Adjustmen (7.9 3.z 2.1 — 3.0
Net Unrealized Appreciation/(Depreciatic $ (23 $ 1z $ (3.9) $ (0.5 $ (4.9

* Level 1 assets are generally equities listedctiva markets and level 2 assets are generallyantgheld in a public company. Observable markeeprare typically the primary input
in valuing level 1 and 2 assets. Level 3 assetatalns require inputs that are both significant andbservable. Generally, level 3 assets are debstments and warrants and equities
held in a private company. See Note 2 to the firsdstatements discussing ASC 8

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we redagproximately $7.9 million net unrealized depaéion on our debt investments
related to fluctuations in current market interases.

Income and Excise Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance wittptorisions of ASC 740, Income Taxes, which requihed deferred income taxes be
determined based upon the estimated future taxtefté differences between the financial statera@ndttax basis of assets and liabilities giver
the provisions of the enacted tax law. Valuatidaveances are used to reduce deferred tax asstts tonount likely to be realized. We intend
to distribute approximately $1.5 million of spillevearnings from the year ended December 31, 20@8rtshareholders in 2013.

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operascend Earnings Per Share

For the year ended December 31, 2012 net increaset iassets resulting from operations totaledaqmately $46.8 million compared
to net income of approximately $46.9 million foetperiod ended December 31, 2011. These changesadeup of the items previously

described.

Basic and fully diluted net change in net assetcpmmon share were $0.93 and $0.93, respectifelyhe year ended December 31,
2012, compared to a basic and fully diluted nepine per share of $1.08 and $1.07, respectivelthfoyear ended December 31, 2011.

Comparison of periods ended December 31, 2011 an@1D
Investment Income

Interest income totaled approximately $70.3 millaord $54.7 million for 2011 and 2010, respectiviaigome from commitment, facility
and loan related fees such as amendment fees esphpment penalties totaled approximately $9.5oniland $4.8 million for 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The increase in interest income vty related to an increase in the average imvest portfolio outstanding in 2011 than in
2010.

75



Table of Contents

In 2011 and 2010, interest income included apprataty $7.4 million and $6.2 million of income fromecrued exit gees, respectively.
The year over year increase was attributed to eea&se in the average investment portfolio outstanid 2011 than in 2010.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, we had approxim&kdy3 million and $6.6 million of deferred incomadated to commitment, facility
and loan related fees, respectively. The increaseferred income was attributed to increased inwest originations in 2011.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses, which are comprised of intaredfees, general and administrative and emploge®wensation, totaled
approximately $40.3 million and $30.1 million duithe periods ended December 31, 2011 and 201tkatsely.

Interest and fees totaled approximately $15.9 amliind $9.8 million during the periods ended Decandd, 2011 and 2010, respectiv
This $6.1 million year over year increase is laygetributed to $1.4 million of incremental interesid fee expense due to the increase in SBA
debentures from $170.0 million as of December 81020 $225.0 million as of December 31, 2011 ahé $nillion of interest and fee
expenses during the period ended December 31, r20dted to the $75.0 million of Convertible SeriNmtes issued on April 15, 2011.
Additionally, we incurred approximately $767,000nain cash interest expense during the period eDdedmber 31, 2011 attributed to the
accretion of the fair value of the conversion featon the Convertible Senior Notes. We had a wetjaterage cost of debt comprised of
interest and fees of approximately 6.23% at Decer@bg2011, as compared to 6.27% as of Decembe2@®1. The increase was primarily
attributed to the weighted average cost of delthersenior convertible notes of 8.1% offset byvadoweighted average cost of debt on
outstanding SBA debentures at 5.0% in 2011 as coedga 6.1% in 2010.

General and administrative expenses include legakulting, accounting fees, printer fees, insuggmemiums, rent, workout and
various other expenses. Expenses increased toxampgitely $8.0 million from $7.1 million for the peds ended December 31, 2011 and 2!
respectively, largely due to an increase in acdongrand printer fees from approximately $1.0 millim $1.6 million during the same periods,
respectively.

Employee compensation and benefits totaled appbeiyn $13.3 million and $10.5 million during therjpels ended December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively. The $2.8 million increasdue to $1.6 million of increases in compensagipense attributable to increases in
headcount, executive severance payments and ptgxell associated with restricted stock vesting®n2 million in increases in variable
compensation expense. Stock-based compensatidedtaiaproximately $3.1 million and $2.7 million thg the periods ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively. This increase is dulkd incremental expense attributed to restristedk grants issued in the first quarter of
2011.

Net Investment Income Before Income Tax Expense dndestment Gains and Losses

Net investment income before income tax expensthfoyear ended December 31, 2011 totaled $39I®méds compared with a net
investment income before income tax expense in 20 Approximately $29.4 million. The changes arelenap of the items described above
under “Investment Income” and “Operating Expenses.”

Net Investment Realized Gains and Losses and Urireal Appreciation and Depreciation

Realized gains or losses are measured by theatifferbetween the net proceeds from the repaymeiai@and the cost basis of the
investment without regard to unrealized appreamtindepreciation previously recognized, and inekithvestments charged off during the
period, net of recoveries. Net change in unrealized
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appreciation or depreciation primarily reflects theange in portfolio investment values during tyearting period, including the reversal of
previously recorded unrealized appreciation or eejption when gains or losses are realized.

In 2011, we generated realized gains totaling apprately $11.1 million primarily due to the salewérrants and equity investments i
portfolio companies. We recognized realized logs&911 of approximately $8.4 million on the disjias of investments in 13 portfolio
companies. We recognized realized gains of apprateiy $4.7 million during the year ended Decemier2®10 primarily due to the sale of
warrants and common stock of twelve portfolio conipa. We recognized realized losses in 2010 ofcyamiately $31.1 million on the
disposition of investments in ten portfolio compEmiA summary of realized gains and losses foy#aes end December 31, 2011 and 2010 i
as follows:

December 31

(in thousands) 2011 2010

Realized gains $11,09: $ 4,67
Realized losse (8,35)) (31,059
Net realized gains (losse $ 2,741 $(26,38:)

During the year ended December 31, 2011 net changerealized appreciation totaled approximately634illion from loan, warrant ar
equity investments. Approximately $9.0 million wdige to net unrealized appreciation on debt investsnattributable to reversal of unrealized
depreciation to realized loss of approximately $&illion on one technology debt investment and wuthe reversal of unrealized depreciation
of approximately $3.1 million on one life scienagbtlinvestment as a result of improvements at gmglio company. Approximately $5.8
million of net unrealized depreciation on equityeéstments during the year ended December 31, 2@d<l primarily attributable to the sale of
InfoLogix, Inc. resulting in the reversal of $7.7llion of unrealized appreciation on equity invesims to realized gains offset by
approximately $1.9 million of net appreciation daenet increases in private and public portfolionpany valuations. For the year ended
December 31, 2010 approximately $ 3.6 million apdraximately $500,000 of the net unrealized dejpttém was attributable to debt and
warrant investments, respectively, and approxirg&ibl2 million of appreciation that was attributbb equity investments. During the year
ended December 31, 2011, net unrealized investapgreciation recognized by the Company was redbgegproximately $217,000 due to
the warrant participation agreement with Citigrobipr a more detailed discussion of the warrantigpétion agreement, see the discussion se
forth under “—Borrowings.”

The following table itemizes the change in net atized appreciation (depreciation) of investments2011 and 2010:

December 31

(in thousands) 2011 2010

Gross unrealized appreciation on portfolio investtae $ 58,98( $ 40,69¢
Gross unrealized depreciation on portfolio investta (49,32) (64,46%)
Reversal of prior period net unrealized appreaiatipon a realization eve (13,229) (3,907)
Reversal of prior period net unrealized depreamtipon a realization eve 8,39¢ 29,67«
Citigroup Warrant Participatio (217) (13)
Net unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on plidfinvestment: $ 4,607 $ 1,99(

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operascend Earnings Per Share

For the year ended December 31, 2011 net increaset iassets resulting from operations totaledaqmately $46.9 million compared
to net income of approximately $5.0 million for theriod ended December 31, 2010. These changesaale up of the items previously
described.
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Basic and fully diluted net change in net assetspsmon share were $1.08 and $1.07, respectifeelyhe year ended December 31,
2011, compared to a basic and fully diluted nebime per share of $0.12 and $0.12, respectivelythfoyear ended December 31, 2010.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity and capital resources are derivedrfrour Credit Facilities, SBA debentures, ConveetiBenior Notes, 2019 Notes, Asset-
Backed Notes and cash flows from operations, inotuahvestment sales and repayments, and inconme@a®ur primary use of funds from
operations includes investments in portfolio comesiand payments of fees and other operating egpams incur. We have used, and expect
to continue to use, our borrowings and the procéeas the rotation of our portfolio and from publad private offerings of securities to
finance our investment objectives. We may raisetial equity or debt capital through both registeofferings off a shelf registration and
private offerings of securities, by securitizing@tion of our investments or borrowing, includiingm the SBA through our SBIC subsidiari

At December 31, 2012, we had $75.0 million of Catileke Senior Notes payable, $170.4 million of 20N@&es, $129.3 million of Asset-
Backed Notes and $225.0 million of SBA debentum@gple. We had no borrowings outstanding undeeetitie Wells Facility or the Union
Bank Facility. At December 31, 2011, we had apprately $10.2 million of outstanding borrowings unttee Wells Facility, $75.0 million of
Convertible Senior Notes payable and $225.0 milB&A debentures payable. We had no borrowingsandstg under the Union Bank
Facility.

At December 31, 2012, we had $288.0 million in Elde liquidity, including $183.0 million in casmd $105.0 million in our Credit
Facilities. At December 31, 2012, we had availdneowing capacity of approximately $75.0 millionder the Wells Facility and $30.0
million under the Union Bank Facility, subject teigting terms and advance rates and regulatoryinrements. We primarily invest cash on
hand in interest bearing deposit accounts.

In January 2012, we completed a follow-on publiefig of 5.0 million shares of common stock foopeeds of approximately $48.05
million, before deducting offering expenses, to us.

In October 2012, we completed a follow-on publifedhg of 3.1 million shares of common stock foopeeds of approximately $33.6
million, before deducting offering expenses.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, our dpgrattivities used $193.9 million of cash and ceghivalents, compared to $139.5
million used during the year ended December 31120he $54.4 million increase in cash used in dpegactivities resulted primarily from
additional purchases of investments of approxirge®éR.0 million partially offset by a decrease nogeeds from sale of investments of
approximately $8.2 million. During the year endegcBmber 31, 2012, our financing activities provi@8d2.5 million of cash, compared to
$97.2 million during the year ended December 31120 his $215.3 million increase in cash providgdibancing activities was due primarily
due to the issuance of $170.4 million of 2019 N&egable and $129.3 million of Asset-Backed Ngpestially offset by a decrease in
borrowings of from our Credit Facilities and incsean repayments of to our Credit Facilities of mpgpmately $28.5 million and $46.9 million,
respectively, as well as an increase in divideradd pf approximately $8.8 million due to the pulditerings of 8.1 million shares of common
stock.

As of December 31, 2012, net assets totaled $5h8li0n, with a net asset value per share of $9\W8.intend to generate additional ¢
primarily from cash flows from operations, inclugimcome earned from investments in our portfoimpanies and, to a lesser extent, from
the temporary investment of cash in other high-itydebt investments that mature in one year o seswell as from future borrowings as
required to meet our lending activities. Our prignase of funds will be investments in portfolio qoamies and cash distributions to holders of
our common stock.
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Additionally, we expect to raise additional capt@ksupport our future growth through future equityd debt offerings, and/or future
borrowings, to the extent permitted by the 1940. Actthe extent we determine to raise additionaitgghrough an offering of our common
stock at a price below net asset value, existimgdtors will experience dilution. During our 2018rAual Shareholder Meeting held on May 30
2012, our stockholders authorized us, with the eygdrof our Board of Directors, to sell up to 20%0ar outstanding common stock at a price
below our then current net asset value per shateécaoffer and issue debt with warrants or debtveotible into shares of our common stock at
an exercise or conversion price that will not kmsldhan the fair market value per share but mayelmv the then current net asset value per
share. There can be no assurance that these aapitarces will be available.

On July 25, 2012, our Board of Directors approveasension of the stock repurchase plan undesah® terms and conditions that
allowed us to repurchase up to $35.0 million of cammon stock. The stock repurchase plan expirdeetnuary 26, 2013 and no shares were
repurchased in 2012.

As required by the 1940 Act, our asset coveragd briat least 200% after each issuance of sentorifes. As of December 31, 2012
our asset coverage ratio under our regulatory reménts as a business development company was%29&x@luding our SBA debentures as ¢
result of our exemptive order from the SEC whidbwvas us to exclude all SBA leverage from our assetrage ratio. Total leverage when
including our SBA debentures was 185.4% at Decer@beR012. As a result of the SEC exemptive order ratio of total assets on a
consolidated basis to outstanding indebtednesshmdgss than 200%, which while providing increasegstment flexibility, also may incree
our exposure to risks associated with leverage.

Outstanding Borrowings
At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, weheafbllowing borrowing capacity and outstandingoamts:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Carrying Carrying
(in thousands) Total Available Value @) Total Available Value (1)
Union Bank Facility $ 30,00( $ — $ 55,00( $ —
Wells Facility 75,00( — 75,00( 10,187
Convertible Senior Note(?) 75,00( 71,43¢ 75,00( 70,35:
2019 Notes 170,36« 170,36¢ — —
Asse-Backed Note! 129,30!( 129,30( — —
SBA Debenture(® 225,00 225,001 225,00 225,00
Total $ 704,66 $596,10! $ 430,00 $305,54(

(1) Except for the Convertible Senior Notes (as defipeldw), all carrying values are the same as threeipal amount outstandin

(2) Represents the aggregate principal amount outstgredithe Convertible Senior Notes (as definedwgless the unaccreted discount initially recordpdn issuance of the Converti
Senior Notes. The total unaccreted discount fodbevertible Senior Notes was $3.6 million at Deben81, 2012

(3) InJanuary 2012, we repaid $25.0 million of SB&bentures under HT Il, priced at approximateBB®o, including annual fees. In April 2012, the SBgproved a $25.0 million dollar
commitment for HT IlI. In February 2012, we rep&i@4.25 million of SBA debentures under HT II, pdcat approximately 6.63%, including annual feeslune 2012, the SBA
approved a $24.25 million dollar commitment for HIT In August 2012, the Company repaid $24.75 imillof SBA debentures under HT II, $12.0 millioriged at 6.43%, including
annual fees, and $12.75 million priced at 6.38%luiding annual fees. In September 2012, the SBAcenl a $24.75 million dollar commitment for HT Htinging the total available
borrowings to $225.0 million, of which $76.0 milfiavas available in HT Il and $149.0 million was iadale in HT 111

Our net asset value may decline as a result ofeo@nconditions in the United States. Our continaedhpliance with the covenants
under our Credit Facilities, Convertible Senior 80t2019 Notes Payable, Asset-Backed Notes anddéBantures depend on many factors,
some of which are beyond our control. Materialamset devaluation could have a material adversetesh our operations and could requirt
to reduce our borrowings order to comply with dar@ovenants, including the ratio of total asset®tal indebtedness. We
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believe that our current cash and cash equivaleast) generated from operations, and funds avaifadain our Credit Facilities will be
sufficient to meet our working capital and capé&abenditure commitments for at least the next 1aths

Debt financing costs are fees and other direcemental costs incurred by the Company in obtaidiglgt financing and are recognizec
prepaid expenses and amortized into the consotidaitgement of operations as loan fees over the ¢éthe related debt instrument. Prepaid
financing costs, net of accumulated amortizatioarenas follows:

As of
December 31

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Wells facility $ 867 $ 90€
SBA Debenture 5,877 5,82¢
Convertible Senior Note 1,90( 2,471
Asse-Backed Note! 4,074 —
2019 Notes 6,287 —

$19,00¢ $9,211]

Commitments

In the normal course of business, we are partinemtial instruments with off-balance sheet riske3e consist primarily of unfunded
commitments to extend credit, in the form of loaospur portfolio companies. Unfunded commitmentgiovide funds to portfolio companies
are not reflected on our balance sheet. Our unfilisdenmitments may be significant from time to tirAs.of December 31, 2012, we had
unfunded commitments of approximately $61.9 millidpproximately $35.6 million of these unfunded tebmmitments are dependent upon
the portfolio company reaching certain milestonef®ie the debt commitment becomes available. Toesanitments will be subject to the
same underwriting and ongoing portfolio maintenameare the on-balance sheet financial instruntbatsve hold. Since these commitments
may expire without being drawn upon, the total cammant amount does not necessarily represent fuash requirements. Closed
commitments generally fund 70-80% of the commitietbunt in aggregate over the life of the commitm¥ére intend to use cash flow from
normal and early principal repayments, and proc&eas borrowings and notes to fund these commitsanbwever, there can be no
assurance that we will have sufficient capital E@é to fund these commitments as they come due.

In addition, we had approximately $70.0 millionrafn-binding term sheets outstanding to seven neleaisting companies, which
generally convert to contractual commitments witlyaproximately 45 to 60 days of signing. Neinding outstanding term sheets are subje
completion of our due diligence and final approwaicess, as well as the negotiation of definitiseudnentation with the prospective portfolio
companies. Not all non-binding term sheets are &rpleto close and do not necessarily representefutash requirements.

Contractual Obligations
The following table shows our contractual obligatas of December 31, 2012:

Payments due by perioc
(in thousands)

Less thar 1-3 After 5
Contractual Obligations (1)(2) Total 1 year years 3-5 years years
Borrowings®)®) $596,10( $  — $129,30( $ 71,43 $395,36:
Operating Lease Obligatioi®) 8,81¢ 1,24¢ 2,881 3,04¢ 1,64¢
Total $604,91¢ $ 1,24t $132,18: $ 74,48( $397,01:

(1) Excludes commitments to extend credit to our ptidfcompanies
(2) The Company also has a warrant participation ageeémith Citigroup. See Note
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(3) Includes $225.0 million in borrowings under 8BA debentures, $170.4 million of the 2019 No#i£9.3 million in aggregate principal amount of Aeset-Backed Notes and $71.4
million of the Convertible Senior Note

(4) Except for the Convertible Senior Notes, alrgimg values are the same as the principal amoutstanding. The aggregate principal amount out@tgrof the Convertible Senior
Notes less the unaccreted discount initially reedrdpon issuance of the Convertible Senior Notes$8z6 million at December 31, 20:

(5) Long-term facility leases

Certain premises are leased under agreements wkyiite at various dates through December 2020. Tetaexpense amounted to
approximately $1.2 million, $1.1 million and $1.0llion during the years ended December 31, 2012124nd 2010, respectively.

We and our executives and directors are coverdditectors and Officers Insurance, with the direstand officers being indemnified by
us to the maximum extent permitted by Maryland $aject to the restrictions in the 1940 Act.

Borrowings
Long-term SBA Debentures

On September 27, 2006, HT Il received a licensaperate as a SBIC under the SBIC program and éstaldorrow funds from the SBA
against eligible investments and regulatory capifalder the Small Business Investment Company Adtaurrent SBA policy applicable to
SBICs, a SBIC can have outstanding at any time §B#ranteed debentures up to twice the amount tégtglatory capital. HT Il has a total of
$76.0 million of SBA guaranteed debentures outstands of December 31, 2012 and has paid the SBArdtment fees of approximately
$1.5 million. As of December 31, 2012, we held stweents in HT Il in 51 companies with a fair vabfeapproximately $132.6 million,
accounting for approximately 14.6% of our totaltfmlio at December 31, 2012.

On May 26, 2010, HT Il received a license to opers a SBIC under the SBIC program and is abbetmw funds from the SBA
against eligible investments and additional contidns to regulatory capital. With our net investrnef $74.5 million in HT 1l as of
December 31, 2012, HT Ill has the capacity to isstital of $149.0 million of SBA guaranteed delbees, subject to SBA approval, of which
$149.0 million was outstanding as of December 8122 As of December 31, 2012, HT Il has paid cotmment fees of approximately $1.5
million. As of December 31, 2012, we held investtsén HT Il in 35 companies with a fair value gigmoximately $223.6 million accounting
for approximately 24.7% of our total portfolio ae@ember 31, 2012.

SBICs are designed to stimulate the flow of privedeity capital to eligible small businesses. Ungleisent SBA regulations, eligible
small businesses include businesses that haveiblienet worth not exceeding $18.0 million andéaverage annual fully taxed net income
not exceeding $6.0 million for the two most reciistal years. In addition, SBICs must devote 25df%s investment activity to “smaller”
concerns as defined by the SBA. A smaller conceone that has a tangible net worth not exceeddn@ illion and has average annual fully
taxed net income not exceeding $2.0 million fortilie most recent fiscal years. SBA regulations glsivide alternative size standard criteria
to determine eligibility, which depend on the inttysn which the business is engaged and are basadch factors as the number of
employees and gross sales. According to SBA reignstSBICs may make long-term loans to small legsgas, invest in the equity securities
of such businesses and provide them with consudtitjadvisory services. Through its wholly-ownedssdiaries HT Il and HT IIl, we plan to
provide long-term loans to qualifying small busises, and in connection therewith, make equity ituests.

HT Il and HT Il are periodically examined and atadi by the SBAS staff to determine their compliance with SBA ragjons. If HT Il ol
HT Ill fails to comply with applicable SBA regulatis, the SBA could, depending on the severity efviblation, limit or prohibit HT II's or
HT III's use of debentures, declare outstandingedélires immediately due and payable, and/or lintitHr HT 11l from making new
investments. In addition, HT Il or HT 1l may albe limited in their ability to make distributions as if they do not have
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sufficient capital in accordance with SBA regulagoSuch actions by the SBA would, in turn, negdyiaffect us because HT Il and Il are |
wholly owned subsidiaries. HT Il and HT Ill werednmpliance with the terms of the SBIC's leverag@fBiDecember 31, 2012 as a result of
having sufficient capital as defined under the SBgulations.

The rates of borrowings under various draws froemSBA beginning in April 2007 are set semiannuailiMarch and September and
range from 2.25% to 5.73%. Interest payments on 88#entures are payable seamiqually. There are no principal payments requimethes:
issues prior to maturity and no prepayment permlidebentures under the SBA generally mature tarsyafter being borrowed. Based on the
initial draw down date of April 2007, the initialaturity of SBA debentures will occur in April 201l addition, the SBA charges a fee that is
set annually, depending on the Federal fiscal freateverage commitment was delegated by the S&ggrdless of the date that the leverage
was drawn by the SBIC. The annual fees relatedTidl ldebentures that pooled on September 22, 20dr@ @.406% and 0.285%, depending
upon the year in which the underlying commitmenswksed. The annual fees related to HT 1ll debestthat pooled on September 19, 2012
were 0.804%. The annual fees on other debenturesheen set at 0.906%. The average amount of deksrdutstanding for the year ended
December 31, 2012 for HT Il was approximately $9%iltion with an average interest rate of approxieta5.68%. The average amount of
debentures outstanding for the year ended Dece®ihe012 for HT Il was approximately $112.0 millisvith an average interest rate of
approximately 3.25%.

In January 2011, we repaid $25.0 million of SBA eleires under HT I, priced at approximately 6.68%luding annual fees. In April
2011, the SBA approved a $25.0 million dollar cotmneint for HT Ill. In February 2012, we repaid $Ztillion of SBA debentures under
HT Il, priced at 6.63%, including annual fees. imd 2012, the SBA approved a $24.25 million datammitment for HT 1lI. In August 2012,
we repaid $24.75 million of SBA debentures underlH$12.0 million priced at 6.43%, including anhfiees and $12.75 million priced at
6.38%, including annual fees.

As of December 31, 2012, the maximum statutorytlonithe dollar amount of outstanding SBA guarashtdebentures issued by a single
SBIC is $150.0 million, subject to periodic adjustmts by the SBA, and a maximum amount of $225.0anifor funds under common contr
subject to periodic adjustments by the SBA. Indbggregate, at December 31, 2012 there was $228i0mprincipal amount of indebtedness
outstanding incurred by our SBIC subsidiaries, ¢irig us to the maximum statutory limit on the dodaount of SBA guaranteed debentures
under the SBIC program.

We reported the following SBA debentures outstapdis of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

December 31
(in thousands) Issuance/Pooling Dat Maturity Date Interest Rate(®) 2012 2011
SBA Debentures:

September 26, 20( September 1, 20: 6.45% $ — $ 12,00(
March 26, 200¢ March 1, 201¢ 6.3¢% 34,80( 58,05(
September 24, 20( September 1, 20: 6.62% — 13,75(
March 25, 200¢ March 1, 201¢ 5.52% 18,40( 18,40(
September 23, 20( September 1, 20: 4.64% 3,40( 3,40(
September 22, 201 September 1, 20: 3.62% 6,50( 6,50(
September 22, 201 September 1, 20: 3.5(% 22,90( 22,90(
March 29, 201: March 1, 2021 4.3™% 28,75( 28,75(
September 21, 201 September 1, 20: 3.16% 25,00( 25,00(
March 21, 201: March 1, 2022 3.05% 11,25( 11,25(
March 21, 201: March 1, 202: 3.28% 25,00( 25,00(
September 19, 201 September 1, 20: 3.05% 24,25( —

November 14, 201 November 1, 202 3.0%06 (2) 24,75( —

Total SBA Debentures $225,00( $225,00(

(1) Interest rate includes annual cha
(2) Interim interest on the November 14, 2012 borrowingxpected to pool in March 2013 at which dateghncipal interest rate will be s
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Wells Facility

In August 2008, we entered into a $50.0 million iyear revolving senior secured credit facility witfells Fargo Capital Finance (the
“Wells Facility”). On June 20, 2011, we renewed Wells Facility. Under this three-year senior secufacility, Wells Fargo Capital Finance
has made commitments of $75.0 million. The facitibntains an accordion feature, in which we careiase the credit line up to an aggregate
of $300.0 million, funded by additional lenders amith the agreement of Wells Fargo Capital Finazce subject to other customary
conditions. We expect to continue discussions wéttious other potential lenders to join the newlitgc however, there can be no assurances
that additional lenders will join the Wells Fagjlit

On August 1, 2012, we entered into an amendmeihietdVells Facility. The amendment reduces the ésterate floor by 75 basis points
to 4.25% and extends the maturity date by one tgeAugust 2015. Additionally, an amortization pefiof 12 months was added to pay down
the principal balance as of the maturity date, thedunused line fee was reduced.

Borrowings under the Wells Facility will generabyar interest at a rate per annum equal to LIBQR BI50%, with a floor of 4.25% a
an advance rate of 50% against eligible loans.\Whi#ls Facility is secured by loans in the borrowbagse. The Wells Facility requires paymen
of a non-use fee on a scale of 0.0% to 0.50% oé&teeage monthly outstanding balance. The montifyrent of a non-use fee thereafter shal
depend on the average balance that was outstaodiagscale between 0.0% and 0.50%. For the thregknperiod ended December 31, 2012,
this non-use fee was approximately $96,000. On 2002011 we paid an additional $1.1 million irusturing fees in connection with the
Wells Facility which is being amortized through #wed of the term. At December 31, 2012, there werborrowings outstanding on this
facility.

The Wells Facility includes various financial ankoating covenants applicable to us and our sudrgddi in addition to those applicable
to Hercules Funding II, LLC. These covenants rezjus to maintain certain financial ratios and aiminm tangible net worth in an amount,
when added to outstanding subordinated indebtedtregss in excess of $362.0 million plus 90%l tumulative amount of equity raised
after June 30, 2012. In addition, the tangiblewaith covenant will increase by 90 cents on thdaddbr every dollar of equity capital that we
subsequently raise. As of December 31, 2012, timénmoim tangible net worth covenant has increaség882.3 million as a result of the
October 2012 follow-on public offering of 3.1 mdh shares of common stock for proceeds of appraein&33.6 million. The Wells Facility
provides for customary events of default, includibgt not limited to, payment defaults, breachegfresentations or covenants, bankruptcy
events and change of control. We were in compliaviteall covenants at December 31, 2012.

Union Bank Facility

On February 10, 2010, we entered a $20.0 millios-gear revolving senior secured credit facilitylwitnion Bank (the “Union Bank
Facility”). On November 2, 2011, we renewed and radeel the Union Bank Facility and added a new lendéer the Union Bank Facility.
Union Bank and RBC Capital Markets (“RBC”) have raadmmitments of $30.0 million and $25.0 millioaspectively. The Union Bank
Facility contains an accordion feature, in whichea@ increase the credit line up to an aggrega$d 5.0 million, funded by additional lend
and with the agreement of Union Bank and subjectiter customary conditions. We expect to contidiseussions with various other poten
lenders to join the new facility; however, thera ¢ no assurances that additional lenders wiilfloe Union Bank Facility.

On March 30, 2012 we entered into an amendmettet@hion Bank Facility which permitted us to issdglitional senior notes relating
to the offer and sale of our 2019 Notes. On SepgerB, 2012, we entered into an amendment to thenlBank Facility. Pursuant to the ter
of the amendment, we are permitted to increaseimsecured indebtedness by an aggregate origimaipai amount not to exceed $200.0
million incurred after March 30, 2012 in one or mdgsuances, provided certain conditions are sadibr each issuance.
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On December 17, 2012, we further amended the UB&nk Facility to remove RBC from the Union Bank Hisic Following the
removal of RBC, the Union Bank Facility consistéegoof Union Bank’s commitment of $30.0 milliom tonnection with the amendment, the
maximum availability under the Union Bank Facilisgbject to a borrowing base, was reduced from@&#ilion to $30.0 million. The Union
Bank Facility contains an accordion feature, inshhive could increase the credit line by up to $9Billlon in the aggregate, funded by
commitments from additional lenders and with theeagnent of Union Bank and subject to other custgroanditions. There can be no
assurances that additional lenders will join théodrBank Facility.

Borrowings under the Union Bank Facility will geally bear interest at a rate per annum equal taORBplus 2.25% with a floor of
4.0%. The Union Bank Facility requires the paynard non-use fee of 0.50% annually. For the threetimperiod ended December 31, 2012
this nonuse fee was approximately $65,000. The tUBiank Facility is collateralized by debt investrteeim our portfolio companies, and
includes an advance rate equal to 50.0% of eliddzlas placed in the collateral pool. The Union IBRacility generally requires payment of
interest on a monthly basis. All outstanding piatiis due upon maturity. At December 31, 2012rehveere no borrowings outstanding on
facility.

The Union Bank Facility requires various finan@ald operating covenants. These covenants requitternaintain certain financial rati
and a minimum tangible net worth in an amount, waéted to outstanding subordinated indebtedneassistin excess of $314.0 million plus
90% of the amount of net cash proceeds received fn@ sale of common stock after March 31, 2011ofA3ecember 31, 2012, the minimum
tangible net worth covenant has increased to $3®@l®n as a result of the January and October22@llow-on public offerings of 5.0 and ¢
million shares of common stock, respectively, fitat net proceeds of approximately $80.9 millioheTUnion Bank Facility will mature on
November 1, 2014, approximately three years froenddite of issuance, revolving through the firstrit¥hths with a term out provision for t
remaining 12 months. Union Bank Facility also pd®s for customary events of default, including, fottlimited to, payment defaults, breach
of representations or covenants, bankruptcy evardschange of control. We were in compliance wilitk@/enants at December 31, 2012.

Citibank Credit Facility

We, through Hercules Funding Trust I, an affiliagtdtutory trust, had a securitized credit facifitye “Citibank Credit Facility”) with
Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp. which expimgtdler normal terms. During the first quarter 0®020we paid off all principal and interest
owed under the Citibank Credit Facility. Citigrobipas an equity participation right through a warizenticipation agreement on the pool of
loans and warrants collateralized under the Citib@redit Facility. Pursuant to the warrant partitipn agreement, we granted to Citigroup a
10% participation in all warrants held as collatelflowever, no additional warrants were includedatiateral subsequent to the facility
amendment on May 2, 2007. As a result, Citigrougnistled to 10% of the realized gains on the wagantil the realized gains paid to
Citigroup pursuant to the agreement equal $3,780(0@ “Maximum Participation Limit"). The obligats under the warrant participation
agreement continue even after the Citibank Creafiiliy is terminated until the Maximum Participai Limit has been reached.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we redoetkalized gain by approximately $270,000 fdrgCoup’s participation in the
gain on sale of equity securities and recordedcae@dse on participation liability and increased wnrealized gains by a net amount of
approximately $386,000 for Citigroup’s participatid he value of their participation right on unieedl gains in the related equity investments
was approximately $313,000 as of December 31, 20#4s included in accrued liabilities. There camb assurances that the unrealized
appreciation of the warrants will not be highetawer in future periods due to fluctuations in tredue of the warrants, thereby increasing or
reducing the effect on the cost of borrowing. Simoeption of the agreement, we have paid Citigrapproximately $1.4 million under the
warrant participation agreement thereby reducingrealized gains by this amount. We will continagoay Citigroup under the warrant
participation agreement until the Maximum Partitiga Limit is reached or the warrants expire. Watsasubject to the Citigroup participation
agreement are set to expire between January 2@l 3asuary 2017.
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Convertible Senior Notes

In April 2011, we issued $75.0 million in aggregptencipal amount of 6.00% convertible senior nqtee “Convertible Senior Notes”)
due 2016. As of December 31, 2012, the carryingevaf the Convertible Senior Notes, comprised efaggregate principal amount
outstanding less the unaccreted discount initi@dborded upon issuance of the Convertible Senide$\as approximately $71.4 million.

The Convertible Senior Notes mature on April 151&Q0the “Maturity Date”), unless previously conattor repurchased in accordance
with their terms. The Convertible Senior Notes lintarest at a rate of 6.00% per year payable sewaally in arrears on April 15 and
October 15 of each year, commencing on OctobeP@b]. The Convertible Senior Notes are our semiseaured obligations and rank senior
in right of payment to our existing and future ibteriness that is expressly subordinated in rigpggfment to the Convertible Senior Notes;
equal in right of payment to our existing and fetunsecured indebtedness that is not so subordijreftectively junior in right of payment to
any of our secured indebtedness (including unsddandebtedness that we later secure) to the egfehe value of the assets securing such
indebtedness; and structurally junior to all erigtand future indebtedness (including trade pagalibeurred by our subsidiaries, financing
vehicles or similar facilities.

Prior to the close of business on the businessrmmediately preceding October 15, 2015, holders ommyvert their Convertible Senior
Notes only under certain circumstances set forthénindenture. On or after October 15, 2015 uhélclose of business on the schedi
trading day immediately preceding the Maturity Ddtelders may convert their Convertible Senior Naeany time. Upon conversion, we \
pay or deliver, as the case may be, at our eleat@sh, shares of our common stock or a combinafieash and shares of our common stock.
The conversion rate will initially be 84.0972 shecé common stock per $1,000 principal amount ofi@stible Senior Notes (equivalent to an
initial conversion price of approximately $11.8% phare of common stock). The conversion ratehelsubject to adjustment in some events
but will not be adjusted for any accrued and unjatieiest. In addition, if certain corporate evemtsur prior to the Maturity Date, the
conversion rate will be increased for convertinggbos.

We may not redeem the Convertible Senior Noteg poionaturity. No sinking fund is provided for tR®nvertible Senior Notes. In
addition, if certain corporate events occur, hddgrthe Convertible Senior Notes may require ugparchase for cash all or part of their
Convertible Senior Notes at a repurchase pricelequ®0% of the principal amount of the Convegilslenior Notes to be repurchased, plus
accrued and unpaid interest through, but excludhegyrequired repurchase date.

In accounting for the Convertible Senior Notes,esémated that the values of the debt and the eddskdonversion feature of the
Convertible Senior Notes were approximately 92.88b A.2%, respectively. The original issue discafrit.2% attributable to the conversion
feature of the Convertible Senior Notes has injtibeen recorded in “capital in excess of par valnehe consolidated statement of assets anc
liabilities. As a result, we record interest expenemprised of both stated interest expense asaweltcretion of the original issue discount
resulting in an estimated effective interest rdtapproximately 7.9%.

As of December 31, 2012, the components of the/icayvalue of the Convertible Senior Notes weréodlsws:

(in thousands) As of December 31, 201
Principal amount of debt $ 75,00(
Original issue discount, net of accret (3,564

Carrying value of dek $ 71,43¢
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For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201&pthponents of interest expense, fees and castHgaiterest expense for the
Convertible Senior Notes were as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Stated interest expense $  4,50( $ 3,187
Accretion of original issue discou 1,08: 767
Amortization of debt issuance cc 577 40¢
Total interest expens $ 6,160 $ 4,367
Cash paid for interest exper $ 4,50( $ 2,25(

As of December 31, 2012, we are in compliance tighterms of the indentures governing the Convertenior Notes. See Note to our
consolidated financial statements for more detailhee Convertible Senior Notes.

2019 Notes

On March 6, 2012, we and U.S. Bank National Assama(the “Trustee”) entered into an indenture (tBase Indenture”). On April 17,
2012, we and the Trustee entered into the Firsp®ugental Indenture to the Base Indenture (thestBupplemental Indenture”), dated
April 17, 2012, relating to our issuance, offer @ate of $43.0 million aggregate principal amouni.60% senior notes due 2019 (the “April
2019 Notes”). The sale of the April 2019 Notes gatexl net proceeds, before expenses, of approxingsté.7 million.

On September 24, 2012, we and the Trustee, entagethe Second Supplemental Indenture to the Basenture (the “Second
Supplemental Indenture”), dated as of Septembe2@¥2, relating to our issuance, offer and sal®7&.0 million aggregate principal amount
of 7.00% senior notes due 2019 (the “September RRitOs” and, together with the April 2019 Notes tRB019 Notes”). The sale of the
September 2019 Notes generated net proceeds, lefoeases, of approximately $72.75 million.

April 2019 Notes

The 2019 Notes will mature on April 30, 2019 andyrba redeemed in whole or in part at our optioarsttime or from time to time on
or after April 30, 2015, upon not less than 30 dagismore than 60 days written notice by mail ptethe date fixed for redemption thereof, at
a redemption price of 100% of the outstanding ppialcamount thereof plus accrued and unpaid intgr@gments otherwise payable for the
then-current quarterly interest period accrueduoniot including the date fixed for redemption. il 2019 Notes bear interest at a rate of
7.00% per year payable quarterly on January 30i 8@y July 30 and October 30 of each year, comrimgnen July 30, 2012, and trade on the
New York Stock Exchange under the trading syn*HTGZ.”

The 2019 Notes will be our direct unsecured obiayest and will rank: (i)pari passwvith our other outstanding and future senior
unsecured indebtedness, including without limitatithe $75.0 million in aggregate principal amoofithe Convertible Senior Notes;
(ii) senior to any of our future indebtedness #giressly provides it is subordinated to the ApBiL9 Notes; (iii) effectively subordinated to all
our existing and future secured indebtedness (@miuindebtedness that is initially unsecured tacWwhve subsequently grant security), to the
extent of the value of the assets securing sudatbiiediness, including without limitation, borrowingsder our Credit Facilities; (iv) structura
subordinated to all existing and future indebtedrawl other obligations of any of our subsidiaiiesluding without limitation, the
indebtedness of Hercules Technology I, L.P. antttles Technology I, L.P. and borrowings under myvolving senior secured credit
facility with Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC.
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The Indenture, as supplemented by the First Suggiéahindenture, contains certain covenants innlydovenants requiring our
compliance with (regardless of whether it is subjefthe asset coverage requirements set forffeation 18(a)(1)(A) as modified by
Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act to comply with tiestrictions on dividends, distributions and pass of capital stock set forth in Section 18
(2)(1)(B) as modified by Section 61(a)(1) of thet@®ct and to provide financial information to thelders of the April 2019 Notes and the
Trustee if the Company should no longer be sultfettie reporting requirements under the Securiiieshange Act of 1934. These covenants
are subject to important limitations and exceptithrag are described in the Indenture, as suppleeddnt the First Supplemental Indenture. The
Indenture provides for customary events of defantt further provides that the Trustee or the heldé25% in aggregate principal amount of
the outstanding April 2019 Notes in a series magfate such April 2019 Notes immediately due andapés/upon the occurrence of any event
of default after expiration of any applicable grpegiod.

In July 2012, we reopened our April 2019 Notes issded an additional $41.5 million in aggregatagpal amount of April 2019 Note
which includes exercise of an over-allotment optianinging the total amount of the April 2019 Notssued to approximately $84.5 million in
aggregate principal amount.

September 2019 Notes

The September 2019 Notes will mature on Septembe2@®L9 and may be redeemed in whole or in patiabption at any time or from
time to time on or after September 30, 2015, upmiriess than 30 days nor more than 60 days writt¢ice by mail prior to the date fixed for
redemption thereof, at a redemption price of 100%h® outstanding principal amount thereof plusraed and unpaid interest payments
otherwise payable for the then-current quartergriest period accrued to but not including the fiat for redemption. The September 2019
Notes bear interest at a rate of 7.00% per yeaatgayguarterly on March 30, June 30, Septembend@@ecember 30 of each ye
commencing on December 30, 2012, and trade on ¢eYork Stock Exchange under the trading symbol GYT”

The September 2019 Notes will be the Company’stliresecured obligations and will rank: @ari passuwith our other outstanding
and future senior unsecured indebtedness, includithgut limitation, the $75 million in aggregateanxipal amount of the Convertible Senior
Notes; (ii) senior to any of our future indebtednt®at expressly provides it is subordinated tabptember 2019 Notes; (iii) effective
subordinated to all our existing and future secumeébtedness (including indebtedness that isalhitunsecured to which we subsequently
grant security), to the extent of the value ofdksets securing such indebtedness, including withoitation, borrowings under our credit
facilities; (iv) structurally subordinated to altisting and future indebtedness and other obligatiof any of our subsidiaries, including without
limitation, the indebtedness of Hercules Technolbdgl.P. and Hercules Technology lll, L.P. and tmwings under our revolving senior
secured credit facility with Wells Fargo Capitah&nce.

The Base Indenture, as supplemented by the Seaguleé®nental Indenture, contains certain covenaisiding covenants requiring the
Company to comply with (regardless of whether gubject to) the asset coverage requirements ghtifoSection 18 (a)(1)(A) as modified by
Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act to comply with tiestrictions on dividends, distributions and pass of capital stock set forth in Section 18
(a)(1)(B) as modified by Section 61(a)(1) of thel@%ct and to provide financial information to thelders of the September 2019 Notes and
the Trustee if the Company should no longer beesatltp the reporting requirements under the Seesifiixchange Act of 1934. These
covenants are subject to important limitations exceptions that are described in the Indentursupplemented by the Second Supplemental
Indenture. The Indenture provides for customanneyef default and further provides that the Traesiethe holders of 25% in aggregate
principal amount of the outstanding September 204fs in a series may declare such September 26t nmediately due and payable
upon the occurrence of any event of default aftpiration of any applicable grace period.
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In October 2012, the underwriters exercised thear@llotment option for an additional $10.9 mitliof the September 2019 Notes,
bringing the total amount of the September 201%®bl@sued to approximately $85.9 million in aggtegmincipal amount.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201tpthponents of interest expense and cash paidtimest expense for the April 2C
Notes and September 2019 Notes are as foll

For the Years Ended
December 31

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Stated interest expense $ 513¢ $ —
Amortization of debt issuance cc 42% —

Total interest expense and fe $ 5,562 $ —
Cash paid for interest expense and - $ 479 $ —

As of December 31, 2012, we are in compliance thighterms of the indenture governing the April 20ldes and the September 2019
Notes. See Note 4 to our consolidated financiaéstants for more detail on the 2019 No

Asset-Backed Notes

On December 19, 2012, we completed a $230.7 mitbom debt securitization in connection with whathaffiliate of ours made an
offering of $129.3 million in aggregate principahaunt of fixed-rate asset-backed notes (the “ABsetked Notes”), which Asset-Backed
Notes were rated A2(sf) by Mocd’s Investors Service, Inc. The Asset-Backed Notesevissued by Hercules Capital Funding Trust 2012-1
pursuant to a note purchase agreement, datedCecember 12, 2012, by and among us, Hercules C&pitaling 2012-1 LLC, as Trust
Depositor (the “Trust Depositor”), Hercules CapRainding Trust 2012-1, as Issuer (the “Issuer”yl @uggenheim Securities, LLC, as Initial
Purchaser, and are backed by a pool of senior lvaue to certain of our portfolio companies andisst by certain assets of those portfolio
companies and are to be serviced by us. InterefteoAssetBacked Notes will be paid, to the extent of fundaikable, at a fixed rate of 3.32
per annum. The Asset-Backed Notes have a stataditgatf December 16, 2017.

As part of this transaction, we entered into a aale contribution agreement with the Trust Depositaler which we have agreed to sell
or have contributed to the Trust Depositor cersginior loans made to certain of our portfolio conmies (the “Loans”). We have made
customary representations, warranties and coveirattis sale and contribution agreement with resfpethe Loans as of the date of their
transfer to the Trust Depositor.

In connection with the issuance and sale of theeBacked Notes, we have made customary represergati@mranties and covenants
the note purchase agreement. The Asset-Backed Bieecured obligations of the Issuer and arerecodrse to us. The Issuer also entered
into an indenture governing the Asset-Backed Natésch indenture includes customary representatimasranties and covenants. The Asset-
Backed Notes were sold without being registerectutite Securities Act of 1933, as amended (theuf®ées Act”), to “qualified institutional
buyers” in compliance with the exemption from réxgison provided by Rule 144A under the Securifies and to institutional “accredited
investors” (as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), ¢8Y7) under the Securities Act) who in each case,‘qualified purchasers” for purposes of
Section 3(c)(7) under the 1940 Act. In additiorg Trrust Depositor entered into an amended andteestiaist agreement, which includes
customary representation, warranties and covenants.

The Loans will be serviced by us pursuant to a aatkservicing agreement, which contains customepgesentations, warranties and
covenants. We will perform certain servicing andhatstrative functions with respect to the Loans Will be entitled to receive a monthly 1
from the Issuer for servicing the Loans. This
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servicing fee will equal the product of one-twelftr in the case of the first payment date, a fomcequal to the number of days from and
including December 5, 2012 through and includinguday 15, 2013 over 360) of 2.00% and the aggrematttanding principal balance of the
Loans, excluding all defaulted Loans and all puseltbLoans, as of the first day of the related ctte period (the period from the 5th day of
the immediately preceding calendar month throughdtih day of the calendar month in which a payndeté occurs, and for the first payment
date, the period from and including December 52204 the close of business on January 4, 2013).

We will also serve as administrator to the Issuetan an administration agreement, which includesoenary representations, warranties
and covenants.

Dividends
The following table summarizes our dividends desdaaind paid or to be paid on all shares, includéstyicted stock, to date:

Date Declared

Record Date

Payment Date

Amount Per Share

October 27, 2005 November 1, 200 November 17, 20C $ 0.0z
December 9, 200 January 6, 200 January 27, 200 0.3C
April 3, 2006 April 10, 2006 May 5, 200€ 0.3C
July 19, 200¢ July 31, 200¢ August 28, 200t 0.3C
October 16, 200 November 6, 200 December 1, 200 0.3C
February 7, 200 February 19, 200 March 19, 200° 0.3C
May 3, 2007 May 16, 2007 June 18, 200 0.3C
August 2, 200° August 16, 200° September 17, 20 0.3C
November 1, 200 November 16, 20( December 17, 20C 0.3C
February 7, 200 February 15, 200 March 17, 200¢ 0.3C
May 8, 200€ May 16, 200¢ June 16, 200 0.3¢
August 7, 200¢ August 15, 200t September 19, 20 0.3¢
November 6, 200 November 14, 20( December 15, 20 0.3¢
February 12, 200 February 23, 200 March 30, 200¢ 0.32*
May 7, 200¢ May 15, 200¢ June 15, 200 0.3C
August 6, 200¢ August 14, 200! September 14, 20 0.3C
October 15, 200 October 20, 200 November 23, 20 0.3C
December 16, 20C December 24, 20( December 30, 20C 0.0
February 11, 201 February 19, 201 March 19, 201( 0.2C
May 3, 201C May 12, 201( June 18, 201 0.2C
August 2, 201( August 12, 201( September 17, 20 0.2C
November 4, 201 November 10, 201 December 17, 201 0.2C
March 1, 2011 March 10, 201: March 24, 201: 0.22
May 5, 2011 May 11, 2011 June 23, 201 0.2z
August 4, 201: August 15, 201: September 15, 20 0.22
November 3, 201 November 14, 201 November 29, 201 0.22
February 27, 201 March 12, 201 March 15, 201: 0.2
April 30, 2012 May 18, 201z May 25, 201Z 0.2¢
July 30, 201: August 17, 201! August 24, 201. 0.2¢
October 26, 201 November 14, 201 November 21, 201 0.2¢
February 26, 201 March 11, 201: March 19, 201: 0.2t

$ 7.8¢

* Dividend paid in cash and stoc

On February 26, 2013 the Board of Directors incedabe quarterly dividend $0.01, or approximateB24o, and declared a cash
dividend of $0.25 per share that is to be paid @mdil 19, 2013 to shareholders of record as of Matct2013. This dividend is our thirtieth
consecutive quarterly dividend declaration sinceioitial public offering, and will bring the totalumulative dividend declared to date to $7.8¢
per share.

Our Board of Directors maintains a variable dividgrolicy with the objective of distributing four gderly distributions in an amount tt
approximates 90—100% of our taxable quarterly ine@npotential annual income for a particular yéaaddition, at the end of the year, we
may also pay an additional special dividend or
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fifth dividend, such that we may distribute approaiely all of our annual taxable income in the yiearas earned, while maintaining the op
to spill over our excess taxable income.

Distributions in excess of our current and accutedlaarnings and profits would generally be treéitstlas a return of capital to the
extent of the stockholdesr’tax basis, and any remaining distributions wdngdreated as a capital gain. The determinatighenfax attributes «
our distributions is made annually as of the endwffiscal year based upon our taxable incométferfull year and distributions paid for the
full year. Of the dividends declared during theryeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011, 100% werébdistms of ordinary income. There can
be no certainty to stockholders that this detertionas representative of what the tax attributesw 2013 distributions to stockholders will
actually be.

Each year a statement on Form 1099-DIV identifyhmgysource of the distribution (i.e., paid fromioedy income, paid from net capital
gains on the sale of securities, and/or a retupaaf-in-capital surplus which is a nontaxableriisition) is mailed to our stockholders. To the
extent our taxable earnings fall below the totabant of our distributions for that fiscal year, @rfon of those distributions may be deemed a
tax return of capital to our stockholders.

We operate to qualify to be taxed as a RIC undebde. Generally, a RIC is entitled to deductddivids it pays to its shareholders from
its income to determine “taxable income.” Taxalleome includes our taxable interest, dividend aedificome, as well as taxable net capital
gains. Taxable income generally differs from nebme for financial reporting purposes due to terapoand permanent differences in the
recognition of income and expenses, and generatijudes net unrealized appreciation or depreciatisrgains or losses are not included in
taxable income until they are realized. In additigains realized for financial reporting purposesyrdiffer from gains included in taxable
income as a result of our election to recognizegasing installment sale treatment, which generabults in the deferment of gains for tax
purposes until notes or other amounts, includinguamts held in escrow, received as consideratiom fite sale of investments are collected in
cash. Taxable income includes non-cash income, asichanges in accrued and reinvested intereslisiggnds, which includes contractual
payment-in-kind interest, and the amortizationistdunts and fees. Cash collections of income tieguirom contractual PIK interest or the
amortization of discounts and fees generally ocgam the repayment of the loans or debt secuthigsinclude such items. Non-cash taxable
income is reduced by non-cash expenses, suchlaedlmsses and depreciation and amortization resge

We intend to distribute quarterly dividends to eteckholders. In order to avoid certain excise sargosed on RICs, we currently ints
to distribute during each calendar year an amotletat equal to the sum of (1) 98% of our ordiriappme for the calendar year, (2) 98.2% o
our capital gains in excess of capital lossesHerdane year period ending on October 31 of thendaleyear, and (3) any ordinary income and
net capital gains for the preceding year that wetedistributed during such year. We will not béjsat to excise taxes on amounts on which
we are required to pay corporate income tax (ssafet@ined net capital gains). In order to obthetax benefits applicable to RICs, we will be
required to distribute to our stockholders withpexst to each taxable year at least 90% of our argimcome and realized net shtatm capite
gains in excess of realized net long-term capitsdés.

We can offer no assurance that we will achieveligsoat will permit the payment of any cash diaitions and, if we issue senior
securities, we will be prohibited from making diistitions if doing so causes us to fail to mainthia asset coverage ratios stipulated by the
1940 Act or if distributions are limited by theres of any of our borrowings. See Iltem 1 “BusinessegiRation.”

We maintain an “opt-out” dividend reinvestment pfanour common stockholders. As a result, if weldee a dividend, cash dividends
will be automatically reinvested in additional sk®of our common stock unless the stockholder fpaity “opts out” of the dividend
reinvestment plan and chooses to receive cashetidil

Our ability to make distributions will be limited/lthe asset coverage requirements under the 1980 Ac
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Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial stateméntonformity with U.S. generally accepted acamgprinciples (“GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenetttae reported amounts of assets and liatslittend disclosure of contingent assets an
liabilities at the date of the consolidated finahsitatements, and revenues and expenses duripgtioe reported. On an ongoing basis, our
management evaluates its estimates and assumptibit$, are based on historical experience and aowsother assumptions that we believe
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actaaltsecould differ from those estimates. Changemuinestimates and assumptions could
materially impact our results of operations andificial condition.

Valuation of Portfolio Investments

The most significant estimate inherent in the pragian of our consolidated financial statementhévaluation of investments and the
related amounts of unrealized appreciation andedggion of investments recorded.

Our investments are carried at fair value in acancg with the 1940 Act and Accounting Standardsifi@ation (“ASC”) topic 820 Fair
Value Measurements and Disclosures (formerly knas8FAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements). At Déegr@l, 2012, approximately
80.7% of the Company'’s total assets representagbiments in portfolio companies that are valuddiatvalue by the Board of Directors.
Value, as defined in Section 2(a)(41) of the 1948, /s (i) the market price for those securitiesvithnich a market quotation is readily available
and (ii) for all other securities and assets, ¥aiue is as determined in good faith by the Bodrmicectors. Our debt securities are primarily
invested in venture capital-backed companies inrtelogy-related markets, including technology, &atinology, life science and clean
technology industries. Given the nature of lendmthese types of businesses, our investmentegethortfolio companies are generally
considered Level 3 assets under ASC 820 becauseitheo known or accessible market or market irddar these investment securities to b
traded or exchanged. As such, it values substhnéithlof its investments at fair value as deteretnin good faith pursuant to a consistent
valuation policy and our Board of Directors in actance with the provisions of ASC 820 and the 1840 Due to the inherent uncertainty in
determining the fair value of investments that dolmave a readily available market value, thevalue of our investments determined in good
faith by our Board may differ significantly fromelvalue that would have been used had a readiilablemarket existed for such investme
and the differences could be material.

Our Board of Directors may from time to time engagendependent valuation firm to provide us wigthuation assistance with respec
certain of our portfolio investments on a quartdrgis. We intend to continue to engage an indegrenaluation firm to provide us with
assistance regarding our determination of thevidine of selected portfolio investments each quantéess directed by the Board of Directors
to cancel such valuation services. The scope ofehéces rendered by an independent valuationifirat the discretion of the Board of
Directors. Our Board of Directors is ultimately asalely responsible for determining the fair vatieur investments in good faith.

With respect to investments for which market quotet are not readily available or when such magketations are deemed not to
represent fair value, our Board of Directors hgsraped a multi-step valuation process each quaatedescribed below:

(1) our quarterly valuation process begins withhgaartfolio company or investment being initiallglued by the investment professior
responsible for the portfolio investment;

(2) preliminary valuation conclusions are then doeunted and business based assumptions are diseufis@dir investment committee;

(3) the valuation committee of the Board of Diresteeviews the preliminary valuation of the investrncommittee which incorporates
the results of the independent valuation firm gzapriate.

(4) the Board of Directors discusses valuationsaetdrmines the fair value of each investment mpauitfolio in good faith based on the
input of, where applicable, the respective indepandaluation firm and the valuation committee.
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We adopted ASC 820 on January 1, 2008. ASC 820blesttas a framework for measuring the fair valu¢ghefassets and liabilities and
outlines a fair value hierarchy which prioritizé® tinputs used to measure fair value and the effdetr value measures on earnings. ASC 82(
also enhances disclosure requirements for fairevalaasurements based on the level within the loleyaof the information used in the
valuation. ASC 820 applies whenever other standaaisire (or permit) assets or liabilities to beasured at fair value but does not expand th
use of fair value in any new circumstances. ASC @2fihes fair value as the price that would be ikexkto sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants at the measurement date.

We have categorized all investments recorded avé&ile in accordance with ASC 820 based uponehel lof judgment associated with
the inputs used to measure their fair value. Hadriaal levels, defined by ASC 820 and directly tedbto the amount of subjectivity associated
with the inputs to fair valuation of these asseitd abilities, are as follows:

Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices iivacharkets for identical assets at the measuredset The types of assets carried at
Level 1 fair value generally are equities listecative markets.

Level 2—Inputs (other than quoted prices includedevel 1) are either directly or indirectly obsainle for the asset in connection with
market data at the measurement date and for tkeatexftthe instrument’s anticipated life. Fair \@duassets that are generally included ir
this category are warrants held in a public company

Level 3—Inputs reflect management’s best estimbtehat market participants would use in pricing #sset at the measurement date. It
includes prices or valuations that require inph#t ire both significant to the fair value measuwmeinand unobservable. Generally, asset
carried at fair value and included in this categamy the debt investments and warrants and eqbitielsin a private company.

In accordance with ASU 2011-04, the following taptevides quantitative information about our Le8dhir value measurements of our
investments as of December 31, 2012. In additichédechniques and inputs noted in the table hedoeording to our valuation policy we
may also use other valuation techniques and metbgids when determining our fair value measuremériie below table is not intended to
be all-inclusive, but rather provides informatiamtbe significant Level 3 inputs as they relatedo fair value measurements.

Investment Type- Level Three Fair Value at Valuation Techniques/
Debt Investments December 31, 201 Methodologies Unobservable Input (@) Range
(in thousands
Pharmaceuticals - Debt $266,978 Market Comparable Companies Hypothetical Market Yield Premium/ 12.83% -
Option Pricing ModefP) (Discount) 16.11%
Average Industry Volatility® Risk Free (2.0%) -1.0%
Interest Rate Estimated Time to Exit (in
months) 57.67%
0.190%
15.2
Medical Devices - Debt 46,022 Market Comparable Companies Hypothetical Market Yield Premium 16.19%
0.0%- 1.0%
Technology - Debt 159,341 Market Comparable Companies Hypothetical Market Yield Premium/ 12.36% -
Liquidation (Discount) 20.49%
Investment Collateral (1.5%) -1.0%
$0-$7.4
million
Clean Tech - Debt 91,305 Market Comparable Companies Hypothetical Market Yield Premium 12.69%
0%- 1.0%
Lower Middle Market - Debt 263,894 Market Comparable Companies Hypothetical Market Yield Premium 10.75% -
Broker Quotéd) Price Quotes Market Comparable Index Y 16.25%
Spreads Par Value 0.0% - 1.0%
78.0% -100%
of
par
4.33% -
5.93%
$30.0 million
Total Level Three Debt Investmer $827,54C
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(&) The significant unobservable inputs used irfdirevalue measurement of the Company’s debt #eeuare hypothetical market yields and premiudisfounts). The hypothetical
market yield is defined as the exit price of arestment in a hypothetical market to hypotheticalk@participants where buyers and sellers aréngilbarticipants. The premiums
(discounts) relate to company specific charactesistuch as underlying investment performance,rigdiens, and other characteristics of the inemtt. Significant increases
(decreases) in the inputs in isolation would reisud significantly lower (higher) fair value measment, depending on the materiality of the investmDebt investments in the
industries noted in the Compé's Schedule of Investments are included in the im@ssnote above as follow
Pharmaceuticals, above, is comprised of debt imests in the Specialty Pharmaceuticals, Drug Diegoand Development, Drug Delivery, and Diagnosticd Biotechnology
industries in the Schedule of Investments.

Medical Devices, above, is comprised of debt inmesits in the Therapeutic, Surgical Devices, Medimlices and Equipment and Biotechnology Tools s$triles in the Schedule of
Investments.

Technology, above, is comprised of debt investmientise Software, Semiconductors, Electronics anth@uter Hardware, Internet Consumer and Businesdc8s, Information
Services, Media/Content/Info and Communicationsidetivorking industries in the Schedule of Investtaen

Lower Middle Market, above, is comprised of debteistments in the Communications and Networkingtv@og, Electronics and Computer Hardware, Inforama8ervices, Internet
Consumer and Business Services, Media/Content/mft Specialty Pharmaceuticals industries in the&ale of Investments.

Clean Tech, above, aligns with the Clean Tech itmguis the Schedule of Investments.

(b) An option pricing model valuation technique wasdisederive the fair value of the conversion featof convertible note:

(c) Represents the range of industry volatility usedrayket participants when pricing the investm

(d) A broker quote valuation technique was used tovedtie fair value of loans which are part of a syatd facility.

Investment Type- Level Three Fair Value at Valuation Techniques/

Warrant and Equity Investments December 31, 201 Methodologies Unobservable Input (@) Range

(in thousands
Warrant and Equity positior $57,68!  Market Comparable EBITDA Multiple ® Revenue Multiple®) 1.43x - 20.68x
Companie 0.42x- 16.98x

Discount for Lack of Marketabilit(¢) 10.4%- 25.2%

Warrant positions additionally subject Option Pricing Mode Average Industry Volatility®) 46.49%- 141.2%
Risk-Free Interest Ral 0.17%- 0.46%
Estimated Time to Exit 12-48
(in months)

Total Level Three Warrant and Equity

Investments $57,68!

(@) The significant unobservable inputs used irféiirevalue measurement of the Company’s warradtesquity-related securities are revenue and/or BBITnhultiples and discounts for
lack of marketability. Additional inputs used iretBlack Scholes option pricing model include indysblatility, risk free interest rate and estinthteme to exit. Significant increases
(decreases) in the inputs in isolation would reisuét significantly higher (lower) fair value measment, depending on the materiality of the investmFor some investments,
additional consideration may be given to data ftbenlast round of financing or merger/acquisitioems near the measurement d

(b) Represents amounts used when the Company has tetdrinat market participants would use such mlelivhen pricing the investmen

(c) Represents amounts used when the Company has tretdmmarket participants would take into accoueséhdiscounts when pricing the investme

(d) Represents the range of industry volatility usedrayket participants when pricing the investm
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Debt Investments

We follow the guidance set forth in ASC 820 whichablishes a framework for measuring the fair valassets and liabilities and
outlines a fair value hierarchy which prioritizég tinputs used to measure fair value and the effdetr value measures on earnings. Our deb
securities are primarily invested in venture cdgiticked companies in technology-related markatduding technology, biotechnology, life
science and cleatechnology industries at all stages of developm®iven the nature of lending to these types ofimsses, our investments
these portfolio companies are considered Levek8tasinder ASC 820 because there is no known essitite market or market indexes for
these investment securities to be traded or exatang

In making a good faith determination of the valfi®@ur investments, we generally start with the dstis of the investment, which
includes the value attributed to the OID, if anyd &1K interest which has been accrued to princ@gatarned. We then apply the valuation
methods as set forth below.

We apply a procedure for debt investments thatassia sale of investment in a hypothetical markettiypothetical market participant
where buyers and sellers are willing participafite hypothetical market does not include scenaviosre the underlying security was simply
repaid or extinguished, but includes an exit cohdgpder this process, we also evaluate the cotlater recoverability of the debt investments
as well as apply all of its historical fair valueadysis. We use pricing on recently issued compardébt securities to determine the baseline
hypothetical market yields as of the measuremetet &sle consider each portfolio company’s credinggtsecurity liens and other
characteristics of the investment to adjust thelras yield to derive a hypothetical yield for eanfiestment as of the measurement date. The
anticipated future cash flows from each investnaatthen discounted at the hypothetical yield tonege each investmesstfair value as of tt
measurement date.

Our process includes, among other things, the lyidgrinvestment performance, the current portfaliampany’s financial condition and
market changing events that impact valuation, extohremaining life, current market yield and iagtrate spreads of similar securities as of
the measurement date. We value our syndicated lesing broker quotes and bond indices amongst flcéars. If there is a significant
deterioration of the credit quality of a debt intvesnt, we may consider other factors than thosgpathetical market participant would use to
estimate fair value, including the proceeds thatildide received in a liquidation analysis.

We record unrealized depreciation on investmentsnwhe believe that an investment has decreasealue Mincluding where collection
of a loan is doubtful or if under the in exchangerpise when the value of a debt security were tledgthan amortized cost of the investment
Conversely, where appropriate, we record unreabggateciation if we believe that the underlyingtfmio company has appreciated in value
and, therefore, that our investment has also ajgieecin value or if under the in exchange prerthgevalue of a debt security were to be
greater than amortized cost.

When originating a debt instrument, we generalberee warrants or other equity-related securitiemfthe borrower. We determine the
cost basis of the warrants or other equity-relaesmirities received based upon their respectiveréhiies on the date of receipt in proportion tc
the total fair value of the debt and warrants dieoequity-related securities received. Any resglidiscount on the loan from recordation of the
warrant or other equity instruments is accreted interest income over the life of the loan.

Equity-Related Securities and Warrants

Securities that are traded in the over-the-coumtakets or on a stock exchange will be valuedeptievailing bid price at period end.
We have a limited number of equity securities iblpucompanies. In accordance with the 1940 Acteatmicted publicly traded securities for
which market quotations are readily available alei@d at the closing market quote on the measuredate.
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We estimate the fair value of warrants using a Bacholes pricing model. At each reporting datejgtely held warrant and equity
related securities are valued based on an anaif/s&rious factors including, but not limited tbetportfolio company’s operating performance
and financial condition and general market condgj@rice to enterprise value or price to equitiosa discounted cash flow, valuation
comparisons to comparable public companies or atiteistry benchmarks. When an external event ocsuch as a purchase transaction,
public offering, or subsequent equity sale, theipg indicated by that external event is utilizedcbrroborate our valuation of the warrant and
equity related securities. We periodically revidw taluation of our portfolio companies that hawelreen involved in a qualifying external
event to determine if the enterprise value of thefplio company may have increased or decreasea $he last valuation measurement date.

Income Recognition.

We record interest income on the accrual basisaandecognize it as earned in accordance with théactual terms of the loan
agreement to the extent that such amounts are xpercbe collected. Original Issue Discount (“O)ifitially represents the value of
detachable equity warrants obtained in conjunactiih the acquisition of debt securities and is ated into interest income over the term of
loan as a yield enhancement. When a loan becoméday&0or more past due, or if management othermhdss not expect the portfolio compi
to be able to service its debt and other obligatiare will generally place the loan on non-accafatus and cease recognizing interest income
on that loan until all principal has been paid. Amgcollected interest related to prior periodseigarsed from income in the period that
collection of the interest receivable is determitete doubtful. However, we may make exceptiorthi®policy if the investment has
sufficient collateral value and is in the procetssallection. As of December 31, 2012, we had oorfplio company on nomccrual status wi
an approximate cost of $347,000 and no fair maréikte. There was one portfolio company on non-adatatus with an aggregate cost of
approximately $7.7 million and a fair value of apgmately $1.0 million as of December 31, 2011. iDgithe third quarter of 2012 we
recognized a realized loss of approximately $5.lianion our warrant, equity and debt investmentthis company.

Paid-In-Kind and End of Term Income.

Contractual paid-in-kind (“PIK")nterest, which represents contractually deferm¢elrest added to the loan balance that is genatadya
the end of the loan term, is generally recordetheraccrual basis to the extent such amounts @ected to be collected. We will generally
cease accruing PIK interest if there is insuffitiesmue to support the accrual or we do not exffeziportfolio company to be able to pay all
principal and interest due. In addition, we maydde entitled to an end-of-term payment that weréim®into income over the life of the loan.
To maintain our status as a RIC, PIK and endkafh income must be paid out to stockholders irfohe of dividends even though we have
yet collected the cash. Amounts necessary to pegettlividends may come from available cash oridgjuédiation of certain investments. For
year ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, dpmtety $1.5 million, $1.7 million and $2.3 millidn PIK income was recorde
respectively.

Fee Income.

Fee income, generally collected in advance, indudan commitment and facility fees for due diligerand structuring, as well as fees
for transaction services and management servicgkered by us to portfolio companies and other thadies. Loan and commitment fees are
amortized into income over the contractual lifehaf loan. Management fees are generally recogmigéacome when the services are rend:
Loan origination fees are capitalized and then dimext into interest income using the effective iag rate method. In certain loan
arrangements, warrants or other equity interestseareived from the borrower as additional origorafees.

We recognize nonrecurring fees amortized overéngaining term of the loan commencing in the quarkating to specific loan
modifications. Certain fees may still be recogniasne-time fees, including prepayment penalfiées related to select covenant default
waiver fees and acceleration of previously defeload fees and original issue discount (OID) reldteearly loan pay-off or material
modification of the specific debt outstanding.
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Equity Offering Expenses
Our offering costs are charged against the prociedsequity offerings when received.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are being amortized overféneflithe related debt instrument using the stidige method, which closely
approximates the effective yield method.

Stock-Based Compensation.

We have issued and may, from time to time, issuktiadal stock options and restricted stock to esgpes under our 2004 Equity
Incentive Plan and Board members under our 200&Ebecentive Plan. We follow ASC 718, formally kwa as FAS 123R Share-Based
Payment to account for stock options granted. Under AS®B,Zompensation expense associated with stocldlmasepensation is measured
at the grant date based on the fair value of theréwand is recognized over the vesting period.

Federal Income Taxes.

We intend to operate so as to qualify to be taxed RIC under Subchapter M of the Code and, as stltimot be subject to federal
income tax on the portion of our taxable income gaiths distributed to stockholders. To qualify &I&, we are required to distribute at least
90% of our investment company taxable income, &iselby the Code. We are subject to a non-dedlectituieral excise tax if we do not
distribute at least 98% of our taxable income a®@% of our capital gain net income for each orer yeriod ending on October 31. At
December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009, no exaiseds recorded. We intend to distribute approxétyabl.5 million of spillover earnings
from the year ended December 31, 2012 to our shhtets in 2013. Because federal income tax reguiatdiffer from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, distrilnstin accordance with tax regulations may diffenf net investment income and realized
gains recognized for financial reporting purpogdfferences may be permanent or temporary. Permatiarences are reclassified among
capital accounts in the financial statement tcetftheir tax character. Temporary differenceseaniben certain items of income, expense, gai
or loss are recognized at some time in the fulDifferences in classification may also result frire treatment of short-term gains as ordinary
income for tax purposes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsrddqa-ASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update R@11-04—Fair Value
Measurement: Amendments to Achieve Common Fair&/8easurement and Disclosure Requirements in UAARGand IFRS, or ASU
2011-04. ASU 201D4 clarifies the application of existing fair valmeasurement and disclosure requirements, chahgegpplication of sonr
requirements for measuring fair value and requadsitional disclosure for fair value measuremenite highest and best use valuation pret
is only applicable to non-financial assets. In #ddij the disclosure requirements are expandeddade for fair value measurements
categorized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarcfly): a quantitative disclosure of the unobservaipeits and assumptions used in the
measurement; (2) a description of the valuatiocgsees in place; and (3) a narrative descriptigheogensitivity of the fair value to change
unobservable inputs and interrelationships betviieese inputs. ASU 2011-04 is effective for inteamd annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2011, for public entities and as suethave adopted this ASU beginning with our quasteted March 31, 2012. We have
increased our disclosures related to Level 3 falue measurement, in addition to other requiredaksires. There were no related impacts on
our financial position or results of operations.
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Subsequent Events
Dividend Declaration

On February 26, 2013 the Board of Directors inaddabe quarterly dividend by $0.01, or approxima#e02%, and declared a cash
dividend of $0.25 per share that will be payabléMarch 19, 2013 to shareholders of record as ofthMad, 2013. This dividend would
represent the Company’s thirtieth consecutive @rialdeclaration since its initial public offerifgjnging the total cumulative dividend
declared to date to $7.89 per share.

Closed and Pending Commitments
As of February 25, 2013, we have:

a. Closed commitments of approximately $115.6 onillio new and existing portfolio companies, andddhapproximately
$90.0 million since the close of the fourth quadep012.
b. Pending commitments (signed non-binding ternet)ef approximately $126.5 million. The tabledwelsummarizes our

yearto-date closed and pending commitments as follc
The table below summarizes our year-to-date claseldpending commitments as follows:

Closed and Pending Commitments (in millions

Q1-13 Closed Commitments (as of February 25, 2018) $115.€
Pending Commitments (as of February 25, 2013 $126.£
Year-to-date 2013 Closed and Pending Commitm $242.1

Notes:

a. Not all Closed Commitments result in future casfureements. Commitments generally fund over the guecceeding quarters from clo

b. Not all pending commitments (signed -binding term sheets) are expected to close andtoatessarily represent any future cash requirtsr

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Mark&isk

We are subject to financial market risks, includalgnges in interest rates. Interest rate risleismdd as the sensitivity of our current anc
future earnings to interest rate volatility, vailp of spread relationships, the difference irprécing intervals between our assets and liabd
and the effect that interest rates may have orcasin flows. Changes in the general level of intaaes can affect our net investment income,
which is the difference between the interest inceammed on interest earning assets and our inexpshse incurred in connection with our
interest bearing debt and liabilities. Changestarest rates can also affect, among other thmgsability to acquire and originate loans and
securities and the value of our investment poxfoli

As of December 31, 2012, approximately 98.5% ofpmrtfolio loans were at variable rates or variablies with a floor and 1.5% of our
loans were at fixed rates. Over time additionakstments may be at variable rates. We do not diyremgage in any hedging activities.
However, we may, in the future, hedge against @sterate fluctuations by using standard hedgingungents such as futures, options, and
forward contracts. While hedging activities mayuillage us against changes in interest rates, thgyafsa limit our ability to participate in the
benefits of lower interest rates with respect tolmrrowed funds and higher interest rates witpeesto our portfolio of investments. Interest
rates on our borrowings are based primarily on LRBBorrowings under our SBA program are fixed attin year treasury rate every March
and September for borrowings of the preceding nio&ths. Borrowings under the program are chargietdst based on ten year treasury r
plus a spread and the rates are generally setfoolof debentures issued by the SBA in mmaeath periods. The rates of borrowings undel
various draws from the SBA beginning in April 2087d set semiannually in March and September ranoge 2.25% to 5.73%. In addition, t
SBA charges a fee that is set
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annually, depending on the Federal fiscal yeatdherage commitment was delegated by the SBA, digss of the date that the leverage was
drawn by the SBIC. The annual fees related to Hlebentures that pooled on September 22, 20100v406% and 0.285%, depending upon
the year in which the underlying commitment wasebth The annual fees related to HT 11l debenturasgooled on September 19, 2012 were
0.804%. The annual fees on other debentures haredst at 0.906%. The average amount of deberdutssanding for the year ended
December 31, 2012 for HT Il was approximately $9%illion with an average interest rate of approxiena5.68%. The average amount of
debentures outstanding for the year ended Dece®ih@012 for HT Ill was approximately $112.0 millivith an average interest rate of
approximately 3.25%. Interest is payable semiaripaald there are no principal payments requirethese issues prior to maturity.
Debentures under the SBA generally mature ten yaf@sbeing borrowed. Based on the initial drawvdalate of April 2007, the initial
maturity of SBA debentures will occur in April 2017

Borrowings under the Wells Facility will generabyar interest at a rate per annum equal to LIBQR BI50%, with a floor of 4.25% a
an advance rate of 50% against eligible loans.\WWk#s Facility is secured by loans in the borrowbagse. The Wells Facility requires paymen
of a non-use fee on a scale of 0.0% to 0.50% oé&teeage monthly outstanding balance. For the threeth period ended December 31, 2012
this non-use fee was approximately $96,000. On 2002011 we paid an additional $1.1 million irusturing fees in connection with the
Wells Facility which is being amortized through 82014. At December 31, 2012, there was no debtanding under the Wells Facility.

Borrowings under the Union Bank Facility will geally bear interest at a rate per annum equal t@JRBplus 2.25% with a floor of
4.0%. The Union Bank Facility required the paymafrin unused fee of 0.50% annually. For the tlmeath period ended December 31, 2(
this non-use fee was approximately $65,000. ThetBiank Facility is collateralized by debt investtgein our portfolio companies, and
includes an advance rate equal to 50% of eligiid@$ placed in the collateral pool. The Union BBakility generally requires payment of
interest on a monthly basis. All outstanding priatiis due upon maturity. There were no outstantimgowings under this facility at
December 31, 2012. On November 2, 2011, we renemddmended the Union Bank Facility. The other seofrthe Union Bank Facility
generally remain unchanged, including the stateatést rate. The Union Bank Facility will mature davember 1, 2014, revolving through
first 24 months with a term out provision for themaining 12 months.

Borrowings under the Convertible Senior Notes meatur April 15, 2016 (the “Maturity Date”), unlessepiously converted or
repurchased in accordance with their terms. Thes€xible Senior Notes bear interest at a rate @% per year payable semiannually in
arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each yeanmencing on October 15, 2011. The Convertible Savaies are our senior unsecured
obligations and rank senior in right of paymenthe our existing and future indebtedness that pgessly subordinated in right of payment to
the Convertible Senior Notes; equal in right of payt to our existing and future unsecured indelgsslthat is not so subordinated; effectivel
junior in right of payment to any of our secureddbtedness (including unsecured indebtedness thidter secure) to the extent of the valu
the assets securing such indebtedness; and salligjunior to all existing and future indebtednéseluding trade payables) incurred by our
subsidiaries, financing vehicles or similar fagit

The April 2019 Notes will mature on April 30, 2048d may be redeemed in whole or in part at ouoaogt any time or from time to
time on or after April 30, 2015, upon not less tR@days nor more than 60 days written notice bif pner to the date fixed for redemption
thereof, at a redemption price of 100% of the @uding principal amount thereof plus accrued arnghichinterest payments otherwise payable
for the then-current quarterly interest period aedrto but not including the date fixed for redeioypt The April 2019 Notes bear interest at a
rate of 7.00% per year payable quarterly on Jan8@rypril 30, July 30 and October 30 of each yeammencing on July 30, 2012.

The September 2019 Notes will mature on Septembe2@®L9 and may be redeemed in whole or in pahitea€Company’s option at any
time or from time to time on or after September 3.5, upon not less than 30 days nor more thatag8 written notice by mail prior to the
date fixed for redemption thereof, at a
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redemption price of 100% of the outstanding printgmount thereof plus accrued and unpaid intg@gnents otherwise payable for the then
current quarterly interest period accrued to butimduding the date fixed for redemption. The ®epber 2019 Notes bear interest at a rate of
7.00% per year payable quarterly on March 30, d&eptember 30 and December 30 of each year, eoning on December 30, 2012.

The April 2019 Notes and September 2019 Notesbheilbur direct unsecured obligations and will rgiijk:;pari passuwith our other
outstanding and future senior unsecured indebtsdmesuding without limitation, the $75 million mggregate principal amount of the
Convertible Senior Notes; (ii) senior to any of duture indebtedness that expressly providessuisrdinated to the Notes; (iii) effectively
subordinated to all our existing and future secumeébtedness (including indebtedness that isallyitunsecured to which we subsequently
grant security), to the extent of the value ofdleets securing such indebtedness, including withoitiation, borrowings under our credit
facilities; (iv) structurally subordinated to aktisting and future indebtedness and other obligatiof any of our subsidiaries, including without
limitation, the indebtedness of Hercules Technolbdgl.P. and Hercules Technology I, L.P. and tmavings under our revolving senior
secured credit facility with Wells Fargo Capitah&nce.

In connection with our $230.7 million Debt Secwdtiion, the Securitization Issuer made an offeah§129.3 million in aggregate
principal amount of the Asset-Backed Notes. Inteveshe Asset-Backed Notes will be paid, to thieeiof funds available, at a fixed rate of
3.32% per annum. The Asset-Backed Notes have edstadturity of December 16, 2017.

As of the closing date of the Debt Securitizatialhof the floating rate Loans sold and/or conttésito the Securitization Issuer are
subject to interest rate floors. As of the clositage of the Debt Securitization, all of the flogtirate Loans are accruing interest at the appk
interest rate floors specified thereunder, whidk fepors are in excess of the fixed rate of indeeecruing on the Asset-Backed Notes, which
naturally hedges the Securitization Issaerssets and liabilities. However, there is noirequent for any Loan to have an interest rate flwal
there can be no assurance that any such intetedtaar will fully mitigate any decrease in “exaespread” (i.e. the difference between the
interest collected on the Loans and the sum ointeeest payable on the Asset-Backed Notes andindransaction fees and expenses payabl
by the Issuer) that otherwise would be availablséke payments on the Asset-Backed Notes, as suggfiort, or as otherwise provided in the
priority of payments under the documents govertimggDebt Securitization. In the unlikely event thdireach of the representations and
warranties under the documents governing the Detui@ization with respect to the Loans in the pa®bf the closing date of the Debt
Securitization were to occur, a substantial voluhsubstitutions of Loans in the pool could restiliere can be no assurance that the
applicable margins and any applicable interestftate#s on such substitute Loans would be in excéske interest on the Asset-Backed Notes
As a result of such substitutions, and subjech@dase of floating rate Loans to changes in thel lef LIBOR or any other applicable floating
rate index, a mismatch could therefore arise batee rates of interest accruing in connection withLoans in the pool and the fixed rate of
interest accruing on the Asset-Backed Notes. Caresgty, amounts payable by the Securitization Issoald exceed collections on the Loans
in the pool, which could delay, reduce or eliminidue ability of the Securitization Issuer to malkstributions in respect of the equity interest
that we indirectly hold.

Because we currently borrow, and plan to borrotheanfuture, money to make investments, our netstmaent income is dependent upon
the difference between the rate at which we bofftovds and the rate at which we invest the fundsdweed. Accordingly, there can be no
assurance that a significant change in marketdsteates will not have a material adverse effaaiur net investment income. In periods of
rising interest rates, our cost of funds would &asre, which could reduce our net investment indbthere is not a corresponding increase in
interest income generated by variable rate assetsriinvestment portfolio.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated stet# of assets and liabilities, including the cdidsded schedule of investments, and
the related consolidated statements of operatafrid)anges in net assets, and of cash flows préaielyt in all material respects, the financial
position of Hercules Technology Growth Capital,.land its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at Decengigr2012 and 2011, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for eachhefthree years in the period ended December 32, iB0donformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Ame#dso in our opinion, the Company maintained, inadterial respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December&112, based on criteria establishedhiternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). The Company’s managemeesonsible for these financial
statements, for maintaining effective internal cohtver financial reporting and for its assessntdrihe effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, included in Management’'s Rémor Internal Control over Financial Reporting. @esponsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements and on the Companyésnat control over financial reporting based oniotegrated audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with the standards of thei@@admpany Accounting Oversight Board (United Stat@hose standards require that we
plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonalderaace about whether the financial statementbegef material misstatement and whether
effective internal control over financial reportingis maintained in all material respects. Our gusfithe financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingutiheunts and disclosures in the financial statesp@stsessing the accounting principles use
and significant estimates made by management, \aldating the overall financial statement presémtatOur audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an undersiag of internal control over financial reportirggsessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design aedating effectiveness of internal control basedhenassessed risk. Our audits also included
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thadwdits provide a reasonable basis for ou
opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablesaesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclisdbose policies and procedures that (i) pertathéganaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituref®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readnaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Francisco, CA
February 28, 2013
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(in thousands, except per share data)

Assets
Investments

Nor-control/Nor-affiliate investments (cost of $896,031 and $642,08spectively

Affiliate investments (cost of $18,307 and $3,2&@8pectively’
Control investments (cost of $0 and $11,266, rebpey)
Total investments, at value (cost of $914,338 88540, respectively
Cash and cash equivalel
Interest receivabl
Other asset
Total asset

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Wells Fargo Loai

Long-term Liabilities (Convertible Senior Note
Asse-Backed Note:

2019 Notes

Long-term SBA Debenture

Total liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Note

Net assets consist 0
Common stock, par val
Capital in excess of par vali
Unrealized depreciation on investme
Accumulated realized losses on investmi
Distributions in excess of investment inco
Total net asset:
Total liabilities and net assets

Shares of common stock outstanding ($0.001 par vay100,000,000 authorizec
Net asset value per shar

102

December 31

2012 2011
$ 894,42(  $651,84:
11,87: —
= 1,02
906,301 652,87
182,99 64,47
9,63 5,82(
24,71 24,23(
$1,123,64  $747,30.
$ 1157F  § 10,81
= 10,18:
71,43¢ 70,35:
129,30( —
170,36 —
225,000 225,000
$ 607,67  $316,35:
53 44
564,50 484,24
(7,94 (3,431
(36,91 (43,04
(3,730 (6,779

$ 51596  $431,04:
$1,123,64  $747,39
52,92t 43 85!
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The following table presents the assets and ligsliof our consolidated variable interest entiiE”). The assets of the VIE can only
used to settle obligations of the consolidated \Aid the creditors (or beneficial interest holdeishot have recourse to our general credit.
These assets and liabilities are included in thesGlidated Statements of Assets and Liabilitiessabo

December 31

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011

ASSETS

Total investments, at value (cost of $226,844 ahd&spectively $226,99 $—

Total asset $226,99 $—

LIABILITIES

Asse-Backed Note: $129,30( $—
$129,30( $—

Total liabilities ,
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company
Anthera Pharmaceuticals 118

Aveo Pharmaceuticals, In@)

Cempra, Inc®

Chroma Therapeutics, LteP)(10)

Concert Pharmaceuticals, 1)

Coronado BioSciences, Iné)

Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Insmed, Inc.

Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

NeurogesX, Inc(®

Paratek Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Paratek Pharmaceuticals, |
Total Debt Drug Discovery & Development (34.63%)’
Bridgewave Communications

Principal
Sub-Industry Type of Investment(®) Seriet  Amount Cost®  value ®
Drug Discovery é  Senior Debt1]
Matures December 2014
Development Interest rate Prime + 7.30% or
Floor rate of 10.559 $ 20,53: $ 20,74¢ $ 21,007
Drug Discovery §  Senior Debf!1)
Matures September 2015
Development Interest rate Prime + 7.15% or
Floor rate of 11.909 $ 26,50( 26,50( 27,03(
Drug Discovery ¢  Senior Debfl1)
Matures December 2015
Development Interest rate Prime + 6.30% or
Floor rate of 9.559 $ 10,00( 9,86: 9,902
Drug Discovery ¢  Senior Debt
Matures November 2013
Development Interest rate Prime + 7.75% or
Floor rate of 12.009 $ 4,111 4,71¢ 4,75¢
Drug Discovery é  Senior Debt
Matures October 2015
Development Interest rate Prime + 3.25% or
Floor rate of 8.509 $ 20,00( 19,63¢ 18,98¢
Drug Discovery §  Senior Debf!1)
Matures March 2016
Development Interest rate Prime + 6.00% or
Floor rate of 9.259 $ 15,00( 14,76: 14,76:
Drug Discovery é  Senior Debt
Matures January 2015
Development Interest rate Prime + 4.40% or
Floor rate of 10.159 $ 9,16¢ 8,99¢ 8,92¢
Drug Discovery §  Senior Debf!1)
Matures January 2016
Development Interest rate Prime + 4.75% or
Floor rate of 9.259 $ 20,00( 19,30¢ 19,67«
Drug Discovery é  Senior Debt
Matures May 2016
Development Interest rate Prime + 5.30% or
Floor rate of 10.559 $ 40,00( 39,67( 39,67(
Drug Discovery ¢  Senior Debt
Matures February 2015
Development Interest rate Prime + 7.50% or
Floor rate of 10.759 $ 13,66: 13,64¢ 13,88¢
Drug Discovery ¢  Senior Debf9)
Matures upon liqudation
Developmen Interest rate Fixed 10.00 $ 45 45 45
Senior Debt®)
Matures upon liqudation
Interest rate Fixed 10.00 $ 36 31 31
76 76
177,91 178,67!
Communications  Senior Debt
& Networking Matures March 2016
Interest rate Prime + 8.75% or
Floor rate of 12.009 $ 7,50( 7,008 4,89¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

Portfolio Company
OpenPeak, Inc.

PeerApp, Inc(®)

UPH Holdings, Inc.

Total UPH Holdings, Inc
Total Debt Communications & Networking (6.04%)*
Clustrix, Inc.

Identive Group, Inc.

Total Debt Electronics & Computer Hardware (1.49%)
Box, Inc.(4)

Total Box, Inc.
Clickfox, Inc.

EndPlay,Inc.

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Sub-Industry Type of Investment(®) Series

Principal

Amount

Cost(?

value @)

Communication ~ Senior Debt
Matures July 2015
& Networking Interest rate Prime + 8.75% or
Floor rate of 12.009
Communication  Senior Debt
Matures April 2013
& Networking Interest rate Prime + 7.50% or
Floor rate of 11.509
Communication  Senior Debt
Matures April 2015
& Networking Interest rate Libor + 11.00% or
Floor rate of 13.509
Senior Debt
Matures September 2015
Interest rate Libor + 11.00% or
Floor rate of 13.509
Senior Debt
Matures December 2016
Interest rate Libor + 11.00% or
Floor rate of 13.509

Electronics & Senior Debt

Computer Matures December 2015

Hardware Interest rate Prime + 6.50% or
Floor rate of 9.759%

Electronics & Senior Debt

Computer Matures November 2015

Hardware Interest rate Prime + 7.75% or
Floor rate 11.00%

Software Senior Debt

Matures March 2016
Interest rate Prime + 3.75% or
Floor rate of 7.50%

Senior Debt
Matures July 2014
Interest rate Prime + 5.25% or
Floor rate of 8.50%

Senior Debfll)
Matures July 2016
Interest rate Prime + 5.13% or
Floor rate of 8.88%

Software Senior Debt
Matures November 2015
Interest rate Prime + 8.25% or
Floor rate of 11.509

Software Senior Debt
Matures August 2015
Interest rate Prime + 7.35% or
Floor rate 10.6%

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$ 15,00(

$ 501

$ 7,00(

$ 3,59«

$ 7,50(

$ 10,00(

$ 1,01¢

$ 20,00(

$ 8,00(

$ 2,00¢

$15,00¢

58¢€

6,88(

348

N
i
5

9,91(

1,07¢

20,13¢
31,12¢

7,31¢

1,93(

$ 15,15¢

58¢

6,772

33t

3,40(
10,50t
31,14

7,44
7,674

9,35¢

1,06(

19,27:
29,68"

7,55¢

1,93(
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Portfolio Company
Hillcrest Laboratories, Inc

JackBe Corporation

Kxen, Inc.(4)

Tada Innovations, Inc.

Total Debt Software (9.33%)*
Althea Technologies, Inc.

Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Company

Total Debt Specialty Pharmaceuticals (2.00%)

Achronix Semiconductor Corporation

Total Debt Semiconductors (0.34%)’
AcelRX Pharmaceuticals, In6)

ADMA Biologics, Inc.

Alexza Pharmaceuticals, In®)

BIND Biosciences, Inc.

Intelliject, Inc.

Nupathe, Inc(®)

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

Suk-Industry

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Type of Investment(1) Series

Principal

Amount

Cost(?

value @)

Software

Software

Software

Software

Specialty
Pharmaceutica

Specialty
Pharmaceutica

Semiconductor

Drug Delivery

Drug Delivery

Drug Delivery

Drug Delivery

Drug Delivery

Drug Delivery

Senior Debt
Matures July 2015
Interest rate Prime + 7.50% or
Floor rate of 10.759

Senior Debt
Matures January 2016
Interest rate Prime + 7.25% or
Floor rate of 10.509

Senior Debt
Matures January 2015
Interest rate Prime + 5.08% or
Floor rate of 8.33%

Senior Debt®)
Matures November 2012
Interest rate Fixed 8.00

Senior Debt
Matures October 2013
Interest rate Prime + 7.70% or
Floor rate of 10.959

Senior Debf®)
Matures March 2014
Interest rate Fixed 8.00'

Senior Debt
Matures January 2015
Interest rate Prime + 10.60% or
Floor rate of 13.859

Senior Debfll)
Matures December 2014
Interest rate Prime + 3.25% or
Floor rate of 8.50%

Senior Debt
Matures Febuary 2016
Interest rate Prime + 2.75% or
Floor rate of 8.50%

Senior Debfll)
Matures October 2013
Interest rate Prime + 6.50% or
Floor rate of 10.759

Senior Debt
Matures July 2014
Interest rate Prime + 7.45% or
Floor rate of 10.709

Senior Debf!l)
Matures June 2016
Interest rate Prime + 5.75% or
Floor rate of 11.009

Senior Debt
Matures May 2016
Interest rate Prime—3.25% or
Floor rate of 9.85%

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$ 4,00(

$ 3,00C

$ 2,33]

$ 10C

$ 7,65¢

$ 1,88t

$ 1,847

$ 16,34¢

$ 4,00C

$ 5,052

$ 3,32¢

$ 15,00(

$ 8,50(

$ 3,92¢

2,90(

2,371

10C
49,66¢

7,927

1,88¢
9,81¢

16,22:

3,851

5,41(

3,32(

14,61¢

8,16¢

$ 3,86(
2,90(
2,192

_48.12;
7,927
2,394

10,32]

1,782
1,78¢

15,98¢

3,851

5,41(

3,381

15,06¢

8,16¢
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Portfolio Company
Revance Therapeutics, Inc.

Total Debt Drug Delivery (13.59%)*
Ahhha, Inc(®)

Blurb, Inc.

Education Dynamics, LLC

Just.Me, Inc.

Loku, Inc.

NetPlenish, Inc

Reply! Inc.

Total Reply! Inc.
Second Rotation, Inc.

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012

(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Suk-Industry Type of Investment(®) Series  Amount Cost®  value ®
Drug Senior Debt
Delivery Matures March 2015
Interest rate Prime + 6.60% or
Floor rate of 9.85% $ 18,44¢ $18,33( $ 18,26:
69,92( 70,13:
Internet
Consumer & Senior Debt
Business Matures January 2015
Services Interest rate Fixed 12.00 $ 35C 347 —
Internet Senior Debt
Consumer & Matures December 2015
Business Interest rate Prime + 5.25% or
Services Floor rate 8.50% $ 8,00( 7,70¢ 7,42¢
Internet Senior Debt
Consumer & Matures March 2016
Business Interest rate Fixed 12.50%,
Services PIK Interest 1.50% $ 27,50( 26,97¢ 26,97¢
Internet Senior Debt
Consumer & Matures June 2015
Business Interest rate Prime + 2.50% or
Services Floor rate 5.75% $ 75C 732 68C
Senior Debt
Matures June 2015
Interest rate Prime + 5.00% or
Floor rate 8.25% $ 75C 721 704
1,45¢ 1,38¢
Internet
Consumer &  Senior Debf®)
Business Matures June 2013
Services Interest rate Fixed 6.00' $ 10C 10C 10C
Internet
Consumer & Senior Debt
Business Matures April 2015
Services Interest rate Fixed 10.00 $ 50C 49C 452
Internet Senior Debf!l)
Consumer & Matures September 2015
Business Interest rate Prime + 6.875% or
Services Floor rate of 10.125¢ $ 11,74¢ 11,62 11,337
Senior Debf!l)
Matures September 2015
Interest rate Prime + 7.25% or
Floor rate of 11.009 $ 2,00( 1,94¢ 1,971
13,57( 13,30¢
Internet Senior Debt
Consumer & Matures August 2015
Business Interest rate Prime + 6.50% or
Services Floor rate of 10.25% ,
PIK Interest 2.50% $ 5,84: 5,86( 5,88(
Senior Debt
Matures August 2015
Interest rate Prime + 6.50% or
Floor rate of 10.25% ,
PIK Interest 1.50% $ 1,947 1,88¢ 1,90¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Portfolio Company Sub-Industry Type of Investment®) Series Amount Cost@ value ®
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures January 2013
Interest rate Fixed 10.50%,
PIK Interest 0.25% $ 327 $  31: $  31¢
Total Second Rotation, In 8,061 8,102
ShareThis, Inc. Internet Senior Debt
Consumer & Matures June 2016
Business Interest rate Prime + 7.50% or
Services Floor rate of 10.759 $ 15,00( 14,26¢ 14,26¢
Tectura Corporation Internet Revolving Line of Credit
Consumer & Matures July 2013
Business Interest rate LIBOR + 8.00% or
Services Floor rate of 11.00¢ $ 16,34( 17,85( 17,797
Senior Debt
Matures December 2014
Interest rate LIBOR + 10.00% or
Floor rate of 13.009 $ 6,97¢ 6,90¢ 6,827
Senior Debt
Matures April 2013
Interest rate LIBOR + 10.00% or
Floor rate of 13.00¢ $  1,39( 1,32¢ 1,32¢
Total Tectura Corporatio 26,08: 25,94¢
Trulia, Inc.® Internet Senior Debf!l)
Consumer & Matures September 2015
Business Interest rate Prime + 2.75%
Services or Floor rate of 6.009 $ 5,00( 4,921 4,72¢
Senior Debf!1)
Matures September 2015
Interest rate Prime + 5.50% or
Floor rate of 8.759 $ 5,00( 4,92( 4,54
Total Trulia, Inc. 9,841 9,27¢
Vaultlogix, Inc. Internet Senior Debt
Consumer & Matures September 2016
Business Interest rate LIBOR + 8.50% or
Services Floor rate of 10.00%,
PIK interest 2.50% $ 7,50( 7,681 7,721
Senior Debt
Matures September 2015
Interest rate LIBOR + 7.00% or
Floor rate of 8.50% $ 10,25: 10,19( 9,85¢
Total Vaultlogix, Inc. 17,87: 17,57¢
Votizen, Inc. Internet
Consumer & Senior Debf®)
Business Matures February 2013
Services Interest rate Fixed 5.00 $ 10C 10C 6
Wavemarket, Inc Internet Senior Debf!l)
Consumer & Matures September 2015
Business Interest rate Prime + 5.75%
Services or Floor rate of 9.509 $ 10,00( 9,84( 9,44¢
Total Debt Internet Consumer & Business Services 02%)* 136,71« 134,26
Cha Cha Search, Inc. Information Senior Debt
Services Matures February 2015
Interest rate Prime + 6.25% or
Floor rate of 9.509 $ 2,641 2,60¢ 2,522

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Principal

Portfolio Company Sub-Industry Type of Investment(®) Series Amount Cost @ value ®
Eccentex Corporation Information Senior Debt!?)
Services Matures May 2015
Interest rate Prime + 7.00% or
Floor rate of 10.259 $ 1,00¢ $ 977 $ 96t
InXpo, Inc. Information Senior Debt
Services Matures March 2014
Interest rate Prime + 7.50% or
Floor rate of 10.759 $ 2,55 2,46¢ 2,43¢
Jab Wireless, Inc. Information Senior Debt
Services Matures November 2017
Interest rate Prime + 6.75% or
Floor rate of 8.00% $ 30,00( 29,85: 29,85(
RichRelevance, Inc. Information Senior Debt
Services Matures January 2015
Interest rate Prime + 3.25% or
Floor rate of 7.50% $ 4,24¢ 4,21( 4,06¢
Womensforum.com, Inc Information Senior Debf!l)
Services Matures October 2016
Interest rate LIBOR + 6.50% or
Floor rate of 9.259 $ 8,00 7,83¢ 7,83¢
Senior Debfll)
Matures October 2016
Interest rate LIBOR + 7.50% or
Floor rate of 10.259 $  4,50( 4,42 4,422
Total Womensforum.com, In 12,26( 12,26(
Total Debt Information Services (10.10%)* 52,36¢ 52,09¢
Gynesonics, Inc. Medical Senior Debt
Device & Matures October 2013
Equipment Interest rate Prime + 8.25% or
Floor rate of 11.509 $ 3,91- 3,97t 4,01¢
Senior Debt
Matures February 2013
Interest rate Fixed 8.00 $ 258 247 247
Senior Debt
Matures September 2013
Interest rate Fixed 8.00' $ 36 3C 3C
Total Gynesonics, In 4,252 4,291
Lanx, Inc. Medical Senior Debt
Device & Matures October 2016
Equipment Interest rate Prime + 6.50% or
Floor rate of 10.259 $ 15,00( 14,42¢ 14,42¢
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures October 2015
Interest rate Prime + 5.25% or
Floor rate of 9.009 $ 5,50( 5,30( 5,30(
Total Lanx, Inc. 19,72¢ 19,72¢
Novasys Medical, Inc Medical Senior Debt®)
Device & Matures January 2013
Equipment Interest rate Fixed 8.00 $ 65 65 6E

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

Portfolio Company

Total Novasys Medical, In(
Optiscan Biomedical, Corf)

Total Optiscan Biomedical, Cor
Oraya Therapeutics, Inc.

Total Oraya Therapeutics, Ir
USHIFU, LLC

Total Debt Medical Device & Equipment (9.69%)*

Navidea Biopharmaceuticals, Ir
(pka Neoprobef®)

Tethys Bioscience Inc.

Total Debt Diagnostic (3.06%)*
Labcyte, Inc.

Total Labcyte, Inc

Total Debt Biotechnology Tools (1.13%)*

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Sub-Industry Type of Investment®) Series  Amount Cost®  value ®
Senior Debt”)
Matures August 2013
Interest rate Fixed 8.00' $ 22 $ 2C $ 2C
85 8t
Medical Senior Debt
Device & Matures December 2013
Equipment Interest rate Prime + 8.20% or
Floor rate of 11.459 $ 8,26( 8,91¢ 9,08(
Senior Debf®)
Matures April 2013
Interest rate Fixed 8.00' $ 28¢€ 28¢ 28¢
Senior Debt®)
Matures September 2013
Interest rate Fixed 8.00' $ 123 128 1238
9,32¢ 9,491
Medical Senior Debt®)
Device & Matures December 2013
Equipment Interest rate Fixed 7.00' $ 50C 50C 50C
Senior Debf!l)
Matures September 2015
Interest rate Prime + 5.50% or
Floor rate of 10.259 $ 10,00( 9,79¢ 10,07¢
10,29¢ 10,57¢
Medical Senior Debf!1)
Device & Matures April 2016
Equipment Interest rate Prime + 7.75% or
Floor rate of 11.009 $ 6,00( 5,85¢ 5,85¢
49,54¢ 50,03(
Diagnostic Senior Debt
Matures December 2014
Interest rate Prime + 6.75% or
Floor rate of 10.009 $ 5,741 5,691 5,752
Diagnostic Senior Debf!1)
Matures December 2015
Interest rate Prime + 8.40% or
Floor rate of 11.659 $ 10,00( 9,94( 10,02¢
15,63: 15,77¢
Biotechnolog:  Senior Debt
Matures May 2013
Tools Interest rate Prime + 8.60% or
Floor rate of 11.859 $ 761 834 834
Senior Debf!1)
Matures June 2016
Interest rate Prime + 6.70% or
Floor rate of 9.95% $ 5,00C 4,89( 4,99¢
5,72¢ 5,82¢
_572¢ 582

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

Portfolio Company Suk-Industry

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Type of Investment(1) Series

Principal

Amount

Cost(®

value @)

MedCall, LLC Healthcare
Services,

Other

Total MedCall, LLC
Pacific Child & Family Associates, LLC Healthcare
Services,

Other

Total Pacific Child & Family Associates, LLC

ScriptSave (Medical Security Card Company, LLC) Healthcare
Services,
Other

Total Debt Health Services, Other (7.07%)’
Entrigue Surgical, Inc. Surgical

Devices

Transmedics, Inc. Surgical

Devices

Total Debt Surgical Devices (1.92%)

Westwood One Communicatio Media/

Content/Info

Media/
Content/Info

Womer's Marketing, Inc.

Total Womer's Marketing, Inc

Senior Debt
Matures January 2016
Interest rate 7.79% or
Floor rate of 9.50%

Senior Debt
Matures January 2016
Interest rate LIBOR +8.00% or
Floor rate of 10.009

Senior Debt
Matures January 2015
Interest rate LIBOR + 9.00% or
Floor rate of 11.509
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures January 2015
Interest rate LIBOR + 7.50% or
Floor rate of 10.009
Senior Debt
Matures January 2015
Interest rate LIBOR + 11.00% or
Floor rate of 14.00%,
PIK interest 3.75%

Senior Debt
Matures Febuary 2016
Interest rate LIBOR + 8.75% or
Floor rate of 11.259

Senior Debt
Matures December 2014
Interest rate Prime + 5.90% or
Floor rate of 9.65%

Senior Debf!l)
Matures November 2015
Interest rate Fixed 12.95

Senior Debt
Matures October 2016
Interest rate LIBOR + 6.50% or
Floor rate of 8.00%

Senior Debt
Matures May 2016
Interest rate Libor + 9.50% or
Floor rate of 12.00%,
PIK interest 3.00%

Senior Debf!l)
Matures November 2015
Interest rate Libor + 7.50% or
Floor rate of 10.009

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$ 4,90¢

$ 4,037

$ 3,661

$ 1,50C

$ 5,90¢

$ 16,37t

$ 2,460

$ 7,25(

$ 20,47t

$ 9,681

$ 16,36:

$ 4,84

3,97:

8,81¢

3,71t

1,49(

6,56
11,76¢

16,16¢

36,74¢

2,43!

7,464

9,89t

18,99:

10,00z

16,10¢
26,10°

$ 4,69t

3,871

8,56¢

3,718

1,49C

6,56
11,76¢

16,15(

36,48

2,427

7,464

9,891

17,57¢

10,00z

15,78
25,78¢
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Portfolio Company
Zoom Media Corporation

Total Zoom Media Corporatic

Total Debt Media/Content/Info (9.83%)*
Alphabet Energy, Inc.

American Supercondutor Corporatith

BrightSource Energy, Inc.

Comverge, Inc.

Total Comverge, Inc
Enphase Energy, In&)

Total Enphase Energy, In
Glori Energy, Inc.

Integrated Photovoltaics, Inc.

Polyera Corporation

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Sub-Industry Type of Investment(%) Series

Principal

Amount

Cost(?

value @)

Media/ Senior Debt

Content/Info Matures December 2015
Interest rate Prime + 7.25% or
Floor rate of 10.50%,
PIK 3.75%

Media/ Revolving Line of Credit

Content/Info Matures December 2014
Interest rate Prime + 5.25% or
Floor rate of 8.50%

Clean Tech Senior Debt
Matures February 2015
Interest rate Prime + 5.75% or
Floor rate of 9.00%

Clean Tech Senior Debf!l)
Matures December 2014
Interest rate Prime + 7.25% or
Floor rate of 11.009

Clean Tech Revolving Line of Credit
Matures January 2013
Interest rate Prime + 7.25% or
Floor rate of 10.509

Clean Tech Senior Debt
Matures November 2017
Interest rate LIBOR + 8.00% or
Floor rate of 9.50%

Clean Tech Senior Debt
Matures November 2017
Interest rate LIBOR + 9.50% or
Floor rate of 11.009

Clean Tech  Senior Debf!l)
Matures June 2014
Interest rate Prime + 5.75% or
Floor rate of 9.00%

Clean Tech Senior Debt
Matures August 2016
Interest rate Prime + 8.25% or
Floor rate of 11.509

Clean Tech Senior Debf!l)
Matures June 2015
Interest rate Prime + 6.75% or
Floor rate of 10.009

Clean Tech Senior Debt
Matures February 2015
Interest rate Prime + 7.38% or
Floor rate of 10.639

Clean Tech Senior Debt
Matures June 2016
Interest rate Prime + 6.75% or
Floor rate of 10.009

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$ 5,00(

$ 3,00¢

$ 1,61«

$ 9,231

$ 35,00(

$ 20,00(

$ 14,00(

$ 3,75¢

$ 7,40C

$ 8,00C

$ 2,57:

$ 3,00C

$ 4,651

2,70(

7,351

52,45¢

1,531

9,161

34,87(

19,577

13,70+
33,28

3,73¢

7,321
11,06(

7,832

2,49¢

2,952

$ 4,651

2,70(

7,351

50,72:

1,531

9,43¢

34,87(

19,577

13,70
33,28

3,71¢

7,321
11,030

7,98¢

2,50¢

2,952
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Portfolio Company
Redwood Systems, Inc.

SClenergy, Inc4)

Solexel, Inc.

Total Solexel, Inc

Stion Corporatior®)

Total Debt Clean Tech (24.14%)*

Total Debt (160.38%)

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Sub-Industry Type of Investment(®) Amount Cost(® value )
Clean Tech Senior Debt
Matures February 2016
Interest rate Prime + 6.50% or
Floor rate of 9.759 $ 5,00( $ 4,96¢ $ 4,96t
Clean Tech Senior Debt
Matures September 2015
Interest rate Prime + 8.75% or
Floor rate 12.00% $ 5,29¢ 5,102 5,26:
Clean Tech Senior Debt
Matures June 2013
Interest rate Prime + 8.25% or
Floor rate of 11.509 $ 2,88¢ 2,87 2,871
Senior Debt
Matures June 2013
Interest rate Prime + 7.25% or
Floor rate of 10.509 $ 331 33C 33C
3,201 3,201
Clean Tech Senior Debt
Matures February 2015
Interest rate Prime + 6.75% or
Floor rate of 10.009 $ 7,51¢ 7,48: 7,54¢
123,93t 124,58:¢
833,22¢ 827,54(

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Portfolio Company
Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Warrants Acceleron Pharmaceuticals,
Anthera Pharmaceuticals 118)

Cempra, Inc(3)

Chroma Therapeutics, LteP)(20)
Concert Pharmaceuticals, 1)
Coronado Biosciences, Iné)

Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Warrants Dicerna Pharmaceuticals,
EpiCept Corporatiof?)

Horizon Pharma, Iné3)

Insmed, Incorporate®
Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, 1i8)
NeurogesX, Inc(3®

PolyMedix, Inc.(3)

Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Total Warrants Drug Discovery & Development (0.84%}¥

Bridgewave Communications
Intelepeer, Inc.

Neonova Holding Compar
OpenPeak, Inc.

PeerApp, Inc(®)

Peerless Network, Inc.

Ping Identity Corporation

UPH Holdings, Inc.

Suk-Industry Type of Investment(?) Series Shares @) Value )
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stock Warran 46,44¢ $ 39 $ 58
Preferred Stock Warran Series A 426,00( 69 34t
Preferred Stock Warran Series E 110,27( 35 64
582,71t 143 462
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stock Warran 321,42¢ 984 66
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stock Warran 39,03¢ 187 46
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Preferred Stock Warran Series C 325,26: 49C 50C
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Preferred Stock Warran Series C 400,00( 367 12€
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stock Warran 73,00¢ 14z 81
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stock Warran 50,00( 28 16
Preferred Stock Warran Series A 525,00( 23¢€ 17z
Preferred Stock Warran Series E 660,00( 311 217
1,235,00! 57¢E 40€
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stock Warran 325,20: 4 —
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stock Warran 22,40¢ 231 —
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stock Warran 329,93: 57C 1,31¢
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stock Warran 302,14 1155 641
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stock Warran 3,421,500 503 40C
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stock Warran 627,58t 48C 9
Drug Discovery &
Developmen Preferred Stock Warran Series E 687,02: 152 29¢
4,98: 4,351
Communications
&
Networking Preferred Stock Warran Series £ 2,942,61 753 —
Communications
&
Networking Preferred Stock Warran Series C 117,95¢ 101 19C
Communications
&
Networking Preferred Stock Warran Series A 450,00( 94 23
Communications
&
Networking Preferred Stock Warran Series E 25,64¢ 14¢ 9
Communications
&
Networking Preferred Stock Warran Series E 298,77¢ 61 47
Communications
&
Networking Preferred Stock Warran Series A 135,00( 95 352
Communications
&
Networking Preferred Stock Warran Series E 1,136,27 52 112

Communications
&



Networking Common Stock Warran
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Portfolio Company
Purcell Systems, Inc.

Stoke, Inc.

Total Stoke, Inc

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Total Warrants Communications & Networking (0.20%)*

Atrenta, Inc.
Box, Inc.(4

Total Box, Inc.

Braxton Technologies, LLC
Central Desktop, Inc
Clickfox, Inc.

Total Clickfox, Inc.

Daegis Inc. (pka Unify Corporatio(®)
Endplay, Inc

Forescout Technologies, Ir
HighRoads, Inc

Hillcrest Laboratories, Inc

JackBe Corg)oratio

Kxen, Inc.4

Rockyou, Inc

SugarSync Inc.

Total SugarSync Inc
Tada Innovations, Inc
White Sky, Inc.
WildTangent, Inc

Total Warrants Software (1.51%)*
Clustrix, Inc.

Luminus Devices, Inc.

Shocking Technologies, Inc.

Sub-Industry Type of Investment(®) Series Shares @) Value )
Communications &§
Networking Preferred Stock Warran Series E 110,00( $ 12¢ $ 62
Communications &
Networking Preferred Stock Warran Series C 158,53¢ 53 13E
Preferred Stock Warran Series C 72,720 65 57
231,26: 11€ 192
1,67 1,03¢
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series C 392,67( 121 322
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series C 271,07( 117 2,23t
Preferred Stock Warran Series E 199,21¢ 73 3,24:
Series D
Preferred Stock Warran 1 62,25 194 56€
532,54« 384 6,042
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series A 168,75( 18¢ —
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series E 522,82: 10¢€ 16€
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series E 1,038,56: 32¢ 332
Preferred Stock Warran Series C 592,01¢ 73C 21%
1,630,58: 1,05¢ 54¢&
Software Common Stock Warran 718,86( 1,43¢ 75
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series E 180,00( 67 39
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series C 399,68° 99 20z
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series E 190,17¢ 44 9
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series E 1,865,65! 55 70
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series C 180,00( 73 54
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series C 184,61« 47 13
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series E 41,26¢ 117 —
Software Series
Preferred Stock Warran cC 332,72¢ 78 12z
Series
Preferred Stock Warran DD 107,52¢ 34 30
440,25 112 152
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series A 20,83: 25 —
Software Series B-
Preferred Stock Warran 2 124,29! 54 3
Software Preferred Stock Warran Series 3/ 100,00( 23€ 82
4,22¢ 7,77¢
Electronics &
Computer
Hardware Preferred Stock Warran Series E 49,73: 12 13
Electronics &
Computer
Hardware Common Stock Warran 26,38¢ 60C —
Electronics &
Computer Series A
Hardware Preferred Stock Warran 1 181,81¢ 63 10€
67¢ 11¢

Total Warrant Electronics & Computer Hardware (0.02%)*

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Portfolio Company
Althea Technologies, Inc.

Pacira Pharmaceuticals, 12

Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Company

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Total Warrants Specialty Pharmaceuticals (0.42%)*

IPA Holdings, LLC

Market Force Information, Inc.
Seven Networks, Inc.
ShareThis, Inc.

Wageworks, Inc(®

Wavemarket, Inc

Total Warrant Consumer & Business Products (0.64%)*

Achronix Semiconductor Corporatic
Enpirion, Inc.
iWatt, Inc.

Total iWatt, Inc.
Kovio Inc.
Quartics, Inc

Total Warrants Semiconductors (0.08%)*
AcelRX Pharmaceuticals, In®)

ADMA Biologics, Inc.

Alexza Pharmaceuticals, Ir(3)

BIND Biosciences, Inc.

Intelliject, Inc,

NuPathe, Inc(®

Revance Therapeutics, Ir
Transcept Pharmaceuticals, 1)

Total Warrant Drug Delivery (0.46%)*
Blurb, Inc.

Total Blurb, Inc.
Invoke Solutions, Inc.

Sub-Industry Type of Investment(!) Series Shares Cost(@ Value )
Specialty
Pharmaceutical Preferred Stock Warran Series C 502,27: $ 30¢ $ 88¢
Specialty
Pharmaceutical Common Stock Warran 178,98 1,08¢ 1,267
Specialty
Pharmaceutical Preferred Stock Warran Series E 340,53¢ D2E —
1,928 2,152
Consumer &
Business Produc Common Stock Warran 650,00( 27¢ 48E
Consumer &
Business Produc Preferred Stock Warran Series A 99,28t 24 84
Consumer &
Business Produc Preferred Stock Warran Series C 1,821,42! 174 13C
Consumer &
Business Produc Preferred Stock Warran Series E 535,90! 547 542
Consumer &
Business Produc Common Stock Warran 211,76! 252 2,02:
Consumer &
Business Produc Preferred Stock Warran Series E 1,083,33: 10€ 61
1,37¢ 3,32¢
Semiconductor Preferred Stock Warran Series C 360,00( 16C 84
Semiconductor Preferred Stock Warran Series C 239,87: 157 —
Semiconductor Preferred Stock Warran Series C 558,74¢ 45 14
Preferred Stock Warran Series C 1,954,76. 58< 28¢
2,513,511 62¢ 303
Semiconductor Preferred Stock Warran Series E 319,35: 92 —
Semiconductor Preferred Stock Warran Series C 69,13¢ 53 —
1,09(C 387
Drug Delivery Common Stock Warran 274,50¢ 35€ 40€
Drug Delivery Common Stock Warran 25,00( 12¢ 12¢
Drug Delivery Common Stock Warran 37,63¢ 64~ 8
Drug Delivery Series C
Preferred Stock Warran 1 150,00( 291 44€
Drug Delivery Preferred Stock Warran Series E 82,50( 594 574
Drug Delivery Common Stock Warran 106,63: 13¢ 165
Drug Delivery Preferred Stock Warran Series C 269,66. 557 61€
Drug Delivery Common Stock Warran 61,45: 87 44
2,79¢ 2,38¢
Internet Consumer &
Business Service Preferred Stock Warran Series E 439,33t 32¢ 347
Preferred Stock Warran Series C 234,28( 63€ 21€
673,61t 95¢ 56&
Internet Consumer &
Business Service Common Stock Warran 53,08 38 —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

116



Table of Contents

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Cost

Portfolio Company Sub-Industry Type of Investment(®) Series Shares @) Value 3
Just.Me Internet Consume
&
Business Service  Preferred Stock Warran Series A 102,29¢ $ 20 $ 20
Prism Education Group, Inc. Internet Consumt
&
Business Service Preferred Stock Warran Series E 200,00 43 —
Reply! Inc. Internet Consum
&
Business Service  Preferred Stock Warran Series E 137,22! 32C 802
Second Rotation Internet Consum
&
Business Service Preferred Stock Warran Series C 105,81¢ 10& 11z
Tectura Corporation Internet Consum
& Series B
Business Service  Preferred Stock Warran 1 253,37t 51 12
Trulia, Inc.® Internet Consum
&
Business Service Common Stock Warran 56,05 18¢ 36€
Total Warrants Internet Consumer & Business Service (0.37%)* 1,724 1,88(
Buzznet, Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series E 19,96: 9 —
Cha Cha Search, Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series F 48,23: 58 5
Eccentex Corporation Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series A 408,71¢ 31 3
Intelligent Beauty, Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series E 190,23: 23C 57¢
InXpo, Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series C 648,40!( 98 43
Information Series C
Services Preferred Stock Warran 1 267,04¢ 25 24
Total InXpo, Inc. Information
Services 915,44¢ 122 67
Jab Wireless, Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series A 266,56 26E 42C
RichRelevance, Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series C 112,74 98 28
Solutionary, Inc. Information Series A
Services Preferred Stock Warran 2 111,31: 96 5
Total Warrants Information Services (0.22%)* 91C 1,107
EKOS Corporation Medical Device &
Equipment Preferred Stock Warran SeriesC  4,448,13 327 —
Gelesis, Inc(®) Medical Device &
LLC
Equipment interest 263,68t 78 95
Lanx, Inc. Medical Device &
Equipment Preferred Stock Warran Series C 1,203,36! 441 44t
Novasys Medical, Inc Medical Device &
Equipment Preferred Stock Warran Series C 580,44 131 —
Common Stock Warran 109,44 2 —
Total Novasys Medial, Inc 689,89( 132 —
Optiscan Biomedical, Corf) Medical Device &
Equipment Preferred Stock Warran Series C 6,206,18 1,06¢ 151
Total Optiscan Biomedical, Cor 6,206,18 1,06¢ 151
Oraya Therapeutics, Inc. Medical Device &
Equipment Preferred Stock Warran Series C 716,941 67€ 314
Common Stock Warran 95,49¢ 66 62
Total Oraya Therapeutics, Ir 812,44( 742 37¢€
USHIFU, LLC Medical Device &
Equipment Preferred Stock Warran Series C 141,38 18¢ 18¢
Total Warrants Medical Device & Equipment (0.24%)* 2,97¢ 1,25¢
Navidea Biopharmaceuticals, Ir Diagnostic
(pka Neoprobe(®) Common Stock Warran 333,33 244 36C
Tethys Bioscience, In Diagnostic Preferred Stock Warran Series E 617,68: 14¢ 16<



Total Warrants Diagnostic (0.10%)* 392 52¢
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Sub-Industry Type of Investment(?) Series Shares Cost®  value ®
Labcyte, Inc. Biotechnology Tool:  Preferred Stock Warran SeriesC  1,127,62 $ 32¢ $ 247
NuGEN Technologies, In Biotechnology Tool:  Preferred Stock Warran Series E 204,54¢ 45 161

Preferred Stock Warran Series C 30,11« 33 8
Total NuGEN Technologies, In 234,65¢ 78 16¢
Total Warrants Biotechnology Tools (0.08%)* 401 41€
Entrigue Surgical, Inc Surgical Device: Preferred Stock Warran Series E 62,500 87 2
Transmedics, Inc Surgical Device: Preferred Stock Warran Series E 40,43¢ 22E —

Preferred Stock Warran Series C 175,00( 10C 10C
Total Transmedics, In 32E 10C
Gynesonics, Inc Surgical Device: Preferred Stock Warran Series A 123,45° 18 7

Preferred Stock Warran Series C 1,474,26 387 29¢
Total Gynesonics, In 1,597,71 40E 30E
Total Warrants Surgical Devices (0.08%)* 817 407
Everyday Health, Inc.

(pka Waterfront Media, Inc Media/Content/ Infc Preferred Stock Warran Series C 110,01¢ 60 55
Glam Media, Inc Media/Content/ Infc Preferred Stock Warran Series C 407,45 482 —
Zoom Media Group, Inc Media/Content/ Infc Preferred Stock Warran n/a 1,20¢ 34¢€ 34¢€
Total Warrants Media/Content/Info (0.08%)* 89C 401
Alphabet Energy, Inc Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series A 79,08: 68 14¢
American Supercondutor Corporati(® Clean Tect Common Stock Warran 139,27! 244 122
BrightSource Energy, Ini Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series C 58,33¢ 67% 24¢
Calera, Inc Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series C 44 52¢ 513 —
EcoMotors, Inc Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series E 437,50( 30¢ 43t
Enphase Energy, In®) Clean Tect Common Stock Warran 37,50( 102 17
Fulcrum Bioenergy, Inc. Clean Tech Series C-

Preferred Stock Warran 1 187,26 211 104
Glori Energy, Inc Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series C 145,93 165 62
GreatPoint Energy, Inc. Clean Tech Series D-
Preferred Stock Warran 1 393,21: 54¢ 1
Integrated Photovoltaics, Inc. Clean Tech Series A
Preferred Stock Warran 1 390,00( 82 11¢
Polyera Corporatio Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series C 161,57! 69 68
Propel Biofuels, Inc Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series C 3,200,00¢ 211 317
Redwood Systems, In Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series C 331,25( 3 2
SClenergy, Inc(4) Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series C 1,061,16! 361 14¢&
Solexel, Inc Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series E 245,68: 1,161 7
Stion Corporatior(“) Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series E 110,22¢ 317 167
Trilliant, Inc. Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran Series A 320,00( 161 54
Total Warrants Clean Tech (0.39%)* 5,19¢ 2,01¢
Total Warrants (5.73%) 32,06( 29,55(
Aveo Pharmaceuticals, In®) Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stocl 167,86+ 842 1,351
Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Drug Discovery &
Developmen Preferred Stoc Series E 502,68: 502 48¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Sub-Industry Type of Investment®) Series Shares Cost@ value ®)
Inotek Pharmaceuticals Corp. Drug Discovery &
Developmen Preferred Stoc Series C 15,33¢ $ 1,50 $ =
Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, IHé) Drug Discovery &
Developmen Common Stocl 546,44¢ 2,00( 3,32¢
Paratek Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Drug Discovery &
Developmen Preferred Stoc Series F 244,15¢ 1,00 282
Common Stocl 47 ,47. 5 3
Total Paratek Pharmaceuticals, | 291,62¢ 1,00¢ 28€
Total Equity Drug Discovery & Development (1.06%)* 5,84¢ 5,45%
Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, Ir Drug Delivery Preferred Stoc Series E 600,60: 1,00( 91t
Preferred Stoc Series C 93,45¢ 24z 20&
Preferred Stoc Series E 43,48¢ 98 174
Preferred Stoc Series F 19,26¢ 61 77
Total Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, |i 756,81: 1,401 1,371
Merrion Pharma, P1(3)(5)(10) Drug Delivery Common Stocl 20,00( 9 —
Nupathe, Inc Drug Delivery Common Stocl 50,00( 14¢€ 14z
Transcept Pharmaceuticals, 1) Drug Delivery Common Stocl 41,57( 50C 18t
Total Equity Drug Delivery (0.33%)* 2,05¢€ 1,69¢
E-band Communications, Cor§) Communications &
Networking Preferred Stoc Series E 564,97: 2,00( —
Preferred Stoc Series C 649,99¢ 372 —
Preferred Stoc Series C 847,54 50¢ —
Preferred Stoc Series E 1,987,60! 374 —
Total E-band Communications, Cor 4,050,11! 3,25¢ —
Glowpoint, Inc.(3) Communications &
Networking Common Stocl 114,19. 101 227
Neonova Holding Compar Communications &
Networking Preferred Stoc Series A 500,00( 25C 20C
Peerless Network, Inc. Communications &
Networking Preferred Stoc Series A 1,000,00t! 1,00( 3,692
Stoke, Inc. Communications &
Networking Preferred Stoc Series E 152,90} 50C 631
UPH Holdings, Inc. Communications &
Networking Common Stocl 742,88 — 624
Total Equity Communications & Networking (1.04%)* 5,10¢ 5,374
Atrenta, Inc. Software Preferred Stoc Series C 1,196,84! 50¢ 1,04z
Preferred Stoc Series C 635,51: 98¢ 1,604
1,832,35! 1,49¢ 2,64¢
Box, Inc.(4) Software Preferred Stoc Series C 390,62! 50C 5,117
Preferred Stoc Series C 158,12 50C 2,071
Series D-
Preferred Stoc 1 124,51 1,00( 1,632
Series D
Preferred Stoc 2 220,75: 2,001 2,892
Preferred Stoc Series E 38,18 50C 50C
Total Box, Inc. 932,19 4,501 12,21
Caplinked, Inc. Software Series A-
Preferred Stoc 3 53,61« 52 77
Total Equity Software (2.89%)* 6,047 14,93t

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Sub-Industry Type of Investment(1) Series Shares Cost®@  value ®

Spatial Photonics, Inc.

Electronics &

Computer Hardwar  Preferred Stoc Series C 4,717,81 $ 26¢ $ —
Virident Systems Electronics &
Computer Hardwar  Preferred Stoc Series C 6,546,21 5,00( 4,922
Total Equity Electronics & Computer Hardware (0.95%)* 5,26¢ 4,92
Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Company Specialty
Pharmaceutical Preferred Stoc Series E 166,41 75C —
Total Equity Specialty Pharmaceuticals (0.00%)* 75C —
Caivis Acquisition Corporation Consumer &
Business Produc Common Stocl Series A 295,86 81¢ 597
Facebook, Inc®) Consumer &
Business Produc Common Stocl Series E 307,50 9,55¢ 8,08¢
IPA Holdings, LLC Consumer &
Business Produc Preferred Stoc LLC interes 500,00( 50C 711
Market Force Information, Inc. Consumer &
Business Produc Preferred Stoc Series E 187,97( 50C 657
Wageworks, Inc(3 Consumer &
Business Produc Common Stocl Series C 19,26( 25C 342
Total Equity Consumer & Business Products (2.02%) 11,627 10,39%
iWatt, Inc. Semiconductor Preferred Stoc Series| 2,412,86. 49C 752
Total Equity Semiconductors (0.15%)* 49C 752
Buzznet, Inc Information Service Preferred Stoc Series ( 263,15¢ 25C —
Good Technologies, Inc. Information Service Common Stock 500,00! 603 —
(pka Visto Corporation
Solutionary, Inc Information Service Preferred Stoc Series /-1 189,49! 18 23t
Preferred Stoc Series /-2 65,83« 32E 82
Total Solutionary, Inc 255,32¢ 342 317
Total Equity Information Services (0.06%)* 1,19¢ 317
Gelesis, Inc(®) Medical Device &
Equipment 674,20! — 43t
LLC interes 674,20¢ 42t 61C
LLC interes 675,67( 50C 52E
Total Gelesis, Inc 2,024,09 92t 1,57(
Lanx, Inc. Medical Device &
Equipment Preferred Stoc Series (  1,203,36' 1,00( 1,15%
Novasys Medical, Inc Medical Device &
Equipment Preferred Stoc Series [-1  4,118,44. 1,00( —
Optiscan Biomedical, Corff) Medical Device &
Equipment Preferred Stoc Seriest  6,185,56' 3,00( 314
Preferred Stoc Series (-2 1,927,30! 658 251
Total Optiscan Biomedical, Cor 8,112,87 3,65¢ 565
Total Equity Medical Device & Equipment (0.64%)* 6,58( 3,29(

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Sub-Industry Type of Investment®) Series Shares Cost@ value ®)
NuGEN Technologies, Int Biotechnology

Tools Preferred Stoc Series ( 189,39: $ 50C $ 60C

Total Equity Biotechnology Tools (0.12%)* 50C 60C
Transmedics, Inc Surgical Device: Preferred Stoc Series I 88,96: 1,10( —
Preferred Stoc Series ( 119,99¢ 30C —

Preferred Stoc Series [ 260,00( 65C 65C

Total Transmedics, Ini 468,96( 2,05( 65C

Gynesonics, Inc Surgical Device: Preferred Stoc Series I 219,29¢ 25C 15¢

Preferred Stoc Series ( 656,51: 282 251

Total Gynesonics, In¢ 875,81( 532 41C

Total Equity Surgical Devices (0.20%)* 2,582 1,06(

Everyday Health, Inc. (pka Waterfront Media, Ir Media/Content/ Infi  Preferred Stoc Series [ 145,59( 1,00C 412

Total Equity Media/Content/Info (0.08%)* 1,00( 412

Total Equity (9.54%) 49,05( 49,21(

49,05( 49,21(

Total Investments (175.65%, $914,33¢ $906,30(

* Value as a percent of net ass

(1) Preferred and common stock, warrants, and equigyeasts are generally n-income producing

(2) Gross unrealized appreciation, gross unrealisgateciation, and net depreciation for federabine tax purposes totaled $19.9 million, $27.6 orilland $7.8 million respectively. The
tax cost of investments is $916.9 milli

(3) Except for warrants in twenty publicly tradeshgpanies and common stock in eight publicly traciemipanies, all investments are restricted at Deeei®b, 2012 and were valued at
fair value as determined in good faith by the BaafrBirectors. No unrestricted securities of theneassuer are outstanding. The Company uses thed&thindustrial Code for
classifying the industry grouping of its portfoblompanies

(4) Debt investments of this portfolio company haverbgledged as collateral under the Wells Faci

(5) Non-U.S. company or the compe's principal place of business is outside the UnBtades

(6) Affiliate investment that is defined under tneestment Company Act of 1940 as companies in WHEGC owns as least 5% but not more than 25%eo¥/thing securities of the
company

(7) Control investment that is defined under theeBiment Company Act of 1940 as companies in WHIEBC owners as least 25% but not more than 50%eofbting securities of the
company

(8) Debtis on no-accrual status at December 31, 2012, and is threretmsidered n«-income producing

(9) Convertible Senior Del

(10) Indicates assets that the Company deems noatifging assets” under section 55(a) of the Inwesit Company Act of 1940, as amended. Qualifyirsg@smust represent at least 70%
of the Compan'’s total assets at the time of acquisition of amgitamhal nor-qualifying assets

(11) Denotes that all or a portion of the loan secunesibtes offered in the Debt Securitization (agnéeffin Note 4)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company
Anthera Pharmaceuticals Inc.

Total Anthera Pharmaceuticals It

Aveo Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Aveo Pharmaceuticals, Ir

Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, h

NextWave Pharmaceutice

Total NextWave Pharmaceutic:

Concert Pharmaceuticals

Total Concert Pharmaceutici

PolyMedix, Inc.

Total PolyMedix, Inc

Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, I

Chroma Therapeutics, LtéP)

Total Chroma Therapeutics, Li

NeurogesX, Inc

Total NeurogesX, Inc

Principal
Industry Type of Investment(!) Series  Amount Cost®  value ®
Drug Discover  Senior Debt
Matures September 2014
& Developmer Interest rate Prime + 7.3% or
Floor rate of 10.559 $ 25,000 $24,43! $ 25,18!
24,43! 25,18¢
Drug Discover  Senior Debt
Matures June 2014
& Developmer Interest rate Prime + 7.15% or
Floor rate of 11.99 $ 25,00( 25,36( 26,11(
25,36( 26,11(
Drug Discover  Senior Debt
Matures January 2015
& Developmer Interest rate Prime + 4.40% or
Floor rate of 10.159 $ 12,00( 11,66¢ 11,66¢
11,66¢ 11,66:
Drug Discover  Senior Debt
Matures June 2015
& Developmer Interest rate Prime + 4.3% or
Floor rate of 9.559 $ 6,00( 5,92t 5,92¢
5,92t 5,92¢
Drug Discover  Senior Debt
Matures July 2015
& Developmer Interest rate Prime + 3.25% or
Floor rate of 8.259 $ 7,50( 7,35( 7,35(
7,35( 7,350
Drug Discover  Senior Debt
Matures September 2013
& Developmer Interest rate Prime + 7.1% or
Floor rate of 12.359 $ 6,768 6,594 6,72¢
6,594 6,72¢
Drug Discover  Senior Debt
Matures September 2014
& Developmer Interest rate Prime + 5.65% or
Floor rate of 10.409 $ 10,00( 10,07( 10,07(
10,07( 10,07(
Drug Discover  Senior Debt Matures
September 2013
& Developmer Interest rate Prime + 7.75% or
Floor rate of 12.009 $ 7,63 7,95¢ 7,87¢
7,95¢ 7,87¢
Drug Discover  Senior Debt
Matures February 2015
& Developmer Interest rate Prime + 6.25% or
Floor rate of 9.509 $ 15,00( 14,55¢ 14,55¢
14,55¢ 14,55¢
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

Portfolio Company

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Total Debt Drug Discovery & Development (26.79%)’

E-band Communications, Cor§)

Total E-Band Communications, Cor

Intelepeer, Inc.

Total Intelepeer, Inc

Ahhha, Inc.

Total Ahhha, Inc

Pac-West Telecomm, Inc.

Total Pa-West Telecomm, Inc

PeerApp, Inc.

Total PeerApp, Inc®

PointOne, Inc.

Total PointOne, Inc

Stoke, Ind4

Total Stoke, Inc
Total Debt Communications & Networking (5.71%)*

Central Desktop, Inc.

Total Central Desktop, Int

Clickfox, Inc.

Total Clickfox, Inc.

Principal
Industry Type of Investment(®) Series Amount  Cost®  value ®
$113,910 $115,47(
Communication Convertible Senior Debt
& Due on demand
Networking Interest rate Fixed 6.00 $ 35€ 35€ —
35¢€ —
Communication Senior Debt
& Matures May 2013
Networking Interest rate Prime + 8.12% or
Floor rate of 11.37¢ $ 6,52« 6,34¢ 6,47¢
Senior Debt
Matures May 2012
Interest rate Prime + 4.25 $ 1,10 1,10( 1,07(C
7,44¢€ 7,54¢€
Communication Senior Debt
& Matures January 2015
Networking Interest rate Fixed 10.00 $ 35C 34t 34E
34t 34t
Communication Senior Debt
& Matures October 2014
Networking Interest rate Prime + 7.50% or
Floor rate of 12.009 $ 4,36¢ 4,19¢ 4,19¢
4,19¢ 4,19¢
Communication Senior Debt
& Matures April 2013
Networking Interest rate Prime + 7.5% or
Floor rate of 11.509 $ 1,77¢ 1,81« 1,83t
1,81¢ 1,83t
Communication Senior Debt
& Matures April 2013
Networking Interest rate Libor + 9.0% or
Floor rate of 11.509 $ 8,30¢ 8,107 8,10(
8,101 8,10(
Communication Senior Debt
& Matures May 2013
Networking Interest rate Prime + 7.0% or
Floor rate of 10.259 $ 2,62i 2,58¢ 2,612
2,58¢ 2,612
24,85( 24,63¢
Software Senior Debt
Matures April 2014
Interest rate Prime + 6.75% or
Floor rate of 10.509 $ 3,00 2,89¢ 2,95¢
2,89¢ 2,95¢
Software Senior Debt
Matures July 2013
Interest rate Prime + 6.00% or
Floor rate of 11.259 $ 3,99¢ 3,92( 4,00(
3,92( 4,00(

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Portfolio Company
Kxen, Inc.

Total Kxen, Inc.

RichRelevance, Inc.

Total RichRelevance, In

Blurb, Inc

Total Blurb, Inc

SugarSync Inc.

Total SugarSync Inc
White Sky, Inc.

Total White Sky, Inc

Tada Innovations, Inc.

Total Tada Innovations, In
Total Debt Software (5.34%)*

Maxvision Holding, LLC.(")

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Industry Type of Investment(!) Series Amount Cost®  value ®
Software Senior Debt
Matures January 2015
Interest rate Prime + 5.08% or
Floor rate of 8.339 $ 3,00( $ 2,95¢ $ 2,85¢
2,95¢ 2,85¢
Software Senior Debt
Matures January 2015
Interest rate Prime + 3.25% or
Floor rate of 7.509 $ 5,00( 4,87¢ 4,87¢
4,87¢ 4,87¢
Software Senior Debt
Matures December 2015
Interest rate Prime +5.25% or
Floor rate 8.5 $ 5,00( 4,87:% 4,87:%
4,87 4,87
Software Senior Debt
Matures April 2015
Interest rate Prime + 4.50% or
Floor rate of 8.259% $ 2,00( 1,95( 1,95(
1,95( 1,95(
Software Senior Debt
Matures June 2014
Interest rate Prime + 7.00% or
Floor rate of 10.259 $ 1,41¢ 1,351 1,40(
1,351 1,40(
Software Senior Debt
Matures June 2012
Interest rate Prime + 3.25% or
Floor rate of 6.509 $ 10C 90 9C
90 9C
22,92 23,00
Electronics  Senior Debt
& Matures December 2013
Computer Interest rate Prime + 8.25% or
Hardware Floor rate of 12.00%,
PIK interest 5.00% $ 4,18t 4,14 —
Senior Debt
Matures December 2013
Interest rate Prime + 6.25% or
Floor rate of 10.00%,
PIK interest 2.00% $ 2,53¢ 2,51¢ —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Portfolio Company

Total Maxvision Holding, LLC

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Total Debt Electronics & Computer Hardware (0.24%)*

Althea Technologies, Inc.

Total Althea Technologies, In

Pacira Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Pacira Pharmaceuticals, i

Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Company

Total Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Comp:

Total Debt Specialty Pharmaceuticals (8.92%)

Achronix Semiconductor Corporation

Total Achronix Semiconductor Corporati

Kovio Inc.

Kovio Inc.

Total Kovio Inc.
Total Debt Semiconductors (1.50%)*

AcelRX Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Principal
Industry Type of Investment(!) Series Amount Cost®  value ®
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures December 2013
Interest rate Prime + 5.00% or
Floor rate of 8.509 $ 892 $ 1,023 $ 1,02i
7,68t 1,02
7,68t 1,02
Specialty Senior Debt
Pharmaceutica Matures October 2013
Interest rate Prime + 7.70% or
Floor rate of 10.95¢ $ 10,35¢ 10,31 10,58«
10,31 10,58
Specialty Senior Debt
Pharmaceutica Matures August 2014
Interest rate Prime + 6.25% or
Floor rate of 10.259 $ 11,25( 11,25% 11,397
Senior Debt
Matures August 2014
Interest rate Prime + 8.65% or
Floor rate of 12.659 $ 15,00( 14,38¢ 14,574
25,64: 25,97:
Specialty Convertible Senior Debt
Pharmaceutica Matures March 2012
Interest rate 8.00¢ $ 1,88¢ 1,88¢ 1,88¢
1,88¢ 1,88¢
37,84¢ 38,44
Semiconductor  Senior Debt
Matures January 2015
Interest rate Prime + 7.75% or
Floor rate of 11.009 $ 2,50C 2,32¢ 2,32¢
2,32¢ 2,32¢
Semiconductor  Senior Debt
Matures March 2015
Interest rate Prime + 5.50% or
Floor rate of 9.25% $ 1,25C 1,21¢ 1,21¢
Semiconductor  Senior Debt
Matures March 2015
Interest rate Prime + 6.00% or
Floor rate of 9.75% $ 3,00( 2,91( 2,91(
4,12¢ 4,12¢
6,457 6,457
Drug Delivery Senior Debt
Matures December 2014
Interest rate Prime + 3.25% or
Floor rate of 8.50% $ 10,00( 9,77: 9,57¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Portfolio Company

Total AcelRX Pharmaceuticals, Ir

Alexza Pharmaceuticals, Iné)

Total Alexza Pharmaceuticals, Ir

BIND Biosciences, Inc.

Total BIND Biosciences, Inc

Merrion Pharmaceuticals, In®)

Total Merrion Pharmaceuticals, Ir

Revance Therapeutics, Inc.

Total Revance Therapeutics, i
Total Debt Drug Delivery (13.90%)*

Gelesis, Inc(®)

Total Gelesis, Inc

Gynesonics, Inc.

Total Gynesonics, In¢

Oraya Therapeutics, Inc.

Total Oraya Therapeutics, Ir

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Industry Type of Investment(®) Series Amount Cost®  value ®
Senior Debt
Matures December 2014
Interest rate Prime + 3.25% or
Floor rate of 8.509 $ 10,00( $ 9,77: $ 9,57¢
19,54 19,15%
Drug Senior Debt
Delivery Matures October 2013
Interest rate Prime + 6.5% or
Floor rate of 10.759 $ 10,491 10,530 10,69:
10,537 10,69t
Drug Senior Debt
Delivery Matures July 2014
Interest rate Prime + 7.45% or
Floor rate of 10.709 $ 5,00( 4,73( 4,88(
4,73( 4,88(
Drug Senior Debt
Delivery Matures January 2015
Interest rate Prime + 9.20% or
Floor rate of 12.459 $ 5,00( 4,76¢ 3,81¢
4,76 3,81¢
Drug Senior Debt
Delivery Matures March 2015
Interest rate Prime + 6.60% or
Floor rate of 9.85% $ 22,00( 21,37¢ 21,37¢
21,37¢ 21,37¢
60,95¢ 59,93(
Therapeuti  Senior Debt
Matures April 2013
Interest rate Prime + 8.75% or
Floor rate of 12.009 $ 3,42¢ 3,51« 3,25¢
3,51« 3,25¢
Therapeuti  Senior Debt
Matures October 2013
Interest rate Prime + 8.25% or
Floor rate of 11.509 $ 5,33¢ 5,30¢ 5,38¢
5,30¢ 5,38%
Therapeuti  Senior Debt
Matures March 2015
Interest rate Prime + 4.75% or
Floor rate of 9.509 $ 7,50 7,37 7,371
7,37 7,37

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment(%) Series  Amount  Cost®  value @
Pacific Child & Family Associates, LLC Therapeutic Senior Debt
Matures January 2015
Interest rate LIBOR + 8.0% or
Floor rate of 10.509 $ 496t $ 493 $ 4,93
Revolving Line of Credit
Matures January 2015
Interest rate LIBOR + 6.5% or
Floor rate of 9.00% $ 1,50 1,48t 1,412
Senior Debt
Matures January 2015
Interest rate LIBOR + 10.50% or
Floor rate of 13.0%,
PIK interest 3.75% $ 5,90( 6,25¢ 6,43¢€
Total Pacific Child & Family Associates, LL 12,67¢ 12,78(
Total Debt Therapeutic (6.68%)* 28,87¢ 28,79
InXpo, Inc. Internet Consumer  Senior Debt
& Business Services Matures March 2014
Interest rate Prime + 7.5% or
Floor rate of 10.759 $ 3,192 3,08: 3,14
Total InXpo, Inc. 3,08: 3,14
Westwood One Communicatio Internet Consumer  Senior Debt
& Business Services Matures October 2016
Interest rate of 8.00¢ $ 21,00( 19,05¢ 19,47¢
Total Westwood One Communicatio 19,05¢ 19,47¢
Reply! Inc.®) Internet Senior Debt
Consumer & Matures June 2015
Interest rate Prime + 6.87% or
Business Floor rate of 10.12%
Services $13,00C 12,877 13,13:
Total Reply! Inc. 12,877 13,13
MedCall Internet Senior Debt
Consumer & Matures January 2016
Interest rate LIBOR + 7.50% or
Business Floor rate of 9.50%
Services $ 5,16¢ 5,05! 5,05!
Total MedCall 5,051 5,051
ScriptSave (Medical Security Card Company, LLC) Internet Senior Debt
Consumer & Matures February 2016
Interest rate Prime + 8.75%
Business
Services $19,64¢ 19,307 19,89¢
Total ScriptSavt 19,307 19,89¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

Portfolio Company Industry

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Type of Investment(®) Series

Principal
Amount

Cost (2

Value )

Trulia, Inc. Internet
Consumer &
Business
Services

Total Trulia, Inc.

Vaultlogix, Inc. Internet
Consumer &
Business
Services

Total Vaultlogix, Inc.
Tectura Corporation Internet
Consumer &

Business
Services

Total Tectura Corporatio
Total Debt Internet Consumer & Business Services {206%)

Box.net, Inc. Information
Services

Total Box.net, Inc

Senior Debt
Matures March 2015
Interest rate Prime + 2.75% or
Floor rate of 6.00%

Senior Debt
Matures March 2015
Interest rate Prime + 5.50% or
Floor rate of 8.75%

Senior Debt
Matures September 2016
Interest rate Libor + 8.50% or
Floor rate of 10.00%,
PIK interest 2.50%

Senior Debt
Matures September 2015
Interest rate Libor + 7.00% or
Floor rate of 8.50%

Revolving Line of Credit
Matures September 2015
Interest rate Libor + 6.00% or
Floor rate of 7.50%

Senior Debt
Matures December 2012
Interest rate 11%

Revolving Line of Credi
Senior Debt
Matures August 2012
Interest rate 119

Revolving Line of Credit
Matures July 2012
Interest rate 11% ,
PIK interest 1.00%

Senior Debt
Matures March 2015
Interest rate Prime + 3.75% or
Floor rate of 7.50%

Senior Debt
Matures July 2014
Interest rate Prime + 5.25% or
Floor rate of 8.50%

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$ 5,00(

$ 5,00¢

$ 7,50(

$ 11,50(

$ 30C

$ 5,62t

$  2,50(

$ 17,48

$ 9,641

$ 1,59

$ 4,871

4,871

$ 4,871

4,871

9,742

7,441

11,33t

284

9,742

7,441

11,33t

284

19,06(

6,834

2,55¢

17,73¢

19,06(

6,834

2,55¢

17,73¢

27,12¢

27,12¢

115,30

116,63¢

9,43

1,618

9,43

1,64

11,04¢

11,077
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Portfolio Company
Cha Cha Search, Inc.

Total Cha Cha Search, Ir
Jab Wireless, Inc.

Total Jab Wireless, Ini
Total Debt Information Services (7.88%)
Optiscan Biomedical, Corp.

Total Optiscan Biomedical, Cor
Total Debt Diagnostic (2.59%)*
deCODE genetics ehf.

Total deCODE genetics el
Labcyte, Inc.

Total Labcyte, Inc
Cempra Holdings LLC

Total Cempra Holdings LL(
Total Debt Biotechnology Tools (3.91%)*
Entrigue Surgical, Inc.

Total Entrigue Sur?ical, Inc
Transmedics, Ind4

Total Transmedics, Ini
Total Debt Surgical Devices (2.66%)

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Industry Type of Investment(!) Series  Amount Cost®  value ®
Information
Services .
Senior Deb
Matures February 2015
Interest rate Prime + 6.25% or
Floor rate of 9.50% $  3,00( $ 2,92¢ $ 2,90:
2,92¢ 2,90:
Information Senior Debt
Services Matures August 2016
Interest rate Prime + 6.25% or
Floor rate of 6.759 $ 20,27: 19,99¢ 19,99¢
19,99¢ 19,99¢
33,96 33,97:
Diagnostic Senior Debt
Matures December 2013
Interest rate Prime + 8.20% or
Floor rate of 11.459 $ 10,75( 10,88 11,14°
10,88¢ 11,147
10,88 11,14°
Biotechnolog:  Senior Debt
Matures September 2014
Tools Interest rate Prime + 10.25% or
Floor rate of 13.50%,
PIK interest 2.00% $ 5,00( 4,66¢ 4,664
4,66¢ 4,66¢
Biotechnolog®  Senior Debt
Matures May 2013
Tools Interest rate Prime + 8.6% or
Floor rate of 11.859 $ 2,41¢ 2,42t 2,47¢
2,42¢ 2,47¢
Biotechnolog®  Senior Debt
Matures December 2015
Tools Interest rate Prime + 7.05% or
Floor rate of 10.309 $ 10,00( 9,721 9,721
9,721 9,721
16,81( 16,86
Surgical Senior Debt
Devices Matures December 2014
Interest rate Prime + 5.90% or
Floor rate of 9.65% $ 3,00( 2,87¢ 2,87¢
2,87¢ 2,87¢
Surgical Senior Debt
Devices Matures February 2014
Interest rate Prime + 9.70% or
Floor rate of 12.959 $ 8,37 8,60z 8,60:
8,60: 8,60:
11,48: 11,48:

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment(®) Series  Amount Cost®  value ®
Neoprobe (pka Navide: Media/
Content/
Info Senior Deb $ 7,00( $ 6,73¢ $ 6,73¢
Total Neoprobe (pka Navidea) Matures December 2014
Interest rate Prime + 6.75% or
Floor rate of 10.009 6,73 6,73%
Womer's Marketing, Inc. Media/ Senior Debt
Content/ Matures May 2016
Info Interest rate Libor + 9.50% or
Floor rate of 12.00%,
PIK interest 3.00% $ 10,00( 9,95¢ 10,15¢
Senior Debt
Matures November 2015
Interest rate Libor + 7.50% or
Floor rate of 10.0% $ 97U 9,50t 9,89¢
Senior Debt
Matures November 2015
Interest rate Libor + 7.50% or
Floor rate of 10.0% $ 9,95¢ 9,74¢ 9,744
Total Womer's Marketing, Inc 29,20 29,79¢
Total Debt Media/Content/Info (8.47%)* 35,93¢ 36,52¢
BrightSource Energy, Iné?) Clean Senior Debt
Tech Matures December 2011
Interest rate Prime + 7.75% or
Floor rate of 11.0% $ 11,25( 11,12: 11,12:
Senior Debt
Matures December 2012
Interest rate Prime + 9.55% or
Floor rate of 12.8% $ 13,75( 13,59:¢ 13,59¢
Total BrightSource Energy, In 24,71 24,71
EcoMotors, Inc. Clean Senior Debt
Tech Matures February 2014
Interest rate Prime + 6.1% or
Floor rate of 9.35% $ 4,87¢ 4,718 4,85¢
Total EcoMotors, Inc 4,71: 4,85¢
Enphase Energy, Inc. Clean Senior Debt
Tech Matures June 2014
Interest rate Prime + 5.75% or
Floor rate of 9.0% $ 4,89¢ 4,78¢ 4,74¢
Total Enphase Energy, In 4,78¢ 4,74¢
NanoSolar, Inc Clean Senior Debt
Tech Matures September 2014
Interest rate Prime + 7.75% or
Floor rate of 11.0% $ 9,217 8,79¢ 8,79¢
Total NanoSolar, Inc 8,79¢ 8,79
Integrated Photovoltaics Clean Senior Debt
Tech Matures February 2015
Interest rate Prime + 7.375% or
Floor rate of 10.6259 $ 3,00( 2,87¢ 2,87¢
Total Integrated Photovoltair 2,87¢ 2,87t

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Portfolio Company
Propel Biofuels, Inc.

Total Propel Biofuels, Inc

SClenergy, Inc.

Total SClenergy, Inc

Solexel, Inc.

Total Solexel, Inc
Total Debt Clean Tech (14.24%)*

Total Debt (135.90%)

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Principal
Industry Type of Investment(®) Series Amount Cost(? value )
Clean Tecl  Senior Debt
Matures September 2013
Interest rate of 11.0¢ $ 1,34t $ 1,35¢€ $ 1,32
1,35¢€ 1,32(
Clean Tecl  Senior Debt
Matures October 2014
Interest rate 6.25¢ $ 20z 20z 20z
Senior Debt
Matures August 2015
Interest rate Prime + 4.90% or
Floor rate of 8.15% $ 5,00( 4,88: 4,88
5,08t 5,08t
Clean Tecl  Senior Debt
Matures June 2013
Interest rate Prime + 8.25% or
Floor rate of 11.509 $ 937 594 594
Senior Debt
Matures June 2013
Interest rate Prime + 7.25% or
Floor rate of 10.509 $ 8,12 8,38¢ 8,38¢
8,98: 8,98
61,30¢ 61,38(
589,19: 585,76

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment(%) Series Shares Cost®  value ®
Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, Ir Drug Discovery Common Stock Warran 46,44¢ $ 3¢ $ 42

& Development Preferred Stock Warran Series A 426,00( 6¢ 27%

Preferred Stock Warran Series E 110,27( 85 51

Total Warrants Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, 582,71t 14z 36¢€
Anthera Pharmaceuticals Ir Drug Discovery Common Stock Warran 176,78( 541 551

& Development Common Stock Warran 144,64. 443 451
Total Warrants Anthera Pharmaceuticals 321,42¢ 984 1,002
Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, Ir Drug Discovery Preferred Stock Warran Series A 525,00t 23€ 69

& Development Common Stock Warran 50,00( 28 9]

Preferred Stock Warran Series E 660,00( 311 137

Total Warrants Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, 1,235,00! 57¢ 20¢€
EpiCept Corporatiof®) Drug Discovery

& Development Common Stock Warran 325,20 4 15
Total Warrants EpiCept Corporatis 325,20: 4 i3
Concert Pharmaceuticals Drug Discovery

& Development Preferred Stock Warran Series C 200,00( 234 23%
Total Concert Pharmaceutici 200,00 234 23¢
NextWave Pharmaceutice Drug Discovery

& Developmen Preferred Stock Warran Series /-1 540,21t 12€ 12¢
Total NextWave Pharmaceutici 540,21¢ 12¢ 12t
Horizon Therapeutics, Inc. Drug Discovery

& Developmen Common Stock Warran 22,40¢ 231 —
Total Horizon Therapeutics, In 22,40¢ 231 —
Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Drug Discovery

& Development Preferred Stock Warran Series C 302,14: 15E 1,11¢€
Total Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, It 302,14 15¢& 1,11¢
Paratek Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Drug Discovery

& Development Preferred Stock Warran Series F 210,47. 137 68
Total Paratek Pharmaceuticals, | 210,47: 137 68
PolyMedix, Inc. Drug Discovery

& Development Common Stock Warran 627,58 48( 97
Total PolyMedix, Inc 627,58t 48C 97
Portola Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Drug Discovery

& Development Preferred Stock Warran Series E 687,02. 152 207
Total Portola Pharmaceuticals, I 687,02: 152 207
Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Drug Discovery &

Developmen Common Stock Warran 107,77 69 1,11¢
Total Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, I 107,77¢ 6¢ 1,11

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment®) Series _Shares Cost®  value ®

Chroma Therapeutics, LtéP)

Drug Discovery

Series

& Developmeni  Preferred Stock Warran D 325,26: $ 49C $ 387
Total Chroma Therapeutics, Lt 325,26: 49C 387
NeurogesX, Inc Drug Discovery
& Development Common Stock Warran 791,66 503 122
Total NeurogesX, Inc 791,66° 502 122
Total Warrants Drug Discovery & Development (1.17%} 6,278,90! 4,28 5,05¢
Affinity Videonet, Inc. Communication:
& Series
Networking Preferred Stock Warran A 201,03 10z 165
Total Affinity Videonet, Inc. 201,03: 10z 16&
IKANO Communications, Inc. Communication:
& Series
Networking Preferred Stock Warran D 296,34« 45 —
Series
Preferred Stock Warran D 451,35 72 —
Total IKANO Communications, Inc 747,69¢ 117 —
Intelepeer, Inc. Communication:
& Series
Networking Preferred Stock Warran © 117,95¢ 101 92
Total Intelepeer, Inc 117,95¢ 101 92
Neonova Holding Compar Communication:
& Series
Networking Preferred Stock Warran A 450,00( 94 28
Total Neonova Holding Compar 450,00( 94 28
Pac-West Telecomm, Inc. Communication:
&
Networking Common Stock Warran 54,68¢ 121 —
Total Pa-West Telecomm, Inc 54,68¢ 121 —
PeerApp, Inc. Communication:
& Series
Networking Preferred Stock Warran B 298,77¢ 61 23
Total PeerApp, Inc® 298,77¢ 61 23
Peerless Network, Inc. Communication:
& Series
Networking Preferred Stock Warran A 135,00( 95 20¢€
Total Peerless Network, In 135,00( 95 20¢€
Ping Identity Corporation Communication:
& Series
Networking Preferred Stock Warran B 1,136,27 52 10¢
Total Ping Identity Corporatio 1,136,27 52 10¢
PointOne, Inc. Communication:
&
Networking Common Stock Warran 145,87 131 5
Total PointOne, Inc 145,87 131 5
Purcell Systems, Inc. Communication:
& Series
Networking Preferred Stock Warran B 110,00( 123 121

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment®) Series _Shares Cost®  value ®
Total Purcell Systems, Inc. 110,00( $ 12:¢ $ 121
Stoke, Ind4 Communication
& Series
Networking Preferred Stock Warran C 158,53t 53 14¢
Series
Preferred Stock Warran D 72,72% 65 81
Total Stoke, Inc 231,26 11€ 23C
Total Warrants Communications & Networking (0.23%)* 3,628,57. 1,11¢ 97¢
Atrenta, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran C 1,196,84 13€ 81¢F
Series
Preferred Stock Warran D 356,97. 95 284
Total Atrenta, Inc 1,553,82! 231 1,09¢
Blurb, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran B 439,33t 328 85k
Series
Preferred Stock Warran C 234,28( 63€ 63€
Total Blurb, Inc. 673,61t 95¢ 1,491
Braxton Technologies, LLC. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran A 168,75( 18¢ —
Total Braxton Technologies, LL( 168,75( 18¢ —
Bullhorn, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran C 122,80 43 22¢
Total Bullhorn, Inc. 122,80 43 22¢
Central Desktop, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran B 522,82: 10€ 39¢€
Total Central Desktop, In 522,82: 10¢€ 39¢
Clickfox, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran B 1,038,56: 32¢ 522
Total Clickfox, Inc. 1,038,56: 32¢ 522
Forescout Technologies, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran D 399,68 99 14z
Total Forescout Technologies, It 399,68 99 14z
HighRoads, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran B 190,17¢ 45 7
Total HighRoads, Inc 190,17¢ 45 7
Kxen, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran D 184,61« 47 22
Total Kxen, Inc. 184,61« 47 22
RichRelevance, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran D 112,744 98 12
Total RichRelevance, In 112,74¢ 98 12
Rockyou, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran B 41,26¢ 11€ 1
Total Rockyou, Inc 41,26¢ 11€ 1
Sportvision, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stock Warran B 259,13¢ 39 —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment®) Series _Shares Cost®  value ®
Total Sportvision, Inc 259,13¢ $ 39 $ —
SugarSync Inc. Series

Software Preferred Stock Warran CcC 332,72t 78 162
Total SugarSync In¢ 332,72¢ 78 162
Daegis Inc. (pka Unify Corporatiol Software Common Stock Warran 718,86( 1,43¢ 237
Total Daegis Inc 718,86( 1,43¢ 237
White Sky, Inc. Series

Software Preferred Stock Warran B-2 124,29} 54 3
Total White Sky, Inc 124,29} 54 3
Tada Series

Software Preferred Stock Warran A 20,83 25 25
Total Tade 20,83¢ 25 25
WildTangent, Inc Series

Software Preferred Stock Warran 3A 100,00( 23¢€ 22
Total WildTangent, Inc 100,00( 23€ 22
Total Warrants Software (1.01%)* 6,564,72: 4,132 4,372
Luminus Devices, Inc Electronics & Common Stock Warran 6,681 334 —

Computer

Hardware Common Stock Warran 3,341 84 —

Common Stock Warran 16,36+ 183 —

Total Luminus Devices, Int 26,38¢ 601 —
Shocking Technologies, Inc. Electronics &

Computer Series

Hardware Preferred Stock Warran A-1 181,81¢ 63 19€
Total Shocking Technologies, Ir 181,81¢ 63 19¢€
Total Warrant Electronics & Computer Hardware (0.05%)* 208,20: 664 19€
Althea Technologies, Inc. Specialty Series

Pharmaceutical  Preferred Stock Warran D 502,27: 30¢ 51¢€
Total Althea Technologies, In 502,27: 30¢ 51€
Pacira Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Specialty

Pharmaceutical Common Stock Warran 178,98 1,08¢ 42F
Total Pacira Pharmaceuticals, i 178,98 1,08¢ 42¢
Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Company Specialty Series

Pharmaceutical  Preferred Stock Warran E 340,53¢ 52¢ —
Total Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Comp: 340,53: 52¢ —
Total Warrants Specialty Pharmaceuticals (0.22%)* 1,021,79 1,92 941

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment(1) Series _Shares Cost®  value ®
Annie’s, Inc. Consumer &
Business Series
Products Preferred Stock Warran A 65,00( $ 321 $  25C
Total Annie's, Inc. 65,00( 321 25C
IPA Holdings, LLC Consumer &
Business
Products Common Stock Warran 650,00( 27E 58
Total IPA Holding, LLC 650,00( 27¢ 58
Market Force Information, Inc. Consumer &
Business Series
Products Preferred Stock Warran A 99,28¢ 24 11¢
Total Market Force Information, In 99,28¢ 24 11¢€
Wageworks, Inc Consumer &
Business Series
Products Preferred Stock Warran C 423,52¢ 252 2,49t
Total Wageworks, Inc 423,52¢ 252 2,49
Seven Networks, Inc. Consumer &
Business Series
Products Preferred Stock Warran C 1,821,42 174 —
Total Seven Networks, In 1,821,42! 174 —
Total Warrant Consumer & Business Products (0.68%)* 3,059,24. 1,04¢ 2,921
Achronix Semiconductor Corporation Series
Semiconductor Preferred Stock Warran D 360,00( 16C 14¢F
Total Achronix Semiconductor Corporati 360,00( 16C 14t
Enpirion, Inc. Series
Semiconductor Preferred Stock Warran D 239,87. 157 —
Total Enpirion, Inc 239,87: 157 —
iWatt, Inc. Series
Semiconductor Preferred Stock Warran C 558,74t 46 3
Series
Preferred Stock Warran D 1,954,76; 582 10
Total iWatt, Inc. 2,513,511 62¢€ 13
Kovio Inc. Series
Semiconductor Preferred Stock Warran B 319,35: 92 4
Total Kovio Inc. 319,35: 92 4
NEXX Systems, Inc Series
Semiconductor Preferred Stock Warran D 2,941,171 297 1,32¢
Total NEXX Systems, Inc 2,941,171 297 1,32¢
Quartics, Inc. Series
Semiconductor  Preferred Stock Warran C 69,13¢ 58 —
Total Quartics, Inc 69,13¢ 53 —
Total Warrants Semiconductors (0.35%)* 6,443,04! 1,381 1,49(

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AcelRX Pharmaceuticals, In

Total AcelRX Pharmaceuticals, Ir
Alexza Pharmaceuticals, Ir4)
Total Alexza Pharmaceuticals, Ir
BIND Biosciences, Inc

Total BIND Biosciences, In¢

Merrion Pharmaceuticals, In(®)

Total Merrion Pharmaceuticals, Ir

Transcept Pharmaceuticals, |
Total Transcept Pharmaceuticals, |
Revance Therapeutics, Ir

Total Revance Therapeutics, i

Total Warrant Drug Delivery (0.35%)*
Gelesis

Total Gelesis

BARRX Medical, Inc.

Total BARRX Medical, Inc

EKOS Corporatiot

Total EKOS Corporatio

Gynesonics, Inc

Total Gynesonics, In

Light Science Oncology, Ini
Total Light Science Oncology, In
Novasys Medical, Inc

Total Novasys Medical, Int

Oraya Therapeutics, In

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Industry Type of Investment(®) Series Shares Cost®  value @
Drug Delivery  Common Stock Warran 137,25 $ 17¢ $ 41
Common Stock Warran 137,25 17¢€ 41
274,50¢ 35¢€ 82
Drug Delivery ~ Common Stock Warran 376,39 64¢ 72
376,39 64¢ 72
Drug Delivery  Preferred Stock Warran Series -1 150,00( 291 427
150,00( 291 427
Drug Delivery  Common Stock Warran 1,453,51! 214 194
1,453,51! 214 194
Drug Delivery  Common Stock Warran 24,58: 36 62
Common Stock Warran 36,87: 51 93
61,45 87 15¢&
Drug Delivery  Preferred Stock Warran Series C 269,66. 557 56E
269,66 557 56¢
2,585,53 2,15( 1,49¢
Therapeutic Preferred Stock Warran Series /1 263,68!¢ 78 10€
263,68 78 10€
Therapeutic Preferred Stock Warran Series C 66,667 76 18¢
66,667 76 18¢
Therapeutic Preferred Stock Warran Series C 4,448,13! 327 —
4,448,13! 327 —
Therapeutic Preferred Stock Warran Series A 123,45 17 17
Series C 1,087,49 211 21€
1,210,95. 22¢ 233
Therapeutic Preferred Stock Warran Series B 38,82¢ 99 —
38,82¢ 99 —
Therapeutic Preferred Stock Warran Series C 526,84( 12E 13
526,84( 12t 13
Therapeutic Preferred Stock Warran Series C 477,96t 551 551

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment(%) Series Shares Cost®  value ®
Total Oraya Therapeutics, Ir 477,96t $ 551 $ 551
Total Warrants Therapeutic (0.25%)* 7,033,07! 1,48¢ 1,092
Cozi Group, Inc. Internet
Consumer
& Business
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series A 303,87: 147 —
Total Cozi Group, Inc 303,87: 147 —
Invoke Solutions, Inc. Internet
Consumer
& Business
Services Common Stock Warran 12,69¢ 6 —
Common Stock Warran 13,06¢ 6 —
Common Stock Warran 13,461 11 —
Common Stock Warran 13,85 15 —
Common Stock Warran 97,651 44 —
Total Invoke Solutions, Inc 150,74 82 —
InXpo, Inc. Internet
Consumer
& Business
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series C 648,40( 98 56
Total InXpo, Inc. 648,40( 98 56
Prism Education Group, Inc. Internet
Consumer
& Business
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series E 200,00( 43 —
Total Prism Education Group, In 200,00( 43 —
RazorGator Interactive Group, Inc. Internet
Consumer
& Business
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series C 863,59¢ 1,22¢ —
Total RazorGator Interactive Group, I 863,59¢ 1,22¢ —
Reply! Inc.™) Internet
Consumer
& Business
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series E 137,22} 32C 39¢
Total Reply! Inc. 137,22! 32C 39t
Trulia, Inc. Internet
Consumer
& Business
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series C 168,16! 18¢ 41¢
Total Trulia, Inc. 168,16! 18¢ 412
Tectura Corporation Internet
Consumer
& Business Series B
Services Preferred Stock Warran 1 253,37¢ 51 26
Total Tectura Corporatio 253,37¢ 51 26
Total Warrants Internet Consumer & Business Service (0.21%) 2,725,38! 2,15¢ 89(
Lilliputian Systems, Inc. Series
Energy Preferred Stock Warran AA 235,29: 10€ —
Common Stock Warran 34,93¢ 49 —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment(1) Series Shares Cost®  value ®
Total Lilliputian Systems, Inc 270,23: $ 15t $ —
Total Warrants Energy (0.00%)* 270,23: 15¢E —
Box.net, Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series ( 199,21¢ 117 1,551
Preferred Stock Warran Series E 271,07( 73 2,28(
Series
Preferred Stock Warran D-1 62,25¢ 192 2BE
Total Box.net, Inc 532,54« 382 4,07(C
Buzznet, Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series E 19,96: 9 —
Total Buzznet, Inc 19,96: 9 —
Cha Cha Search, Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series | 48,23 58 1
Total Cha Cha Search, Ir 48,23: 58 1
Magi.com (pka Hi5 Networks, Inc.) Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series E 1,104,022 213 —
Total Magi.com 1,104,022 213 —
Jab Wireless, Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series / 266,56 265 332
Total Jab Wireless, Ini 266,56 26E 33z
Solutionary Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series [ 117,17 96 —
Total Solutionary, Inc 117,17 96 —
Intelligent Beauty, Inc. Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series E 190,23« 23C 83
Total Intelligent Beauty, Inc 190,23« 23C 83
Zeta Interactive Corporation Information
Services Preferred Stock Warran Series / 620,00( 172 237
Total Zeta Interactive Corporatic 620,00( 17z 237
Total Warrants Information Services (1.10%) 2,898,73I 1,42¢ 4,72%
Optiscan Biomedical, Cor| Diagnostic Preferred Stock Warran Series / 1,113,40: 80 15C
Preferred Stock Warran Series E 3,092,78: 68C 452
Preferred Stock Warran Series ( 2,000,001 30¢ 26¢
Total Optiscan Biomedical, Cor 6,206,18 1,06¢ 872
Total Warrants Diagnostic (0.20%)* 6,206,18 1,06¢ 872
deCODE genetics ehf. Biotechnology Series
Tools Preferred Stock Warran A-2 135,87: 30E 30E
Total deCODE genetics el 135,87 30¢E 30¢&
Labcyte, Inc. Biotechnology
Tools Common Stock Warran Series ( 840,81 197 263
Total Labcyte, Inc 840,81 197 262
Cempra Holdings LLC Biotechnology
Tools Preferred Stock Warran Series ( 370,71 187 18€
Total Cempra Holdings LL( 370,71 187 18€
NuGEN Technologies, Int Biotechnology
Tools Preferred Stock Warran Series E 204,54! 45 203
Preferred Stock Warran Series ( 30,11« 33 15

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment®) Series _ Shares Cost®  value ®

Total NUGEN Technologies, Inc. 234,65¢ $ 78 $ 21¢

Total Warrants Biotechnology Tools (0.23%)* 1,582,06 767 972
Entrigue Surgical, Inc. Serie!

Surgical Device! Preferred Stock Warran B 62,50( 87 85

Total Entrigue Surgical, Inc 62,500 87 85
Transmedics, Ind%) Serie:

Surgical Device: Preferred Stock Warran B 40,43¢ 22¢ —
Total Transmedics, In 40,43¢ 22t —

Total Warrants Surgical Devices (0.02%)* 102,93t 312 85
Glam Media, Inc. Seriet

Media/Content/Inf  Preferred Stock Warran D 407,45 482 2

Total Glam Media, Inc 407,45 482 2

Neoprobe (pka Navidei Media/Content/Inf ~ Common Stock Warran 333,33: 244 24t

Total Neoprobe (pka Navide 333,33: 244 24t
Everyday Health, Inc. (Waterfront Media, Inc.) Seriet

Media/Content/Inf  Preferred Stock Warran C 110,01¢ 60 504

Total Everyday Healt 110,01¢ 60 504

Total Warrants Media/Content/Info (0.17%)* 850,80¢ 78€ 751
BrightSource Energy, Iné) Seriet

Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran D 130,12( 675 834

Total BrightSource Energy, In 130,12( 67t 834
Calera, Inc. Serie!

Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran C 44,52¢ BilE 47¢

Total Calera, Inc 44 52¢ 512 47t
EcoMotors, Inc. Serie!

Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran B 218,75( 154 32¢
Serie!

Preferred Stock Warran B 218,75( 154 32¢

Total EcoMotors, Inc 437,50( 30¢ 64¢€
Enphase Energy, Inc. Serie!

Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran E 330,88: 10z 49

Total Enphase Energy, In 330,88: 10z 49
GreatPoint Energy, Inc. Serie!

Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran D-1 393,21: 54¢ 20¢

Total GreatPoint Energy, In 393,21: 54¢ 20¢€
NanoSolar, Inc Series

Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran D 76,35 35E 35E

Total NanoSolar, Inc 76,352 35¢ 35¢
Propel Biofuels, Inc. Series

Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran C 3,200,001 211 17C

Total Propel Biofuels, Inc 3,200,001 211 17C

SClenergy, Inc Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran 5,792 8 2
Serie!

Preferred Stock Warran (] 92,67° 13C 30

Total SClenergy, Inc 98,46 13¢€ 32
Solexel, Inc. Seriet

Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran B 245,68: 1,161 27¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

Portfolio Company
Total Solexel, Inc.

Trilliant, Inc.

Total Trilliant, Inc.

Integrated Photovoltaics

Total Integrated Photovoltair

Total Warrants Clean Tech (0.74%)*
Total Warrants (6.97%

Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Aegerion Pharmaceuticals, I

Aveo Pharmaceuticals

Total Aveo Pharmaceutice

Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Dicerna Pharmaceuticals, Ii

Inotek Pharmaceuticals Corp.

Total Inotek Pharmaceuticals Co

Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, I

Paratek Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Paratek Pharmaceuticals, |

Total Equity Drug Discovery & Development (2.49%)*
Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, Ir

Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, Ir

Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Total Acceleron Pharmaceuticals, ||

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Industry Type of Investment(%) Series Shares Cost®@  value ®
245,68: $ 1,161 $ 27t
Series
Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran A 320,00( 162 82
320,00( 162 82
Series
Clean Tect Preferred Stock Warran A-1 390,00( 82 81
390,00( 82 81
5,666,74. 4,25t 3,207
29,100 _ 30,04
Drug
Discovery &
Developmen Common Stocl 144,01 1,092 2,411
144,01 1,092 2,411
Drug
Discovery &
Developmen Common Stocl 167,86« 842 2,881
167,86¢ 84z 2,881
Drug
Discovery & Series
Developmen Preferred Stoc B 502,68: 503 374
502,68: 502 374
Drug
Discovery & Series
Developmen Preferred Stoc C 15,33¢ 1,50( —
15,33¢ 1,50C —
Drug
Discovery &
Developmen Preferred Stoc Series | 546,44¢ 2,00( 3,82t
546,44¢ 2,00( 3,82t
Drug
Discovery & Series
Developmen Preferred Stoc H 244,15¢ 1,00( 1,231
244,15¢ 1,00¢ 1,231
1,620,50! 6,937 10,72¢
Series
Drug Delivery Preferred Stoc C 93,45¢ 243 162
Preferred Stoc Series | 43,48¢ 98 13¢€
Preferred Stoc Series | 19,26¢ 60 61
Series
Preferred Stoc B 600,60: 1,00( 724
756,81: 1,401 1,08¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment(%) Series _Shares Cost®  value ®
Transcept Pharmaceuticals, | Drug Delivery Common Stocl 41,57( $ 50C $ 32t
Total Transcept Pharmaceuticals, | 41,57( 50C 32t
Total Equity Drug Delivery (0.33%)* 798,38: 1,901 1,417
E-band Communications, Cor) Communication:
& Series
Networking Preferred Stoc B 564,97: 2,00( —
Series
Preferred Stoc © 649,99¢ 372 —
Series
Preferred Stoc D 847,54+ 50¢€ —
Total E-Band Communications, Cor 2,062,51 2,88( —
Neonova Holding Compar Communication:
& Series
Networking Preferred Stoc A 500,00( 25C 21z
Total Neonova Holding Compat 500,00( 25C 21z
Peerless Network, Inc. Communication:
& Series
Networking Preferred Stoc A 1,000,001 1,00( 2,33¢
Total Peerless Network, In 1,000,001 1,00( 2,33t
Stoke, Ind4 Communication
& Series
Networking Preferred Stoc E 152,90! 50C 45€
Total Stoke, Inc 152,90} 50C 45¢
Total Equity Communications & Networking (0.70%)* 3,715,41! 4,63( 3,00
Atrenta, Inc. Series
Software Preferred Stoc D 297,47 25C 474
Total Atrenta, Inc 297,47 25C 474
Total Equity Software (0.11%)* 297,47 25C 474
Maxvision Holding, LLC.(") Electronics &
Computer
Hardware Common Stocl 3,581,32! 3,581 —
Total Maxvision Holding, LLC 3,581,32! 3,581 —
Spatial Photonics, Iné8) Electronics &
Computer Series
Hardware Preferred Stoc D 4,717,81. 26€ —
Total Spatial Photonics In 4,717,81: 26¢ —
Total Equity Electronics & Computer Hardware (0.00%)* 8,299,14; 3,84¢ —
Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Company Specialty Series
Pharmaceutical Preferred Stoc E 166,41¢ 75C —
Total Quatrx Pharmaceuticals Comp: 166,41¢ 75C —
Total Equity Specialty Pharmaceuticals (0.00%)* 166,41¢ 75C —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment(%) Series Shares Cost®@  Vvalue ®
IPA Holdings, LLC Consumer &
Business LLC
Products Preferred Stoc Interest 500,00( $ 50C $ 36C
Total IPA Holding, LLC 500,00( 50C 36C
Market Force Information, Inc. Consumer &
Business
Products Preferred Stoc Series E 187,97( 50C 491
Total Market Force Information, In 187,97( 50C 491
Caivis Acquisition Corporation Consumer &
Business
Products Common Stocl 317,89¢ 88C —
Total Caivis Acquisition Corporatic 317,89: 88C —
Wageworks, Inc Consumer &
Business
Products Preferred Stoc Series L 38,52( 25C 38¢
Total Wageworks, Inc 38,52( 25C 38¢€
Total Equity Consumer & Business Products (0.29%) 1,044,38: 2,13( 1,23¢
iWatt, Inc. Semiconductol  Preferred Stoc Series E 2,412 ,86: 49C 984
Total iWatt, Inc. 2,412,86. 49C 984
NEXX Systems, Inc Semiconductol  Preferred Stoc Series [ 1,273,39; 277 802
Total NEXX Systems, Inc 1,273,39; 277 802z
Total Equity Semiconductors (0.41%)* 3,686,25! 767 1,78¢
BARRX Medical, Inc. Therapeutic Preferred Stoc Series ( 750,00( 1,50( 3,62¢
Total BARRX Medical, Inc 750,00( 1,50( 3,62¢
Gelesis Therapeutic Common Stocl 674,20¢ — 10¢
Series A-
Preferred Stoc 1 674,20¢ 428 51¢
Series A
Preferred Stoc 2 675,67¢ 50C 52C
Total Gelesis 2,024,09; 92t 1,147
Gynesonics, In Therapeutic Preferred Stoc Series E 219,29¢ 25C 15€
Gynesonics, In Preferred Stoc Series ( 656,51: 282 29t
Total Gynesonics, In 875,81( B8E 451
Novasys Medical, Inc Series D-
Therapeutic Preferred Stoc 1 4,118,44. 1,00( 79¢
Total Novasys Medical, In 4,118,44 1,00( 79¢
Total Equity Therapeutic (1.40%)* 7,768,341 3,95¢ 6,02

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment®) Series Shares Cost®  value ®
Cozi Group, Inc. Internet

Consumer &

Business

Services Preferred Stoc Series E 218,25: $ 177 $ 44
Total Cozi Group, Inc 218,25: 177 44
RazorGator Interactive Group, Inc. Internet

Consumer &

Business

Services Preferred Stoc Series / 347,82 1,00( —
Total RazorGator Interactive Group, I 347,82 1,00( —
Total Equity Internet Consumer & Business Service$0.01%) 566,07¢ 1,17 44
Box.net, Inc. Information Preferred Stoc Series ( 390,62! 50C 3,54:

Services Preferred Stoc Series [ 282,63 1,50( 2,56¢
Total Box.net, Inc 673,26: 2,00( 6,107
Buzznet, Inc. Information

Services Preferred Stoc Series ( 263,15¢ 25C 26
Total Buzznet, Inc 263,15¢ 25C 26
Magi.com (pka Hi5 Networks, Inc.) Information

Services Preferred Stoc Series ( 8,232,09 25C 247
Total Magi.comr 8,232,09 25C 247
Solutionary, Inc. Information

Services Preferred Stoc Series [ 50,50¢ 25C 55
Total Solutionary, Inc 50,50t 25C 55
Good Technologies, Inc. (Visto Inter) Information

Services Common Stocl 500,00( 602 90
Total Good Technologies, In 500,00( 602 felo}
Zeta Interactive Corporation Information

Services Preferred Stoc Series / 500,00( 50C 62¢
Total Zeta Interactive Corporatic 500,00( 50C 62¢
Total Equity Information Services (1.66%) 10,219,01 B85 7,15¢
Novadag Technologies, In(®) Diagnostic Common Stocl 136,98 1,057 671
Total Novadaq Technologies, 1r®®) 136,98: 1,057 671
Optiscan Biomedical, Cor| Diagnostic Preferred Stoc Series E 6,185,56' 65¢E 711

Preferred Stoc Series ( 1,927,30! 3,00( 1,757

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

December 31, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

Portfolio Company Industry Type of Investment(1) Series _ Shares Cost®  value ®
Total Optiscan Biomedical, Corp. 8,112,871 $ 365 $ 2,46¢
Total Equity Diagnostic (0.73%)* 8,249,85! 4,717 3,13¢
Kamada, LTD. Biotechnology

Tools Common Stocl 71,49( 421 384
Total Kamada, LTD 71,49( 427 384
NuGEN Technologies, In« Biotechnology

Tools Preferred Stoc Series C 189,39: 50C 472
Total NUGEN Technologies, In 189,39 50C 473
Total Equity Biotechnology Tools (0.20%)* 260,88 927 857
Transmedics, Ind¥ Surgical

Devices Preferred Stoc Series C 119,99¢ 30C —

Preferred Stoc Series [ 88,96: 1,10C

Total Transmedics, Ini 208,96( 1,40( —
Total Equity Surgical Devices (0.00%)* 208,96( 1,40( —
Everyday Health, Inc. (Waterfront Media, Inc.) Media/

Content/ Infc  Preferred Stoc Series [ 145,59( 1,00( 1,19¢
Total Everyday Healt 145,59( 1,00( 1,19¢
Total Equity Media/Content/Info (0.28%)* 145,59( 1,00( 1,19¢
Total Equity (8.60% 38,24: 37,05¢
Total Investments (151.479 $ 656,54 $652,87(

* Value as a percent of net ass

(1) Preferred and common stock, warrants, and equigyasts are generally n-income producing

(2) Gross unrealized appreciation, gross unrealizguteciation, and net depreciation for federabine tax purposes totaled $34,519, $39,387 and $4pectively. The tax cost of
investments is $658,0

(3) Except for warrants in thirteen publicly tradsmmpanies and common stock in five publicly tradechpanies, all investments are restricted at Deee1, 2011 and were valued at
fair value as determined in good faith by the BaafrBirectors. No unrestricted securities of themeassuer are outstanding. The Company uses thd&thlndustrial Code for
classifying the industry grouping of its portfobompanies

(4) Debt investments of this portfolio company haverbpledged as collateral under the Wells Faci

(5) Nor-U.S. company or the compé’s principal place of business is outside the UnBtdes

(6) Affiliate investment that is defined under theestment Company Act of 1940 as companies in WHTGC owns as least 5% but not more than 25%eof/tiing securities of the
company

(7) Control investment that is defined under theeBiment Company Act of 1940 as companies in WHIEBC owners as least 25% but not more than 50%eofibting securities of the
company

(8) Debtis on no-accrual status at December 31, 2011, and is threretmsidered n-income producing

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share date
Investment Income
Interest incom
Non Control/Non Affliate investmen
Affliate investments
Control investments

Total interest incom

Fees
Non Control/Non Affliate investmen
Affliate investments
Control investment
Total fees
Total investment incom
Operating expense
Interest
Loan fees
General and administrati
Employee Compensatio
Compensation and benef
Stocl-based compensatic
Total employee compensati
Total operating expens
Net investment incom
Net realized gains (losses) on invesmtt
Non Control/Non Affliate investmen
Control investment
Total net realized (loss) gain on investme
Net increase (decrease) in unrealized appreciatianvestment
Non Control/Non Affliate investmen
Affliate investments
Control investment
Total net unrealized (depreciation) appreciatiorinwestment:
Total net realized and unrealized gain (I
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers.

Net investment income and investment gains ane$oger common shai
Basic

Change in net assets per common st
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shares outstanc
Basic

Diluted

For the Years Ended

December 31

2012 2011 2010
$85,25¢ $69,55: $51,41°
2,34t — —

— 794 3,28:
87,60 70,34¢ 54,70(
9,891 9,40( 5,04

20 14 —

— 95 (271)
9,911 9,50¢ 4,77¢
97,52( 79,85t 59,47
19,83 13,25: 8,57:
3,911 2,63t 1,25¢
8,10¢ 7,99: 7,08¢
13,32 13,26( 10,47
4,22 3,12¢ 2,70¢
17,55 16,38t 13,18
49,411 40,26 30,10(
48,10' 39,58t 29,37
3,16¢ 2,741 (28,879

— — 2,49:
3,16¢ 2,741 (26,38:)
(2,449 (3,976 1,11¢
(2,069 3,42t 792

— 5,15¢ 77
(4,516 4,601 1,99(
(1,349 7,34¢ (24,39)
$46,75¢ $46,93¢ $ 498
$ 0.9¢ $ 0.91 $ 0.8(
$ 0.9: $ 1.0¢ $ 0.1:
$ 0.9: $ 1.07 $ 0.1:
49,06t 42 98¢ 36,15
49,15¢ 43,29¢ 36,87

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Balance at January 1, 2010
Net increase in net assets resulting from opera
Issuance of common sto
Issuance of common stock under restricted stoak
Acquisition of common stock under repurchase |

(in thousands)

Issuance of common stock under dividend reinvestmen

plan

Retired shares from net issuai

Public Offering

Dividends declare

Stocl-based compensatic

Tax Reclassification of stockholders’ equity in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles

Balance at December 31, 2C

Net increase in net assets resulting from opera

Issuance of common sto

Issuance of common stock under restricted stoak

Issuance of common stock as stock divid

Retired shares from net issuat

Issuance of the Convertible Senior Notes (see M

Dividends declare

Stocl-based compensatic

Tax Reclassification of stockholders’ equity in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles

Balance at December 31, 2C

Net increase in net assets resulting from opers.

Issuance of common sto

Issuance of common stock under restricted stoak

Issuance of common stock as stock divid

Retired shares from net issuat

Public Offering

Dividends declare

Stocl-based compensatic

Tax Reclassification of stockholders’ equity in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles

Balance at December 31, 2C

Provision
Accumulated for Income
—Common Stock Capital Unrealized Distributions
in exces Appreciation Realized Taxes on
Gains from Net Investment
of par on (Losses) on Investment Net
Shares Par Value value Investments Investments Income Gains Assets
35,63: $ 35  $409,03¢ $ (10,02 $ (28,129 $ (4,05 $ (342) $366,51!
— — — 1,99( (26,387) 29,37 — 4,98:
531 1 2,661 — — — — 2,66
48t — — — — — — —
(409) — (3,699 — — — — (3,699
19¢ — 1,920 — — — — 1,925
(189) — (1,939 — — — — (1,939
7,187 7 68,09: — — — — 68,10«
— — — — — (28,81¢) — (28,81¢)
— — 2,79( — — — — 2,79(
— — (1,329 — 3,47¢ (2,149 — —
43,44  $ 43 $47754¢ % (8,03 $ (51,03) $ (5,649 $ (342) $412,53:
— $ — $ — $ 4601 $ 2,741 $ 39,58t $ — $ 46,93¢
18¢ 1 981 — — — — 982
14C — — — — — — —
167 — 1,64¢ — — — — 1,64¢
(8€) — (952) — — — — (952)
— — 5,19( — — — — 5,19(
— — — — — (38,490 — (38,490
— — 3,19¢ — — — — 3,19¢
— — (3,36¢) — 5,25( (1,887) — —
43,850 $ 44  $484,24: % (343) $ (43,047 $ (6,43) $ (342)  $431,04:
— $ — $ — $ 4,516 $ 3,16¢ $ 48,100 $ — $ 46,75¢
57¢ 1 3,281 — — — — 3,28¢
50& — — — — — — —
21¢ — 2,30¢ — — — — 2,30t
(330) — (4,625 — — — — (4,625
8,10( 8 80,87: — — — — 80,88(
— — — — — (47,987) — (47,987
— — 4,30z — — — — 4,30¢
— — (5,87¢) — 2,95¢ 2,92( — —
52,92 $ 53  $564,50¢ $ (7,947 $ (36,91 $ (3,389 $ (342) $515,96!

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers.

(in thousands)

For the Years Ended
December 31,

Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assstdting from operations to net cash used inmnsided by operating activitie

Purchase of investmer
Principal payments received on investme
Proceeds from sale of investme
Net unrealized (appreciation) / depreciation orestment:
Net realized (gain) / loss on investme
Net unrealized appreication due to len
Accretion of pai-in-kind principal
Accretion of loan discount
Accretion of loan discount on Convertible Senioitéé
Accretion of loan exit fee
Change in deferred loan origination reve|
Unearned fees related to unfunded commitm
Amortization of debt fees and issuance ¢
Depreciatior
Stocl-based compensation and amortization of restridk grants
Common stock issued in lieu of Director compense
Change in operating assets and liabilit

Interest and fees receivat

Prepaid expenses and other as

Accounts payabl

Income tax receivable / (payab

Accrued liabilities

Net cash used in operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of capital equipmt
Other lon¢-term asset

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing acts

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Stock repurchase progre
Dividends paic
Borrowings of credit facilitie:
Repayments of credit facilitie
Issuance of Convertible Senior No
Issuance of 2019 Notes Paya
Issuance of Ass-Backed Note:
Cash paid for debt issuance cc
Fees paid for credit facilities and debentt

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net increase / (decrease) in ci

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Supplemental disclosures
Interest paic
Income taxes pai
Stock dividec

2012 2011 2010
$ 46,75 $ 46,93 $ 4,98
(507,099 (445,06() (322,33)
24577 247,32 196,11

25,94 17,73 7,61

4,51¢ (4,607 (1,990
(3,049 (2,749 26,38:
— — (13)
(1,400 (1,949 (3,246
(5,449 (6,999 (4,526
1,08: 767 —
(3,986 (94) 437
2,301 2,42( 4,01%
(1,900 61E 7z
1,56( 1,68¢ 53¢
28¢ 34¢ 40¢
4,30: 3,19¢ 2,79(
— — 108
(3,819 (1,300 (1,200
(989) 31¢ (276)
27¢ (569 35(
— — (41)
92¢ 2,44¢ (3,529
(193,93) (139,52)) (93,25()
(87 (189 (244)
= (25 35(
(87 (214 10€
79,64’ 30 68,72
— = (3,699

(45,679 (36,849 (26,88

64,00( 92,50( 39,40(

(74,229 (27,319 —

— 75,00 —

170,36 — —
129,30( = =

(10,869 (3,110 —

— (3,06 (2,209

312,54; 97,19¢ 75,33(
118,52( (42,540 (17,819

64,47 107,01« 124,821
$ 182,99 $ 64,47 $ 107,01
$ 18,92 $ 11,27( $ 8.2
$ a4 $ 66 $ 39
$ 2,30 $  1,64¢ $ 1,927

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentatio

Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. (the “Camny”) is a specialty finance company focused owigling senior secured loans to
venture capital-backed companies in technologytedlanarkets, including technology, biotechnologfg, $cience, and clean-technology
industries at all stages of development. The Companrces its investments through its principaiceffocated in Silicon Valley, as well as
through its additional offices in Boston, MA, Boeld CO and McLean, VA. The Company was incorporateder the General Corporation
Law of the State of Maryland in December 2003.

The Company is an internally managed, non-divemiilosed-end investment company that has electied tegulated as a business
development company (“BDC”) under the InvestmentPany Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”).nrtiacorporation through
December 31, 2005, the Company was taxed as arapigpounder Subchapter C of the Internal Revernge®f 1986, (the “Code”). Effective
January 1, 2006, the Company has elected to bedréar tax purposes as a regulated investment aopr RIC, under the Code (see Note
5).

Hercules Technology II, L.P. (“HT II"), Hercules @rnology III, L.P. (“HT IlI"), and Hercules Techrady IV, L.P. (“HT IV"), are
Delaware limited partnerships that were formedanuary 2005, September 2009 and December 201@atésgy. HT Il and HT Il were
licensed to operate as small business investmempaonies (“SBICs”), under the authority of the SnBalsiness Administration (“SBA”), on
September 27, 2006 and May 26, 2010, respectidshSBICs, HT Il and HT Ill are subject to a varietfyregulations concerning, among othel
things, the size and nature of the companies ichvtiiey may invest and the structure of those imvests. The Company also formed Herc
Technology SBIC Management, LLC, or (“HTM"), a litad liability company in November 2003. HTM is aalllf owned subsidiary of the
Company and serves as the limited partner and giepartner of HT Il and HT Ill (see Note 4).

HT Il and HT 11l hold approximately $154.4 millicand $250.8 million in assets, respectively, aneanted for approximately 10.5%
and 17.0% of our total assets prior to consoligasibDecember 31, 2012.

The Company also established wholly owned subségiaall of which are structured as Delaware cafions and limited liability
companies, to hold portfolio companies organizelinaised liability companies, or LLCs (or other fos of pass-through entities). The
Company currently qualifies as a RIC for federabime tax purposes, which allows the Company todapaying corporate income taxes on
any income or gains that the Company distributesutostockholders. The purpose of establishingetlesities is to satisfy the RIC tax
requirement that at least 90% of the Company’sgimsome for income tax purposes is investmentnreo

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements include tkeunts of the Company and its subsidiaries angaalable interest entities of which
we are the primary beneficiary. All intercompang@uents and transactions have been eliminated isadiolation.

A VIE is an entity that either (i) has insufficieedquity to permit the entity to finance its actizt without additional subordinated finan:
support or (i) has equity investors who lack thamacteristics of a controlling financial interebtie primary beneficiary of a VIE is the party
with both the power to direct the activities of Mk that most significantly impact the VIE’s ecanit performance and the obligation to
absorb the losses or the right to receive bentbfitscould potentially be significant to the VIE.

149



Table of Contents

To assess whether the Company has the power w theesactivities of a VIE that most significanifgpact its economic performance,
Company considers all the facts and circumstamu#gding its role in establishing the VIE and itggoing rights and responsibilities. This
assessment includes identifying the activities thast significantly impact the VIE’economic performance and identifying which paiftgny,
has power over those activities. In general, thieyghat makes the most significant decisions diffgcthe VIE is determined to have the power
to direct the activities of a VIE. To assess whethe Company has the obligation to absorb thesbss the right to receive benefits that could
potentially be significant to the VIE, the Comparonsiders all of its economic interests, includitedpt and equity interests, servicing rights
fee arrangements, and any other variable inteiresit® VIE. If the Company determines that it ie ffarty with the power to make the most
significant decisions affecting the VIE, and then@any has a potentially significant interest in YHE, then its consolidates the VIE.

The Company performs ongoing reassessments, uspetyerly, of whether it is the primary benefigiaf a VIE. The reassessment
process considers whether the Company has acaquiidislested the power to direct the activitieshs VIE through changes in governing
documents or other circumstances. The Companyetsmsiders whether entities previously determim&do be VIEs have become VIEs,
based on certain events, and therefore are subjéue VIE consolidation framework.

Valuation of Investments

The Company’s investments are carried at fair valuweccordance with the 1940 Act and Accountingh8tads Codification (“ASC”)
topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosdfmemérly known as SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measweets). At December 31, 2012,
80.7% of the Company'’s total assets representagbiments in portfolio companies that are valuddiatvalue by the Board of Directors.
Value, as defined in Section 2(a)(41) of the 1948, /s (i) the market price for those securitiesvidiich a market quotation is readily available
and (i) for all other securities and assets, ¥alue is as determined in good faith by the Bodmipectors. The Company’s debt securities are
primarily invested in venture capital-backed compaiin technology-related markets, including tedbgg, biotechnology, life science and
clean technology industries. Given the nature oflileg to these types of businesses, the Compamyesiments in these portfolio companies
are considered Level 3 assets under ASC 820 betaeigeis no known or accessible market or mardgies for these investment securitie
be traded or exchanged. As such, the Company vallestantially all of its investments at fair vahsedetermined in good faith pursuant to a
consistent valuation policy and the Company’s Ba#rBirectors in accordance with the provisionA&C 820 and the 1940 Act. Due to the
inherent uncertainty in determining the fair vabiénvestments that do not have a readily availatdeket value, the fair value of the
Company’s investments determined in good faithtbBoard may differ significantly from the valueattwould have been used had a readily
available market existed for such investments,thadlifferences could be material.

Our Board of Directors may from time to time engageandependent valuation firm to provide the Conypaith valuation assistance
with respect to certain of the Company’s portfafisestments on a quarterly basis. The Company distém continue to engage an independen
valuation firm to provide management with assistaregarding the Company’s determination of thevfalue of selected portfolio investments
each quarter unless directed by the Board of Diredb cancel such valuation services. The scopervices rendered by an independent
valuation firm is at the discretion of the Boardifectors. The Company’s Board of Directors ismiéitely and solely responsible for
determining the fair value of the Company’s investits in good faith.

With respect to investments for which market quotet are not readily available or when such magketations are deemed not to
represent fair value, the Company’s Board of Doechas approved a multi-step valuation proceds gaarter, as described below:

(1) the Company’s quarterly valuation process begiith each portfolio company or investment beimigally valued by the investment
professionals responsible for the portfolio invesiit)

(2) preliminary valuation conclusions are then doeunted and business based assumptions are diseouiis¢lde Company’s investment
committee;

150



Table of Contents

(3) the valuation committee of the Board of Diresteeviews the preliminary valuation of the investincommittee which incorporates
the results of the independent valuation firm gzapriate;

(4) the Board of Directors discusses valuationsdetdrmines the fair value of each investment inpmutfolio in good faith based on the
input of, where applicable, the respective indepandaluation firm and the valuation committee.

The Company adopted ASC 820 on January 1, 2008.828@stablishes a framework for measuring thevdire of the assets and
liabilities and outlines a fair value hierarchy wahiprioritizes the inputs used to measure fair@and the effect of fair value measures on
earnings. ASC 820 also enhances disclosure regeiresnfor fair value measurements based on the Vettaih the hierarchy of the information
used in the valuation. ASC 820 applies whenevezrattandards require (or permit) assets or ligdslito be measured at fair value but does nc
expand the use of fair value in any new circumstanASC 820 defines fair value as the price thatldvbe received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction beem market participants at the measurement date.

The Company has categorized all investments redati&air value in accordance with ASC 820 basashupe level of judgment
associated with the inputs used to measure thewvdtue. Hierarchical levels, defined by ASC 82@ alirectly related to the amount of
subjectivity associated with the inputs to fairuation of these assets and liabilities, are asvidl

Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices iivacharkets for identical assets at the measuredsdnst The types of assets carried at
Level 1 fair value generally are equities listecative markets.

Level 2—Inputs (other than quoted prices includedevel 1) are either directly or indirectly obsaine for the asset in connection with
market data at the measurement date and for tkeateodt the instrument’s anticipated life. Fair \@duassets that are generally included ir
this category are warrants held in a public company

Level 3—Inputs reflect management’s best estimatehat market participants would use in pricing #sset at the measurement date. |
includes prices or valuations that require inph#d ire both significant to the fair value measumeinand unobservable. Generally, asset
carried at fair value and included in this categamy the debt investments and warrants and eqbitielsin a private company.
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In accordance with ASU 2011-04, the following taptevides quantitative information about the Comypahevel 3 fair value
measurements of the Company’s investments as adrbleer 31, 2012. In addition to the techniques apdts noted in the table below,
according to the Company’s valuation policy the @amy may also use other valuation techniques artdadelogies when determining the
Company’s fair value measurements. The below tisbiet intended to be all-inclusive, but ratheryides information on the significant Level
3 inputs as they relate to the Company'’s fair vahgasurements.

Investment Type- Level Three Fair Value at Valuation Techniques/
Debt Investments December 31, 201 Methodologies Unobservable Input (@ Range
(in thousands
Pharmaceuticals—Debt $266,97! Market Comparable Companies Hypothetical Market Yield Premium/ 12.83% - 16.11%
Option Pricing ModefP) (Discount) (2.0%) - 1.0%
Average Industry Volatilitf®) Risk Free 57.67%
Interest Rate Estimated Time to Exit 0.190%
(in months) 15.2
Medical Devices—Debt 46,02: Market Comparable Companies Hypothetical Market Yield Premium 16.19%
0.0%- 1.0%
Technology—Debt 159,34: Market Comparable Companies Hypothetical Market Yield Premium/ 12.36% - 20.49%
Liquidation (Discount) (1.5%) - 1.0%
Investment Collatere $0- $7.4 million
Clean Tech—Debt 91,30¢ Market Comparable Companies Hypothetical Market Yield Premium 12.69%
0%- 1.0%
Lower Middle Market—Debt 263,89: Market Comparable Companies Hypothetical Market Yield Premium 10.75% - 16.25%
Broker Quotéd) Price Quotes 0.0% - 1.0%
Market Comparable Index Yield Spreads 78.0% 100% of pa
Par Value 4.33% - 5.93%
$30.0 million
Total Level Three Debt Investmer $827,54

(&) The significant unobservable inputs used inféiirevalue measurement of our debt securitiehgpethetical market yields and premiums/(discourfteg hypothetical market yield is
defined as the exit price of an investment in adtlyetical market to hypothetical market particiganhere buyers and sellers are willing participafte premiums (discounts) relate
company specific characteristics such as underlyingstment performance, security liens, and otheracteristics of the investment. Significant éases (decreases) in the inputs in
isolation would result in a significantly lower ¢fier) fair value measurement, depending on therrabtie of the investment. Debt investments in théustries noted in our Schedule
Investments are included in the industries notevalas follows

Pharmaceuticals, above, is comprised of dekgtstments in the Therapeutic, Specialty Pharmaadsit Drug Discovery and Development, Drug Delyemd Diagnostics and
Biotechnology industries in the Schedule of Invesits.

Medical Devices, above, is comprised of debestments in the Therapeutic, Surgical Deviceg]ibdg Devices and Equipment and Biotechnology Tawdsistries in the Schedule of
Investments

Technology, above, is comprised of debt investts in the Software, Semiconductors, InternetsGorer and Business Services, Information Servares Communications and
Networking industries in the Schedule of Investrae

Lower Middle Market, above, is comprised obt@vestments in the Communications and Networkigigctronics and Computer Hardware, HealthcargiGes—Other, Information
Services, Internet Consumer and Business Senhtedia/Content/Info, and Specialty Pharmaceuticadsistries in the Schedule of Investme

Clean Tech, above, aligns with the Clean Tech Itnguis the Schedule of Investmen

(b) An option pricing model valuation technique wasdisederive the fair value of the conversion featof convertible note:
(c) Represents the range of industry volatility usedrayket participants when pricing the investm
(d) A broker quote valuation technique was used tovedtie fair value of loans which are part of a syatd facility.
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Valuation
Investment Type- Level Three Fair Value at Techniques/
Warrant and Equity Investments December 31, 201 Methodologies Unobservable Input(® Range
(in thousands
Warrant and Equity positior $57,68! Market Comparable EBITDA Multiple ®) 1.43x -20.68x
Companies Revenue Multipld?) 0.42x -16.98x
Discount for Lack of Marketabilit(¢) 10.4%-25.2%
Warrant positions additionally subject Option Pricing Mode Average Industry Volatility@ 46.49%-141.2%
Risk-Free Interest Rat 0.17%- 0.46%
Estimated Time to
Exit (in months) 12- 48
Total Level Three Warrant and Equity Investme $57,68!

(@) The significant unobservable inputs used irféiirevalue measurement of the Company’s warradtesquity-related securities are revenue and/or BBIThultiples and discounts for
lack of marketability. Additional inputs used iretBlack Scholes option pricing model include indysblatility, risk free interest rate and estinthteme to exit. Significant increases
(decreases) in the inputs in isolation would reisuét significantly higher (lower) fair value measment, depending on the materiality of the investmFor some investments,
additional consideration may be given to data ftbenlast round of financing or merger/acquisitioems near the measurement d

(b) Represents amounts used when the Company has tetdriat market participants would use such mlelivhen pricing the investmen

(c) Represents amounts used when the Company has tretdmmarket participants would take into accoueséhdiscounts when pricing the investme

(d) Represents the range of industry volatility usedrayket participants when pricing the investm

Debt Investments

The Company’s debt securities are primarily invésteventure capital-backed companies in techneledgted markets, including
technology, biotechnology, life science and cleahnhology industries. Given the nature of lendmthese types of businesses, the Company
investments in these portfolio companies are cansiiLevel 3 assets under ASC 820 because theoekisown or accessible market or ma
indexes for these investment securities to be tralexchanged.

The Company applies a procedure that assumes afsalestment in a hypothetical market to a hyptital market participant where
buyers and sellers are willing participants. Thpdtfietical market does not include scenarios wttereinderlying security was simply repaid
or extinguished, but includes an exit concept. Wrklis process, the Company also evaluates thateddll for recoverability of the debt
investments as well as applies all of its histdriaa value analysis. The Company uses pricingemently issued comparable debt securities t
determine the baseline hypothetical market yietdsfahe measurement date. The Company considehnspaatfolio company’s credit rating,
security liens and other characteristics of thegtment to adjust the baseline yield to deriveothetical yield for each investment as of the
measurement date. The anticipated future cash flaws each investment are then discounted at tpethgtical yield to estimate each
investment'’s fair value as of the measurement date.

The Company’s process includes, among other ththgsnderlying investment performance, the curpentfolio company’s financial
condition and market changing events that impaltatean, estimated remaining life, current markield/and interest rate spreads of similar
securities as of the measurement date. The Comydngs its syndicated loans using broker quotesband indices amongst other factors. If
there is a significant deterioration of the creglitility of a debt investment, the Company may aersbther factors to estimate fair value,
including the proceeds that would be receivedligudation analysis.

The Company records unrealized depreciation orsinvents when it believes that an investment hasedsed in value, including where
collection of a loan is doubtful or if under thedrchange premise when the value of a debt seamaityto be less than amortized cost of the
investment. Conversely, where appropriate, the
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Company records unrealized appreciation if it melgethat the underlying portfolio company has apipted in value and, therefore, that its
investment has also appreciated in value or if utftein exchange premise the value of a debt ggauere to be greater than amortized cost.

When originating a debt instrument, the Companyegaly receives warrants or other equity-relatezligées from the borrower. The
Company determines the cost basis of the warrardgther equity-related securities received basehubeir respective fair values on the date
of receipt in proportion to the total fair valuetb& debt and warrants or other equity-relatedritgesireceived. Any resulting discount on the
loan from recordation of the warrant or other egjiristruments is accreted into interest income ¢ivelife of the loan.

Equity-Related Securities and Warrants

Securities that are traded in the over-the-coumtakets or on a stock exchange will be valuedeaptievailing bid price at period end.
We have a limited number of equity securities iblpucompanies. In accordance with the 1940 Acteatmicted publicly traded securities for
which market quotations are readily available alei@d at the closing market quote on the measuredate.

The Company estimates the fair value of warranitsgus Black Scholes pricing model. At each repartilate, privately held warrant and
equity-related securities are valued based on alysis of various factors including, but not lindt®, the portfolio company’s operating
performance and financial condition and generaketazonditions, price to enterprise value or ptaequity ratios, discounted cash flow,
valuation comparisons to comparable public compaaieother industry benchmarks. When an exterrettesccurs, such as a purchase
transaction, public offering, or subsequent egséte, the pricing indicated by that external eventilized to corroborate the Company’s
valuation of the warrant and equity-related semgitThe Company periodically reviews the valuatibits portfolio companies that have not
been involved in a qualifying external event toedetine if the enterprise value of the portfolio gany may have increased or decreased sinc
the last valuation measurement date.

Investments measured at fair value on a recurragjstare categorized in the tables below based tiygolowest level of significant input
to the valuations as of December 31, 2012 and &eoémber 31, 2011. We transfer investments incamaf Level 1, 2 and 3 securities as of
the beginning balance sheet date, based on chantiesuse of observable and unobservable inpilisadt to perform the valuation for the
period. During the year ended December 31, 20E2etivere no transfers in between Levels 1 or 2.

Investments at Fair Value as of December 31, 20:.
Significant
Quoted Prices In Obgg:\?;ble
Active Markets For Significant
Unobservable Inputs

(in thousands) Identical Assets Inputs
Description 12/31/201; (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Senior secured debt $ 827,54 $ — $ — 827,54(
Preferred stoc 33,88¢ — — 33,88¢
Common stocl 15,32: 13,66 — 1,65¢
Warrants 29,55( — 7,410 22,14(
$ 906,30( $ 13,66 $ 7,410 $ 885,22!
Investments at Fair Value as of December 31, 20:
Significant
Quoted Prices In Other
Active Markets For Observable Significant
Unobservable Inputs
(in thousands) Identical Assets Inputs
Description 12/31/201 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Senior secured debt $ 585,76 $ — $ — $ 585,76
Preferred stoc 30,28¢ — — 30,28¢
Common stocl 6,76¢ 6,67¢ — 9C
Warrants 30,04 — 3,761 26,28
$ 652,87( $ 6,67¢ $ 3,761 $ 642,43(
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The table below presents reconciliation for albfigial assets and liabilities measured at fairevaln a recurring basis, excluding accruec
interest components, using significant unobservadpats (Level 3) for the years ended Decembef812 and December 31, 2011.

) Gross Gross
Net change in Transfers  Transfers
Balance, unrealized Balances,
January 1, appreciation or into out of December 31
_ Net Realized Level 3 Leyel3
(in thousands) 2012 Gains (lossesft)  depreciation ®)  Purchase: ~ Sales  Repayment:  Exit G ©) 2012
Senior Debt $ 585,760 $ (5,179 $ (2,267) $ 545,910 $ (2,000 $ (294,29) $— $  (40¢) 827,54(
Preferred Stoc 30,28t (739) 4,11: 10,56: (6,55%) — — 35¢€ (4,14¢) 33,88¢
Common Stocl 90 (1€) 5,52: 9,55¢ (45 — — — (13,457 1,65¢
Warrants $  26,28¢ 4,41 (2,457 7,362 (9,21 — — — (4,25€) 22,14(
Total $ 642,43 $ (1,519 $ 4,92( $ 573,39! $(17,809 $ (29429) $— 3 35€ $ (22,259 $ 885,22!
Nﬁarcgsir;ge%m Gross Gross
Balance, appreciation or Transfers  Transfers Balances,
January 1, December 31
Net Realized into out of
(in thousands) 2011 Gains (lossesf)  depreciation @  Purchase:  Sales Repayment  Exit _Level 3 Level 3 2011
Senior Debt $ 394,19t $ (430) $ 9,05C $ 454,64( $— $ (263,43) $— $ = $ (438) $ 585,76
Subordinated Del 7,42( — — — — (7,420 — — — —
Preferred Stoc 24,60% (1,447 83¢ 1,86( — — — 4,42t — 30,28¢
Common Stocl 1,03( — (940) — — — — — — 9C
Warrants 17,40: (1,05¢) 5,243 6,501 497 — (59) — (1,265 $ 26,28¢
Total $ 44465t $ (6,799 $ 14,19: $ 463,00 $(497) $ (270,85) $(51) $ 442f $ (5659 $ 642,43(

(1) Includes net realized gains (losses) recordedaized gains or losses in the accompanying coreselistatements of operatio

(2) Included in change in net unrealized appreciatiodepreciation in the accompanying consolidatetéstants of operation

(3) Transfers in to Level 3 relate to the conversid E-Band Communications, Inc. debt to equityanifers out of Level 3 relate to the respectivgainpublic offerings of Annie’s, Inc.,
Cempra, Inc., Enphase Energy, Inc. Facebook, Merrimack Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Trulia, Inc. andg&@/orks, Inc. to level :

For the year ended December 31, 2012, approxim&g8/million in unrealized appreciation and $2.ifliom in unrealized depreciation
was recorded for equity and warrant Level 3 investts, respectively, relating to assets still he¢ldha reporting date. For the same period,
approximately $2.3 million in unrealized deprematiwas recorded for Level 3 debt investments radeattd assets still held at the reporting d

For the year ended December 31, 2011, approxim@&gely million and $3.8 million in unrealized appegion was recorded for debt and
warrant Level 3 investments, respectively, relatmgssets still held at the reporting date. Ferstlime period, approximately $480,000 in
unrealized depreciation was recorded for equityel &vinvestments relating to assets still helchatreporting date.

As required by the 1940 Act, the Company classifemvestments by level of control. “Control irstments” are defined in the 1940 Act
as investments in those companies that the Compatgemed to “control”. Generally, under the 1940, Ahe Company is deemed to “control’
a company in which it has invested if it owns 2586more of the voting securities of such companfas greater than 50% representation ¢
board. “Affiliate investments” are investments ftose companies that are “affiliated companieshef€ompany, as defined in the 1940 Act,
which are not control investments. The Companyesnted to be an “affiliate” of a company in whichdts invested if it owns 5% or more but
less than 25% of the voting securities of such camyp“Non-control/non-affiliate investments” ares@stments that are neither control
investments nor affiliate investments.
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The following table summarizes our realized andeahzed gain and loss and changes in our unreadigpreciation anddepreciation on
control and affiliate investments for the yearsezh®ecember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011:

(in thousands

Portfolio Company
E-Band Communications, Corp

Gelesis, Inc
Optiscan BioMedical, Corp

Total

(in thousands

Portfolio Company
MaxVision Holding, LLC

E-Band Communications, Corp

Total

Year Ended
December 31, 2012
Reversal of
Unrealized Unrealized .
Investment (Depreciation)/ (Depreciation), Realizec
Fair Value at Gain/
Type December 31, 201 Income Appreciation Appreciation (Loss)
Nonr-
Controlled Affiliate $ — $ 4 $ 18 $ — $ —
Non-Controlled
Affiliate 1,66t 712 (672) $ — $ —
Non-Controlled
Affiliate 10,207 1,64¢ 2,722 — —
$ 11,87 $ 2,36E $ 2,06¢ $ — $ —
Year Ended
December 31, 201.
Reversal of
Unrealized Unrealized .
Investment (Depreciation) (Depreciation)i Realizec
Fair Value at Gain/
Type December 31, 201 Income Appreciation Appreciation (Loss)
Control $ 1,027 $ 88¢ $ (5,15¢) $ — $ —
Non-
Controlled Affiliate — 14 (3,425 — —
$ 1,027 $ 903 $ (8,589 $ = $ —

At December 31, 2012, the Company did not hold@amtrol Investments. The Company’s investment ixWlsion Holding, L.L.C., a
company that was a Control Investment as of DeceBibe2011, was liquidated during the year endedeDwer 31, 2012. On July 31, 2012,
the Company received payment of $2.0 million fertdtal debt investments in Maxvision Holding, ICL Approximately $8.7 million of
realized losses and $10.5 million of net changenirealized appreciation was recognized on thisrobdebt and equity investment during the

year ended December 31, 20

A summary of the composition of the Company’s et portfolio as of December 31, 2012 and DecerB8be2011 at fair value is

shown as follows:

(in thousands)

Senior secured debt with warrants
Senior secured de

Preferred stoc

Common Stocl

December 31, 201,

Investments at Fail

Value
$ 652,04:
205,04¢
33,88t
15,32¢
$ 90630

Percentage of Tote

Portfolio
72.(%
22.t%
3.7%
1.7%
100.(%

December 31, 201
Investments at Fail

Percentage of

Total
Value Portfolio
$ 482,26¢ 73.%%
133,54« 20.4%
30,18: 4.6%
6,871 1.1%
$ 652,87( 100.(%

A summary of the Company’s investment portfolioyalue, by geographic location as of December 8122and as of December 31,

2011 is shown as follows:

(in thousands)

United States
England
Iceland
Ireland
Canadz

Israel

December 31, 201,

Investments at Fail

Value
$ 901,04
5,25¢
$ 906,30(

Percentage of Tote

Portfolio
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99.4%
0.6%

100.(%

December 31, 201
Investments at Fail Percentage of Tote

Value Portfolio

$ 634,73( 97.2%
8,26¢ 1.3%

4,97( 0.7%

3,84: 0.€%

672 0.1%

384 0.1%

$ 652,87!( 100.(%
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The following table shows the fair value the Comyamportfolio by industry sector at December 3112@nd December 31, 2011:

December 31, 201, December 31, 201

Investments at Fail Percentage of Tote Investments at Fail Percentage of Tote
(in thousands) Value Portfolio Value Portfolio
Drug Discovery & Development $ 188,47¢ 20.% $ 131,42¢ 20.1%
Internet Consumer & Business Servi 136,14¢ 15.(% 117,54. 18.(%
Clean Tech 126,60( 14.(% 64,587 9.9%
Drug Delivery 74,21¢ 8.2% 62,668 9.6%
Software. 70,83¢ 7.8% 27,85( 4.3%
Medical Device & Equipmer 54,57¢ 6.C% — 0.C%
Information Service 53,52{ 5.9% 45,85( 7.C%
Media/Content/Infc 51,53¢ 5.7% 38,47¢ 5.9%
Communications & Networkin 37,56( 4.1% 28,61¢ 4.4%
Healthcare Services, Othi 36,48: 4.C% — 0.C%
Diagnostic. 16,30° 1.8% 15,15¢ 2.2%
Consumer & Business Produr 13,72 1.5% 4,18¢ 0.6%
Electronics & Computer Hardwa 12,71¢ 1.4% 1,22:¢ 0.2%
Specialty Pharm 12,47 1.4% 39,38 6.C%
Surgical Device: 11,35¢ 1.3% 11,56¢ 1.8%
Biotechnology Tool: 6,84t 0.8% 18,69: 2.9%
Semiconductor 2,922 0.3% 9,737 1.5%
Therapeutic — — 35,91: 5.5%

$ 906,30( 100.(% $ 652,87( 100.(%

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coynfognded investments in debt securities and equoitgstments, totaling
approximately $486.8 million and $9.7 million, resfively. During the year ended December 31 2012 Qompany converted approximately
$356,000 of debt to equity in one portfolio company

In addition, in December 2011, Hercules entereadl amt agreement to acquire shares of Facebookgdnumon stock for approximately
$9.6 million through a secondary marketplace. Tivestments were subject to a Facebook, Inc. rifyfitsd refusal, which expired thirty days
after the date of investment. At December 31, 20&%e assets were held as Other Assets. In Feli20&8 Hercules was notified that
Facebook Inc. had not exercised its repurchasé wih respect to any of the shares and had exéaltelocuments necessary to fully transfer
the ownership of the shares to Hercules. Accorgirgjiring the year ended December 31, 2012, thestnvent in Facebook, Inc. was
transferred from Other Assets to Investments.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynfognded investments in debt securities and equoitgstments, totaling
approximately $433.4 million and $2.1 million, resfively. During the year ended December 31, 26i Company converted approximately
$4.4 million of debt to equity in two portfolio cqranies.

No single portfolio investment represents more thd¥ of the fair value of the investments as ofdémeber 31, 2012 and 2011.

During the year ended December 31,2012, the Compmognized net realized gains of approximatel® $3illion on the portfolio.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, we redaeiized gains of approximately $5.1 million, B&illion, $2.6 million $2.4 million an
$2.4 million from the sale of NEXX Systems, IncABRX Medical, DeCode Genetics, Aegerion Pharmacalgiand Annie’s. These gains
were offset by losses of approximately $8.7 milli8.2 million, $672,000 and $463,000, respectivilym the liquidation of MaxVision
Holding, L.L.C, Razorgator Interactive Group, Zatteractive Corporation and Magi.cdipka Hi5 Networks, Inc.).
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In 2011, we generated realized gains totaling apprately $11.1 million primarily due to the salewérrants and equity investments i
portfolio companies. We recognized realized logs&911 of approximately $8.4 million on the disjias of investments in 13 portfolio
companies.

Loan origination and commitment fees received lhdtuthe inception of a loan are deferred and dined into fee income as an
enhancement to the related loan’s yield over tmraotual life of the loan. Loan exit fees to bédpat the termination of the loan are accreted
into interest income over the contractual lifetwf toan. The Company had approximately $2.0 milliad $4.5 million of unamortized fees at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resplyctarel approximately $6.8 million and $4.4 millionexit fees receivable at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resplctive

The Company has loans in its portfolio that contapayment-in-kind (“PIK”) provision. The PIK intst, computed at the contractual
rate specified in each loan agreement, is add#uktprincipal balance of the loan and recordedhiseést income. To maintain the Company’s
status as a RIC, this non-cash source of incomé beugaid out to stockholders in the form of divide even though the Company has not yet
collected the cash. Amounts necessary to pay thiegends may come from available cash or the tigtion of certain investments. The
Company recorded approximately $1.5 million and’$tillion in PIK income during the years ended Daber 31, 2012 and December 31,
2011, respectively.

In certain investment transactions, the Company pnayide advisory services. For services that apasately identifiable and external
evidence exists to substantiate fair value, inca@mecognized as earned, which is generally whernhestment transaction closes. The
Company had no income from advisory services irytda ended December 31, 2012.

In some cases, the Company collateralizes its tmessts by obtaining a first priority security ingst in a portfolio company’s assets,
which may include their intellectual property. Ither cases, the Company may obtain a negative @lealgering a company’s intellectual
property. At December 31, 2012, approximately 62af%e Company’s portfolio company loans were sedby a first priority security in all
of the assets of the portfolio company (includihgit intellectual property), 36.0% of portfolio cpany loans were to portfolio companies that
were prohibited from pledging or encumbering tlietiellectual property and 1.6% of portfolio compdogns had an equipment only lien.

Income Recognition

The Company records interest income on the acbagis and we recognize it as earned in accordaitieghe contractual terms of the
loan agreement to the extent that such amountsxgected to be collected. Original Issue Discoldt”) initially represents the value of
detachable equity warrants obtained in conjunactiih the acquisition of debt securities and is ated into interest income over the term of
loan as a yield enhancement. When a loan becomeay@0or more past due, or if management othemdss not expect the portfolio compi
to be able to service its debt and other obligatitime Company will generally place the loan on-aocrual status and cease recognizing
interest income on that loan until all principabHzen paid. Any uncollected interest related itor reriods is reversed from income in the
period that collection of the interest receivalsleiétermined to be doubtful. However, we may makegtions to this policy if the investment
has sufficient collateral value and is in the pescef collection. As of December 31, 2012, the Canyphad one portfolio company on non-
accrual status with an approximate cost of $347d&@0no fair market value. There was one loan anauzrual status with an aggregate cost
of approximately $7.7 million and a fair value g@paoximately $1.0 million as of December 31, 20R4ring the third quarter of 2012 the
Company recognized a realized loss of approximéiglg million on our warrant, equity and debt inwesnts in this company.

Fee Income.

Fee income, generally collected in advance, indudan commitment and facility fees for due diligerand structuring, as well as fees
for transaction services and management servicgkered by us to portfolio companies and other thadies. Loan and commitment fees are
amortized into income over the contractual lifetaf loan.
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Management fees are generally recognized as inedma the services are rendered. Loan originaties &e capitalized and then
amortized into interest income using the effecihterest rate method. In certain loan arrangemevas;ants or other equity interests are
received from the borrower as additional originatiees.

We recognize nonrecurring fees amortized overéhgaining term of the loan commencing in the quagkating to specific loan
modifications. Certain fees may still be recogniasne-time fees, including prepayment penalfiées related to select covenant default
waiver fees and acceleration of previously defeload fees and original issue discount (OID) reldteearly loan pay-off or material
modification of the specific debt outstanding.

Financing costs

Debt financing costs are fees and other direcemental costs incurred by the Company in obtaidiglgt financing and are recognizec
prepaid expenses and amortized into the consotidateement of operations as loan fees over the ¢éthe related debt instrument. Prepaid
financing costs, net of accumulated amortizatioarenas follows:

As of Decembel

31

(in thousands) 2012 2011
Wells Facility $ 867 $ 90¢€
SBA Debentur¢ 5,871 5,82¢
Convertible Senior Note 1,90( 2,471
Asse-Backed Note! 4,07¢ —
2019 Notes 6,287 —

$19,00¢ $9,211

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers money market funds and bighly liquid shortterm investments with a maturity of less than 9¢sda be cas
equivalents.

Stock Based Compensation

Compensation expense associated with stock basegersation is measured at the grant date basdwdait value of the award and is
recognized over the vesting period. Determiningappropriate fair value model and calculating tiie Value of stock-based awards at the
grant date requires judgment, including estimasitogk price volatility, forfeiture rate and expetption life.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net earningsiaable to common shareholders by the weightedaayeenumber of common shares
outstanding. Common shares outstanding includesrmomnstock and restricted stock for which no futseevice is required as a condition to
delivery of the underlying common stock. DilutedEiRcludes the determinants of basic EPS and,ditiad, reflects the dilutive effect of the
common stock deliverable pursuant to stock optamto restricted stock for which future serviceeiguired as a condition to the delivery of
the underlying common stock.

Income Taxes

We operate to qualify to be taxed as a RIC undeiriternal Revenue Code. Generally, a RIC is extitd deduct dividends it pays to its
shareholders from its income to determine “taxatdeme.” Taxable income includes our net taxablerest, dividend and fee income, as well
as our net realized capital gains. Taxable
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income generally differs from net income for finaheeporting purposes due to temporary and permtatiéferences in the recognition of
income and expenses. In addition, taxable incomergdly excludes any unrealized appreciation orggtion in our investments, because
gains and losses are not included in taxable inaamikthey are realized and required to be reczgphi Taxable income includes certain
income, such as contractual payment-in-kind inteaed amortization of discounts and fees thatgsired to be accrued for tax purposes even
though cash collections of such income are geryedaflerred until repayment of the loans or debtigges that gave rise to such income.

We have distributed and currently intend to distrébsufficient dividends to eliminate taxable in@ri/e are subject to a nondeductible
federal excise tax of 4% if we do not distributdeatst 98% of our investment company taxable inconasy calendar year and 98.2% of our
capital gain net income for each one year periatingnon October 31. We did not record an excisetaxision for the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011. The maximum amountaa’ss taxable income that may be carried overigbrildution in the next year under
the Code is the total amount of dividends paichnfollowing year, subject to certain declarationl @ayment guidelines.

Comprehensive Income

The Company reports all changes in comprehensoanie in the Consolidated Statement of Operatioomehensive income is equal
to net increase in net assets resulting from ojperat

Dividends

Dividends and distributions to common stockholdeesapproved by the Board of Directors on a quigrtersis and the dividend payable
is recorded on the ex-dividend date.

We have adopted an “opt out” dividend reinvestnma that provides for reinvestment of our disttibo on behalf of our stockholders,
unless a stockholder elects to receive cash. Asudtr if our Board of Directors authorizes, anddeelare a cash dividend, then our
stockholders who have not “opted out” of our divideeinvestment plan will have their cash dividemdomatically reinvested in additional
shares of our common stock, rather than receiviegash dividends. During 2012, 2011 and 2010Ctrapany issued approximately 219,(
167,000 and 199,000 shares, respectively, of constamk to shareholders in connection with the diwidi reinvestment plan.

Segments

The Company lends to and invests in portfolio coniggin various technology-related companies, ohiolg clean technology, life
science, and lower middle market companies. Theg@omyseparately evaluates the performance of ddathlending and investment
relationships. However, because each of thesedpdnnvestment relationships has similar businedseaonomic characteristics, they have
been aggregated into a single lending and investesgment.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standardddtie No. 2011-04—Fair Value Measurement: Amendsienfichieve Common
Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure RequiremantsS. GAAP and IFRSs, or ASU 2011-04. ASU 201 lclatifies the application of
existing fair value measurement and disclosureirements, changes the application of some requinésrfer measuring fair value and requ
additional disclosure for fair value measuremenie highest and best use valuation premise isapjicable to non-financial assets. In
addition, the disclosure requirements are expata@ttlude for fair value measurements categorinddevel 3 of the fair value hierarchy: (1
guantitative disclosure of the unobservable inpuis assumptions used in the measurement; (2) aptest of the valuation processes in
place; and (3) a narrative description of the taityi of the fair value to changes in unobservablguts and interrelationships between
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those inputs. ASU 2011-04 is effective for intedamd annual periods beginning after December 151 2@t public entities and as such the
Company has adopted this ASU beginning with thetquanded March 31, 2012. The Company has inctetagedisclosures related to Lew
fair value measurement, in addition to other reglidlisclosures. There were no related impacts ofirancial position or results of operatic

3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value estimates are made at discrete pointmmbased on relevant information. These estisat@y be subjective in nature and
involve uncertainties and matters of significamtgment and, therefore, cannot be determined wehigion. The Company believes that the
carrying amounts of its financial instruments, dstiisg of cash and cash equivalents, receivabtefumts payable and accrued liabilities
approximate the fair values of such items due ¢osthort maturity of such instruments. The Convirtenior Notes, 2019 Notes payable (the
“April 2019 Notes” and the “September 2019 Notdegether the “2019 Notes”), the Asdgcked Notes and the SBA debentures as sourt
liquidity remain a strategic advantage due to tfiekible structure, long-term duration, and lowei interest rates. At December 31, 2012, the
April 2019 Notes were trading on the New York Stébichange for $0.986 per dollar at par value, &amdeptember 2019 Notes were trading
on the New York Stock Exchange for $1.003 per daltgpar value. Based on market quotations onairrat December 31, 2012, the
Convertible Senior Notes were trading for $1.03@bgpllar at par value and the Asset-Backed Noee wading for $1.00 per dollar at par
value. Calculated based on the net present valpayshents over the term of the notes using estuimatgrket rates for similar notes and
remaining terms, the fair value of the SBA debezgurould be approximately $242.3 million, compaethe carrying amount of
$225.0 million as of December 31, 2012.

Identical Assett Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs
(in thousands)
Description 12/31/201: (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Convertible Senior Notes $ 77,81 $ — $ 77,81 $ —
April 2019 Notes $ 83,30 $ — $ 83,30" $ —
September 2019 Not: $ 86,15( $ — $ 86,15( $ —
Asse-Backed Note: $ 129,30( $ — $ — $ 129,30(
SBA Debenture $ 242,30( $ — $ — $ 242,30(

The liabilities of the Company below are recordedraortized cost and not at fair value on the bzdasheet. The following table
provides additional information about the levethie fair value hierarchy of our liabilities:

See the accompanying Consolidated Schedule of timegds for the fair value of the Company’s invesitse The methodology for the
determination of the fair value of the Companygastments is discussed in Note 1.

4. Borrowings
Long-term SBA Debentures

On September 27, 2006, HT Il received a licensgpirate as a SBIC under the SBIC program and éstatidorrow funds from the SBA
against eligible investments and additional contidns to regulatory capital. With the Company’s ileestment of $38.0 million in HT Il as
of December 31, 2012, HT Il has the capacity toess total of $76.0 million of SBA guaranteed debess, subject to SBA approval, of which
$76.0 million was outstanding as of December 3122@s of December 31, 2012, HT Il has paid comraiitifees of approximately
$1.5 million. As of December 31, 2012, the Compheld investments in HT Il in 51 companies with & f&lue of approximately $132.6
million, accounting for approximately 14.6% of tBempany’s total portfolio.

On May 26, 2010, HT Il received a license to opers a SBIC under the SBIC program and is abbetmw funds from the SBA
against eligible investments and additional contidns to regulatory capital. With the Company’s imeestment of $74.5 million in HT 1l as
of December 31, 2012, HT lll has the capacity suésa total of $149.0 million of SBA guaranteedefgbres, subject to SBA approval, of
which $149.0 million was outstanding as
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of December 31, 2012. As of December 31, 2012, IHfids paid commitment fees of approximately $1lilion. As of December 31, 2012,
the Company held investments in HT Il in 35 comipamwith a fair value of approximately $223.6 naifli accounting for approximately
24.7% of the Company'’s total portfolio.

There is no assurance that HT 1l or HT Il will &kle to draw to the maximum limit available undex §BIC program.

SBICs are designed to stimulate the flow of privedaity capital to eligible small businesses. Urgheisent SBA regulations, eligible
small businesses include businesses that haveiblieanet worth not exceeding $18.0 million andéaverage annual fully taxed net income
not exceeding $6.0 million for the two most reciistal years. In addition, SBICs must devote 25df%s investment activity to “smaller”
concerns as defined by the SBA.

A smaller concern is one that has a tangible nethwmot exceeding $6.0 million and has average alfinlly taxed net income not
exceeding $2.0 million for the two most recentdisgears. SBA regulations also provide alternasive standard criteria to determine
eligibility, which depend on the industry in whitle business is engaged and are based on suctsfastthe number of employees and gross
sales. According to SBA regulations, SBICs may makeg-term loans to small businesses, invest in the pgeiturities of such businesses
provide them with consulting and advisory serviddwough its wholly-owned subsidiaries HT Il and HIT the Company plans to provide
long-term loans to qualifying small businesses, iantbnnection therewith, make equity investments.

HT Il and HT Il are periodically examined and atadi by the SBAS staff to determine their compliance with SBA ragjons. If HT Il ol
HT Ill fails to comply with applicable SBA regulatis, the SBA could, depending on the severity efviblation, limit or prohibit HT II's or
HT III's use of debentures, declare outstandingediélires immediately due and payable, and/or lintitHr HT 11l from making new
investments. In addition, HT Il or HT 1l may albe limited in their ability to make distributions the Company if they do not have sufficient
capital in accordance with SBA regulations. Sudipas by the SBA would, in turn, negatively afféioe Company because HT Il and Ill are
the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries. HT Il ai@l 11l were in compliance with the terms of the $Bd leverage as of December 31, 2
as a result of having sufficient capital as defineder the SBA regulations.

The rates of borrowings under various draws frommSBA beginning in April 2007 are set semiannuailiMarch and September and
range from 2.25% to 5.73%. Interest payments on 88#entures are payable seamiqually. There are no principal payments requimethes:
issues prior to maturity and no prepayment persaliebentures under the SBA generally mature tarsyafter being borrowed. Based on the
initial draw down date of April 2007, the initialaturity of SBA debentures will occur in April 201IA addition, the SBA charges a fee that is
set annually, depending on the Federal fiscal freateverage commitment was delegated by the S&ggrdless of the date that the leverage
was drawn by the SBIC. The annual fees relatedTidl ldebentures that pooled on September 22, 20dr@ @.406% and 0.285%, depending
upon the year in which the underlying commitmenswimsed. The annual fees related to HT Il delrestthat pooled on September 19, 2012
were 0.804%. The annual fees on other debentukesheen set at 0.906%. The average amount of delesrdutstanding for the year ended
December 31, 2012 for HT Il was approximately $98iltion with an average interest rate of approxieta5.68%. The average amount of
debentures outstanding for the quarter ended Dese&ih 2012 for HT Il was approximately $112.0lrait with an average interest rate of
approximately 3.25%.

HT Il and HT 11l hold approximately $154.4 millicand $250.8 million in assets, respectively, andanted for approximately 10.5%
and 17.0% of the Company’s total assets prior tsobdation at December 31, 2012.

In January 2011, the Company repaid $25.0 millibBBA debentures under HT II, priced at approxirha®63%, including annual fee
In April 2011, the SBA approved a $25.0 million idolcommitment for HT III.
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In February 2012, the Company repaid $24.25 milibSBA debentures under HT II, priced at 6.63%luding annual fees. In June
2012, the SBA approved a $24.25 million dollar catnment for HT IIl.

In August 2012, the Company repaid $24.75 millioiSBA debentures under HT I, $12.0 million pricad6.43%, including annual fees
and $12.75 million priced at 6.38%, including arrfeas.

As of December 31, 2012, the maximum statutorytlonithe dollar amount of outstanding SBA guarashdebentures issued by a single
SBIC is $150.0 million, subject to periodic adjustms by the SBA, and a maximum amount of $225.0anifor funds under common contr
subject to periodic adjustments by the SBA. Inabgregate, at December 31, 2012 there was $228i0mprincipal amount of indebtedness
outstanding incurred by our SBIC subsidiaries,nttaximum statutory limit on the dollar amount of SBAaranteed debentures under the S
program.

The Company reported the following SBA debentungtstanding on its Consolidated Statement of AsmedsLiabilities as of
December 31, 2102 and December 31, 2011:

December 31

(in thousands) Issuance/Pooling Dat Maturity Date Interest Rate(®) 2012 2011
SBA Debentures:

September 26, 20( September 1, 20: 6.42% $ — $ 12,00(
March 26, 200¢ March 1, 201¢ 6.3¢% 34,80( 58,05(
September 24, 20( September 1, 20: 6.62% — 13,75(
March 25, 200¢ March 1, 201¢ 5.52% 18,40( 18,40(
September 23, 20( September 1, 20: 4.64% 3,40( 3,40(
September 22, 201 September 1, 20: 3.62% 6,50( 6,50(
September 22, 201 September 1, 20: 3.5(% 22,90( 22,90(
March 29, 201: March 1, 2021 4.31% 28,75( 28,75(
September 21, 201 September 1, 20: 3.16% 25,00( 25,00(
March 21, 201: March 1, 2022 3.05% 11,25( 11,25(
March 21, 201: March 1, 202: 3.28% 25,00( 25,00(
September 19, 201 September 1, 20: 3.05% 24,25( —
November 14, 201 November 1, 202 3.050% (2) 24,75( —
Total SBA Debentures $225,00( $225,00(

(1) Interest rate includes annual cha
(2) Interim interest on the November 14, 2012 borrowiingxpected to pool in March 2013 at which datepfincipal interest rate will be s

Wells Facility

In August 2008, the Company entered into a $50I0omitwo-year revolving senior secured credit fagiwith Wells Fargo Capital
Finance (the “Wells Facility”). On June 20, 201ie Company renewed the Wells Facility. Under this¢-year senior secured facility, Wells
Fargo Capital Finance has made commitments of $#lion. The facility contains an accordion feaum which the Company can increase
the credit line up to an aggregate of $300.0 mnllimnded by additional lenders and with the agres@mf Wells Fargo Capital Finance and
subject to other customary conditions. The Compapects to continue discussions with various gploéential lenders to join the new facili
however, there can be no assurances that additendérs will join the Wells Facility.

On August 1, 2012, the Company entered into an dment to the Wells Facility. The amendment reddlcesnterest rate floor by 75
basis points to 4.25% and extends the maturity lofatene year to August 2015. Additionally, an anzation period of 12 months was adde:
pay down the principal balance as of the maturitiedand the unused line fee was reduced.
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Borrowings under the Wells Facility will generabyar interest at a rate per annum equal to LIBQR BI50%, with a floor of 4.25% a
an advance rate of 50% against eligible loans.\Wi#ls Facility is secured by loans in the borrowbagse. The Wells Facility requires paymen
of a non-use fee on a scale of 0.0% to 0.50% oé&teeage monthly outstanding balance. The montiyrent of a non-use fee thereafter shal
depend on the average balance that was outstaodiagscale between 0.0% and 0.50%. For the thregknperiod ended December 31, 2012,
this non-use fee was approximately $96,000. On 2002011 the Company paid an additional $1.1 amilln structuring fees in connection
with the Wells Facility which is being amortizeddhgh the end of the term. At December 31, 201&ethvere no borrowings outstanding on
this facility.

The Wells Facility includes various financial anukoating covenants applicable to us and our surgddi in addition to those applicable
to Hercules Funding Il, LLC. These covenants regjthe Company to maintain certain financial ratind a minimum tangible net worth in an
amount, when added to outstanding subordinatedtadaess, that is in excess of $362.0 million P& of the cumulative amount of equity
raised after June 30, 2012. In addition, the tdegikt worth covenant will increase by 90 centshandollar for every dollar of equity capital
that we subsequently raise. As of December 31, 2BE2minimum tangible net worth covenant has iaseel to $392.3 million as a result of
October 2012 follow-on public offering of 3.1 mdh shares of common stock for proceeds of appraeiyn&33.6 million. The Wells Facility
provides for customary events of default, includibgt not limited to, payment defaults, breachegfresentations or covenants, bankruptcy
events and change of control. The Company wasritptiance with all covenants at December 31, 2012.

Union Bank Facility

On February 10, 2010, the Company entered a $2illibmone-year revolving senior secured creditiifacwith Union Bank (the Union
Bank Facility”). On November 2, 2011, the Compaegewed and amended the Union Bank Facility anddhddew lender under the Union
Bank Facility. Union Bank and RBC Capital MarketRBC") have made commitments of $30.0 million ar&b® million, respectively. The
Union Bank Facility contains an accordion featumexhich the Company can increase the credit liméouan aggregate of $150.0 million,
funded by additional lenders and with the agreem&hinion Bank and subject to other customary ctows. The Company expects to
continue discussions with various other potenéatlers to join the new facility; however, there bamo assurances that additional lenders
join the Union Bank Facility

On March 30, 2012, the Company entered into an dment to the Union Bank Facility which permitte@ tBiompany to issue additior
senior notes relating to the offer and sale of20lir9 Notes. On September 17, 2012, the Companyeehigo an amendment to the Union
Bank Facility. Pursuant to the terms of the amenantbe Company is permitted to increase its ungetindebtedness by an aggregate ori
principal amount not to exceed $200.0 million irredrafter March 30, 2012 in one or more issuaresjded certain conditions are satisfied
for each issuance.

On December 17, 2012, we further amended the UB&nk Facility to remove RBC from the Union Bank
Facility. Following the removal of RBC, the UnioraBk Facility consists solely of Union Bank’s commmént of
$30.0 million. In connection with the amendmeng thaximum availability under the Union Bank Fagilit
subject to a borrowing base, was reduced from $5#l®n to $30.0 million. The Union Bank Faciligontains
an accordion feature, in which we could increasectiedit line by up to $95.0 million in the aggregdunded
by commitments from additional lenders and withdlgeeement of Union Bank and subject to other ecnatyg conditions. There can be no
assurances that additional lenders will join théodrBank Facility.

Borrowings under the Union Bank Facility will geally bear interest at a rate per annum equal t@ORBplus 2.25% with a floor of
4.0%. The Union Bank Facility requires the paynard non-use fee of 0.50% annually. For the threstimperiod ended December 31, 2012
this nonuse fee was approximately $65,000. The tUBiank Facility is collateralized by debt investrteeim our portfolio companies, and
includes an advance rate equal to 50.0% of eliddzlas placed in the collateral pool. The Union IB&acility generally requires payment of
interest on a monthly basis. All outstanding pratiis due upon maturity. At December 31, 2012rehveere no borrowings outstanding on |
facility.
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The Union Bank Facility requires various finan@ald operating covenants. These covenants reqeit€dmpany to maintain certain
financial ratios and a minimum tangible net worttan amount, when added to outstanding subordinatettedness, that is in excess of
$314.0 million plus 90% of the amount of net casbcpeds received from the sale of common stock Bféech 31, 2011. As of December 31,
2012, the minimum tangible net worth covenant hasgased to $386.8 million as a result of the Janaiad October 2012 follow-on public
offerings of 5.0 and 3.1 million shares of commtotk, respectively, for total net proceeds of agprately $80.9 million. The Union Bank
Facility will mature on November 1, 2014, approxteig three years from the date of issuance, reuglthrough the first 24 months with a
term out provision for the remaining 12 months. dnBank Facility also provides for customary evaftdefault, including, but not limited t
payment defaults, breach of representations orraos, bankruptcy events and change of control.Gdrapany was in compliance with all
covenants at December 31, 2012.

Citibank Credit Facility

The Company, through Hercules Funding Trust |, féiliaed statutory trust, had a securitized crddidility (the “Citibank Credit
Facility”) with Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp. whichpined under normal terms. During the first quaae2009, the Company paid
all principal and interest owed under the Citib&rkdit Facility. Citigroup has an equity particijpat right through a warrant participation
agreement on the pool of loans and warrants cadli@ed under the Citibank Credit Facility. Pursuanthe warrant participation agreement,
the Company granted to Citigroup a 10% participatioall warrants held as collateral. However, ddifonal warrants were included in
collateral subsequent to the facility amendmeniary 2, 2007. As a result, Citigroup is entitledlfafb of the realized gains on the warrants
until the realized gains paid to Citigroup pursuanthe agreement equal $3,750,000 (the “Maximuntidiaation Limit"). The obligations
under the warrant participation agreement contauen after the Citibank Credit Facility is termiedtuntil the Maximum Participation Limit
has been reached.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Coynatuced its realized gain by approximately $2@0,for Citigroups participatior
in the gain on sale of equity securities and reedral decrease on participation liability and inseekits unrealized gains by a net amount of
approximately $386,000 for Citigroup’s participatiarhe value of their participation right on unieadl gains in the related equity investments
was approximately $313,000 as of December 31, 20#2s included in accrued liabilities. There camb assurances that the unrealized
appreciation of the warrants will not be highetawer in future periods due to fluctuations in tredue of the warrants, thereby increasing or
reducing the effect on the cost of borrowing. Simoeption of the agreement, the Company has piigr@up approximately $1.4 million
under the warrant participation agreement theredycing the Company’s realized gains by this amotim Company will continue to pay
Citigroup under the warrant participation agreemari the Maximum Participation Limit is reachedthe warrants expire. Warrants subject
to the Citigroup participation agreement are sebqgire between January 2013 and January 2017.

Convertible Senior Notes

In April 2011, the Company issued $75.0 millioreiggregate principal amount of its 6.00% convert#grior notes (the “Convertible
Senior Notes”) due 2016.

The Convertible Senior Notes mature on April 151&Qthe “Maturity Date”), unless previously conattor repurchased in accordance
with their terms. The Convertible Senior Notes lintarest at a rate of 6.00% per year payable sewaally in arrears on April 15 and
October 15 of each year, commencing on Octobe?@%]. The Convertible Senior Notes are the Compasgnior unsecured obligations and
rank senior in right of payment to the Company’stixg and future indebtedness that is expresdiplinated in right of payment to the
Convertible Senior Notes; equal in right of paymtenthe Company’s existing and future unsecuredlitedness that is not so subordinated;
effectively junior in right of payment to any ofetf€Company’s secured indebtedness (including unsdéndebtedness that the Company later
secures) to the extent of the value of the assetsing such indebtedness; and structurally jurtiall existing and future indebtedness
(including trade payables) incurred by the Compausyibsidiaries, financing vehicles or similar fiéieis.
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Prior to the close of business on the businessrdmediately preceding October 15, 2015, holders ommyert their Convertible Senior
Notes only under certain circumstances set forthénindenture. On or after October 15, 2015 uhélclose of business on the schedi
trading day immediately preceding the Maturity Dédelders may convert their Convertible Senior Nateany time. Upon conversion, the
Company will pay or deliver, as the case may bésatlection, cash, shares of its common stock@mbination of cash and shares of its
common stock. The conversion rate will initially 8.0972 shares of common stock per $1,000 prihaipaunt of Convertible Senior Notes
(equivalent to an initial conversion price of appnoately $11.89 per share of common stock). Theremsion rate will be subject to adjustment
in some events but will not be adjusted for anyaed and unpaid interest. In addition, if certadnporate events occur prior to the Maturity
Date, the conversion rate will be increased fowveoting holders.

The Company may not redeem the Convertible SenidedNprior to maturity. No sinking fund is providfed the Convertible Senior
Notes. In addition, if certain corporate eventsuscholders of the Convertible Senior Notes mayiexthe Company to repurchase for casl
or part of their Convertible Senior Notes at a repase price equal to 100% of the principal amaodithe Convertible Senior Notes to be
repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid interestghrdaut excluding, the required repurchase date.

The Convertible Senior Notes are accounted focaoadance with ASC 470-20 (previously FASB Staf§ifion No. APB 14- 1,
“Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments ThaaBe Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Includingi®aCash Settlement)”). In
accounting for the Convertible Senior Notes, wingtied at the time of issuance that the valuebefiebt and the embedded conversion
feature of the Convertible Senior Notes were appnately 92.8% and 7.2%, respectively. The origiralie discount of 7.2% attributable to
conversion feature of the Convertible Senior Netas recorded in “capital in excess of par valuethe accompanying consolidated statemen
of assets and liabilities. As a result, the Compaprds interest expense comprised of both staterkest expense as well as accretion of the
original issue discount. Additionally, the issuarosts associated with the Convertible Senior Ner® allocated to the debt and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of thecgeds and accounted for as debt issuance cabktgjaity issuance costs, respectively. At
the time of issuance, the debt issuance costsquity éssuance costs were approximately $2.9 mildod $224,000, respectively. At the time
of issuance and as of December 31, 2012, the ecoiityponent, net of issuance costs, as recordéaitcapital in excess of par value” in the
balance sheet was approximately $5.2 million.

As of December 31, 2012, the components of the/icayvalue of the Convertible Senior Notes weréaisws:

(in thousands) As of December 31, 201
Principal amount of debt $ 75,00(
Original issue discount, net of accret (3,569

Carrying value of dek $ 71,43¢

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201gpthponents of interest expense, fees and casHgaiterest expense for the
Convertible Senior Notes were as follows:

For the Years

Ended
December 31,
(in thousands) 2012 2011
Stated interest expense $4,50( $3,187
Accretion of original issue discou 1,082 767
Amortization of debt issuance cc 5717 40¢
Total interest expens $6,16( $4,36°
Cash paid for interest exper $4,50( $2,25(
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The estimated effective interest rate of the debtmonent of the Convertible Senior Notes, equ#héostated interest of 6.0% plus the
accretion of the original issue discount, was ayipnately 8.1 % and 8.2% for the three and twelvaiths ended December 31, 2012,
respectively. As of December 31, 2012, the Compsuity compliance with the terms of the indenturegegning the Convertible Senior Notes.

2019 Notes

On March 6, 2012, the Company and the Trustee exhiato the Base Indenture. On April 17, 2012,Gloenpany and the Trustee ente
into the First Supplemental Indenture to the Basiemture, dated April 17, 2012, relating to the @any’s issuance, offer and sale of $43.0
million aggregate principal amount of 7.00% semiotes due 2019 (the “April 2019 Notes”). The sdlthe April 2019 Notes generated net
proceeds, before expenses, of approximately $4iliom

On September 24, 2012, the Company and the Trustéered into the Second Supplemental Indentutleet®ase Indenture, dated as of
September 24, 2012, relating to the Company’s ieseieoffer and sale of $75.0 million aggregateq@pal amount of 7.00% senior notes due
2019 (the “September 2019 Notes”). The sale oStgtember 2019 Notes generated net proceeds, lefoeases, of approximately $72.75
million.

2019 Notes payable is compromised of:

As of
(in thousands) December 31, 201 December 31, 201
April 2019 Notes $ 84,49( $ —
September 2019 Not 85,87 —
Carrying value of det $ 170,36! $ —

April 2019 Notes

The April 2019 Notes will mature on April 30, 2048d may be redeemed in whole or in part at the @oiyip option at any time or frol
time to time on or after April 30, 2015, upon ne$s than 30 days nor more than 60 days writtegabt mail prior to the date fixed for
redemption thereof, at a redemption price of 100%h® outstanding principal amount thereof plusraed and unpaid interest payments
otherwise payable for the then-current quarterdgrigst period accrued to but not including the fiatad for redemption. The April 2019 Notes
bear interest at a rate of 7.00% per year payakdeterly on January 30, April 30, July 30 and OetoBO of each year, commencing on July
2012, and trade on the New York Stock Exchange uthdetrading symbol “HTGZ.”

The April 2019 Notes will be the Company’s direosecured obligations and will rank: @ari passuwith our other outstanding and
future senior unsecured indebtedness, includingowit limitation, the $75 million in aggregate piipel amount of the Convertible Senior
Notes; (ii) senior to any of the Comp¢’s future indebtedness that expressly provides subordinated to the April 2019 Notes; (iii) effeely
subordinated to all the Company’s existing andrieigecured indebtedness (including indebtednesssthmtially unsecured to which the
Company subsequently grants security), to the extiethe value of the assets securing such indekts] including without limitation,
borrowings under the Company’s credit facilitigs) étructurally subordinated to all existing andure indebtedness and other obligations of
any of the Company’s subsidiaries, including withiimitation, the indebtedness of Hercules Techgwlb, L.P. and Hercules Technology llI,
L.P. and borrowings under the Company’s revolviegisr secured credit facility with Wells Fargo GtapFinance.

The Indenture, as supplemented by the First Sugpieahindenture, contains certain covenants inolydovenants requiring the
Company to comply with (regardless of whether &ubject to) the asset coverage requirements ghtifoSection 18(a)(1)(A) as modified by
Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act to comply with testrictions on dividends, distributions and pasd of capital stock set forth in Section 18
(2)(2)(B) as modified by Section 61(a)(1) of thet@®ct and to provide financial information to thelders of the April 2019 Notes

167



Table of Contents

and the Trustee if the Company should no longesugect to the reporting requirements under then$iexs Exchange Act of 1934. These
covenants are subject to important limitations exceptions that are described in the Indentursupplemented by the First Supplemental
Indenture. The Indenture provides for customaryneef default and further provides that the Tragiethe holders of 25% in aggregate
principal amount of the outstanding April 2019 Nobe a series may declare such April 2019 Notesediately due and payable upon the
occurrence of any event of default after expirattbany applicable grace period.

The April 2019 Notes were sold pursuant to an undéng agreement dated April 11, 2012 among thenBany and Stifel, Nicolaus &
Company, Incorporated, as representative of therabunderwriters named in the underwriting agregme

In July 2012, we re-opened our April 2019 Notes imsded an additional amount of approximately $4dilSon in aggregate principal
amount of April 2019 Notes, which includes exer@$an over-allotment option, bringing the total@mt of the April 2019 Notes issued to
approximately $84.5 million in aggregate principaiount.

September 2019 Notes

The September 2019 Notes will mature on Septembe2(@®L9 and may be redeemed in whole or in paltea€ompany’s option at any
time or from time to time on or after September3W.5, upon not less than 30 days nor more thata§8 written notice by mail prior to the
date fixed for redemption thereof, at a redempgiooe of 100% of the outstanding principal amoiereof plus accrued and unpaid interest
payments otherwise payable for the then-currenttguw interest period accrued to but not includihg date fixed for redemption. The
September 2019 Notes bear interest at a rate 0%/ fer year payable quarterly on March 30, Jun&aftember 30 and December 30 of eac
year, commencing on December 30, 2012, and tradleeoNew York Stock Exchange under the trading yr*HTGY.”

The September 2019 Notes will be the Company’stliresecured obligations and will rank: @ari passuwith our other outstanding
and future senior unsecured indebtedness, includithgut limitation, the $75 million in aggregateanxipal amount of the Convertible Senior
Notes; (ii) senior to any of the Compi’s future indebtedness that expressly provides subordinated to the September 2019 Notes;

(iii) effectively subordinated to all the Compan¥gsisting and future secured indebtedness (inctudidebtedness that is initially unsecured to
which the Company subsequently grant securitytheéoextent of the value of the assets securing isuebtedness, including without
limitation, borrowings under the Company’s creditifities; (iv) structurally subordinated to allisting and future indebtedness and other
obligations of any of our subsidiaries, includingheut limitation, the indebtedness of Herculeshreadogy II, L.P. and Hercules Technology
I, L.P. and borrowings under the Company’s revwndvsenior secured credit facility with Wells Far@apital Finance.

The Base Indenture, as supplemented by the Seaguleégnental Indenture, contains certain covenaisiding covenants requiring the
Company to comply with (regardless of whether gubject to) the asset coverage requirements ghtifoSection 18(a) (1)(A) as modified by
Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act to comply with testrictions on dividends, distributions and paisd of capital stock set forth in Section 18
(2)(1)(B) as modified by Section 61(a)(1) of thetl@%ct and to provide financial information to thelders of the September 2019 Notes and
the Trustee if the Company should no longer beesatltp the reporting requirements under the Seesifiixchange Act of 1934. These
covenants are subject to important limitations exceptions that are described in the Indentursupplemented by the Second Supplemental
Indenture. The Indenture provides for customaryneef default and further provides that the Tragiethe holders of 25% in aggregate
principal amount of the outstanding September 204fs in a series may declare such September 263 Nnmediately due and payable
upon the occurrence of any event of default aftpiration of any applicable grace period.

The September 2019 Notes were sold pursuant toderwriting agreement dated September 19, 2012'(thderwriting Agreement”)
among the Company and Stifel, Nicolaus & Compangoiporated, as representative of the several umiders named in the underwriting
agreement.
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In October 2012, the underwriters exercised thear@llotment option for an additional $10.9 mitliof the September 2019 Notes,
bringing the total amount of the September 201%®bl@sued to approximately $85.9 million in aggtegmincipal amount.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 201g&pthponents of interest expense and related feksash paid for interest expense
and fees for the April 2019 and September 2019 $Nate as follows:

For the Years Endec

December 31

(in thousands) 2012 2011

Stated interest expense

$5,13¢ $
Amortization of debt issuance cc 422 —
Total interest expense and fe $ 5,562 $—
Cash paid for interest expense and - $4,79( $—

As of December 31, 2012, the Company is in compéanith the terms of the indenture governing theil&919 Notes and the
September 2019 Notes.

Asset-Backed Notes

On December 19, 2012, the Company completed a $28illion term debt securitization in connectiorthvivhich an affiliate of the
Company made an offering of $129.3 million in aggtte principal amount of fixed-rate asset-backadsfthe “Asset-Backed Notes”), which
Asset-Backed Notes were rated A2(sf) by Moody'sbkters Service, Inc. The Asset-Backed Notes wsreds by Hercules Capital Funding
Trust 2012-1 pursuant to a note purchase agreenfetet] as of December 12, 2012, by and among usuldse Capital Funding 2012-1 LLC,
as Trust Depositor (the “Trust Depositor”), Hercu@apital Funding Trust 2012-1, as Issuer (theu8sy, and Guggenheim Securities, LLC,
Initial Purchaser, and are backed by a pool of@donans made to certain of our portfolio comparied secured by certain assets of those
portfolio companies and are to be serviced by tbea@any. Interest on the Asset-Backed Notes wilpie, to the extent of funds available, at
a fixed rate of 3.32% per annum. The Asset-Backetdé®have a stated maturity of December 16, 2017.

As part of this transaction, the Company enteréal dnsale and contribution agreement with the Tiegiositor under which the Compz
has agreed to sell or have contributed to the Tegiositor certain senior loans made to certaiouofportfolio companies (the “Loans”). The
Company has made customary representations, wiasamd covenants in the sale and contributionesgeat with respect to the Loans as of
the date of their transfer to the Trust Depositor.

In connection with the issuance and sale of thefABaicked Notes, the Company has made customangsesgiations, warranties and
covenants in the note purchase agreement. The-Basked Notes are secured obligations of the Issnérare non-recourse to the Company.
The Issuer also entered into an indenture goverthiaghsseBacked Notes, which indenture includes customguyesentations, warranties &
covenants. The Asset-Backed Notes were sold witheimy registered under the Securities Act of 1833amended (the “Securities Act”), to
“qualified institutional buyers” in compliance withe exemption from registration provided by Ru&A under the Securities Act and to
institutional “accredited investors” (as definedHnle 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) under the Secesithct) who in each case, are “qualified
purchasers” for purposes of Section 3(c)(7) underl940 Act. In addition, the Trust Depositor eadkinto an amended and restated trust
agreement, which includes customary representatiarranties and covenants.
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The Loans will be serviced by the Company purstmatsale and servicing agreement, which contaistomary representations,
warranties and covenants. The Company will perfoemiain servicing and administrative functions wigspect to the Loans. The Company
will be entitled to receive a monthly fee from tlssuer for servicing the Loans. This servicing\igk equal the product of one-twelfth (or in
the case of the first payment date, a fraction Egune number of days from and including Decenthez012 through and including January
15, 2013 over 360) of 2.00% and the aggregateandstg principal balance of the Loans, excludinglefaulted Loans and all purchased
Loans, as of the first day of the related collaetii@riod (the period from the 5th day of the imnag¢ely preceding calendar month through the
4th day of the calendar month in which a paymete dacurs, and for the first payment date, theogkiriom and including December 5, 2012,
to the close of business on January 4, 2013).

The Company will also serve as administrator tol$iseer under an administration agreement, whicludes customary representations,
warranties and covenants.

Outstanding Borrowings
At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, thep@nynhad the following borrowing capacity and catsling borrowings:

December 31, 201, December 31, 201
Total Carrying Total Carrying
Available Available

(in thousands) Value (1) Value @)
Union Bank Facility $ 30,00( $ — $ 55,00( $ —
Wells Facility 75,00( — 75,00( 10,187
Convertible Senior Note(?) 75,00( 71,43¢ 75,00( 70,35:
2019 Notes 170,36: 170,36: — —
Asse-Backed Note! 129,30( 129,30( — —
SBA Debenture(® 225,00 225,00 225,00 225,00
Total $ 704,66¢ $596,10( $ 430,00( $305,54(

(1) Except for the Convertible Senior Notes (as defibeldw), all carrying values are the same as theipal amount outstandin

(2) Represents the aggregate principal amount outstgredithe Convertible Senior Notes (as definedwgless the unaccreted discount initially recordpdn issuance of the Converti
Senior Notes. The total unaccreted discount folGbevertible Senior Notes was $3.6 million at DebenB1, 2012

(3) InJanuary 2012, we repaid $25.0 million of SB&bentures under HT Il, priced at approximateBB®o, including annual fees. In April 2012, the SBgproved a $25.0 million dollar
commitment for HT 11l bringing the total availabb®rrowings to $225.0 million, of which $125.0 nilfi was available in HT Il and $100.0 million was#able in HT 111
In February 2012, we repaid $24.25 milliérs8A debentures under HT I, priced at approxirya6e63%, including annual fees. In June 2012,8BA approved a $24.25 million
dollar commitment for HT IlI
In August 2012, the Company repaid $24.7%aniof SBA debentures under HT 11, $12.0 millipriced at 6.43%, including annual fees, and $1ilon priced at 6.38%, including
annual fees. In September 2012, the SBA approsgg#t&’5 million dollar commitment for HT Il bringinthe total available borrowings to $225.0 milliefiwhich $76.0 million was
available in HT Il and $149.0 million was availalieHT I11.

5. Income Taxes
The Company intends to operate so as to qualibettaxed as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Codgaasnsuch, will not be subject to
federal income tax on the portion of taxable incand gains distributed to stockholders.

To qualify as a RIC, the Company is required to theeetain income and asset diversification testeddition to distributing at least 90%
of its investment company taxable income, as ddftmethe Code. Because federal income tax reguakatiiffer from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States, distrimstin accordance with tax regulations may diffent net investment income and realized
gains
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recognized for financial reporting purposes. Difezes may be permanent or temporary in nature.dPenmh differences are reclassified am
capital accounts in the financial statements tlecetheir tax character. Differences in classiiwamay also result from the treatment of short
term gains as ordinary income for tax purposesiriguhe year ended December 31, 2012 and 201 Cdhepany reclassified for book

purposes amounts arising from permanent book/téerdnces primarily related to accelerated revaegegnition for income tax purposes,
respectively, as follows:

December 31

(in thousands) 2012 2011

Distributions in excess of investment income $2,92( $(1,887)
Accumulated realized gains (loss 2,95¢ 5,25(C
Additional paic-in capital (5,87¢) (3,36¢)

For income tax purposes, distributions paid to shalders are reported as ordinary income, retuoapital, long term capital gains or a
combination thereof. The tax character of distiilng paid for the years ended December 31, 2012@h#l was ordinary income in the
amounts of $48.0 million and $38.5 million, respesy.

The aggregate gross unrealized appreciation offeestments over cost for federal income tax pugpagas $19.9 million and $34.5
million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respelgtivi he aggregate gross unrealized depreciati@uoinvestments under cost for federal
income tax purposes was $27.6 million and $39.4ianiks of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectiVdig net unrealized depreciation over
cost for federal income tax purposes was $7.8onillis of December 31, 2012 and net unrealized dieicn over cost for federal income tax

purposes was $4.9 million as of December 31, 20hé&.aggregate cost of securities for federal inctargurposes was $916.9 million and
$658.0 million as of December 31, 2012 and 201dpeetively.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the componentsstifilditable earnings on a tax basis detailed beliffer from the amounts reflected

in the Companys Statement of Net Assets and Liabilities by terapobook/ tax differences primarily arising fronettreatment of loan relat:
yield enhancement

December 31

(in thousands) 2012 B 2011

Accumulated Capital Gains (Losses) $(35,94() $(48,567)
Other Temporary Difference (3,726 (16)
Undistributed Ordinary Incom 1,552 23€
Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation) (10,480 i 4,90)
Components of Distributable Earnin $(48,599) _ $(53,249)

The Company will classify interest and penaltiéany, related to unrecognized tax benefits asmapoment of provision for income tax

Based on an analysis of our tax position, thersarencertain tax positions that met the recogmitiomeasurement criteria. The
Company is currently not undergoing any tax exatrona. The Company does not anticipate any siganfiencrease or decrease in
unrecognized tax benefits for the next twelve menithe 2009, 2010 and 2011 federal tax years ®Cimpany remain subject to

examination by the IRS. The 2008, 2009, 2010 arid Ziate tax years for the Company remain subgeexamination by the California
Franchise Tax Board.

6. Shareholders’ Equity

On January 20, 2012, the Company raised approxiyn®4&.7 million, net of issuance costs, in a pablifering of 5,000,000 shares of
common stock.

171



Table of Contents

On July 25, 2012, the Company'’s Board of Direceggproved the extension of the stock repurchaseipidar the same terms and
conditions that allowed the Company to repurchas®$35.0 million of its common stock. The stoekurchase plan expired on February 26
2013. During the year ended December 31, 2012Cdmpany did not repurchase any common stock.

On October 3, 2012, the Company raised approxim&®8.2 million, net of issuance costs, in a pubffering of 3,100,000 shares of its
common stock.

At December 31, 2012, the Company was authorizésste 100,000,000 shares of common stock withr &gdae of $0.001. Each share
of common stock entitles the holder to one vote.

The Company has issued stock options for commark stobject to future issuance, of which 2,574,74® 4,231,444 were outstanding
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

7. Equity Incentive Plan

The Company and its stockholders have authorizddhdnpted the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2BG&h”) for purposes of
attracting and retaining the services of its exeeutfficers and key employees. Under the 2004 RlenCompany is authorized to issue
7,000,000 shares of common stock. On June 1, Zdddkholders approved an increase of 1,000,00@shauthorizing the Company to issue
8,000,000 shares of common stock under the 2004 Blaless terminated earlier by the Company’s Badifdirectors, the 2004 Plan will
terminate on June 9, 2014, and no additional awaasbe made under the 2004 Plan after that date.

The Company and its stockholders have authorizddhdnpted the 2006 Non-Employee Director Plan‘@0€6 Plan”and, together wit
the 2004 Plan, the “Plans”) for purposes of atingcand retaining the services of its Board of Bioes. Under the 2006 Plan, the Company is
authorized to issue 1,000,000 shares of commoik.stiidess terminated earlier by the Company’s Badrdirectors, the 2006 Plan will
terminate on May 29, 2016 and no additional awardg be made under the 2006 Plan after that dageCbBmpany filed an exemptive relief
request with the Securities and Exchange Commig88FEC”) to allow options to be issued under th@@®lan which was approved on
October 10, 2007.

On June 21, 2007, the stockholders approved amartdrteethe 2004 Plan and the 2006 Plan allowingtfergrant of restricted stock.
The amended Plans limit the combined maximum amourgstricted stock that may be issued under Bédhs to 10% of the outstanding
shares of the Company’s stock on the effective datke Plans plus 10% of the number of sharesoaksssued or delivered by the Company
during the terms of the Plans. The amendmentsdugpecify that no one person shall be granteddsaafrrestricted stock relating to more
than 25% of the shares available for issuance uh@e2004 Plan. Further, the amount of voting sgearthat would result from the exercise of
all of the Company’s outstanding warrants, optiand rights, together with any restricted stockésspursuant to the Plans, at the time of
issuance shall not exceed 25% of its outstanditigg@ecurities, except that if the amount of vgteecurities that would result from such
exercise of all of the Company’s outstanding wasaoptions and rights issued to the Company’sctbirs, officers and employees, together
with any restricted stock issued pursuant to tle$lwould exceed 15% of the Company’s outstanditigg securities, then the total amount
of voting securities that would result from the of all outstanding warrants, options andtggtogether with any restricted stock issued
pursuant to the Plans, at the time of issuancé sbaéxceed 20% of our outstanding voting secesiti

In conjunction with the amendment and in accordamitie the exemptive order, on June 21, 2007 the @omw made an automatic grant
of shares of restricted common stock to MessrsaBasi Chow and Woodward, the independent membéts Bbard of Directors, in the
amounts of 1,667, 1,667 and 3,334 shares, respictin May 2008, the Company issued restrictedeshto Messrs. Badavas and Chow in the
amount of 5,000 shares each. In June 2009, the @wyripsued 5,000 restricted stock shares to Mr.ddaod. The shares were issued purs
to the 2006 Plan and vested 33% on an annual fresishe date of grant. Deferred compensation wast recognized ratably over the three
year vesting perioc
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A summary of restricted stock activity under then@any’s 2006 and 2004 Plans for each of the thegiegs ended December 31 2012,
2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2004
2006 Plar Plan
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 21,66¢ 530,47!
Grantec — 491,50(
Cancellec — (3,879
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 21,66¢ 1,018,10:
Grantec 10,00( 296,60(
Cancellec — (123,50:)
Qutstanding at December 31, 2( 31,66¢ 1,191,20
Grantec 5,00( 686,85¢
Cancellec — (59,019
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 36,66¢ 1,819,04

A summary of common stock options activity under @ompany’s 2006 and 2004 Plans for each of tleetheriods ended December 31
2012, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

Weighted
Common Average
Stock Exercise

Options Price
Shares Outstanding at January 1, 2010 4,924,40! $ 10.72
Grantec 575,25( $ 10.1¢
Exercisec (520,66¢) $ 4.91
Cancelled/Forfeite: (249,140 $ 10.1«
Shares Outstanding at December 31, 2 4,729,84 $ 11.3:
Grantec 599,86( $ 10.5¢
Exercisec (178,10) $ 4.9:
Cancelled/Forfeite (938,009 $ 11.7¢
Shares Outstanding at December 31, 2 4,213,60: $ 11.4C
Grantec 189,00( $ 10.71
Exercisec (564,19 $ 5.5¢€
Cancelled/Forfeite (1,263,65) $ 12.7C
Shares Outstanding at December 31, 2 2,574,74! $ 12.0C
Shares Expected to Vest at December 31, : 424,67¢ $ 12.0C

Options generally vest 33% one year after the dggant and ratably over the succeeding 24 morth®ptions may be exercised for a
period ending seven years after the date of ghdribecember 31, 2012, options for approximatelyrgilfion shares were exercisable at a
weighted average exercise price of approximate® 3l per share with weighted average of remainargractual term of 2.06 years. The
Company determined that the fair value of optior@ted under the 2006 and 2004 Plans during thes yealed December 31, 2012, 2011 anc
2010 was approximately $326,000, $1.3 million ahd3$nillion, respectively. During the years endegtBmber 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
approximately $416,000, $557,000, and $719,00bhafebased cost due to stock option grants was experesgukctively. As of December .
2012, there was $640,000 of total unrecognized emsgtion costs related to stock options. These ewstexpected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 2.07 years. The fauevalf options granted is based upon a Black Sclog#sn pricing model using the
assumptions in the following table for each of tthee periods ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar@i2Giks follows:

2012 2011 2010
Expected Volatility 46.39% 46.39% 46.3%
Expected Dividend 10% 1C% 10%
Expected term (in year 4.t 4.t 4.5
Risk-free rate 0.49%-1.07% 0.68%-2.15% 0.89%-2.51%
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The following table summarizes stock options outdiiag and exercisable at December 31, 2012;

(Dollars in thousands, excep

exercise price) Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
average Weighted average Weighted
remaining Aggregate remaining Aggregate
contractual average contractual average
Number intrinsic exercise Number intrinsic exercise
Range of exercise price of shares life value price of shares life value price
$4.21-$8.49 46,24¢ 428 $ 25583t $  5.6( 46,24¢ 428 $ 25583t $ 5.6C
$8.6+$13.40 1,889,50 3.2¢ 600,81: $ 11.4¢ 1,464,82! 2.41 293,17¢  $ 11.7¢
$13.8'-$15.00 668,50( 1.0¢€ — $ 14.0- 668,50( 1.0¢€ — $ 14.0Z
$4.21-$15.00 2,604,24 27 $85664 $ 12.01 2,179,57. 2.0:  $ 549,01! $ 12.3Z

In 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company granted apmeately 691,859 and 306,600 and 491,500 sharesatdggly, of restricted stock
pursuant to the Plans. Each restricted stock agmdted in 2012, 2011 and 2010 is subject to lasse 25% of the award one year after the
date of grant and ratably over the succeeding 3@tiscsubject to a four year forfeiture schedular8ibased compensation cost will be
recognized ratably over the four year vesting krido restricted stock was granted pursuant t@@@ Plan prior to 2009.

The Company determined that the fair value of igtstil stock granted under the 2006 and 2004 Plansgithe years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was approxim@tetymillion, $3.4 million and $5.1 million, resgaely. During the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company sgdeapproximately $3.9 million, $2.6 million andGillion of compensation expense
related to restricted stock, respectively. As o€&mber 31, 2012, there was approximately $8.2niltif total unrecognized compensation
costs related to restricted stock. These costexgrected to be recognized over a weighted averagedoof 2.68 years.

The following table summarizes the activities far anvested restricted stock for the years endez¢iéer 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Unvested Restricted Stock Unit:

Weighted-
Average
Grant-Date
Number of

Shares Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2010 487,52 $ 7.0¢€
Grantec 491,50( $ 10.3¢
Vested (196,49) $ 6.67
Forfeited (3,872) $ 5.0t
Unvested at December 31, 2(C 778,66« $ 9.27
Grantec 306,60( $ 11.1¢
Vested (340,259 $ 9.3¢
Forfeited (123,509 $ 9.6:
Unvested at December 31, 2( 621,50¢ $ 10.0¢
Grantec 691,85¢ $ 10.8:
Vested (354,56() $ 9.8¢
Forfeited (59,019 $ 9.9t
Unvested at December 31, 2(C 899,78¢ $ 10.7:

The SEC, through an exemptive order granted on 28n2010, approved amendments to the Plans whal participants to elect to
have the Company withhold shares of the Compargrsneon stock to pay for the exercise price and apple taxes with respect to an option
exercise (“net issuance exercisel'he exemptive order also permits the holders dfioted stock to elect to have the Company withtsfidre:
of Hercules stock to pay the applicable taxes dueestricted stock at the time of vesting. Eachividdial can make, and does not preclude the
participant from electing to make, a cash paymetiietime of option exercise or to pay taxes @trieted stock.
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8. Earnings per Share
Shares used in the computation of the Company’s laasl diluted earnings per share are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

(in thousands, except per share datz 2012 2011 2010
Numeratol
Net increase in net assets resulting from opera $ 46,75¢ $ 46,93¢ $ 4,98
Less: Dividends declar-common and restricted sha (47,987) (38,497) (28,81€)
Undistributed earning (1,229 8,44+ (23,839)
Undistributed earnin-common share (1,229 8,44¢ (23,839
Add: Dividend declare-common share 46,96° 37,82t 28,22¢
Numerator for basic and diluted change in net assstper common share $ 45,748 $ 46,27( $ 4,39«
Denominatol
Basic weighted average common shares outstandi 49,06¢ 42,98¢ 36,15¢
Common shares issuat 88 311 714
Weighted average common shares outstanding assumidgution 49,15¢ 43,29¢ 36,87(
Change in net assets per common sha
Basic $ 0.9: $ 1.0¢ $ 0.1z
Diluted $ 0.9: $ 1.07 $ 0.1z

The calculation of change in net assets resultiogn foperations per common share—assuming diluércdudes all anti-dilutive shares.
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar}j #@ number of anti-dilutive shares, as calcdl@i@sed on the weighted average closing
price of the Company’s common stock for the perjodss approximately 2,574,749, 2,583,707 and 50088 ,shares, respectively.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company’s commitments and contingencies copsistarily of unused commitments to extend credithe form of loans to the
Company’s portfolio companies. The balance of udathcommitments to extend credit at December 312 26taled approximately $61.9
million. Since a portion of these commitments magiee without being drawn, unfunded commitmentsndbnecessarily represent future cast
requirements. In addition, the Company had appratety $70.0 million of non-binding term sheets tartsling at December 31, 2012. Non-
binding outstanding term sheets are subject to tetiop of the Company’s due diligence and final mppl process, as well as the negotiation
of definitive documentation with the prospectivetfaio companies. Not all non-binding term shearts expected to close and do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements.

Certain premises are leased under agreements whyiite at various dates through December 2020 Tetaexpense amounted to
approximately $1.2 million, $1.1 million and $1.0llion during the years ended December 31, 2012124nd 2010, respectively.

Future commitments under the credit facility anéraping leases were as follows at December 31,:2012

Payments due by perioc
(in thousands)

Less thar
1-3 3-5 After 5
Contractual Obligations V)2 Total 1 year years years years
Borrowings®)®) $596,10( $  — $129,30( $71,43¢ $395,36:
Operating Lease Obligatioi®) 8,81¢ 1,24¢ 2,881 3,04¢ 1,64¢
Total $604,91¢ $ 1,24 $132,18: $74,48( $397,01:

(1) Excludes commitments to extend credit to our pbdfcompanies
(2) The Company also has a warrant participation ageeémith Citigroup. See Note
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(3) Includes $225.0 million in borrowings under 8BA debentures, $170.4 million of the 2019 No#i£9.3 million in aggregate principal amount of Aeset-Backed Notes and $71.4
million of the Convertible Senior Note

(4) Except for the Convertible Senior Notes, alrgimg values are the same as the principal amoutstanding. The aggregate principal amount out@tgrof the Convertible Senior
Notes less the unaccreted discount initially reedrdpon issuance of the Convertible Senior Notes$8z6 million at December 31, 20:

(5) Long-term facility leases

The Company may, from time to time, be involveditigation arising out of its operations in the nal course of business or otherwise.
Furthermore, third parties may try to seek to ingpliebility on the Company in connection with tretigities of its portfolio companies. While
the outcome of any current legal proceedings caatidiis time be predicted with certainty, the Campdoes not expect any current matters
will materially affect the Company’s financial catidn or results of operations; however, there bamo assurance whether any pending lega
proceedings will have a material adverse effedhenCompany’s financial condition or results of @t®ns in any future reporting period.

10. Indemnification

The Company and its executives are covered by ireand Officers Insurance, with the directors afiiders being indemnified by the
Company to the maximum extent permitted by Marylkvd subject to the restrictions in the 1940 Act.

11. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company’s customers are primarily small andiomedized companies in the biotechnology, drugaliscy, drug delivery, specialty
pharmaceuticals, therapeutics, clean technologynuanications and networking, consumer and busipextucts, electronics and computers,
information services, internet consumer and busisesvices and products, medical devices, semiabodand software industry sectors.
These sectors are characterized by high margighk,drowth rates, consolidation and product and etagktension opportunities. Value is of
vested in intangible assets and intellectual ptyper

The largest portfolio companies vary from yeargaryas new loans are recorded and loans pay ddh tevenue, consisting of interest,
fees, and recognition of gains on equity interesds, fluctuate dramatically when a loan is paidaofé related equity interest is sold. Revenue
recognition in any given year can be highly con@eti among several portfolio companies.

For years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, thep&uyis ten largest portfolio companies represeapgatoximately 35.2% and
37.9% of the total fair value of the Company'’s istveents in portfolio companies, respectively. AtBaber 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company
had eight and seven investments, respectivelyrépaesented 5% or more of the Company’s net asseBecember 31, 2012, the Company
had six equity investments representing approxilpai@.9% of the total fair value of the Companytpigy investments, and each represented
5% or more of the total fair value of the Comparstgiity investments. At December 31, 2011, the Gayghad seven equity investments
which represented approximately 63.8% of the tiaialvalue of the Company’s equity investments, aadh represented 5% or more of the
total fair value of such investments.
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12. Financial Highlights

Following is a schedule of financial highlights fore years ended December 31, 2012.

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Per share dati
Net asset value at beginning of per $ 9.8¢ $ 9.5C $ 10.2¢
Net investment incom(1) 0.9¢ 0.9z 0.81
Net realized gain (loss) on investme 0.0¢€ 0.0¢€ (0.79)
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on iowesits (0.09) 0.11 0.0¢€
Total from investment operatiol 0.9t 1.0¢ 0.14
Net increase/(decrease) in net assets from capigab transactior (0.19 0.07 (0.23)
Distributions (0.99) (0.90 (0.80
Stocl-based compensation expense included in investmeoitie(®) 0.0¢ 0.07 0.0¢
Net asset value at end of per $ 9.7¢ $ 9.8¢ $ 9.5C
Ratios and supplemental da
Per share market value at end of pe $ 11.13 $ 9.44 $ 10.3¢
Total return® 28.2¢% -0.8%% 7.7%
Shares outstanding at end of pel............ccccoveviennn 52,92t 43,85: 43,44«
Weighted average number of common shares outs@ 49,06¢ 42,98¢ 36,15¢
Net assets at end of peri $ 515,96 $ 431,04 $ 412,53
Ratio of operating expense to average net a 10.2¢% 9.61% 8.25%
Ratio of net investment income to average net 8 10.01% 9.45% 8.05%
Average debt outstandir $ 360,85 $ 238,87: $ 142,41
Weighted average debt per common sl $ 7.3t $ 5.5€ $ 3.94

(1) For 2012, 2011 and 2010, net investment incomeipare is calculated as net investment income diviigethe weighted average shares outstani
(2) Stock option expense is a non-cash expensédsato effect on net asset value. Pursuant to ABCnet investment loss includes the expense iassdavith the granting of stock
options which is offset by a corresponding increaggaic-in capital.

(3) The total return for the period ended Decembe812, 2011 and 2010 equals the change in the enutinget value over the beginning of period pricegtere plus dividends paid |
share during the period, divided by the beginnirigep
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13. Senior Securities

Information about our senior securities is showthimfollowing table for the periods as of Decem®&r2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008,
2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004.

Total
Amount Average
Outstanding
Market
Exclusive of Asset Coverag Value

Treasur i
Class and Year Securities¥l) per_Unit 2 per(gmt
Bridge Loan Credit Facility with Alcmene Funding.LC.
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C $ 25,000,00 $ 2,50¢ N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 201 — — N/A
December 31, 201 — — N/A
December 31, 201 — — N/A
Securitized Credit Facility with Wells Fargo Capinance
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C $ 51,000,00 $ 2,50t N/A
December 31, 20C $ 41,000,00 $ 7,23( N/A
December 31, 20C $ 79,200,00 $ 6,75¢ N/A
December 31, 20C $ 89,582,00 $ 6,68¢ N/A
December 31, 20¢®) — — N/A
December 31, 201(6) — — N/A
December 31, 201 $ 10,186,83 73,36¢ N/A
December 31, 201 — — N/A
Securitized Credit Facility with Union Bank, N
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20¢(6) — — N/A
December 31, 2016) — — N/A
December 31, 2016 — — N/A
December 31, 201 — — N/A
Small Business Administration Debentures (HT(4)
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C $ 55,050,00 $ 9,71¢ N/A
December 31, 20C $127,200,00 $ 4,711 N/A
December 31, 20C $130,600,00 $ 3,80¢ N/A
December 31, 201 $150,000,00 $ 3,94: N/A
December 31, 201 $125,000,00 $ 5,97¢ N/A
December 31, 201 $ 76,000,00 $ 14,78¢ N/A
Small Business Administration Debentures (HT )
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 20C — — N/A
December 31, 201 $ 20,000,00 $ 29,56 N/A
December 31, 201 $100,000,00 $ 7,47¢ N/A
December 31, 201 $149,000,00 $ 7,54z N/A

178



Table of Contents

Total
Amount Average
Outstanding
Market
Exclusive of Asset Coverag Value
Treasury per Unit
Class and Year Securities(!) per Unit @ 3
Senior Convertible Note
December 31, 201 $ 70,352,98 $ 10,62¢ $ 88t
December 31, 201 $ 71,435,78 $ 15,73 $ 1,03¢
April 2019 Notes Payabl
December 31, 201 $ 84,489,50 $ 13,30( $ 98¢
September 2019 Notes Paya
December 31, 201 $ 85,875,00 $ 13,08¢ $ 1,00%
Asse-Backed Note:
December 31, 201 $129,300,00 $ 8,691 $ 1,000

(1) Total amount of each class of senior securitiestantling at the end of the period presented, ralit@leearest thousar

(2) The asset coverage ratio for a class of sesgiourities representing indebtedness is calcutstexlir consolidated total assets, less all ligsliand indebtedness not represented by
senior securities, divided by senior securitiesesgnting indebtedness. This asset coverage satiltiplied by $1,000 to determine the Asset Cagerper Unit

(3) Not applicable because senior securities are g@tezed for public trading

(4) Issued by HT II, one of our SBIC subsidiaries,ite SBA. These categories of senior securities wersubject to the asset coverage requirementsedf940 Act

(5) Issued by HT Ill, one of our SBIC subsidiariesthie SBA. These categories of senior securities wetsubject to the asset coverage requiremeriteedf940 Act

(6) The Compan’'s Wells Facility and Union Bank Facility had no tmwings outstanding during the periods noted ab

14. Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

The following tables set forth certain quarterlydincial information for each of the last eight qees ended December 31, 2012. This
information was derived from the Company’s unautlitensolidated financial statements. Results fgrqararter are not necessarily indicative
of results for the full year or for any further qtea.

Quarter Ended

(in thousands, except per share datz 3/31/201: 6/30/201: 9/30/201: 12/31/201.
Total investment income $ 22,367 $ 23,85¢ $ 23,90: $ 27,39
Net investment income before provision for incorrees and investment gains and los 11,37¢ 12,31( 11,35 13,07:
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting dperation: 17,10¢ 48 4,74¢ 24,86:
Change in net assets per common share (t 0.3€ — 0.0¢ 0.47

Quarter Ended

3/31/201. 6/30/201. 9/30/201. 12/31/201
Total investment income $ 19,15: $ 20,82 $ 18,68¢ $  21,20(
Net investment income before provision for incoress and investment gains and los 9,80¢ 10,36( 8,59: 10,83:
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting dperation: 2,177 24,317 6,228 17,57«
Change in net assets per common share (k 0.2 0.5€ 0.14 0.2t

15. Subsequent Events
Dividend Declaration

On February 26, 2013 the Board of Directors inaddabe quarterly dividend by $0.01, or approxima#e02%, and declared a cash
dividend of $0.25 per share to be paid on Marchi2Dd.3 to shareholders of record as of March 11320lis dividend will represent the
Company’s thirtieth consecutive dividend declamatince its initial public offering, bringing thetal cumulative dividend declared to date to
$7.89 per share.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
Not Applicable.

Item 9a.  Controls and Procedures
1. Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The management of Hercules Technology Growth Claprita (the “Company”) has established disclostoetrols and procedures to
ensure that the information required to be disddsethe Company in the reports that it files doraits under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pienids specified in SEC rules and forms and thel $nformation is accumulated and
communicated to management of the Company, witlpéngcipation of its Chief Executive Officer andhi€f Financial Officer, as appropriate,
to allow timely decisions regarding required discice.

As of the end of the period covered by this repsé,carried out an evaluation, under the supenviaiod with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Offi&jef Financial and Accounting Officer, of the effieeness of the design and operation of
our disclosure controls and procedures (as defm&iile 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Ad&984). Based on that evaluation, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offidesve concluded that our disclosure controls andeuiures are effective.

2. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
a. Management’s Annual Report on Internal Contree©Financial Reporting

The Company is responsible for establishing andtamiing adequate internal control over finanoggdorting and for the assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over finahc@porting. As defined by the SEC, internal cohtreer financial reporting is a process
designed under the supervision of the Companyicjal executive and principal financial and acamgofficer, approved and monitored by
the Company’s Board of Directors, and implementgdianagement and other personnel, to provide reas®massurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements in accordance with lgé&herally accepted accounting principles.

The Company’s internal control over financial repay is supported by written policies and procedutkat (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detlrately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the Company’s assets;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transadi@nsecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, andridwipts and expenditures of the Company are beaxdg only in accordance with
authorizations of the Company’s management andtdire; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regppidevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of@wnpany’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management of the Company conducted an assessirthet@fectiveness of the Compasyhternal control over financial reporting a:
December 31, 2012 based on criteria establishétennal Control— Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“the Ca38@mework”). Based on this assessment, managdmasrtoncluded that the
Company’s internal control over financial reportings effective as of December 31, 2012.
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Report of the Independent Registered Public Accouirig Firm

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal cortk@r financial reporting as of December 31, 2042 been audited by
Pricewaterhousecoopers LLP, an independent regisfarblic accounting firm who also audited the Canmys consolidated financial
statements, as stated in their report, which ikided in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting in 2012

There have been no changes in our internal coowel financing reporting, as defined in Rules 183&)1and 15d-15(f) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, that occurred during the Camyfs most recently completed fiscal quarter thet imaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Company’s intermaintrol over financial reporting.

ltem 9B.  Other Information
None.
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PART IlI

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govere

Information in response to this Item is incorpodalberein by reference to the information providedur definitive Proxy Statement for
our 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “2Bt@xy Statement”) to be filed with the Securitiesl &xchange Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Adi9®4 under the headings “Proposal I: Election @&&ors,” “Information About
Executive Officers Who Are Not Directors” and “Cairt Relationships And Transactions.”

We have adopted a code of business conduct aras ¢higit applies to directors, officers and emplsy@éie code of business conduct an
ethics is available on our website at http//wwwchtgm. We will report any amendments to or waiwdra required provision of the code of
business conduct and ethics on our website ofFore 8-K.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

The information with respect to compensation ofoetiwes and directors is contained under the capttmmpensation of Executive
Officers and Directors” in our 2013 Proxy Statemamd is incorporated in this Annual Report by refie in response to this item.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ailanagement and Related Stockholder Mattt

The information with respect to security ownerstiigertain beneficial owners and management isatoatl under the captions “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managimend “Compensation of Executive Officers ande@tors” in our 2013 Proxy
Statement and is incorporated in this Annual Repgreference in response to this item.

Iltem 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions abitector Independenct

The information with respect to certain relatiopshand related transactions is contained underapion “Certain Relationships and
Transactions” and the caption “Proposal I: Electibiirectors” in our 2013 Proxy Statement anchisoirporated in this Annual Report by
reference in response to this item.

ltem 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information with respect to principal account@®s and services is contained under the captiRuirscipal Accountant Fees and
Services” and “Proposal II: Ratification of Selectiof Independent Registered Public Accountant®un2013 Proxy Statement and is
incorporated in this Annual Report by referencéhis item.
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduls
1. Financial Statements
The following financial statements of Hercules Trealogy Growth Capital, Inc. (the “Company” or theeqgistrant”) are filed
herewith:

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Statements of Assets and LiabilitiesfdDecember 31, 2012 and December 31, : 10z
Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of DeceBihe201Z 104
Consolidated Schedule of Investments as of DeceBihe2011 122
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the theaes ended December 31, 2( 14¢€
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assethdéahree years ended December 31, © 147
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the tyeaes ended December 31, 2( 14¢
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statems 14¢

2. The following financial statement schedule isdiherewith:

Schedule 1-14 Investments In and Advances to Affilia 184
3. Exhibits required to be filed by Item 601 of R&dion S-K.
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Schedule 1214

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO AFFILIAT ES
As of and for the year ended December 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Amount of As of As of
Interest December 31 December 31
Credited to
2011 Gross Gross 2012
Portfolio Company Investment @) Income (2) Fair Value Additions ) Reductions 4) Fair Value
Affiliate Investments
E-band Communications, In Senior Deb $ 4 $ — $ 35¢€ $ (35€) $ —
Preferred Stoc — — 374 (379 —
Gelesis Senior Deb 71z 3,25¢ — (3,259 —
Preferred Stoc — 1,145 42z — 1,57C
Preferred Warran — 10€ — (11) 95
Optiscar Senior Deb 1,64¢ 11,14% — (1,657 9,49(
Preferred Stoc — 2,46¢ — (2,909 56&
Preferred Warran — 872 — (720) 152
Total Control and Affliate Investments $ 2,36t $ 18,99« $ 1,152 $ (8,275) $ 11,87
(1) Stock and warrants are generally -income producing and restricted. The principal amidor debt is shown in the Consolidated Schedfilexestments as of December 31, 2C
(2) Represents the total amount of interest or dividesrddited to income for the year an investmentaveaffiliate or control investmer
(3) Gross additions include increases in the casistof investments resulting from new portfoliséstments, paid-in-kind interest or dividends,dheortization of discounts and closing
fees and the exchange of one or more existing isiesuior one or more new securities. Gross adufitialso include net increase in unrealized appieniar net decreases in unrealized
depreciation
(4) Gross reductions include decreases in thebasss of investments resulting from principal repants or sales and the exchange of one or mornexgecurities for one or more new

securities. Gross reductions also include net as&én unrealized depreciation or net decreasasrealized appreciatio

184



Table of Contents

3. Exhibits

Please note that the agreements included as extohis Form 10-K are included to provide infotima regarding their terms and are
not intended to provide any other factual or disale information about us or the other partiehi¢éoagreements. The agreements contain
representations and warranties by each of theggauithe applicable agreement that have been stdelg for the benefit of the other parties
the applicable agreement and may not describectinalastate of affairs as of the date they wereevadat any other time.

% Description

3(@) Articles of Amendment and Restateme®

3(b) Articles of Amendment, dated March 6, 20(

3(c) Articles of Amendment, dated April 5, 20122

3(d) Amended and Restated Bylav®)

4(a) Specimen certificate of the Compis common stock, par value $.001 per sh®

4(b) Form of Dividend Reinvestment Ple®

4(c) Indenture between Hercules Funding Trust | and Ba®k National Association, dated as of Augusti3(@

4(d) Eggenture between Hercules Technology Growth Chpite. and U.S. Bank National Association, datedBApril 15, 2011

4(e) Form of Note under the Indenture, dated as of Al%jl2011(3)

4(f) Indenture between the Registrant and U.S. BanloNatiAssociation, dated as of March 6, 2((2¢

4(9) First Supplemental Indenture between the RegistmadtU.S. Bank National Association, dated as aflApy, 2012.26)

4(h) gge}zcond Supplemental Indenture between the RedisinahU.S. Bank National Association, dated asepft@&mber 24, 2012.

4(i) Form of 7.00% Senior Note due 2019, dated as ofl Agr 2012 (Existing April 2019 Note) (included part of Exhibit 4
(9)). @

4() Form of 7.00% Senior Note due 2019, dated as @f@u012 (Additional April 2019 Note?)

4(k) Form of 7.00% Senior Note due 2019, dated as @f112yl 2012 (Ove-Allotment April 2019 Note)@8)

4(I) Form of 7.00% Senior Note due 2019, dated as ofe®der 24, 2012 (September 2019 Note) (includgzhasof Exhibit 4
(h)). @

4(m) Form of 7.00% Senior Note due 2019, dated as obliaet2, 2012 (Ov-Allotment September 2019 Not«3%

4(n) Form of 7.00% Senior Note due 2019, dated as oblaet17, 2012 (Ov-Allotment Il September 2019 NoteEV

10(a) Credit Agreement between Hercules Technology Gr@®#hital, Inc. and Alcmene Funding, L.L.C., datecb&April 12,
2005.®

10(b) Pledge and Security Agreement between Herculesnbéafpy Growth Capital, Inc. and Alcmene Funding,.C., dated as
of April 12, 2005.®

10(c) First Amendment to Credit and Pledge Security Agrexet between Hercules Technology Growth Capital, amd Alcmene
Funding L.L.C., dated as of August 1, 20@

10(d) Second Amendment to Credit and Pledge and Sedugityement by and among Hercules Technology Groveghit@l, Inc.

and Alcmene Funding, L.L.C., as lender and adnatist agent for the lenders, dated as of Marc066.12)
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Exhibit

Number Description

10(e) Loan Sale Agreement between Hercules Funding LLdCHercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc., date@dBAugust 1,
2005.@

10(f) Sale and Servicing Agreement among Hercules Funtiagt |, Hercules Funding LLC, Hercules Technol@ypwth
Capital, Inc., U.S. Bank National Association anah Financial Services, Inc., dated as of Augug0D5.?

10(g) Indenture between Hercules Funding Trust | & U.&nBNational Association, dated as of August 1,52

10(h) Note Purchase Agreement among Hercules Fundingd Trdercules Funding | LLC, Hercules Technology®th Capital,
Inc. and Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp.,edhas of August 1, 200@)

10(i) Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. 2004 Eguitcentive Plan (2011 Amendment and Restatem(0

10() Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. 2006 -Employee Director Plan (2007 Amendment and Restgn®1)

10(k) Form of Custody Agreement between the Company anidriBank of California®

10(1) Form of Restricted Stock Award under the 2004 Bauitentive Plant9

10(m) Subscription Agreement by and among the Companyttendubscribers named therein, dated as of Mar2@as.47

10(n) Form of Incentive Stock Option Award under the 2@ty Incentive Plar®)

10(0) Form of No statutory Stock Option Award under ti0®2 Equity Incentive Plai®

10(p) Form of Registrar Transfer Agency and Service Agrest between the Company and American Stock TragsTeust
Company @)

10(q) Warrant Agreement, dated as of June 22, 2004, leettvee Company and American Stock Transfer & T@@hpany, as
warrant agent®

10(r) Subscription Agreement, dated as of February 24 266tween the Company and the subscribers nareesirit®)

10(s) Lease Agreement, dated as of June 13, 2006, betlveglompany and 400 Hamilton Associa®

10(t) Third Amendment to Sale and Servicing Agreementragrtéercules Funding Trust |, Hercules Funding LH@rcules
Technology Growth Capital, Inc., U.S. Bank NatioAakociation and Lyon Financial Services, Inc.edas of July 28,
2006.4)

10(u) Second Omnibus Amendment by and among Herculesifgiidust I, Hercules Funding | LLC, Hercules Teolugy

Growth Capital, Inc., U.S. Bank National Associatibyon Financial Services, Inc. and Citigroup GlbMarkets Realty
Corp., dated as of December 6, 2C®

10(v) Fifth Amendment to Sale and Servicing Agreemenaihg among Hercules Funding Trust I, Hercules FundiaLC,
Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc., U.S. Batdtional Association, Lyon Financial Services,.land Citigroup
Global Markets Realty Corp., dated as of MarchZm7.(13)

10(w) Amended and Restated Sale and Servicing Agreenyeamidbamong Hercules Funding Trust I, Hercules FagntLLC, the
Company, U.S. Bank National Association, Lyon FitiahServices, Inc., Citigroup Global Markets Iremd Deutsche Bank
AG, dated as of May 2, 20014

10(x) Fourth Amendment to the Warrant Participation Agreat by and among Hercules Technology Growth Clapite. and
Citigroup Global Markets Realty Corp., dated a®efy 2, 2007 (15
10(y) Amended and Restated Note Purchase Agreement bgraodg the Company, Hercules Funding Trust |, HescEunding |

LLC, and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc., dated &diay 2, 2007 (15
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Exhibit
Number

10(z)

10(aa)

10(bb)
10(cc)

10(dd)
10(ee)

10(ff)
10(g9)
10(hh)
10(ii)
103
10(kK)

10(1ly

10(mm

10(nn)

10(00)
10(pp)

10(qq)

10(rr)

Description

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Note PsecAgreement by and among the Company, Herculegifgifirust |
Hercules Funding | LLC, and Citigroup Global Markeinc., dated as of May 7, 20(2®)

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Saleaamiti8g Agreement by and among Hercules FundingsfTi,
Hercules Funding | LLC, the Company, U.S. Bank biaal Association, Lyon Financial Services, Inctjgtoup Global
Markets Inc., and Deutsche Bank AG, dated as of Ma&3008 (16

Loan and Security Agreement by and among Herculeslifg Il LLC and Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC, dated of August 2&
2008.18

Sale and Servicing Agreement among Hercules FuntlingC, the Company, Lyon Financial Services, lrand Wells
Fargo Foothill, LLC, dated as of August 25, 208)

Form of SBA Debenture1®)

First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementrxy @among Hercules Funding I, LLC and Wells Fargothill, LLC,
dated as of April 30, 200120

Loan and Security Agreement by Hercules Techno®gywth Capital, Inc. and Union Bank, N.A., datecb&&ebruary 10,
2010.@y

Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemeainidyamong Hercules Funding Il LLC and Wells Fargpi€l
Finance, LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC), dat as of June 20, 2014

Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreeméneba the Company and Union Bank, N.A., dated a$éasfember 2,
2011.@9

Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemeainidyamong Hercules Funding Il LLC and Wells Fargpi€l
Finance, LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC), dat as of June 20, 2014

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan andrBge Agreement by and between Hercules TechnoGgywth
Capital, Inc. and Union Bank, N.A., dated as of &a80, 201232

Third Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementiiny among Hercules Funding Il LLC and Wells Farg@i@é Finance
LLC (f/k/a Wells Fargo Foothill, LLC), dated as Afigust 1, 201233)

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Loanendity Agreement by and between Hercules Techryogwth
Capital, Inc. and Union Bank, N.A., dated as oft8ayber 17, 201264

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan andrig Agreement by and between Hercules Techno®gywth
Capital, Inc. and Union Bank, N.A., dated as of &aber 17, 201:34

First Omnibus Amendment by and among Hercules Fuyn@irust |, Hercules Funding I, LLC, Hercules Tealogy Growth
Capital, Inc., U.S. Bank National Association, Lyeimancial Services, Inc. and Citigroup Global M&eRealty Corp.,
dated as of March 6, 20C2

Intercreditor Agreement among Hercules Technology@h Capital, Inc., Alcmene Funding, L.L.C. andi@ioup Global
Markets Realty Corp., dated as of March 6, 2(12

Warrant Participation Agreement between the CompantlyCitigroup Global Markets Realty Corp., date®BAugust 1,
2005.69

Indenture by and between Hercules Capital Fundimugti2012-1 and U.S. Bank National Associationedats of December
19, 201269

Amended and Restated Trust Agreement by and betiwerrules Capital Funding 2012-1 LLC and Wilminginust,
National Association, dated as of December 19, 239)
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Exhibit
Number

10(ss)
10(tt)

10(uu)

10(vv)
10(ww)

14
21.1*
23.1*
31(a)*
31(b)*
32(a)*

32(b)*

Description

Sale and Servicing Agreement by and Among HerdObgstal Funding 2012-1 LLC, Hercules Capital Fugdirrust 2012-1
LLC, Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. andUBank National Association, dated as of DecerBeR012 (36)

Sale and Contribution Agreement by and between ilescTechnology Growth Capital, Inc. and Herculapi@l Funding
2012-1 LLC, dated as of December 19, 206

Note Purchase Agreement among the Hercules Teawm@eoowth Capital, Inc., Hercules Capital Fundiifz-1 LLC, as
Trust Depositor, Hercules Capital Funding Trust2Q] as Issuer, and Guggenheim Securities, LL@itial Purchaser,
dated as of December 12, 206

Administration Agreement between Hercules Capitaiding Trust 2012-1LLC, Hercules Technology Growdpital, Inc,
Wilmington Trust, National Association, and U.S nRdNational Association, dated as of December 092236

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan andrig Agreement by and between Hercules Techno&gywth
Capital, Inc. and Union Bank N.A., dated as of Deber 19, 201236

Code of Ethics®

List of Subsidiaries

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, indeperdgigtered public accounting firr

Certification of Chief Executive Officer PursuantRule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1
Certification of Chief Financial Officer PursuantRule 13-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuantt8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuantdtd®e906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. 135(

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuantdtd®e906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. 135(

1) Previously filed as part of F-Effective Amendment No. 2, as filed on June 8, 2(Ré&gistration No. 3%-122950), to the Registration Statement on Fol-2 of the Company

2) Previously filed as part of the Current Report @nni €-K of the Company, as filed on August 5, 20

3) Previously filed as part of the Current Report onnfr £&-K of the Company, as filed on March 2, 20

4) Previously filed as part of the Current Report onnf €-K of the Company, as filed on June 13, 2(

5) Previously filed as part of the Current Report onnf €-K of the Company, as filed on July 28, 20

(6) Previously filed as part of the Current Report @i &-K of the Company, as filed on December 6, 2(

()] Previously filed as part of the Current Report @nnf &-K of the Company, as filed on March 9, 20

(8) Previously filed as part of a F-Effective Amendment No. 1, as filed on May 17, 2QBBe No. 33-122950), to the Registration Statement on Fo-2 of the Company

9) Previously filed as part of the Registration Staahon Form |-2 of the Company (File No. 3-122950), as filed on February 22, 20

(10) Previously filed as part of the Securitieb&Offered to Employees in Employee Benefit Planform S-8, as filed on June 22, 2007 and the RieBrProxy Statement of the
Company, as filed on April 29, 201

(11) Previously filed as part of the Securities to bée€fd to Employees in Employee Benefit Plans omFg-8, as filed on October 10, 20C

(12) Previously filed as part of the P-Effective Amendment No. 3, as filed on March 9, @(@Bile No. 33-126604), to the Registration Statement on Fo-2 of the Company

(13) Previously filed as part of the Current Report @nnf &-K of the Company, as filed on April 3, 20(

(14) Previously filed as part of the Current Report @nnk &-K of the Company, as filed on May 5, 201

(15) Previously filed as part of the I-Effective Amendment No. 1, as filed on May 15, 2@Bile No. 33.-141828), to the Registration Statement on Fo-2 of the Company

(16) Previously filed as part of F-Effective Amendment No. 2, as filed on June 5, 20 No. 33:-150403 ), to the Registration Statement on Fo-2 of the Company
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(17
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
(27)
(28)
(29)
(30)
(31)
(32)
(33)
(34)
(35
(36)

Previously filed as part of the P-Effective Amendment No. 3, as filed on March 9, @(Bile No. 33-126604), to the Registration Statement on Fo-2 of the Company
Previously filed as part of the Current Report onnf €-K of the Company, as filed on August 27, 20

Previously filed as part of the Annual Report omrd.(-K of the Company, as filed on March 16, 20

Previously filed as part of the Quarterly Reportrammm 1(-Q of the Company, as filed on May 11, 20
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&i(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduty authorized.

H ERCULES T ECHNOLOGY G ROWTH C APITAL , | NC.

Date: February 28, 201 By: /s/ M ANUEL A. H ENRIQUEZ

Manuel A. Henriquez
Chief Executive Officel

In accordance with the Securities Exchange Act9@41 this report has been signed below by thevatlg persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the following capacities on Feloyl28, 2013.

Signature Title. Date
/s/ M ANUEL A. H ENRIQUEZ Chairman of the Board, President and Chief February 28, 2013
Manuel A. Henriquez Executive Officer (principal executive office
/s/ JESSICAB ARON Vice President Finance and February 28, 2013
Jessica Baron Chief Financial Officer

(principal accounting officet

/s/ ALLYN C. WOODWARD, JR Director February 28, 2013
Allyn C. Woodward, Jr.

/s/ JosepHW. CHow Director February 28, 2013
Joseph W. Chow

/'s/ ROBERTP. BADAVAS Director February 28, 2013
Robert P. Badavas
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23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independgigtered public accounting fir

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Seauitkehange Act of 1934,
as amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 30 mdige-Oxley Act of 2002*

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Seaufikehange Act of 1934,
as amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 mdige-Oxley Act of 2002*

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906 of Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 20021

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906 of Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 20021



List of Subsidiaries

Hercules Technology SBIC Management, LLC
Hercules Technology I, L.P.

Hercules Technology llI, L.P.

Hercules Technology IV, L.P.

Hercules Technology Management Co Il Inc.
Hercules Technology Management Co Il Inc.
Hercules Technology Management Co V Inc.
Hercules Funding Il, LLC

Hydra Ventures LLC

Hydra Ventures Il LLC

Hydra Management LLC

Hercules Technology I, LLC

Hercules Technology II, LLC

Hercules Capital Funding Trust 2012-1
Hercules Capital Funding 2012-1 LLC

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-B84002 and 333-146445) of
Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. of ouraeplated February 28, 2013 relating to the finalnsiatements and the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, whichpagars in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Francisco, CA
February 28, 2013



Exhibit 31(a)
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES RCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS AMENDED

I, Manuel A. Henriquez, President, Chief Executdéicer and Director of the Company, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. (thedistrant”) for the year
ended December 31, 2012;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiora@ny untrue statement of a material fact or déonftate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloing, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataare with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finaieeporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors p@rsons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaiad report financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadwaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 28, 2013 By: /s/ MaNUEL A. H ENRIQUEZ

Manuel A. Henriquez
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31(b)
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES RCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS AMENDED

I, Jessica Baron, Vice President Finance and Ghinefncial Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)enrify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. (thedistrant”) for the year
ended December 31, 2012;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or déonftate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bd)) and internal control over financial repogti(as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulatlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloging, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataare with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finaieeporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’s board of directors p@rsons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaiad report financial information;
and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invadwaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: February 28, 2013 By: /s|  JESSICAB ARON
Jessica Baror
Vice President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32(a)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 1350, CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repbiiercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. (the f@many”) on Form 10« for the
year ended December 31, 2012 (‘Report”) as filed with the Securities and Exchai@mmmission on the date hereof, I, Manuel Henriguez

Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,ttee best of my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.B581as adopted pursuant to 8906 of the
Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable¢he Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations
of the Company.

Date: February 28, 2013 By: /s/ MaNUEL A. H ENRIQUEZ
Manuel A. Henriquez
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32(b)
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 1350, CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the accompanying Annual Repbiiercules Technology Growth Capital, Inc. (the fmany”) on Form 10k for the
year ended December 31, 2012 (‘Report”) as filed with the Securities and Exchai@@mmission on the date hereof, |, Jessica Baron,

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer of ther@pany, certify, to the best of my knowledge, parguo 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted
pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@@&;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable¢he Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations
of the Company.

Date: February 28, 2013 By: /s/ JESSICAB ARON
Jessica Baror
Vice President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer
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